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HAMMERSON AT A GLANCE

Hammerson at aglance

Creating exceptional city centre
destinations that realise value for
our stakeholders, connects our
communities and delivers a
positive impact for generations
to come.

LES 3FONTAINES,
CERGY

Managed portfolio

Ownership:

Area, m3
No. of tenants:

™

Pavilions,
Swords

Union Square,
Aberdeen




. Managed portfolio
"2 ° Birmingham Cstate, Birmingham
" Bishopsgate Goodsyard, London
Brent Cross, London
"' Bristol Estate, Bristol
. Centrale and Whitgift, Croydon
Eastgate, Leeds
~ The Cracle, Reading
. Union Sguare, Aberdeen
© Westquay, Southampton

&3 Dublin Central, Dublin
i Burcdiurir Estate, Dublin
&3 Tlac Centre, Dublin

£€3 Pavilions, Swords

o Italie Deux, Paris

Les 3 Fontaines, Cergy
€ Les Terrasses du Port, Marseille
€ C'Pariner, Paris

Value Retail

Bicester Village, Bicester
Fidenza Village, Milan
Ingolstadt Village, Munich
Kildare village, Dublin
LaRocaVillage, Barcelona

Las Rozas Village, Madrid
LaVvallee Village, Paris
Maasmechelen Village, Brussels
Wertheim Village, Frankfurt

Les Terrasses du Port, 3 Bristol Estate,
Marseille ’ Bristol
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WELCOME FROM QUR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Welcome from our
Chief Executive

Overthe last two years, the new management
team and I have focused on two key objectives.
First, focusing and simplifying the business to
stabilise the core income slream and return it
to underlying growth.

Second, starting to rebuild value within our
existing portfolio and to create optionality on
how we unlock the substantial value in our
development portfolio.

We are and will continue to be disciplined
allocators of capital. We assess and select the
best returns for shareholders, mindful of our
own cost of capital and all options for capital
deployment, including further debt retirement
and distributions for shareholders.

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive
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OUR ASSETS AND DEVELOPMENTS

CASE STUDY

Unlocking our prime
urban multi-use

Totalacres
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A prime urban multi-use estate across 26 acres
in principal south Dublinlocation.

Dundrum Town Centre is Ireland’s pre-eminent
retail destination and point of entry for new brands,
international and homegrown, by some considerable
margin. To capitalise and drive furthervalue we

are advancing at pace ambitious plans to unlock

the complementary value of the adjacent
development land.

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES

Strength of core retail 2

— Re-anchored 18,600m? since 2020 to Brown Thomas,
Penneys & Dunnes Stores

— This created momentum to leverage ourinternational
relationships and attract firsts to Ireland brands
including Nike Live Concept and Watches of
Switzerland, as well as Ireland’s largest Lush store

Successful diversification @ £

— Commencement of construction October 2022 of
The Ironworks residential development comprising
122 apartments over existing car park

— Establishedthriving restaurant, social, leisure
and cultural hubin the architecturally acclaimed
Pembroke Square redevelopment anchored by
premium bowling concept

— Converted former storage to 1,000m? penthouse office
suite —occupier identified and contract in discussion

Unlocking Dundrum for generations tocome £

— Planning decision awaited for residential led application
for c. 900 apartments across sixacre site

— Design of residential scheme informed by key design
principles and based on stakeholder feedback:
nclusivity, sustainability and revitalisation of town
main street

— Create contemporary and vibrant residential location
to deliver aworld class multi-use estate
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VWe are pleased with the progress
made in 2022 aswe accelerate
development tounlock furthervalue
of the Dundrum Esfate and create
Dublin’s lifestyle destination of choice.
Marrying ablend of uses, including
residential, food, entertainment,
healthcare and workspace anchored
hy Dundrum Town Centre, Ireland’s
premier retaitand leisure destination.

&

g
&

Connor Owens
Managing Director Asset Management (Ireland & Scotland)




STRATEGICREFPORYT

OUR ASSETS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Located in Val d’Qise, Cergy, onthe edge of Paris,
Les 3 Fontaines is the region’s leading urban retailand
leisure destination.

Comprising 6f 25 acres Les 3 Fontaines sits at the
heart of the ‘New City’, a majorreinvestment and
redevelopmentarea to introduce 5,000+ new
residents, 20,000m? of office space and amain
transport hub to the city by 2025.

Leveraging the redevelopment of the area, its ‘New
City’ status, and public transpert links, Hammerson
hasreinvented Les 3 Fontaines to become a city centre
inits ownright,

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES

Thiee sy Themes

Strength of core retail

— Re-anchored since 2018 with 18 new brands and
renewals including Zara, H&M and Footlocker

— Completion of the new 34,000m? extension in March
2022 adding 72 rew high orofile brands including
Adidas, 1D Sparts and Rituals, alongside store firsts
in this region for LEGO, Tommy Hilfiger and Miniso

Successful diversification

Diversified the occupier mix to reflect the emerging needs
and expectations of our visitors, customers, occupiers and
the wider community. Thisincludes:

— Introduction of education, healthcare providers and
city centre retajlers

— Creation of a new dedicated food and social hub
DISTRICT, offering 14+ restaurants and dining outlets
including Vapiano and Big Fernand

Focus on sustainability and social value
Creating exceptional, sustainable destinations that deliver
a positive impact for generations to come is our goal.

Les 3 Fontaines extension was developed with
sustainability in mind. This included:

— Use of low carbon concrete alternative, 99% of the
steel used from recycled materials and operationally
75% of the waste is alsorecycled

— Les Fontaines de lemploi was created to support the
community, in partnership with the Mayor and local
associations. Offering 1,300 local iob seekers
employment workshops, recruitment companies
and interview training
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Maximising core
retail opportunities
and diversifying the
occupier mix

Les 3 Fontaines, Cergy

14

We are proud of the Les 3
Fontaines transformation
and have created an
exciting destination at the
heart of the city. This sees
us become the new
reference forstudents,
families, employees and
the widercommunity. g

Renaud Mollard
Managing Director France
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STRATEGICRERFORT

OUR ASSETS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Birminghamis one ofthe youngest and
most diverse cities in Europe, which
underpins its current and future growth,
including major nationalinfrastructure
and culturalinvestment.

Birmingham showcases Hammerson’s
strategyin action as we bring together
Bullring, Grand Central and Martineau
Galleries into our Birmingham Estate.

With ownership extendingto 35 acres,
equating to 15% of the city core,
Hammerson’s Birmingham Estateis at
the heart and provides social, cultural and
commercial opportunities that engages
tens of millions of people each year.

Builring welcomes over 30m visitors each
year and is one of the most successful retall
destinations inthe UK.

Grand Centralis connected directly to Buliring
which sits astride the most connected raitway
station in the UK.

Martineau Galleries completes cur estate,
with seven acres positioned directly opposite
the new HS2 Curzon Station. This has outline
consentforafurther 23,000m2of commercial
and residential uses.

Individually each asset has the potential to
holistically enhance the Estate. By leveraging
the halo effect we are able to capitalise and
drive value for our stakehalders, the local
economy and the city asawhole.

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES

Three ey Thoines

Repurposing and successful diversification

— Repositioning and repurposing of the
former Debenhams to introduce a new
M&S and TOCA Social, reflectinga
combined investment from Hammerson,
CPPInvestments and M&Sof £18m

— Newsocialand entertainment investment
of E8mi creating 7,200m2 of repurposed
space tointroduce TQCA Sacial, Lane 7
and Sandbox VR

— Brand engagement and investrment —
c.£15m inward flagship brand investment
from Nike, TAG Heuer and JD Sports

Placemaking - engaging our visitors in new,
smart and memorable ways

Atthe heart of the City, the Birmingham Estate
hosts and supports events and activations
across the yearoffering ourvisitors
entertainment, immersive moments,

food and social and retail.

Including:

— Official sponsor of the Commonwealth
Games, attracting 1.8m visitors over
the event

— 220,000 visitorsto the Birmingham
Carnival

— BirminghamWeekender, B-Side Hip-Hop
festivaland Birmingham Pride

Unlocking our estate for generations

to come

Planning submitted for ‘Drum’ the repurposing
of 18,500m2 of former retail space to create
anew paradigm of city centre workplace,
incorporating the best levels of amenity and
connectivity. Allcomplementing the existing
food and social hubin Grand Centralandthe
retail and entertainment brands Bullring

has to offer.

Martineau Galleries — with planning obtained,
we continue to work with our partners to
deliverawarld class commercialand
residential district, Supported by outstanding
infrastructure connections and underpinned
by open, multi-use amenity and cultural
spaces, Martineau Galleries willsee us
further leverage the benefitof the wider
Birmingham estate.

Further milestones achieved with land
assemnbly, phasing, enabling and vacant

possession, working towards initial demolition
and site enahbling.

| I
[
r,

Harry Badham{pictured right, commenting
on Drum repurposing)

Chief Develapment and Asset Repasitioning Officer
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Toby Tait (pictured left)
Director, Asset Management
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ABE STUDY
Repositioning and
diversifying our 35 acre
prime Birmingham Estate

Visitors perannum (2022)
{Bullring and Grand Central)
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CREPORT

CHAIR GF THE BOARD’S STATEMENT

Chair of the Board’s

Statement

LIRS SrTLN 200

Inflation was already embedded in the supply
chain as the UK and Europe begantoc emerge
from Covid-19 resirictions, Then Russia’s
invasion of Ukraine in February caused
devastation to millions of Ukrainians and an
energy crisis across Europe. As governments
fought with these events, central banks
grappled with accelerating inflation, lenders
became more cautious, borrowers became
increasingly concerned and consumers faced
acostaf living crisis not seenin decades.

Although risk levels remained elevated, the
new Hammerson tearmhas astrong grip onthe
business and has built a two~yeat track record

of consistent operational and financial delivery.

Today, [am pleased that Harmmersonis a
better, more focused and resilient business
with a strengthened bhalance sheet; a core
portfolio of city centre estates that continue

to attract the best occupiers; new ways of
working; asignificantly reduced cost base; and
unexploited valuein its unique development
oppartunities, The tearnis focused on
executing aclear strategy todeliver apath

to growth.

Dol ol
Loardona:

IR EIURAE ey e
The retirement of Gwyn Burrand Andrew
Formicaat the conclusion of the 2022 AGM
was coverad in lastyear’s annual report.
Having joined the Board in June 2020,
Des de Beer stepped down as a Non-Executive
Directorin October. Des helped guide the
Company through some difficult challenges
during his time on the Board and we benefitted
frorm his deep experience in both retailand
capital markets. He leaves with our thanks for
his positive contribution, and we wish himwell.

The Board now comprises six Non-Executive
and two Executive Directors, with an average
tenure of 2.5 years. Nofurther changes are
currently planned.

QOurBoard evaluationin 2022 was an

external review carried out by Board Alchemy.
The review of the effectiveness of the Board
andits Committeas included individual
interviews with all Directors and various
regularatiendees, observing a Board meeting
in Junie and discussing the results of the
review with the Board in October.
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Robert Noel
Chairof the Board

The review concluded that the Board is
effective. Board Alchemy made various
recommendations including the emphasis
given tocertain topics. These have been
incorporated into our Board plan for 2023 and
progress against these recommendations will
be monitored during the year, The effectiveness
of Directors was also within the scope of the
evaluation and [ am pleased to report that
considerable progress has been made since
the last external review was undertakenin
2019. All Directors are fully engaged in offering
awide range of perspectives and relevant
skills. More information on the review canbe
foundon pages 70and 71.

The Board values its diversity. I'm pleased
toreportthat 37.5% of the Board are female
and we exceed the target set outin the Parker
Review to have at least one directorfrom
aminority ethnic group. Further details are
contained in the Nomination and Governance
Committee Report on pages 7210 75.

Birmingham Estate,
Birmingham
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Robert Noel
Chairof the Board

ESG

Hammerson is committed to reaching

Net Zero by 2030. The Board is also fully
committed to the Group's continuing
recognition as a sustainability leaderinthe
round, ensunng Lhe highest standards of
operational performance and corporate
governance. To achieve our aims we need

to maintain the support of our cccupiers,
customers, partners, the communities
affected by our operations, our colleagues, and
ourequity and debt investars. Collectively our
stakcholders have numerous and changing
demands on the way the business conducts
itself. We endeavour to maintain the right
balance as these demands continue to evolve,
and totreateveryone in line with our values.

Last year we set out our response to the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD). This yearwe have set out our path

to be anet zero carbon business by 2030.
Details of our plans and our sustainability
performance are setout on pages 25to 31,
with more detail available in our ESG Report
2022, which is available on our website at
www_hammersan. com.

During the year, the Group provided assistance
tocolleagues in response to the emerging cost
of living crisis. A salary supplement was
awarded toall colleagues onannualsalaries

of less than £/€60,000. This was paid in four
equal instalments frorn November to February
inthe UKandIreland, andasaone-off for
French colleagues, The Group has also made
differentiated pay awards in March 2023
benefitting those in lower salary bands.
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Dividend

As explained in last year’sannual report, the
Board continued to satisty our REIT and SIIC
distribution requirementsthrough offering an
enhanced scrip dividend during the year. Atthe
AGMon 28 Apil 2022 shareholders approved
afinal 2021 cash dividend of 0.2p per share
with an enhanced scrip optionof 2p pershare,
entirely paid asa PID, andthen at a General
Meeting on 25 October 2022 shareholders
approved aninterim 2022 cash dividend of
0.2p pershare, alsowith an enhanced scrip
option of 2p per share.

The payments made to date have satisfied
our REIT and SIIC distribution requirements
for 2022 and the Board will therefore not be
recommending a further paymentin respect
of 2022.

As previously announced, the Board
anticipates recommending the reinstatement
ofacash dividend for2023. Ttis expected this
will be at least the minimum reguiredto
continue to meet our REIT/SIIC distribution
abligations. Further information will be given at
the Company’s half year results announcement.

Leoking ahear

Since the year end, Hammerson has moved

its London head office to new, smaller offices.
Not only does this save significant cost and
give increased flexibility, it gives us closer
proximity to key partners. It also coincides with
arcfresh of the Group's values and new ways of
working, marking a new chapter for colleagues
who have faced up to the challenges of the last
three years with stoicism and significant effort,
Iwould liketo thank them againfortheir
contribution and commitment.

The leadershipteam have achieved a great
dealin 25 months. Hammersaon is a better
businesstodaythan it wasin 2020. The Board
is confident the strategy isthe right one —
focused on city centre estates with an
attractive development portfolic. 2023 will be
anotherimportant year inour transformation
with the Board and executive leadershipteam
remaining laser focused on delivering long
term value creation for all stakeholders.

Robert Noel
Chair of the Board



STRATECIC REPGRY

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Chief Executive’s

Statement

We have delivered another strong year

of strategic, operational, and financial
progress against a challenging economic
backdrop. At the beginning of 2022, we
could not have foreseen the extent of the
volatility of the economic and political
environmentthat unfolded driven by
geopolitical eventsin Ukraine, China’s zero
Covid policy, and political change in the UK.

We do notyet knaw the full impact of the cost
of living crisis, a period of higher inflation and
interest rates, and continued supply chain
disruption. Moreover, this year highlighted

the value of sustainable sources of energy.
Qurcommitment ta ESG and Net Zeroremains
absclute, and we finished the year with fully
costed Net Zero Asset Plans forevery flagship
asset in the managed portfolio.

We set out aclear strategy in June 20271 and
our performance in 2022 underscares Gur
beliefthat we are strongly positioned to deliver
attractive total returns aver the mediumterm.
Overthe last two years, the new management

team and I have focused on two key obiectives:

— Simplifying the business to stabilise the
coreincome stream and toreturnitto
underlying growth reflected inlike-for-like
GRIgrowingin 2022 by 8%

— Starting to rebuild value in our existing
partfolio whilst at the same time creating
aptionality on how we unlock the deep
development value in our portfolio

we willcontinue to be disciplined allocators
of capital and select the best returns for
shareholders, mindfulof our own cost of
capitaland all options for capital deployment
including debt retirement, and distributions
forshareholders.

Despite this uncertain and volatile backdrop,
we have beendisciplined in the execution
against these abjectives focusing on what
we can control. Our ppera*onal andfinancial
performance is proof positive that our
strategy is working:

— Weare enlivening and reinvigorating our
assets by introducing new Occupiers,
uses and concepts. In recognition of the
impartance of placemaking, we attracted
asenior leader in anewly-created role who
has already brought an increased emphasis
oncommercialisation, marketing, and
advertising to create exceptional spaces
forour customers and occupiers, We are
actively repurposing our destindtions aned
creating a sense of place that brings people
and experiences together

s
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Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

— Wesigned 317 leases representing £45m

of headline rent (E25mat curshare)
demanstrating the attractivenass of our
destinations and the continued flight tg
quality by occupiers

We have re-aligned the organisation to
be asset-centric, more agile and focused
onoccupiersand customers. The rapid
progress on the re-set of our operational
model delivered a17% reduction in gross
administration costs. We have already
taken steps that will deliver further
efficiency gains in 2023 and 2024

We have continued to strategically refocus
the portfalio on city centre destinations
and to simplify our portfolio, disposing of
£628m of non-core assets since the start
of 2021

Qurresulting financial pos tion is stable,
with net debtdown 4% to £1,732m,
headline LTV 39% and fully proportionally
consolidated LTV 47%, Our netdebt to
EBITDA Improved to 10.4x from 13.4xin
2021. We have ampleliguidity in cash and
undrawn commitied facilities of cE1bn

Underpinning allthis progress, we are
evolving to asustainable high-performance
culture, withincreased focus on training
and talent development



Bullring, *
Birmingham

FINANCIAL AMD OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Adjusted earnings were up 60% to £105m
reflecting a strong operating performance
across the board,

Like-for-like GRIincreased 8% following two
strong years of leasing perfarmance, and
reduced vacancy resulting in some leasing
tension retuning inour destinations.
Significant improvements in collections
performance, and the growth in GRIresulted in
like-for-like NRIimproving 29% year-on-year.

In 20271 we committed to reduce our gross
admunistration costs by 15-20% by 2023
whichwe have already delivered witha 17%
reduction year-on year. There are more
efficiencies to come from the digitalisation
of our business.

Delaveraging remains an important priority
andin 2022, we generated gross proceeds of
£195m from the disposal of non-core assets,
resulting in reduced finance costs. There was,
however, alack of Liguidity in investment
markets inthe second half of the year. We have
refinanced RCFs and redeemed the remaining
2023 eurobonds.

QOurfinancial position is stable. Net debt was
£67m lower, reflecting disposals completed
during the year. t leadtine LTV was unchanged
at 39%, while fully proportionally consolidated
LTV, including the Group’s proportionate share
of Value Retail debt was 47% (2021: 46%).
Net debtto EBITDAwas 10.4xdown from
13.4xin 2021, reflecting both lower debt
andthe improved earnings performance.

EPRANTA was £2,634m at 31 December
2022 (2021:£2,840m), adecling of 7%
year-on-year, predominantly due to the
impact of market wide yield expansion and
ERV decline on property valuations, reflecting
higher base interestrates in the second half.

Overall, the Group recorded an IFRS loss
of £164m (2021: £429mloss), largely due
toa £282m revaluation deficit, of which
96% wasin Q4.

Sales and footfall

The quality of our destinations and our
stronger asset-centric focus means that
footfalland sales in our destinations continue
to exceed national averages.
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During 2022 we saw asustained recovery
infaotfall and sales performance. Footfall for
the whole of 2022 was 39% up year-on-year
(UK +41%, France +36% and Ireland +35%),
and finished the year at around 30% of 2019
levels Fontfall rerovered steadily throughout
the year with the Group seeingan 11% point
impravement between January and
December, On the ground activity remains
rabust with strong footfall, sales and leasing
trends cantinuing into the first few maonths

of 2023.

Sales recovered strongly as consumersare
shopping less frequently but visiting our
destinations with more purpose, also avoiding
increasingly expensive delivery and return
costs charged by onlineretailers. The
improvemnent in store like-for-like performance
alsoillustrates fewer better performing
retailers reflective of our shift away from
reliance on legacy fashion toa broader mix

of best-in-class retail, food and social, services
and leisure. Overall, like-for-like turnover
rentsfor 2022 were up 111% year-on-year,
totallike-for-like sales were up double digjt
year-on-year, and +3%vs. 2019.

Ocoupancy

Our core partfolio is well positioned to benefit
fromtheincreasing polarisationin the market
and the flight to quality. Vacancy levels remain
low across our assets with the UK and France
at 4% and Ireland at only 2%. We are
beginning to see leasingtension returnin the
core portfolio. Having some vacant space
allows us to trial new concepts as wellas
initiate our longarterm strategic plans to make
ourdestinations more relevantto evolving
customer behaviour andspend.

Collections

Rent collections, bothinterms of overall
proportion collected and pace afterthedue
date have continued toimprove as trading
normalised post the pandemic. As at February
2023, 2022 Group collections were 95%,
with the UK and Ireland largely back to
pre-pandemic norms and France slightly
behind. For Q1 2023, Group rent collections
were 90%. This compares with 90% for 2021
and 83%for Q1 2022 at this time last year.

Value Retail

Value Retail saw the performance ofthe
Villages recoverclose to pre-pandemiclevels.
Brand sales increased by 34% year-on-year
and wereonly 5% lowerthan 2019 levels.
Footfallacross the Villages was resilient;
downonly 9% on 2019, Spend per visit
increased by 5% on 2019 following improved
digital marketing of domestic high net worth
customers. Value Retail expects ta benefit
from the return of the international traveller
in 2023. These trends continue into 2023.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT continued
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We setoutaclear
strategy i June 2021
andour performance
2022 underscores our
beliet that we are strongly
positicned o deliver
attractive total retums
overthe mediumterm. .

[

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

Bullring,, .
Birmingham

Overall, Value Retail signed 332 leases during
the year, showcasing the attractiveness of the
premium outlet sector. Occupancy forthe
year was at 94%, There have been 96 new
openings in 2022; Dolce & Gabbana opened
their fifth Value Retail store in Las Rozas,
Christian Louboutin opened a new store at

La Vallée and Cecconi's opened at Bicester,

The Group's share of adjusted eamings were
£27.4m,up 72%u11 2021, GRI hws incrcased
duetothe recovery of turnover rents from

12 months of fulltrading. At 31 December
2022, the Group’sinterest in Value Retail's
property portfoliowas c£1.9bnandthe net
assets were £1.2bn; the difference is
principally due to £0.7bn of net secured debt
withinthe Villages which is non-recourseto
the Group. Value Retail also successfully
refinanced over £1bn of debt facilities
principally in relation to La Valléc and Bicester.
The average LTV across the Villages is 36%.

Outlock

Near term

Whilst we remain very mindful of the uncertain
macroeconomic outlook, we have a strong
operational grip on the business and are
targetinga further 20% reduction in gross
administration costs by the end of 2024, and
to complete the £500m disposal pragramme
by the end of the year. We have strong
momentum and are well placed to deliver
anotheryear of robust underlying earnings
and cashfiow and anticipate a return tocash
dividends during the year.

The Oracle,

1F O
i19. ]
:
3
|
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Medium term

Best-in-class occupiers recognise the
importance of city centre locations and the
symbictic nature of their physicaland online
channels, and we are working in partnership
todeliver our proposition to this new reality.
This integrated experience is the Hammerson
offering and will continue to atlract the very
best occupiers during the ongoingflightto
quality. We are well placed to benefitfrom
these trends. Rents and rates have been
largely re-based, vacancy is tight, and we have
longterm certainty in our lease expiry, and
attractive yields in our managed portfolio,
that offer the potential to deliver attractive
totalreturns.

Ourunique development opportunities provide
adistinctive opportunity to create furthervalue
by bringing a broader mix of usestothe existing
estate through integral and complementary
repurposing and development which will
enhance the proposition of the whole estate.
Meanwhile, we will also create option value
on stand alone projects.

We have a strong platform and over the
medium term we see multiple opportunities
to continue to unlock deep value.




STRATEGIC AND BUSIMNESS REVIEW

We own city centre flagship destinations and
adjacent land around which we can reshape
entire neighbourhoods. Our strategy
recognises the unique position that we have
in our urban locations and the cpportunities
to leverage our experience and capabilities
to create and manage exceptional city centre
destinations that realise value for all our
stakeholders, connects our communities
and delivers a positive impact for generations
tocome,

Ouraimis simple and clear —tochart a path
10 growth that delivers total retums for
shareholders through consistent execution
against our strategic goals:

— Reinvigorate our assets
— Accelerate development
— Create an agjte platform

— Deliverasustainable and resilient
capital structure

Underpinning our strategy is our commitment
to ESG. We refreshed our strategy inthefirst
half of 2022 to demonstrate our cormmitment
to Net Zero by 2030 to deliver benefits to our
stakeholders, including comprehensive asset
by asset plans to achieve our cornmitments.

We have made significant progress towards
all our goals as follows:

Reinvigorate our assets

The quality and location of ourassetsisa

key source of competitive advantage for
Hammerson. We have same of the best assets
inthe very best prime city centre catchments
and transportation hubs, and, dueto the strong
ties we have in the communities inwhich we
operate, suppartive local authorities,

There are both near and medium term
opportunities to grow income through the
repositioning of ourassets. Forexample we
see opportunities to re-purpose department
stores for both retail, experience and multi-use
such asresidential or office use which will in
turn benefit the whole destination. Under-
utilised space can also be re-purposed for
alternative uses with new income streams
such as creating new and engaging spaces,
with a greater focus on placemaking and a
fresh approachtomarketing and reachinto
social media channels, and attracting new
occupiers and services, Cur City centre
locations are also attractive focal points for
clickand collect and last mile logistics.

In 2022, itwas important to build on the
rmomentumfrom the strong performance in
2021 and it was gratifying to see the strategy
inactionwith 317 leases signed in 2022,

2% more than 2027 excluding disposals.
Invalue terms, we secured £45m by value
(F25mat ourshare) up 10% ona like-for-like
basis and our strongest leasing performance
since 2018.

For principal deals, headline rent was 34%
above previous passing rent, equatingto
additional passing rent of £5.5m. Net effective
rent deals were 2% above ERV.

We continueto pursue aleasing policy to
diversity our mix, with non-fashion and
services accounting for 32%, and restaurant,
food and social 219%. Best-in—class and
exciting new concepts in fashion remains core
tc our offer and demanded by customers,
accounting forthe balance, 2 high proportion
of which were renewals including new
concepts and experiences.

Shortterm leasing of less than one year
(2022:74 deals) remains important to maintain
vibrancy, triai new concepts, mitigate annual
void costs of £2m and allow time to secure
longerterm deals with the best occupier for
agivenunit.

Placemaking notonly continues to enliven
space andenhance the experience for
custamers and occupiers, but also contributes
meaningfully inits own right. Our resulting
commercialisation incomeisupl3%ona
like-for-like basis. Indecd, aswe look forward
to an occupational market with a greater
technologicaland social media integration
inourspaces, we are moving from a stage

of stabilisation and initial reinvigoration

of the assets to one where the focus switches
to a greateremphasis on experience,

more focused and sophisticated marketing
and advertising, and completing our

planned repurposing.

We have continued to engage with major
occupiers ata portfolio level, resetting and
growing key relationships with those we see
as key for the future of our destinations.
Forexample;

— We have re-geared four Apple stores across
the portfolio, bringing in new concepts, with
afurthertwo under discussion

— We have secured newdeals, renewals and
expansions with Inditexand H&M, and key
upsizes with JO Sports

— We have signed two new Nike concepts into
Bullring (Rise) and Dundrum (Live}

— We have secured renewals with key footfall
andincomedrivers such as Indigoand
Monoprixin Les Terrasses du Part
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We continue to bring other new occupiers and
the newest concepts into the portfolio, such as
Lane 7 bowling at Bullring, Reserved at Brent
Cross, the first Watches of Switzerland in
Ireland at Dundrum, and VR Sandbox onthe
Birmingham Estate, driving vibrancy. footfall
and new revenue streams.

At the same time, we incubated digitally native
brands into white-boxed and permanent units
acrossthe portfolio, including furthercpenings
for Gym & Coffee in Ireland, La Coque
Frangaise inour Colab projectin France, and
Kick Game taking permanent space at Bullring.

Commercialisation and placemaking ofien
go handin hand boosting footfall and revenues
for occupiers, and enhancing the customer
experience, Itis worth highlighting in particutar:

— Pop-ups across the portfolio with key
brands from diverse sub-sectors including:
Barclays, Costa, Polestar, Dyson and Armani

— The Commonwealth Games with events
and pop-ups across the Birmingham Estate
which attracted an estimated television
audience in the hundreds of mitlions and
footfalloverthe 11 weeks of the games
of1.8m

— Qursupercarweekend in Dundrum
attracting more than 30% additional foctfall

- Les Cabanons des Terrasses during the
summerinMarseille

— QOurusual stellar roster of seasonal outdoor
bars and restaurants

We shifted our approach to marketing,
switching agencies and usingourspendina
more focused and higher-returning manner,
generatingasignificantimprovementin
impressions and engagement fromour
customers, specifically:

— Agreaterfocus on digital marketing over
traditional channels (75% of spendinQ4),
including trials with TikTok and Snap Chat
farthe firsttime

— Shifting our marketing away from general
brand awarenessto leveraging our datato
target more catchment specific marketing

— Bringing awareness ofthe local offerat
our assets

— Working with local influencers and
celebrities to build and enhance our
brand equity
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In terms of the repurposing of department
stores, we successfully completed the
repurposing of the former House of Fraser unit
in Dundrum to Brown Thamas and Penneys,
with the backfill of the latter affording the
opportunity to bring Dunnes Stores into
Dundrumforthe first time. In the UK, we have
completed the feasibility studiss and submitted
aplanning application fora major repurposing
of former retail space, predominantly
department store, at New Street Station,
Birmingham, to create anamenity rich
warkspace-led proposal, ‘Drurm’, directly

served by the UK’s most connected rail station.

At Bullring, work continues on the repurposing
of the former Debenharms unit and we are
excited to hand over to our new occupiers —
TOCA Socialand Marks & Spencer — laterthis
year, Moreover, this project kickstarted the
regeneration of this end of the scheme and
underpinned a flurry of leasing demand
in2022.

In Reading, we have worked with the local
counciltosubmita planning application forthe
major regeneration of the eastern quarter of
The Oracle; todemolish obsolete department
store space, and developaround 450 rental
apartments alongside renewed landscaping
and commercial uses. Atthe same time, this
will densify the core retail, restaurant, food
and social pitch along the riverside into our
existing scheme.

In France, we completed the 34,000m?
extension in Les 3 Fontaines, with new units
fora selection of majorinternational brands
including Lego, Lacoste, Rituals, Inditex and
H&M. As part of the broader repositioning of
the asset, we broughtin a florist, bakery and
improved restaurant and food gptions to the
adjacent Rue des Galeries, elevating the tone
of this important thoroughfare into our asset.
We continue toinvestigate the potential to
complete a final phase of the redevelopment
and bring in a major new retail offer.

Finally in Dundrum, we have brought in
alternative uses with the construction of

The Ironwaorks, a122 unitresidential
development, the first of its kind onthe
Dundrum Estate and a major proof of concept
forthe future of the wider Dundrum Estate.

ENVIRCNMEMTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE

Toacknowledge the breadth of the
sustainability agenda, we have realigned

our strategy to Environmental, Socialand
Governance. Interms of the Environmental,
ourcommitment to Net Zero by 20301s
absolute, and we achieved a 12% reduction
in like-for-like emissions in 2022, During the
yearwe invested inanindependent
assessment of our assets to align to the Paris
agreement. We developed detailed asset-level
plans with a clearly defined pathway toNet
Zero, with an interim stage at 2025, aligned
with the targets for our sustainability-linked
bondissued in 2021, These plans are fully
costed as part of the Group’s annual business
planning process, with total expenditure over
the period to 2028 of under £40mon the
current asset base. During 2022 we also
delivered arange of projects from EV charging,
upgraded lighting and property management
systems to PV arrays on our assets.

To match our asset-centric operating model,
wa revised our approach to Social with a new
Board-approved strategy that determined that
all social value activities would deliver forour
local communities, acknowledging that each
community inwhich we operate and support
has diverse and specific needs. During the
vear, the Group provided assistance to
colleaguesin response to the emerging cost of
living crisis, A salary supplement was awarded
toallcolleagues onannual salaries of less than
£/€60,000. The Group has also made
differentiated pay awardsin March 2023
benefitiing those in lower salary bands. As well
as realising savings, the move of the head office
to Marble Arch House aligned with a refresh of
the Group's values and approach toways of
working, which was well received by colleagues.

A&

Diversity, Fgual'ty and
Tncivsionis more than
aboxticking exercise.

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive
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Interms of Governance, we revised our
structures with the ambition to operate ina
more diligent way, with all elements of ESG
embedded across the business. Acentral part
of this is recognition that Diversity, Equality and
Inclusian is more than a box ticking exercise,
but rather encourages ways of working that
foster better decision-rmaking processes
through inclusion and open dialogue. Valuing
this, itis pleasing to report that our senior-
ranagermenl sponsored Affinity Groups
continue to attract broad engagementacross
the Group. We recognise that evolving and
improving our Governance structures will
remain a focus for Hammerson.

ACCELERATEGEVELOPMENT

Our strategy is to accelerate the development
ofthe land and epportunities we owninthe
centre of some of Europe’s highest growth and
maost exciting cities, particularly in and around
London, Birmingharmn, Bristol and Dublin.

Overthe last 12 months, we have further
segmenied ourdevelopment opportunities
between those that are integral to our existing
assets such as department store repurposing;
those that are complementary to our existing
destinations and the development of which
will benefit the whole estate; and those that
stand-alcne,

Ourimmediate focus has been on progressing
ourintegral opportunities such as The Tronworks
in Dundrumand Grand Central repurposing in
Birmingham. Inaddition, we have a broad
pipeline of complementary cpportunities;
which are projects adjacent orinclose
praximity to ourexisting assets and which have
potential to increase ourscale andcritical
mass and unlock development returns, as well
as further halo and diversification effect on the
retained estate.

Finally, we own valuable development
opportunities inkey cities that are stand-alone
from our current estates, but which have the
strength of location and potential scale to
create critical mass and returns of theirown.
Inthe neartermwe remain focused on capital
light initiatives to unlock value and generate
opticnality to take developments forward,

to potentially bring in relevant partners with
sectoralexpertise or aligned capital, orta
seekliquidity and focus on those projects
with the highest returns andimpact onour
retained estate.



At Dublin Central, we have received further
planning consents, which endarse our
proposals toregenerate thisimportant site
and have begun discussions with potential
operators and occupiers as part of plans to
commence the first phases of development.
We have alsc continued to work with Transport
forIreland to integrate a new metro station
within the site,

At Martineau Galleries, part of the wider
Birmingham Estate, we have continued to
wark with Birmingham City Counciland the
West Midlands Combined Authority to finalise
details forthe scheme and prepareforthe
first phases of demolition and development
adjacent to the new Curzon Street HSZ station
and the new tram connections.

At Brent Cross, we are working with the London
Borough of Barnet to develop a holistic brief for
long term regeneration, which includesin the
short term reactivating the surrounding land
for complementary uses that support the asset
and local customer and will integrate with local
infrastructure and the development of Brent
Cross Town.

InDundrum Phase I, we have submitted a
ptanning application for nearly 900 residential
apartments alongside other new town centre
uses and transport connections.

In Bristal, we have been engaged with the City
Council as they develop their post Covid city
centre development strategy and we have
started to explore the potential uses and
phasing of development on our land holdings,
potentially to include residential, student,
office and life science uses alongside
additional customer facing city centre uses.

Turningtcour stand alone projects, in the UK
we signed the s106 agreement for Bishopsgate
Goodsyard, which has allowed us to commence
the nextstages of design, enabling and
marketing for this development working with
our partner Ballymore to setup the project
management and delivery. In Leedswe are
prograssing the master planning process for
ourremaining ¢.10acres ofland and
considering our next steps.

CREATEAM AGILE PLATFORM

Improving and right sizing our platform, and
creating more agile, responsiveand efficient
ways ofworking remains a priority. We took
early actionin 2021 andin thefirst half of
2022, shifting from a top-heavy, geographically
oriented and siloed organisation tc a
simplified, asset-centric operating model.

Asaresult, we achieved a 17% year-on-year
reduction in gross administration costsin
2022, achieving ourinitial target ofa 15-20%
reduction by 2023,

We have taken further stepsinciuding more
efficient ways of waorking, increasing speed of
leasing, collections and prompt payments to
oursuppliers, and the consolidation of our
property management suppliersinthe UK,
which formally started in February 2023. At
the same: time, we continue toimplement
more integrated, connected, and automated
systems todrive further efficiency.

Necessarily, the actions we have taken overthe
last two years have resulted in areduction of
headcount, down 42% since 2019, and 25%
year-on-year. We have not been immune to the
challenges of navigating hybrid working, the
‘Great Resign’ and pressures from anincrease
incostof living, and indeed we saw higher
voluntary colleague turnover during the year.
We continue to invest inand promote key
talentforthe future, however, most notably this
yearinleasing, asset management, ESG and
placermaking and marketing, Overall, we are
targeting afurther 20% reduction in gross
administration costs by the end of 2024.

We have alsc made some progressin
simplifying our asset structures. Forexample,
we were delighted to expand our partnership
in Birmingham with CPPIB, forming anew
50/50Qjoint venture at Bullring in the second
half of the year, following their acquisition of
Nuveen's ong third stake. Thereismoreto do.

DELIVER ASUSTAINABLE AND RESILIENT
CAPITALSTRUCTURE

We have continued to re-align our portfalic
through a disciplined programme of disposals
of non-core assets, re-focusingthe Group on
acore portfolio of prime city centre estates,
reducing indebtedness and generating
capital for redeployment into core assets

and developments.

Generating total gross proceeds of £195m,
we completed the sale of Victoriafor £120m
and our 50% share of Silverburn for £70m,
plus other non-core land. Netdebt reduced by
4% to £1.7bn. The Group remains committed
tototal disposal proceeds of c.£500m over
2022 and 2023, Ourtrack record of executing
£628mofsalesinthe lasttwoyearsin
challenging conditicns and the attractiveness
of our assets gives us confidence we will
deliverthis target.
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Cal - Circus,
Bristol

Werefinanced £820m af expiring RCFs in late
Aprilintoanew £463mfacilityona 3+1+1
maturity with a smaller group of banks reducing
cost. In December, we redeemed the remaining
€236mofthe 2023 eurcbond at par.

In addition, we completed the triennial review
of the defined benefit pension plan and moved
toa full buy-in basis completed on 9 December
2022 with £nilcontribution from the Company,
af2msurplus, and the reduction of the
£120m Hammerson plc guarantee, to £10m.

We remain committed toan IGcredit rating,.

I am pleasedto report that Fitch reaffirmed
our ratingand revised our outlook to stable in
May, as did Moody’s also with a stable outlook
in December.

At 371 Decemnber2022, the Group had liquidity
of £1.0bninthe formofcash balances
(£0.3bn) and undrawn committed RCFsof
£0.7bn, and had nosignificant unsecured
refinancing requirements until 2025 not
covered by existing cash.

CONCLUSION

As evidenced above, a significantamount of
change hastaken place overthe last twoyears,
butthereis moretodo. Delivering that change
whilst progressing our strategic, operational
and financial KPIs against achallenging
backdrop is a testament ta the strength of the
management team, the Board and the support
afall our stakehaolders. Tam sincerely grateful.

In early January, we moved o a new head
officeinMarble Arch, marking areset. Itisa
more efficient and collaborative space, and
more reflective of whowe are today. Weare
well positioned to continue to deliver another
vear of progress, and more agiletotackle
challenges and capture opportunities that
times like these offer.

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Market Overview

Hammerson is well placed in affluent People are visiting city centres fora multitude of reasons including business, leisure, shopping and sccialising.
cities withyoung, fast-growing We are well positioned to capitalise on the following trends:
populations. These cities are all major
national and intcrnational transport Flexibitity
hubs with leading universities. Consumers areincreasingly looking for a convenient and frictionless experience as the lines between work, life and
leisure become blurred:

Fastgrowing cities — 72% of office workers anticipate their future being hybrid. Workers are now visiting the office less frequently but
AllHammerson development use the space for collaboration and will combine avisit with social activities. When workers do come to the office,
locations are expected to see thelr spend is up by 15% vs. pre Covid-19 %
GDP grow by ¢ 15% in the next B o . . . . : :
decade, with Landon, Dublin and - 64% of shoppers say they enjoy hybrid shopping, where they can buy products online as wellas instore:
Reading set to grow their GDP — F&Band leisure is becoming alarger part of discretionary spend as people prioritise socialising and experiences
by £.20%. over owning things —accounting for £5% of monthly spend inlate 20222

) . L — Flexible renting is increasingly popular as young professionals follow a digitally nomadic career path, with the
London, Dublin, Bristol, Birmingharm number of completed BTR units tripling over the last five years and 50% of GenZ planning to move in the next
and Southampton are expected to two years?
see large population growth by 2032:
London 8%, Dublin 7% and 5% for Conmectiuiiy aned Hybrid
Bristol, Birmingharmand Southampton. Office, retail, hospitality and residential formats are allevolving inline with changing consumer demands and

technological innovations:

— Offices are blending with social spaces (WeWaork, Greenspace), Retait is blending with leisure (Southside),

509% of their population under (Hoslpltta.[lt)y is blending with meeting spaces (Brewdog), and Residentiatis blending with lifestyle & weliness

34 yearsold, with allour othercities Quintain

over 40%,. - City centres bring tagether people and the latest technology to create smart, seamless and more sustainable
envircnmentse.g. 5G and MS2

Bristol, Birminghamand
Southamptan all have mare than

Londan, Paris and Dublin are the top

3 major cities for inward investment ESG

in Furope, with Bristol and Reading Energy generation and sustainable building practices will become more important as we strive towards net zero.
featuring as leading smalltowns and Qccupiers will want to be in locations that reflect their ethics and help them meet their ESG targets:

cities for attracting inward - 65% of occupiers say that demand for sustainable buildings has risen since 20215

investment.

Globally, 34% of occupiers have green leases, with a further 40% planning to sign by 20258

We continue to henefit from major ~ 64% af consumers are more likely post-pandemicto choose a brand based on their ethics and sustainability®

infrastructure and inward investment - 61%cf people consider travel, sustainability and environmental factors when shopping, and two thirds of people
projects intocities: are likely to seek local brands?
— Birmingham: HS2 - 60% of GenZ say usingindependent shops and restaurants makes them feel part of their community?
— Marseille: Medusa Project . e
(superfast data interconnection) Convenience and Logistics

By 2020, up ta 50% of clothing bought online was being returned, costing businesses around £7bn every year®.

~ Bristol: Brabazon Park As aresult, brands like Zara, Uniglo and Next now all charge for online returns, unless acustomer returns ta a store.

Neighbourhood

- Dublin: City Edge urban expansion Robots and drones are set to improve logistics and operations. The European delivery robot market is estimated
o grow more than 20% CAGR from 2023 to 2032%,
Allour assets are graded B+ and

above by the investment market. The Leisure and Wellness
Buliring, Dundrumand Les Terrasses Leisure spend continues to grow as we move to prieritising physical and mental wellbeing. 59% of people in Britain
duPort being notable as A+ centres. agree that a leisure activity helps them escape from their daily routine??,

~ Retail environments have an important role to play in the discovery and advice around wellness products
{health, fitness, sleep, appearance, nutrtion, mindfulness)

— Thewellness industry is currently growing at .5-10% p.a. 79% of people believe that wellness is important,
and 42% consider it a top priority't

- When purchasing a praduct or a service 66% of consurners are influenced by how a product or service impacts
their health and wellbeing, more sothan ease and affordability?

~ Over 40% of consumers feel they become more loyal to brands after attending their events and experiences®?

~ Over 450,000m? has been lost from department stores since 2017 in the UK?, creating opportunities for
repurposing towards leisure and wellness

Qurflagship destinations are easily
accessible to 25m people.

Sources: Spurces:
Oxford Economics, GreenStreet ' CACI, 2 Bazaarvoice, ? Savills, * Knight Frank, * RICS, ¢ JLL,” The Property Marketing Strategists
Properties Mallrankings 2022 EKPMG, ® Yahoo Finance, 12 Mintel, 2 McKinsey, 2 Global Data, 1 Event Track
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Genaral
Asset prices are expected to stabilise in 2023, inflation and interest
rates are forecast to ease helping to drive investmentintothe
market, Economically, low unemployment with corporate lending
remaining disciplined should also support investment.

Assets in prime locations, with strong ESG credentials will continue
t0 bethe most attractive with the best retail locations also
benefiting from this flight to quality. Increased investor demand
combinedwith easier lending against prime assets mean that the
spread between prime and secandary vields is likely toincrease,
with secondary assets potentially repricing to levels which become
economical to be upgraded or converted,

Clear long term megatrends around ESG, demegraphics and
technology shouid mean investors stay focused

UX

Inthe short term emerging sectors with strong demand such as
student accommodation, residential build to rent, life sciences,
healthcare and datacentres are expected to perform strongly.
The UK real estate outlook 1s underpinned by currency benefits,
relatively attractive yields and its safe haven reputation.

France

The French marketis expected taremain resitient especially in the
Paris region. Acornbination of relative economic stability and a
strong domesticinvestor base whaunderstand the market well
means that France enjoys a stable real-estate market.

Tretand
Iretand’s position as a global corporate headquarters means that
strong demand remains for prime office, industrialand residential.

N

foedpgbomyd ot i

Digital transformation of th

trends for the next year:

— Real-time, granular data easily accessed by cwners and
occupiers through Internetof Things

e property industry —top proptech

— ESG practices: sensors to monitor air guality, auto-dim lights,
energy-usage monitoring

- Predictive maintenance; intelligent buildings that can use
datatoimprove energy efficiency, detect water leaks and
improve security

Sources:
JLL, Knight Frank, CBRE

"Bullring;
;Birmingham
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our Business Model

Our purpose
We create outstanding experiences
in unique city locations.

How we create value

non-tare assets for i
reinvesting in highest ¥ ringing newuses and

retum opportunities revenue streams through
B : - - developments which
estate quality

Unlockingthevalue of our
stand-alone development
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The value we create for our stakeholders

We deliver best-in-class destinations through vibrant and
exciting placemaking and industry leading data and analytics
that attract high footfall and allows our occupiers to be successful

ars

8% !

We create outstanding experiences in unigue city locations
that exceed the changing needs of our customers

Growing top line
Cost management
Increased underlying earnings
High cash conversion

We promote an environment where colleagues can reatise their
full potential

operate through improved infrastructure, sustainable buildings,
exemplary placemaking, local employment and events

Woe create partnerships with our debtinvestors, suppliers,
local authorities and communities based on collaboration where

- De-risking each partner benefits from the relationship

- Underwriting
- Unlocking value

We aim to generate attractive returns for our investors over
the long term. We ensure a sustainahle capital structure,
maintaining our investment grade credit rating
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QUR STRATEGY AND KPIS

Our Strategy and KPIs

Our clearly defined strategy is focused
on delivering a path to growth, from N
repositioning our assets, delivering
exceptional placemaking and unlocking
value by accelerating development.

Ourstrategy is executed through a strong set
of values, clear KPIs and accountability, an
optimised asset-centric operating model and
talented people, with a clear commitment to
grow in the right way for our communities and
our planet. We will continue ta investin our
digital capabilities to leverage technology to
predict and meet the business needs for now
andthe future.

Create
anagile
Overthe longterm, with disciplined execution, platform
we can unlock value by accelerating
development apportunities within our portfolio.
This willdrive sustained growthin cash flows
and total returns, which can be crystallised and
reinvested in our business, starting the cycle
again. This can only be delivered through an
agile, collaborative, high performance culture
that retains and attracts the best people and
embraces opportunities to positively impact
the communities in which we operate.
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@

Reinvigorate
our assets

Adjusted earnings increased by 60% to £105m

— Improved occupancy across portfolic (UK 96%, France 969,

Treland $8%)

Sustained footfall recovery to around 90% of 2019 lavels

Collection rates back to 95%

Leasing highlights:

— Strong leasing volumes with 317 deals signed

— £25.4mleasing by value (at our share)

— Improved mixthrough leasing with 53% of 2022 leases
non-tashion

— Revised leasing pclicy and delegation of authority and
simplified leasing process

— Secured key occupiers with portfolio deals e.g. Watches of
Switzerland, H&Mand Apple

— Introduced newbrands e.g. signed leisure operators Lane 7
at Birmingham Estate, signed new Rise Nike conceptinto
Bullring, Reserved at Brent Cross and EL&N at Buliring

— Secured key tenants e.g. Zara at Westquay, H&Mat
Cabot Circus

— Launched partnership with SOCK in Westquay and
Bullring providing a turrkey flexible pop-up space to bring
in new brands

Redavelopment and repurposing:

— Department store repurpesing e.g. Penneys, Brown Thomas
and Dunnesin Dundrum

— Progressed big hox repurposing e.g. final stages of works to
bring M&S and TOCA into former Debenhams in Builring

— Completedrecladding works of external fascia of Selfridges at
Bullring, and Eclipse at Cabot Circus

— Majorextension of Les 3 Fontaines cpened in March, creating
amulti-use destination in the heart of Cergy

— Engagedwith architects to develop Quakers Friarsin Bristol
into an exciting F&B led quarter

Sustainability:

— Progressed projects in line with our corporate ESG agenda
e.g. LEDlightinstallation at Brent Cross car park, EV charging
in Bullring

— Net Zero Plans developed for all destinations and integrated
into the 2023 business plans to transition to Net Zero by 2030

— Trialled ESG innovations to improve operational and energy
efficiency through building management software

— Retained EPRA Gold Standard

— Community engagement activity at all assets engaging 8,641
individuals through arange of projects and initiatives

— Cross portfolio partnerships with charities and organisations
such as LandAid, Crisis, Mind and Movember

Placemaking:

— Curated new content, working with influencers and celebrities
to build brand equity. Launched channels on TikTok and
Snapchat for the first time.,

— Elevated events programme e.g. Official provider for
Birmingham 2022 Commanwealth games, Skate Park
and Jobs Fairat Cabot Circus, Supercar event at Dundrum,
Ice Rink at Westquay

Shift focus from stabilisation and reinvigoration to
placemaking and repurposing

High leasing mamentum to further reduce low vacancy
levels, renew key occupiers and bring in new and

relevant brands

Continue to attract and develop new occupiers through
long term deals and pop-ups

Complete repurposing of former Debenhams unitin
Bullring with M&S and opening of new leisure offer TOCA
Furtherleverage SOOK partiiership to bring in new brands
Monetising previously non-income generating space

e.g. Garden Centre and Tesla custormer collection hubin
Brent Cross

Further improverments to Brent Cross placemaking via
landscaping projects

Deliver calendarof super events to delight visitors and
leverage partnerships

Deliver Net Zero Asset Plans to contribute to energy
reduction and continue our transition to Net Zero by 2030
New revenue streams fromuse of dataand innovation
Build on socialvalue programme to deliverinitiatives
which support the local communities in which we operate



STRATEGICREPORT
QUR STRATEGY AND KPIS continued

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 22z

1)

Accelerate
development

®

Create an
agile platform

®

Delivera
sustainable

and resilient
capital structure

Repurposing:

— Completed feasibility studies and developed plans for major
repurposing ai Grand Central

— Submitted planning applicationforthe major regeneration of
The Oracle in Reading including 449 remal apartments and
8,700 m2of reconfigured retail, entertainment and workspace

— Construction started on The Ironworks, Dundrum, with 122
homes, co-working space and on site gym

— successfulopening of Leu 3 Funtuine, (Phasa 1T} extension
inMarch 2022

Land promaotion:

— Planningapplications approved and further pianning
applications submitted as part of 5.5 acre regeneration
of landmark O'Connell Street site in Dublin Central

— Planning application submitted for ¢.900 hormes, public
square, retail, F&B and créche at Dundrum Village across
6acresite

— Market engagement process for 1,100 + homes for Leeds
Eastgate launched in Septernber

— Bishopsgate Goodsyard section 106 agreement, which
enabled next stages of design, enabling and marketing

Investment in people management, developmentand talent

attraction

Simplified property management supply chaininto consolidation
of suppliers

Increased colleague engagementwith GEC sponsored affinity
groups established to support diversity andinclusion

New asset-centric team structures and authorities, combined
with better use cf dataand analytics

Delivered 17% cost reduction year-on-year since 2019 and
have taken further steps that will provide further efficiency gains
in2023

Broughtin new talent, tearns, ways of working, with focus on
placemaking and marketing, asset management and leasing

New Chief People OHficer appointed in February
New General Counsel and Company Secretary appointed in May

IT Transformation programme provided foundational support
to business transtorrmation delivery

Delivered ‘Cloud First’ initiatives to support future enterprise
integrations with speed and agility

Netdebtreduced by E67m

1G Credit Rating reaffirmed —Moody's cutlook improved from
negative to stable in February 2022 and review updated in
December 2022, Fitch outlook improved from negative to stable
inMay 2022

£a28mdisposals of non- core assets and French minority
interests exchanged or contracted since start of 2021,
strengthening the balance sheet with £195mcompleted in 2022
Balance of disposals (£300m targeted by the end of 2023) for
debt reduction and new investment

Atotal of £820m maturing RCFs, maturing in 2023 and 2024,
refinancedwith a new £4463m RCF maturing 2025 (3-1+1yearn),
resulting in interest cost savings of £0.8m p.a.

Atotal equivalent of £149m RCFsextended by one yeartoanew
maturity date in 2025

Redeemed remaining £236m bond maturing 2023 and repaid
£42m of private placement notes

Na significant unsecured maturities until 2025 not covered by
existing cash

Oeployed capitalinto the existing portfelic — repositioning,
consolidating, accelerating development — to balance earnings
and NTA dilution from disposals

Pianning permission to transfornn Grand Centralinto
‘Drumm’, an amenity rich, workolace led proposal, directly
served by the UK's most connected rail station submitted
January 2023

Progress integral opportunities through residential
developinentsin Reading and The Ironworks in Dundrum
Bishopsgate Goodsyard progressing design, enabling
works and marketing, working with our partner Ballymore
Discuss with potential operators and occupiers as part of
plans to commence the tirst phages of develop el 4l
Dublin Central

With planning consent chtained will continue working
closely with all partners to deliveraworld class
commercial and residential district toenhance the

City centre at Martineau Galleries

Continue to assess the potential for the final phase
of redevelopment at Les 3 Fontaines

Working with the local council to develop along term
holistic regeneration at Brent Cross which will integrate
with the development of Brent Cross village

Progress master planning process for c.10 acres of land
in Leeds city centre

Targetinga further 20% reduction in gross admin costs
by 2024

Drive furthar efficiencies through supplier consolidation
with more integrated, connected and autormnated systems

Deliver evolutionary IT prejects to help achieve agile,
effiment and more sustainable platforms, which enables
further simplification of processes and increased leverage
of technology to predict and meet the business needs for
now and the future

Facus on furtherinvestment in retaining and bringing in
new skillsand talent

Encourage innovative, fail fast mindset

New Diversity, Inclusion and Engagement mangerrole
to support the ongoing focus an colleagues e.g, through
affinity groups activities and partnerships

Progress disposals plan targeting c.£300m by the end
of 2023 toreduce debt and reinvest

Start to deploy capitalinto the existing portfolio —
repositioning, consolidating, accelerating development
—tobalanceearnings and NTA dilution frem disposals

Extend RCFs to anew maturity in 2026
Retain IG Credit Rating

Following clearance of SIIC obligations, Board anticipates
returning to cash dividend in 2023

Prioritised capital investment into key high return
development projects



2020
2021

2022 104.9

1 2021 and 2020 figures have beenrestated tareflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions
with further infarmation provided in notes 18 and & to the financial statements.

Calculat on as set outin note 10A 1o the financial statements.

T 2021and 2020 figures have bean restated toreflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions
with furtherinformation provided in notes 1B and & tothe financial statements.

Calculated ona manthly time-weighted basis consistent with MSCI methodology.

Passingrent £m (@)

2021

022 210.3

T 2021and 2020 Higures have beenrestated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Corcessions
with further information provided in nates 18 and 6 to the inancial statements. Further
detail can be found in Table 2 of the Additionalinformation.

Globalemissions kgCO.e/Common Parts Area Q0

2020 &
#

2021
2022

Figures forcommon parts area of the flagship portfolic (which generates the majority
of the Group's emissions),

Like-for-like footfall % Q@G

How KPIintroduced in 2622 retlecting continued focus as the Group
emprges from the Cavid-19 pandemic

2020
2021
2022

Adjusted for new and closed stores. All three years use 2019 as base data toexclude
Covid-19 effects.
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2020 §
2021

1,732.1

2022

1 2021 and 2020 figures have beenrestated ta refiect the [IFRIC Decision on Deposits
with further information provided in note 16 o the finaneial staterments and Tables 13
and 14 of the Additionalinformation.

Detfined as the Group's borrowings less cash ard cash equivalenis.

2020
2021

i

Caleulation as set outinnote 108 to the financial statements,

Leasingactivity tm (@)

2020 Gk

2021

’f’.’ 15

Income secured across the flagship portfolio, including new lettings and lease renewals.

Voluntary colleague turnover % (3)

Number of colleagues who have left the business voluntarily, taken as a percentage of the
number of employees at the beginning of the year.
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OURCOLLEAGUES

Our Colleagues

At 31 December 2022, we employed 320
colleagues across the Group. 196 were
basedin the UK, 28 in Ireland,and 96 in
France. This is a 25% reduction in colleague
numbers from 2021.

Creating an agile platform

Following the holistic organisaticnal review
whichtook place in 2021, the Group’s
structure continued to evolve over the course
of 2022, embeddingthe asset-centric
operating model. The priority has been to
simplify the business, enabling colleagues
tofocus ontwo key objectives:

— Stabilising the core income strearm and
returningitto underlying growth

— Starting to rebuild value in our existing
portfolic while also creating optionality on
how we unlock the substantial valuein our
development pipeline

As part of the changes, overall headcount
reduced by 106 roles (259%) in 2022,
contributingto a 17% vear on year reduction
in gross administration costs.

Talent acquisition and management

The effects of Covid-19 continued to impact
the employment landscape as companies
navigated hybrid working, the ‘Great Resign/,
and pressures resulting from an increase inthe
cost of living. While we were notimmune to
these challenges, and indeed saw anincrease
invaluntary turnover, the Group was able to
successfully recruit, retain and promote top
talentin key value creation areas, e.g. asset
management, leasing, placemaking and ESG.

By prionitising talent management across the
business, we have been able ta better leverage
the experiise of individuals across the Group
to deliverimproved results for stakeholders.

Performance management

The operationat and financial progress made
in 2022 isunderpinned by the increased
pricrity and focus given to effective people
management, The stretching targets set by
the Board for 2022 were translated into a full
cascade of team and personal goals for
individuals. These were monitored during the
year with formal personal reviews undertaken
atboth the mid and full year. Thisis reinforced
through animproved and expanded internal
comrmunications rhythm and routine which
engages colleagues inthe business strategy
and the role they play in delivering Uis,

Diversity, Equality & Inclusion (DE&T)

The mast successful businesses from both
acolleague and value creation perspective are
those that champion diversity. Ttcan deliver
great innovation, afar deeper understanding
ot customers, and collsagues develup a e
varied range of skills and outlooks as a result,
Continuing on aurjourney to shape amore
diverse and inclusive culture at Hammerson
is a priority for both the Group Executive
Committee (GEC) and the Board. We are
committed to accelerating progress in this
important area and our work overthe past 12
rmonths continues to shape our colleague and
DE&I strategy.

Since their formation, our four colleague-led
Affinity Groups: LGBTQ+, Race & Ethnicity,
Women, and Wellbeing have made great
strides in raising awareness, creating
convarsations and hightighting educational
resources, sharing personal stories and
support around these important topics.
Events during 2022 organised by the groups
were focused on increasing awareness and
understanding of the unique challenges faced
by our diverse colleague base. These included
events focused on Resilience, Mental Health
and Wellbeing, Men's Mental Health, Pride and
the LGBTQ+ community, Black History Manth,
and Diwali.

A GEC member spansors each Affinity Group
to drive further momentum and action on
matters of importance to our colleagues,
partners and communities.

We continue to welcorne and fully consider
allemployment applications irrespective of
gender, race, ethnicity, religion, age, sexual
arientation or disability. Support also exists for
colleagues who become disabled to continue
in theiremployment orto be retrained far other
suitable roles, Training, career development
and promotion opportunities are equally
appliedforall ouremployees, regardless

of disability.

Difference in mear hourly rate of pay
Difference in mediar hourly rate of pay
Differencein mean bonus pay
Differencein median bonus pay

Preportion of male colleagues who received borus pay
Proportion of female cotleagues who received bonus pay
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Colleague support

Inresponse tothe emerging cost of living
crisis, inlate 2022 the Group provided
assistance to colleagues across the Groupon
annualsalaries less than £/€60,000 through
the award of o salary supplurment. The Groop
has also made differentiated pay awards
inMarch 2023 benefitting those in lower
salary bands.

Gender repres2niation

The gender representation across the Group
asat 31 December 2022 was 160 (50.0%)
female (2021:52.3%) and 160 (50.0%) male
(2021:47.7%).

Asat 31 December 2022, gender
representation at senior manager level as
defined inthe Companies Act 2006 (being,
forthis purpose, the GEC excluding Executive
Directors) was 1 (16.7%) fermate (2021
20.0%) 105 (83.3%) male (2021:80.0%).
Information relating to the Board's diversity
and the gender diversity of those at senior
management level and their direct reports
as defined by the UK Corporate Gaovernance
Code can befound on page 75.

Gender pay reporting

As an organisation we are clear on our
commitment to allaspects of equality and tair
pay, and reward is a key elerment of this. For
marty years we have undertaken an internal
pay auditto ensure that our reward practices
are fair to all colleagues, particutarly those
undertaking like-for-like work.

The results of our 2022 audit continued to
demonstrate the fair reward practices in place,
with a reduction in our gender pay gap forthe
fourth yearina row. With regard to our UK
Gender Pay Gap, the table below shows the
latest data. The mean haurly pay has reduced,
demonstrating progress has been made.
whilst the downward trend is encouraging,
the gap remains high and we continue to

take positive steps ta ensure that we further
improve female representation in our more
highly paid, senior management rales
overtime,

2020 2021 2027
357%  349%  315%
31.4%  34.7%  29.5%
60.0%  386%  44.2%
A77%  5C1%  46.1%
901%  B7.1%  925%
873%  913%  95.5%
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

Carbon emissions (LFL YoY change)

(oo T anc 2 Rl IIIACI R R TN

-12%
2021: +11%

Flagship destinations with NZAPs

100%

2021, 0%

Socialvalue investment

£2.7m

2021: £2.0m
éénchma;ké i

GRESB Jstars/Score 75
MSCI ' AN
ISSESG C+
Sustainalytics Lo rish

ESG underpins the Group's strategy and we
are pleased with the progress made in this
important area during 2022 as we continue
on our pathway to heing Net Zero by 2030.

Becoming Net Zero

1n 2022 we reviewed and reaffirmed our target
tobe Net Zero by 2030, revising our strategy
tofocus on how we will achieve this goal, and
more closely linking our strategic goals to our
approach formanaging climate risk.

We continue to focus on energy reduction,
trying not to decouple energy and carbon.
Energy useisthe greatestoperationalimpact
we have, and by ensuring we keep our sights
on this we can better engage our onsite tearms
and suppliers to operate as efficiently as
possible. This focus is demonstrated cnour
Net Zero Pathway Higrarchy shown below
which ensures we are targeting true reductions
inimpacts, including the use of both ansite and
offsite renewables with true additionality. This
demaonstrates our intention of taking steps to
avoid just reflecting improvements made from
grid decarbonisation and also to use offset as
asolution to the climate crisis.

Ourkey achievementin 2022 was to produce
Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs) forall our
flagship assets. By targeting Scope 1 and 2
emissions, these plans provide aclear pathway
toachieving the Group targets of being Net
Zera by 2030 and also those embedded inour
Sustainability Linked Bond (SLB) in 2025.

The NZAPs contain multiple projects at each
asset overthe period to 2028, Each project
has a specific forecast emissians reduction
and the total implementation cost is c.£E40m,
a proportion of which will be funded from
service charges. Alsowith aviewto the future
we revised our leasing policy, development
standards and tenant fit out guides. These
governance changes ensure both us and our
tenants are continuousty challengedtodo
better than before to drive down emissions.

Net Zero Pathway Hierarchy

Improve controls and invest
inenergy efficiency

Onsite renewables

Offsite
renewahles

Understanding materialimpacts

In 2022 we undertook our three-yearly
materiality review, engaging with debtand
equity investors, and also key brand and joint
venture partners. Our SLB target of a 50%
reductionin Scope 3 GHG emissions has been
welcomed by stakeholders who have
increasing expectationson this topic. We have
identified oppartunities with a number of key
brand partners to collaborate to reduce these
emissions and hope to drive positive change
acrossthe sector through ourinitiatives.

We participate in all benchmarks identified

by ourstakeholders as keyte their decision
making and continue to evolve ourapproach
to reporting, with a drive for transparency
when providing information to all stakeholders.
We rank as one of the top property companies
inISSESGwithascoreof C+.In 2022, we
maintained our AA rating from MSCLand low
risk rating by Sustainalytics. After maintaining
GRESB 4 stars fora number of years, we were
disappointedto see ourscore dropto 3 stars,
On review, this was in the most part driven by
shortcomings in our submission. We have
made a nurmber of changes to address this
issue and aretherefore targeting areturn to
a4 starranking this year.

Managing climate risk

We continue to stay focused on identifying and
responding to both the risks and opportunities
thatclimate change presents. Inresponse to
ourclimate risk work, ESG responstbilities
have beentaken furtherinto all areas of the
business, with reporting now linked into our
asset management, leasing, insights,
placemaking and marketingteams, We are
also exploring internal carbon pricing as a way
to both drive down the carbon attached to our
developments and to direct fundinginto
carbon and enerdy reduction activities.

Delivering social value

Alongside carbon reduction, delivering social
value is our second key ESG strategic goal.
Ourapproach here is also asset, and therefore,
community centric. We aim to respond to
local needs and build relationships at both a
natianal and lacal level to achieve our material
social objectives of;

— Building skills and employment
— Supporting health and wellbeing
— Developing young people

— Encouragingand supporting local
investmentand enterprise
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Carbon emissions (Scope 1 and 2}

2019
2020
2021

w7

Global emissions mtensnty, kgCO.e/m”
2 AV FREY

o i 2and I

37.9

2021:40.0

Operational waste recycled

St sy e it h

70%

2021:63%

Water consumptmn (LFL YoY chande)
Fromorena g sonsal Jann

+30%

2021: +8%

% of UK portfolio with Fand G EPC ratings

2%

2021:12%

CASESTUDY

Biodiversity

-Togetherwith Reading, Abbey Ouarter Busn ness
aseries of flaating be
O0reeds, sedge° andother flowering plants, plarrted

< Trust, The Oracleteam plant
- badding were qu:cklyes’tabbsheﬁ with

Reducing carbon emissions

In 2022 we continued to reduce ourcarbon
emissions, which for Scope 1 and 2 emissions
onaproportionally consolidated basis, were
8,0701C0,e,a12% reduclionona like-for-like
portfolio basis. Qur GHG emissions, shown
onthenext page andcalculatedona 1.00%
basis, including Scope 3 emissions, were
15,642tC0,e (2021:18,195tC0,8). These
reductions are consistent with our pathway to
being Net Zero by 2030. We are also actively
pursuing opportunities for onsite and offsite
renewables which are another key step
towards achieving thistarget.

Renewing focus on energy reduction
Recognising that energy use is our greatest
operationalimpact, we have renewed our
focus onenergy reduction. This allows usto
better engage those operating our assets

to be as efficient as possible and support the
delivery of energy saving initiatives. This
approach also ensures we are seeing atrue
reduction inimpacts, and not just reflecting
reductions rmade from grid decarbonisation,

In 2022, we undertook a numberof projects
to reduce our operational footprint. These
included a new Al system for our Brent Cross
car park lighting which addresses safety needs
alongside an expected 40% energy saving.
We also extended our Grid Edge Al partnership.
This willincrease the data we receive and the
learning capability of the existing systemat
Bullringand Grand Central and introducé the
technology at Dundrum Town Centre. We also
continue totarget improved EPC ratings and
only 2% af unitsat our UK assets have ForG
ratings compared with 12%in 2021,

Net Zerp Asset Plans (NZAPs)

In 2022 we undertook a deep dive into how
our Net Zero ambitions could be delivered an
an asset by asset basis. We have developed
NZAPs for allour flagship assets. These factor
inthe lifecycle and needs of both the property
and the community, and use climate change
risks and opportunities as the foundation for
addressing wider carbon scopes.

\ ement District and the Canal and River
aleng the Kennet Canal. The 94m? of

into ‘Biomatrix’, a 100% récyclabte, non-toxic material. The newly installed beds layashort -
-distance fromthe Delphi Bridge, outs;de the restaurants and bars at The Oracle Riverside. The
Tonsiteteam enlisted the helpot 3t students from Redlands Primary School to assist with planting,
; and the projectlirkec ex'memely weltirp thenr natmnal curncuium learningon photosyntheﬂs

e ondeﬂul shelter or. ﬁshan
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We have used the creation of these plans to
grow our knowledge of how the regulatory
landscapeis changing and how we can best
respond. For example, our Dundrum Town
Centre plan identifies and addresses neads
as pertheincoeming EU taxonomy regulations,
andinFrance we areabletoensure ourassets
can meet more demanding energy legislation.

Tackling Scope 3 emissions

Our materiality review demonstrated a
significantincrease in expectations around
Scope 3 emissions and the need for solid plans
toreduce these. Our stakeholders have also
highlighted the need for industry leaders to
build solid examples of how to tackle these
emissions, Through our stretehing Scope 3
SLB 50% reduction target we have already
shown our commitment o driving down our
emissions. In 2022 we launched an engagement
campaign to reach out to our key brand
partnerstocoilaboratetotackle Scope 3
emissions such as travel to our destinations
and tenant sourced/managed goods.

Reducing water and waste impacts

We remain committed to reducing our
wateruse and diverting waste from landfill.
For 2022 we increased our recycling 1o 70%
of operational waste while our water
consumption rose by 309, largely dueto
increased foatfall across the portfolio. We
continue ta improve our ability to monitor
wateruse and implement projects ta reduce
usage, and during 2022 we installed smart
flow metering at Dundrum Town Centre, We
established a new waste contract with Mitie,
with a view to revising our national waste
strategy in 2023, particularly concerning the
management of food waste at our assets.

Progressive development standards

As partof our revised ESG strategy we updated
ourdevelopment standards to ensure they
cover alithree ESG pillars. We have also

begun to explore internal carbon pricing as
amechanism for driving down emissions at
ourdevelopments and as away to ring-fence
funding for carbon reduction projects.




OURREPORTING

Yoluitary non-financialdata

Our ESG reporting complies with both GRI
Core Standards and the EPRA Sustainability
Best Practice Reporting Gold Standard. Key
metrics reported under these standards are
included in our non-financial disclosures in our
separate 2022 ESG Report and Databook
available onthe Group's website
www.hammerson.com. Section 1 ofthe
Databook contains our basis of reporting. The
2022 ESGreport also discusses our approach
to ESG, our performance, and shares examples
of ourdelivery model during the year.

Mandatory Greenhouse Gas data

Inline with requirements set outinthe
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, and in
accordance with the Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting (SECR), this staternent
reports the Company’s GHG emissions for
2022, including the previous year’s datato
provide ayear-on-year comparison. Our GHG
emissions reporting period is the same as the
financial reporting year, in accordance with
the DEFRA Environmental Reporting Guidance,

Emissions disaggregated by country (1CO,e)

Source

Total GHG emiss_io_né to__nﬁes {market based)
Total GHG emissions tonnes

a.Stationary operations
b. Mobile combustion
c.Fugitive sources
Total

a. Electricity (market based)
a. Electricity

b. Steam

¢, Heating

d. Cooling
Total(mark_et_ba.séd)
Total

Business travel

Waste

Water

Total

SECR Energy consumption (MWh)

P
~1
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Basis of reporting ~ Mandatory Greenhouse Gas data

Standards

Baseline year

Boundary summary

Consistency with financial

staterments

Ernissions factor datasource

Assessment methodology

Materiality threshold

Intensity ratic

UK France
3909 2352
10,487 2,353
2,442 502
5 25

73 -
2,520 527
295 1,133
6,873 1,134
227 277
38 241
560 4,651
7,138 1,652
174 33
588 102
68 38
830 173

49,262 30,838

Ireland

925
2,502

138

188

623
2,490

623
2,490

10
86
28
124

9:357

Calculated and recorded in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas
(GHQG) Protocol and IS0 14064, this guidance codifies using both
market and location-based methods for Scope 2 accounting

2019

All assets and facilities under Hammerson’s direct cperational
controlare included, where we have authority tointroduce and
implement operating policies; this includes properties held with
third-parties where beth Hammerson and partner approval is
required. We have reported 100% of GHG emissions data for these
assets. The reporting excludes the Value Retail pertfolic where we
do not have authority tointroduce or implement operating policies

Consistency andreporting period are as set out above

20272 DEFRA GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and
reporting sources including, but not limited to, Internaticnal Energy
Agency and Equans

GHG Protocoland ISO 14064 (Z006)
Selected activities generating emissions of <5% relative to total
Groupemissions have been excluded. This principally relates to

Scope 3 categories where emissions are deemed immaterial

Denarminatoris common parts area of 412,579m? (2021;
455,097m?)

2022 2021
Global Global
intensity intensit
Global (kgCOe/m?) UK France  Ireland  Global (kgCO,efm’
7,196 17.4 5029 3458 348 8835 19.4
15,642 379 11862 3367 2,966 18195 40.0
3,132 7.6 2317 872 247 3,436 7.6
30 01 - 3 - 3 -
73 0.2 854 - - 854 1.9
3,235 7.9 3171 875 247 4,293 9.5
2,051 49 1076 1,132 13 2,221 4.9
10,497 254 7909 1,041 2,631 11,581 255
504 1.2 257 1,274 - 1,531 33
279 0.7 49 49 - 98 0.2
2,834 6.8 1,382 2455 13 3,850 8.4
11,280 27.3 8215 2364 2,631 13,210 29.0
217 0.5 43 21 2 66 0.1
776 1.9 369 78 64 511 1.1
134 0.3 64 29 22 115 0.3
1,127 2.7 476 128 88 692 1.6

29477 52,406 32,701 10,257 95,364
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Social value investiment

2019
2020
2021
2022

Charities, organisations and groups that
benefitted from the Group's direct and
indirect contributions

152

2021:194

Number of individuals engaged in Group
organised or supported activities

8,641

2021: 22,283

Charitable cash donations (E000’s)

107

2021:129

Materialsocialimpacts

We focus our social value wark on four
keyareas:

— Employment and skills

Healthand wellbeing

Developing young people
Localinvestment and enterprise

|

1

These provide the Group with the greatest
potentialto support positive change through
partnerships and collaboration, and those that
have been identified as most relevantto the
communities in which our assets are located.
During 2022 we partnered with 152 charities,
organisations and groups and positively
engaged with 8,641 individuals.

Our social value investmentin 2022 was
£2.7m, 35% higherthanin 2021. Some
cxamples of ourworkin 2022 are shown later
inthis section.

Charity partnerships and donations

We remalin committed to charitable activity,
supporting cur corporate and employee
charity partners across the Group. During
2022, we provided acharity bursary to support
relevant charity partners, that engage and
inspire our people, and respondtoneedsata
localievel. Intotal, during the year we donated
£107,000(2021: £129,000).

Inthe UK, we have a continuols corporate
charity partnership with LandAid, the praperty
industry charity working to end youth
homelessness. Throughoutthe year,
colleagues have supported a number of
fundraising events for the charity including the
LandAid 20k run, Tour de LandAid and a Sleep
Qut raising over £6,000, Our employee charity
partnership with The Qutward Bound Trust has
continuad with five colleagues volunteering a
week tosupportthe Ambassador Programme.
This programme is for young people from
deprived urban environments across the UK
toincrease their skills, confidence and
aspirations, Overone week, our colleagues
acted as positive role models for young people,
helping the group bond as & team, identifying
strengths and weaknesses inorder to
overcome a series of mentaland physical
challenges in the remote Scottish Highlands.

Acrossthe UK, Ireland and France, our asset
charity bursaries continue to provide valuable
financial support to charities operatinginthe
communities adjacent to our destinations. In
addition to receiving a cash donation, our asset
teams collaborate with the selected charities
to maximise the partnership through colleague
volunteering, fundraising, providing unit, mall
and advertising space.

)
o
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Helping our colleagues support the

tocal community

We continue to deliver a range of innovative
volunteering opportunities that positively
engage and benefitlncal communities, whilst
groviding supplementary benefits to bath
colleagues and the Group. During 2022,128
colleagues across the Greup volunteered with
arange of charities, groups and organisations
throughout the yearto support some of the
most disadvantaged members and groups
otsociety.

Through collaboration with Opening Doors
London, a L GBTQ+ charity, colleagues
organised and hosted at our Londan head
office alunch event for socially isolated
clder members ofthe LGBTO+ community.
InIreland, our colleagues volunteered with
Sonas, a domestic violence support charity
totransform external areas atawomen’s
refuge into awelcoming environment,

Following the implementation of a revised
internal volunteering policy, there willbea
push to encourage all colleagues to donate
their time for volunteeringin 2023, Alsp, our
Community Day event which has in recent
years been affected by Covid-19 and associated
restrictions will be revived, with all colleagues
across the Group participating in a series of
highimpact volunteering activities.

Furtherinformation on colleaguesisinthe
Our Colleagues section on page 24.
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Managing climate risk

OQurclimate risk approach has been guided by
the TCFD recommendations since 2018,
reporting publicly in line with Lhem since 2020.
In 2021 we built on cur approach with climate
scenario work that helped us toidentify 12 key
risks and 13 key oppertunities forour business.
We also invested in bespoke training forour
Executive and Non-Executive Directors, ensuring
those leading our business both understand
the risks and opportunities presented by
climate change and are able to respond to
climate-related disclosure requirements.

Inthe first half of 2022 we reassessed the
key climate-related risks and opportunities
identified in 2021, using our revised impact/
likelihood matnx, We focused on climate
scenarios 1 and 2 of the three modelled
climate scenarios and identified existing
mitigations or planned actions forthase risks.
Four new actions have been planned because
of our recent risk review, and these have been
added into our Transition Plan, These incfude:
— Update operational and induction training
modules

Mobilisation of a strategic partnership
across our UK portfoliotoensure bestin
class ESG operations

— Review and update public disclosure within
the Annual Report, ESG Report and
Databook to enhance transparency

-— Review and enhance scope of ESG activities
toensure alignment to social value,
governance and wider sustainability
components (e.g. CSR)

We plantoreviewthe risks twice ayearinline
with our Group risk methodology with the
output presented to the Audit Committee.

Requirement Progress

Asset spacific planning

Our histaric work towards reducing our energy
useand carbon footprint, with investments in
onsite renewables and energy-efficient
technologies, has positioned our assets wealiin
terms of responding (o net zero transition risks
identified. We have delivered a 31% reduction
I (he ene gy intensity fur vur portfolia on
alike-for-like asset basis in 2022 compared
102019,

In 2022 we focused further on the application
of ourapproach atan asset level, undertaking
an audit of each asset to identify historic and
current performance, opportunities for energy
reductions and onsite renewables. The
findings of our earlier physical climate risk
assessments were also taken into account,
although these confirmed our portfolic to have
alow expasure, a view supported by our low
risk Sustainalytics rating. We identified three
different scenarios for each asset, aligned with
CRREM pathways, and selected the most
impactful interventions todetermine a
decarbonisation pathway for each. These
findings informed our newflagship destination
NZAPs and the transition actions identified
above will help embed the outputs ot these
acrossour operations.

Thedesign teams working onour
development opportunities are targeting net
rero carbon, loaking closely at embodied
carbon and adopting Passivhaus principles

in all their work. Qurdesign standards were
reviewed in 2022, and we continue o strive
for BREEAM Excellent. We wiill continue to
increase the challenges we set ourselves as
ourknowledge and material options broaden.
Alive exampleinthis areais at The Ironworks
project at Dundrum Town Centre whichisone
of the first Irish residential schemes to have

been designedtoachieve BREEAM Excellent.
The scheme incorporates a number of
environmental features including PV,
greenroofs, rainwater harvesting, heat pumps
and BV charging,

Ourresponse to Task Ferce on Climate-
Related Financial Disclosures

We have considered our ‘comply or explain’
obligation underthe UK's Financial Conduct
Authority's (FCA) Listing Rules, and confirm
that we have made disclosures consistent with
the TCFD recommended disclosures. Wewill
continue torefine our approachin line with the
FCA's requirements.

Inourassessment of the risks under the
TCFD requirements, we did not identify any
material financialimpacts on the Group's 2022
financial statements. We will continue to
review the risks for new impacts each vear
as part of our standard ESG governance.

The Board can therefore confirm that it has
considered the relevance of climate and
transition rnsks assoclated with the transition
tonet zero as part of the preparation of the
Annual Report 2022.

Thetable below provides an overvisw of
headline points in response to the TCFD
recommendations and provides links to
furtherinformation in the Annual Report 2022
and also in our separate 2022 ESG Report and
Databock which is available on the Group's
website www. hammerson.com.

Furtherinformation

1 Describe the Board’s oversight
of climate-related risks and
opportunihies.

The Board collectively has overall accountability for climate risk and
wider ESG matters which are atso addressed by the Group Executive
Committee (GEC). The GEC responsibility for climate-related risk
resideswith the Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) whois responsible for

delivering the strategy.

2 Dascribe management'srolein
assessingand managing
climate-relatedrisks and
opportunities.

The delivery of ESGinitiatives and the monitoring of risks and targetsis
undertaken by the GEC. Thereis also ESG representation on the Group
Management Committee and the Group Investment Committee to

ensure that £SG isembedded across the Group's activities.

Risks and Uncertainties (page 50}
Corporate Governance Report
(page 71}

Audit Committee Report {page 76)

Section Lofour 2022 E5G Report

ESG Review (page 30)
Risks and Uncertainties (page 52)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

In line with our Group risk methodology, climaté risks and opportunities,
including transition risks, are reviewed Dy the Audit Committee twice
ayear. The reviews inforrm our transition plans at bath a Group and

assat level.



Requirement

Progress
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Furtherinformation

3 Describetheclimate-related
risks and opportunities the
arganisation has identified
overthe short, medium and
long term.

4 Describe theimpact of
climate-related risks and
opportunities on the
organisation’s businesses,
strategy and financial planning.

5 Describetheresilience ofthe
organisation’s strategy, taking
into consideration different
climate-related scenarios,
includinga 2°C or lower scenario.

6 Describethe orgénisation’s .
processes foridentifying and
assessing climate-related risks.

7 Describethe orgam-w’satl-on’s
process formanaging
climate-related risks.

8 Describe how processes tor
identifying, assessing, and
managing climate-related
risks are integrated into
the organisation’s overall
risk management.

9 Disclose the metrics used
bythe organisation tc assess
climate-related risks and
opportunities inline with its
strategy and risk management.

Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2,
and if appropriate, Scope 3
greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, and the

related risks.

10

Describe the targets used by
the organisation to manage
climate-related risks and
opportunities and performance
against targets.

11

The Group performed adetailed review in 2021 toassess and plan for
climate change risks and identified 12 key risks and 13 key opportunitias,
These were across three key areas: the identification of specific physical
andtransition risks; a physical risk deep dive; and a stranding risk
assessment. These were reassessedin 2022.

Acommitment to mitigate or manage climate risks which threaten
strategic objectives underpins the Group’s strategy. Following our workin
2021 toidentify risks and opportunities, in 2022 we enhanced our focus
on climate risks and the application of the energy hierarchy across our
assets to ensure we mirimise energy use, our greatest carbon impact.
Our half-yearly review of climate risks and cpportunities willinform
continuous review of our Group level and asset level transition plans.

The Group has reviewed its climate risk for three separate scenarios:
1.5°C, 2°C and 4°C increase, the first two of which are relevant to TCFD.
For the first scenario (Steady Path to Sustainability), risks are assessed
as materialising steadily through the 2020s with a generally slow onset,
such that the Group can adapt its strategy accordingly. For the second
scenario (Late Policy Action), risks are assessed as crystallising in quick
succession in the early to mid-2030s. Almost all the risks have a higher
impact and likelihood under this scenaric.

The Group has an overall risk management framework for all
operational, financial, reputational and regulatory risks, which aliows
the Board toidentify, assess and manage the Group’s keyrisksincluding
climate-related risks. Short, medium and long term risks are alsc
identified using our ESG risk framewaork, taking into account economic,
regulatory and scientific changes. Regular reviews are undertaken
throughout the year of all risks, including climate-related risks.

The GEC and Board, supported by the Audit Committee, have oversight
ofthe Group's risks including climate-related risks. The ESG team
provide regular ESG updates to these committees including twice yearly
reviews of climate risks and opportunities, including transition risks.

* Qurclimate-related risks are fed into the Groupr’s Risk Framework,

reviewed half yearly, and our response is managed by our senior-level
governance structure for climate-related risks.

The Group uses arange of metrics toassess exposure to shortterm
climate-related risks and opportunities including energy consumption
and Scope 1, 2 and 3 carbon emissions in line with market practice.
We regularly assess and seek feedback on our disclosures and strive
to enhance transparency for all our stakeholders.

We report extensivelyon ourScope 1, 2 and 3 emissions and to provide
greater prominence we have incorporated the GHG emissions table
within the ESG section of this Annual Report 2022.

We are targeting to be Net Zero by 2030 and have emissions targets in
our 2021 sustainability-linked bond. At a Group level we also setannual
targets which are underpinned by individual asset level targets. The
Group level targetis included in the Group's annuat incentive plan.

ESG Report (page 30)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

ESG Report (page 30)

Risks and Uncertainties (page 54)
Non-financial Information Statement
(page 62)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

Section L of pur 2022 ESG Report

Full climate change scenaric report
available on request

Riskﬁ “e-m-d Uncertainties-(page 50)
Audit Committee Report {page 77)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

Risks and Uncertainties (pégé 50)
Audit Committee Report (page 77)

Section 1 of gur 2022 ESG Report

Risks and Uncertainties (page 50)
Audit Committee Report {page 77)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

ESG Review (pages 25-27)

Sections 1 and 2 of our 2022
ESG Report

ESG Review (pages 25-27)

Section 2 of our 2022 ESG Report
and supporting Databook

Directors’ Remuneration Report
{page 83)

Note 18 to the financial statermments
(page 167)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report



STRATEGIC REPORT
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Our Stakeholders

Occupiers

Customers

Colleagues

Communities

Partners

Investors

We create a platformthat fosters success for a diverse and
evolving mix of occupiers to deliver unrivalled customer
experiences and thrive,

We create vibrant destinations through continually evolving
the mix of brands and experiences through placemaking
and events that appeal ta a broad range of consumers.

Qur colleagues are fundamentalto achieve our strategic
goals. We supportour people and empower our operations
teams to deliver best-in-class customer service,
championing a diverse culture where everyone canthrive,

We continually strive to make a positive difference to the
communities in which we operate.

We strive to be a responsible partner with a wide range
of partners thatenable us to deliver our strategy.

We have a broad range of institutional investors and private

shareholders. We actively engage with them throughout
the year and undertake regular communication toensure
theyunderstand the performance of the business.

i
[N
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B
Citias 5
Shared commercial objectives; attracting
consumers
Vibrant and well-operated destinations
ESG
Occupancy cost

Vibrant destinations with engaging occupier
mix
Future winning brands

Continuous improvement toenhance
consumer engagementand experience

ESG

Strategy

Colleague engagement
Reward

Diversity, equality and inclusion
Training and development
Health and wellbeing

ESG

High performance

Measurable positive impactin socio-
economic issuas relevanttothe communities
inwhich we operate

ESG

Cormmunity projects focus on four areas:
— Employment and skills

— Localinvestment and enterprise

— Developing young people

Health and wellbging

[

Current and future financial performance
Operational excellence

Corporate governance

Innovation

Consumer trends and insight

ESG

Currentand future financial performance
Strategy

Corporate governance

ESG

Regularand transparent communication
and reporting
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Our dedicated igasing team has a leasing stratepy fir earh ascot, underpinned by Ui Giuup's Strategic objectives

We hold regularexecutive management meetings with cur occupiers

The Board receives reports fromthe senior management tearm on the performance of our ccecupiers, which are discussed atits meetings

We have atargeted programme of engagement for future cccupiers and partners

We run a brand feedback study with our occupiers to gather input on their satisfaction to help drive stronger, mutualty beneficlal relationships

We undertake both quantitative and qualitative insight to understand consumer needs
Ourmarketing, leasing and asset management strategies are focused on ensuring that we curate vibrant destinations for multi-use estates
We investin optimising space and occupier mixand improving customer facilities

The Board receive regular reports on consumer behaviours and associated needs which provides useful insights into emerging trends at
alocaland national level and willinform investment decisions and identify future revenue drivers

We held regular briefings of colleagues by the Chief Executive and other members of the senior management team
Updates on current business is delivered via town hall ‘squad” meetings
The Colleague Forumwas established in May 207.9 and we have a designated Non-Executive Director for colleague engagement
Adffinity Groups, which champion diversity, equality and inclusion, cover Race and Ethnicity, LGBTO+, Women's and Wellbeing. These groups
drive cur diversity, equality and inclusion calendar of colleague engagement activations.
Ourcomprehensive pragramme for new joiners includes an online training programme
Established a new Diversity, Inclusion and Engagement Manager role to embed best practices across the business

Ourlocal community impacts are positive, and aur business activities attract significant additional investmentinto local economies
We establish a clear placemaking strategy for each asset, that reflects the needs of our local communities, delivered through our asset
management programme

We set cormmunity engagement plans that address issues identified as relevant to local communities

We develop long-term partnerships with organisations that share our focus areas

The Directors received a repart of the progress against socio-economic targets as part of the Group’s sustainability strategy

Our ESG group considers donations to suitable charities in line with our four focus areas, including charities local to our assets,
complementing our sustainability goals

We hold guarterly joint venture board meetings to approve asset business plans annually, setting parameters forthe next year and over
the longerterm
Ad hoe meetings with partners are arganised to highlight key areas of focus, including ESG, customer experience and innovation

We are signatories to the Prormpt Payment Code, 1o support our partners, suppliers, local authorities and debt investors

We take a proactive approach to investor relations and hold numerous meetings with shareholders and analysts. Meetings were held
throughout the year with institutional shareholders to discuss progress on our strategy, rent collections and operational updates, aswell as
guestions of governance. The Chair of the Remuneration Committee took part in consultations with major institutional shareholders as part
of the Committee’s review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

Key shareholder publications including the annual report, the full year and half year results anncuncements, operational updates,
sustainability report and press releases and the infarmation for invastors are available onthe Company’s website

The AGM provides the opportunity to engage with shareholders and allows all shareholders to attend and vote on resolutions. Shareholders
were able to ask questions at the meeting and were ask given the opportunity te submit questions to the Board in advance of the meeting.
In Octaber 2022 a general meeting was held to approve special resolutions for the Enhanced Serip Dividend Alternative and to cancel the
Company’s capital redemption reserve.

23




STRATEGIC REFONT
QUR STAKEHOLDERS continued

Stakeholder engagement

We seek to delivervalue for all our
stakeholders. The Board is also aware that its
actions and decisions irmpact our stakeholders
including the communities in which we
operate. Effective engagement with
stakeholders isimportant tothe Board as it
strengthens the business and helps to deliver
a positive result for all our stakeholder groups.

Tnorderto comply with Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Board is required
totake into consideration the interests of
stakeholders and include a statement setting
out the way in which Directors have discharged
this duty during the year.

The Board seekstounderstand the needs and
the key areas of interest of each stakeholder
group and consider them during deliberations
and as part of the decision-making process.
Itreviews the long-term consequences of
decisions on each stakeholder group by
ensuring that the Group builds and nurtures
strong working relationships with our
shareholders, occupiers, suppliers, joint
venture partners, debt capitat providers,
consumers, and the widercommunity and
govemment agencies which are important
tothe success of the Group. Lt doesthis

by overseeing the work undertaken by
management to maintain and seek to enhance
these relationships. The Board receives
detailed reports and when relevant these
include assessments oftheimpactofa
proposal or project on stakeholders, and if
required, the Directors receive appropriate
input from the senior management team.

Section 172(1) statement
The Directors of the Company have actedin
away that they considered, in good faith, to be
most likely to promote the success of the
Companyforthe benefitof its membersasa
whole and, in deing so, had regard, amongst
other matters, to those matters setoutin
section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act
2006, being:
— Thelikely consequences of any decision in
thelongterm

— Theinterests of the Company's colleagues

— The need te foster the Company’s business
relationships with partners, consumers
and others

— Theimpact of the Company’s operations on
the community and the environment

— Thedesirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high standards
of business conduct

— The need to act fairly as between members
of the Company

The Board has identified its key stakeholders
as being its: occupiers; customers; colleagues;
communities; partners; and investors, Building
and nurturing these relationships based on
professionalism, fair dealing and integrity is
criticalto our success.

Ourextensive engagement efforts help o
ensure that the Board can understand,
consider and balance broad stakeholder
interests when making decisions to deliver
{ong-term sustainable success.

Whilethe Board willengage directly with
stakeholders on certain issues, stakeholder
engagement willoften take place atan
operational level with the Board receiving
regular updates on stakeholder views from
ihe Executive Directors and the senior
management team. Directors receive a
briefing regarding their duties under s172(1).
Board papers forall key decisions are required
toinclude a specific section reviewing the
impactof the proposal on relevant stakeholder
groups as wellas other s172(1) considerations.
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The Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Company’s values, strategy
and purpose, all of which centre araundthe
interests of key stakeholders and other factors
section outin s1.72(1). The Directors remain
conscious that their decisions and actions
have animpact on stakeholders, including
occupiers, customers, colieagues,
communities, partners, and investors, and
they have had regard to stakeholder
considerations and other factors in s172(1)
duringtheyear.

Whilst the Board acknowtedges that,
sometimes, it may have totake decisions
that affect one or more stakeholder groups
differently, it seeks totreat impacted groups
fairly and with regard to its duty toact inaway
that it cansiders would be mast likely to
promote the success of the Company forthe
benefit of its members as a whole, having
regard to the balance of factors setoutin
$172(1). Considerations relating to s172(1}
factors arean important part of governance
processes and decision-making both at Board
and management level, and more widely
throughout the Company. Necessarilyina
large group, some decisions are taken by
management, These decisions arc taken
within parameters set by the Board and there
is arobust framework that ensures ongoing
oversight and monitoring.



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial
Review

Overthe last twoyears, the Groun has made
significant firancial pregress in re-basingits
gross rentalincome, reducing costs and in
strengthening the balance sheet.

IFRS reported losses decreased to £1.64m
comparedwith alossof £429min 2021,
predominantly duetothe impact of market-
wide vield and ERV expansion on property
valuations, reflecting higher base interest
ratesinthe second half.

Adjusted earnings for the yearended

31 December 2022 increased by 60%to
£105masaresult of improved performance
acrossthe business. On alike-for-like bas's,
gross rental income increased by 8% and
like-for-like net rental income Improved by
29%. Qur gross administration costs reduced
17% year-on-year with more efficiencies to
come from continuing to refine our operating

model and from automation and digitalisation.

We also reducedfinance costs as aresult of
the continued deleveraging of the balance
sheet, and we saw an improved recovery from
Value Retail.

EPRANTAwas £2,634m at 31 Dacember
2022, adecline ot 7% year-on-year
(2021:£2,6840m), and EPRANTA per
sharewas 53p (2021:64p).

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

Net debt reduced by 4% to £1,732m at

31 December 2022 (2021: £1,799m)
benefitting from £166m of cash generated
from operations and gross disposal proceeds
of £195m bringing total disposals since the
beginningof 2021 to £628m. These were
partially offset by capitalexpenditure of £76m
and adverse foreign exchange movements
of£131m.

Headline LTV was 39% and LTV on a fully
preportional consolidation basis was 47 %.
Our netdebt: EBITDA Improved to 10.4x
from 13.4xin 2021. The Group has ample
liguidity incash and undrawn committed
facilities of c. £1bn.

During the year, Moody’s and Fitch’s senior
unsecured investment grade credit ratings
werere-affirmed as Baa3 and BBB+,
respectively and outlooks from both rating
agencies were changed from negative to
stable reflecting the significant improvements
inthe business, debt reductionand the
recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic,

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT
FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

PRESENTATION OF FINAMCIAL INFORMATION

The Group’s property portfolio comprises
properties that are eitherwholly owned or
co-owned with third parties.

Whilst the Group prepares its financial
statements under IFRS (the ‘Reported Group'),
the Group evaluates the performance of its
portfolio foriniernal management reporting
by aggicgating its wholly ownod businesses
togetherwith its share of joint ventures and
associates which are underthe Group's
management (‘Share of Property interests’)

on a proportionally consolidated basis, line by
ling, including, where applicable, discontinued
operations {in total described as the Group’s
‘Managed partfolia’).

Boththe IFRS and Management reporting
bases are presented in the financial
statements.

The Group's investment in Value Retailis

not proportionatly consolidated because it

is notunder the Group's management, is
independently financed and has differing
aperating metrics to the Group's managed
portfolio. Accordingly, iLis accounted for
separately as share of results of associates as
reported under IFRS and is also excluded from
the Group’s proportionally consolidated key
metrics such as net debt or like-for-like net
rental incorne growth.

Haowever, for certain of the Group's Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs), forenhanced
transparency, we do disclose metrics
combining both the managed partfolic and
Value Retail. These include property valuations
and returns and certain credit metrics.

Managemenirepcriing and IFRS accouniing treatmeant

Management reporting
Managed portfolio
Value Retail

IFRS

Managed portfolic:

— Reported Group

— Share of Propertyinterests

—Discontinued operations*
Value Retail

Camprising properties which are
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Following the full impairment of our share in
the Highcrass joint venture as at 31 Decermnber
2021, the Group has ceased to recognise the
results of this joint venture in the income
statement, however, the Group’s share of

its assets and liabilities continue to be
incorporated innote 13 tothe financial
statermnents. Since the yearend, it was agreed
that it wasin the bestinterests of the lenders
inthe lohge el o appoint arceeivorto
administer the asset for the benefit of the
creditors. Accordingly, owing to control being
inthe hands of the receiver, going forward,
Highcross will cease to be incorporated inta
the Group’s financial statements.

Accounting treatment

—wholly owned and Share of Property interests
—Heldasan associate

- wholly owned

— Jointly owned

— Heldin joint ventures
—Heldinassociates

— UK retail parks portfolio
—Held as an associate

Proportionally consolidated
Single line —results/investment in associates

Fully consolidated

Consolidaticn of Group's share

Single line—results/investmentin joint ventures
Single line—results/investment in associatas
Single line —discentinued operations

Single line —resul{s/investment in associates

* Onlyapplicable for 2021, whereby proportionally consolidated figures include resulis up to the date of disposal.



Mew accounting pronouncemenisresuliing
inrestatementsof 2021

During the year, the following agenda decisions
were issued which have been considered

as follows:

— InApril2022, the IFRIC issued an agenda

dacision inrespect of the prosentation of
‘Demand deposits with restrictions on use
arising from a contract with a third party’
("the IFRIC Decision on Deposits’) with
furtherinformation provided in note 18
tothefinancial statements. The impact

is tochange the classification of certain
amounts held by third party managing
agentsin respect of tenant deposits and
service charges such that they have heen
reclassified from restricted monetary
assetstocashand cashequivalents.

The effects of the restatement are set out
innote 16 tothe financial statements.

In October 2022, the IFRICissuedan
agendadecisionin respect of ‘Lessor
forgiveness of lease payments (IFRS 9 and
IFRS16) (‘the IFRIC Decisionon
Concessions’). This concluded that losses
incurred on granting retrospective rent
concessions should be chargedtothe
income statement on the date that the legal
rights toincome are conceded (.¢.
immediate recognition in full). Historically,
the Group's treatment of such concessions,
which aroscas aresult of the Covid-19
pandemic, was to recognise these as lease
modifications such that the impact was
initially held on the balance sheet and then
spread forward into the income statement
overthe lease term or period tofirstbreak.
Theimpactisthat 2021 figures have been
restated whereby Reported Group revenue,
gross rental income, net rental income and
revaluation losses are affected although
operating profitand income statement
figures below are unaffected The equivalent
Adjusted figures are also affected including
those down to Adjusted earnings. A more
detailed analysis of the effects is set outin
note 6 to the financial statements.

Where figures in this Financial Review have
been restated, these are marked .

AHernative Porformance Measurss (APM3)
The Group uses a number of APMs, being
financial measures notspecified under IFRS,
to monitorthe performance of the business.
Many of these measures are based on the
EPRA Best Practice Recommendations (BPR)
reporting framoworlowhich aims to improve
the transparency, comparability and relevance
of the published results of listed Eurcpean real
estate companies. Details onthe EPRABPR
can betound onwww.epra.comandthe Group’s
key EPRA metrics are shown in Table 1 of the
Additional information.

We present the Group’s results on an IFRS basis
butalso on an EPRA, Headtine and Adjusted
basis as explained in note 1B to the financial
statements. The Adjusted basis enables us

to monitor the underlying operations of the
business on a propartionally consolidated
basis as described in the basis of preparation
and excludes capital and non-recurring items
such as revaluation movements, gains or
losses on the disposal of properties or
investments, as well as other items which the
Directors and management do not consider
tobe part of the day-to-day operations of the
business. Such excluded items are inthe main
reflective of those excluded for EPRA earnings,
but additionally exclude certain cash and
non-cash iterms which we believe are not
retlective of the normal routine operating
activities of the Group. We believe that
disclosing such non-IFRS measures enables
evaluation of the impact of such items on
results to facilitate a fuller understanding of
performance from period to period. These
iterns, together with EPRA and Headline
adjustrments are setout in more detailin

note 10Ato the financial statements.
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For 2022, adjusting items additionalto EPRA
adjusting items comprised:
— Exclusionofachargeof £5.1m

(2021: £8.6m)inrespect of business
transformation as the Group continues its
impternentation of strategic change and
comprises manly non-capitalisable costs
associated with digital transformation as
well as severance costs following the
reorganisation which occurred mainly
inthesecond halfof 2021,

Acreditof £2.4m (2021 credit of £8.1m)
toreverse expected credit losses charged
tothe income statement but where the
related income is deferred on the balance
sheet such that the exclusion of this
removes the distortive mismatch
thiscauses.

Income of E1.6mfrom assets heldfor
sale which relates to the Group's 50%
joint venture investment in Silverburn
soldinMarch 2022. The IFRS and EPRA
accounting treatment is to offset the
operating income until disposal against the
loss onsale, therefore it is excluded from
Adjusted earnings. As aresult we have
added the income back inorder to reflect
the fact that the property remained under
the Group’s joint ownership and
management up untilcompletion of the
disposal and is censidered to still be part
ofunderlying earnings.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

INCOME STATEMENT

Summary incoms statement

Reported Group

The Group’s IFRS reported loss was £164.2m (2021: £429.1m loss). The most significant elements of the reduction were reduced valuation
losses of £82.7m (2021: £169.6m), where the key factors influencing this were the market driven yield shiftin the second half of the year of £68m,
areduction inthe share of losses injoint ventures to £41.5m (2021: losses of £171.3m) where again a reduced valuation deficitof £138.3m
(2021: £274.5m) was a key contributor and an adverse swing in the Group’s share of Value Retail of £25.3m again driven by valuation losses.

Proportionally consolidated

The Group evaluates the performance of its portfolio forinternal management reporting by aggregating its wholly owned businesses together with
its share of joint ventures and associates which are under the Group’s management ("Share of Property inleresls's uind prupu Liunally consslidated
basis, line by line, including, where applicable, discontinued operations. A detailed reconciliation from Reparted Group to the proportionally
consolidated hasis is setoutin note 2 to the financial statements and a summary reconciling to Adjusted earnings is set out below:

2022 2021
i - ~ a Praportionally consolié;ted B i Proparionally consolidated
Before Before

adjustments Adjustments Adjusted adjustments  Adjustments Adusted

Summaryincome statement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Netrentalincome + 177.2 (2.4) 174.8 182.5 8.1 174.4
Netadministration expenses {47.9) 5.1 ~ {42.8) (£0.0} 86 (51.4)
Profitfrom operating activities T 129.3 2.7 132.0 1225 05 1230
Revaluation losses — Managed portfolio T (221.0) 221.0 - (444.1) 4441 -
Disposals and assets held for sale {1.0) 1.0 - (10.3) 103 -
Fairvalue changes and other impairments ] {0y 0.1 - 0 03 -
Other net (losses)/gains (1.1) 1.1 - (10.6) 10.6 -
Jointventureimpairment - - - (11.5) 115 -
Shareof resuits of associates (Value Retail) B (53) 327 27.4 200 4.1y 159
Operating (loss)/profit 1 (98.1) 257.5 159.4 (323.7) 462.6 138.9
Net finance costs (65.6) 11.6 (54.0) (103.6) 318 (71.8)
Taxcharge i ) (0.5) - _ (0.5 (1.8) 02 1.6
(Loss)/prafit for the period ) t (164.2) 269.1 104.9 (429.1) 494.6 655
Reported Adjusted Reported Adjusted

(Loss)/earnings per share ) _ pence pence pence _pence

Basic b (3.3)p 8.7)p

Adjusted T b 2.1p 1.3p

1 2021 figures have beenrestatec to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Caoncessions with furtherinformation provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.
a Proportionally consolidated igures are set outin more detailin rate 2 and adjustrents are described in mare detailin note 10Ato the inanaial statements.

b Inadditiontothe IFRIC Decision on Concessions, comparative figures for 2021 have also been restated to take account of the bonus element of scrip dividends
as explained furtherin nate 118 to the financial statements. Previously reported figres were: Reporied Group: (9.8)p; Adjusted: 1.8p.



Thetable below bridges Adjusted carnings between the two periods.

Reconciliation of movements in Adjusted earnings
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* Adjusted
Ll lgh

31 Decermnber 2021

Increase innet rental income excluding disposals

Decreasein netfinance costs

Decrease in gross administration costs

Decrease in tax charge

Increase in Value Retail earnings

Decrease in net rental income arising from dispnsals

Decreasein property fee income and management fees receivable

£m

65.5
20.7
17.8
11.9
1.1
11.5
(20.3)
(3.3)

31 December 2022

104.9

T 2021 figures have beenrestated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with fusther information provided innotes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.
* Decreases and increases are all on an Adjusted basis and therefore exclude adjusting items as set out in note 10Ato the financial statements,

Eenizlincoine
Analysis of rentalincome

2022
o Sha ré of Pro perty interests o
Reported Joint Discontinued

Group ventures  Associates Subtotal  operations Total

Propertionally consolidated £m £m £m £m £m £m

Grossrentalincome 90.2 119.4 5.6 125.0 - 215.2
Net service charge expenses and cost of sales (12.9) (239) (1.2 (25.1) - (38.0)

Net rentalincome 77.3 955 4.4 99.9 - 177.2
Changein provision for amounts not yet recegnised in the income statement (2.4)

Adjusted net rentalincome 174.8

2021

” ~ Share of Property interests T
Reported Joint Discontinued

Group veniures Associates Subtotal aperations Total

Proportionally consolidated £m m £m Em £m rm

Grossrentalincome 903 1431 6.0 149.1 11.0 250.4
Netservice charge expenses and cost of sales ] (23.1) {42.3) 1.3) (A3.6) 1.2y (679

Netrentalincome 1 67.2 100.8 4.7 1055 9.8 182.5
Changein provision for amounts not yet recognised in the income statement (8L

Adjusted net rentalincome T 174.4

1t 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessians with further information is provided innotes 18 and & tothe financial staterents.

Gross Rental Income (GRI)

GRIdecreasedto £215.2mfrom £250.4m, reflecting the impact of disposzals and lower surrender premiurns than in 2021. These were partly
offset by increased turnover and car park income, lower concessions and income from completion of the extension at Les 3 Fontaines.

2022 2021 Changegin

Proportienally consolidated £m £m like-for-like
Like-for-like managed portfolio: o *

—UK T 86.8 78.4 10.8%

—France i 41.2 38.8 6.1%

—lretend i 371 353 2.1%

165.1 1525 8.3%

T 2021 figures have been restated Lo reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in nates 18 and 6 to the financial statements.
* Like-for-like GRI for the managed portfolio s calculated based on properties owned throughout both current and prior periods, calculated ona constant currency

basis such that the comparatives have been restated accordingly.
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Net Rental Income (NRI}

NRIdecreased to £177.2m from £182.5m. Adjusted NRIwas broadly unchanged at £174.8m (2021: £174.4m). In addition tothe GRI
mavements highlighted above, NRI benefited from a significantimpravement in collections enabling release of provisions for bad debts and
tenant incentive impairments together with growth in variable income streams. This resuited inan improvement of the Adjusted NRL:GRI
{after ground rents payable) ratio to 81.2% (2021: 69.6%).

2022 2021 Changein
Proportionally consclidated £m fm  lke-for-like
Like-for-like managed portfolio: a
—UK t 70.8 51.0 31.3%
— France f 36.3 26.8 35.4%
—Ireland 3 ‘ - t 33.6 282 19.3%
140.7 109.0 29.2%
Disposals 3.5 238
Developrments and other t 30.6 41.8
Foreign exchange - ) . - 02
Adjusted net rentalincome T 174.8 174.4
Change In provision for amounts not yet recognised in the income statement ) . 2.4 8.1
Net rentalincome T 177.2 1825

T 2021 figures have beenrestaled to reflect the [IFRIC Decision an Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.

a Like-for-like NRI for the managed portfolicis calculated based on properties owned throughout both currentand prior periods, calculated on a constant currency
basis such that the comparatives have been restated accordingly.

b Relatestothe change in provision foramounts notyet recognised in the income staternent for expected credit losses whereby the related income s deferred on
the balance sheet. The amount has been excluded from Adjusted net rentalincome to eradicate the distortion of cost being recagnised in ane accounting period
andthe related revenue being recognised in a different account’ng period as further described innote 10A to the financial statements.

Like-for-like NRIincreased by £31.7m (29%) against 2021 reflecting strong leasing performance, improved collections, increased variable
turnover rent and netincome from car parks and commercialisation.

The drivers of the like-for-like increase were consistent across all of the Group’s geographies, offset by the loss of NRI frem disposals inthe UK In
2021 and 2022 being £20.3m, of which £2.0.5m came from the sale of Victoria and Silverburn in the first half of 2022 and £8.4m from the 2021
sale of UK retail parks.

Further analysis of net rental income by segment is provided in Table 6 of the Additional information.

Administration expenses

2022 2021
Proportionally consolidated £m £m
Employee costs — excluding variable costs 29.2 375
Variable employee costs 9.6 9.6
Other corporate costs B ~ ) 210 24.%
Gross administration costs 59.8 71.7
Property fee income (11.5) (13.2)
Jointverture and associate management fee income 7 7 (5.5) L7
Otherincome 17.0) (20.3)
Adjusted net administration expenses 42.8 51.4
Business transformation costs ) N ) o 5.1 _Be
Net administration expenses 47.9 60.0

During 2022, Adjusted net administration expenses decreased by £8.6magainst 2021 The decrease, reflecting the Group's focus on cost

reduction, principally refates ta:

— Employee costsfollowing the reset of the organisation to an asset-centric structure which occurred inthe second half of 2021, Average
headcount duringthe year reduced from 494 to 370 with headcount at 31 December 2022 being 320.

— Othercorporate costs (comprising mainly professional fees, office rentand software licenses), where the most significan: element was a
decrease of £2.7m in Directors and Officers insurance premiums reflecting tne strengthening of the Group's financial posizion. The remainder
of the decrease was predominantly in professional fees.
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Business transformation costs comprised mainly fees for contractors and consultants from the Group's digitalisation programme, whichwere
noteligible for capitalisation, and severance costs relating to the ongoing strategic re-organisation initiated in the second half of 2021 (2021:
comprised mainly consultancy fees and severance costs).

Dispesalsand assets held for sale
During 2022, we raised gross proceeds of £295m, relating mainly to the disposals ol Silverburn and Victoria. laken together with ather smaller
disposals and adjustments to historical disposals, an overall profit from disposals of £0.7m was generated.

Sharcofresults of joint vestures and assosiates, including Valus Ratail

Reported Group

Afulllisting of ourinterests in joint ventures and associates is set out in Table 22 of the Additional information, Cur Reported share of results under
IFRSwas acombined loss of £48.6m (2021: loss of £155.7m), This year-an-year change was due to lower revaluation losses in 2022 compared
with 2021,

Proportionally consolidated

Onan Adjusted basis, because the Group's managed portfolio of joint ventures and associates is propaortionally consolidated, the Group’s share
of results of joint ventures and associates comprises solely the Group’s investment in Value Retail which generated Adjusted earings of £27.4m
(2021: £15.9m}. The year-on-yearimprovement principally reflects higher GRI from increased sales resuiting from the easing of Covid-19
restrictions wherg lockdowns in 2021 meant that Villages were closed for part of the year.

T N S
Reported Group

Reported Group net finance costs were £63.0m, adecrease of £34.9m compared with 2021 attributable to higher interest income and lower debt
and loanfacility canceliation costs.

2022 2021
Propertionally consplidated £m £m
Adjusted finance income i _ i N; 7 264 ____}751
Finance costs
Grossinterest costs (81.3) (62.2)
Interestcapitalised . 1.2 5.3
Adjustedfinance costs (80.1)  (B6.9)
Adjusted net finance costs (54.0) (71.8}
Debt and loan facility cancellation costs (1.3) (22.0)
Changein fair valus of derivatives o o ) .@o3) 98
Net finance costs (65.6) {103.6)

Adjusted net finance costs wera £54.0m, adacrease of £17.8m compared with 2021. The decrease was driven by the benefits of deleveraging

since the start of 2024, early repayment of debt utilising proceeds from disposals, the related restructuring of hedging derivatives and higher

interestincome from cash deposits, Key components comprised;

— afé.8Bmreductionin finance costs driven by areduction ininterast on cross currency swaps and areduction as aresult of repayment of private
placement notes and eurobonds

— £11.0mhigher interestincome resulting from both increased cash balances in the year following disposals and a sharprise in prevailing
intercst rates in the second half of the vear

Proportionally consolidated net finance costs decreased by £38.0m to £65.6m compared to 2021, with £20.7m of the decrease relating to lower
debt and loan facility cancellation costs partly offset by changes in the fair value of derivatives, both of which are treated as adjusting items and
are described further in note 10A to the financial statements. The debt and loan facility cancellations costs relate tounarmortised facility feesin
respect of revolving credit facilities which were extinguished and replaced with a new £463m facility as set out in the cash flow and net debt
section below.

The Group’s tax charge on a proportionally consolidated basis was £0.5mwhich compares to £1.8m for 2021, with the reduction being due to
certain changes in the Irish capital structure. 1 he tax charge remains low as the Group benefits from being a UK RETT and French SIIC and its Irish
assets are held in a QIAIF. The Group is committed to remnaining in these tax exempt regimes and further details on these regimes are given in note
8tothefinancial statements.

Inwrden ko salisfy the RELL conditions, the Company is required, on an annual basis, to pass certain business tests. The Group has met all
requirements for maintaining its REIT status forthe year ended 31 December 2022.
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Rividends

The payments of cash and enhanced scrip dividends approved by shareholders and made in 2022 have satisfied our REIT and SIIC distribution
requirements. The Board is not recommending a further payment in respect of 2022 but continues to anticipate re-instating a cash dividend for
2023, expected to be atleast the minimum required to continue to meet our REIT/SIIC distribution obligations.

The interim cash and enhanced scrip dividend alternative were paid as a non-Property Income Bistribution {Non-PID) and treated as an ordinary
UK company dividend. As set outinnote 22 to thie lindiiLidlslaiennents, the interim dividend of £77.1mwag settled during the year, of which
£1.4mwas settledincash.

MITASSETS

Adetailed analysis of the balance sheet on a proportionally consolidated basis is set out in Table 12 of the Additionat information with a summary
recanciling to EPRANTA set out in the table below:

2022 2021

T T T T sharest T Share of S
Reparted Praperty EPRA Reparted Praperty EPRA

Group interests adjustments EPRANTA Group interests  adjustments EFPRANTA

Summary netassets £m £m £m €m £m Em £m rm

investmentand trading properties 1,497 1,723 - 3,220 1595 1883 - 3478

Investrment in joint ventures 1,342 (1,342) - - 1,452 {1,452) - -

Investrmentin associates — Value Retail 1,189 - 52 1,241 1,141 - 95 1.236

— [talie Deux 108 (308) - - 106 {106) - -

Assets held forsale - - - - 71 71 - -

Net trade receivables 24 20 - a4 27 19 - a6

Net debt T a (1,458) (274) (€] (1,733) (1,559) (240) 8 (1,791)

Othernetliabllies  _ __ t (1) @9 @ U8 G (3 9 129

Netassets 2,586 - 43 2,634 2,746 - 94 2,840

EPRA NTA pershare b 53p 540

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision an Depasits with further inforrmation provided innote 16 tothe inancial statements and Tables 13
and 14 of the Additionatinformation.

a Comprises cashand cash eguivalents, ioans, fairvatue of currency swaps and cash and cash equivatent held within assets held for sale.
EPRA adjustments in accordance with EPRA best practice, principally inrelation to deferred tax, as shown in note 10B tothe inancial statements,

o

During 2022, net assets decreased 6% to £2,586m (2021: £2,746m). Net assets, calculated on an EPRA Net Tangible Assets (NTA) basis, were
£2,634m, 0r 53 pence pershare, areduction of 11 pence compared to 31 December 2021 principally due torevaluation losses of £282m, partly
offset by Adjusted earnings of £105m, togetherwith dilution from the scrip dividends of 7.5p. This is equivalent to a total accounting return of
—~6.8%. The key components of the movement in Reported Group net assets and EPRA NTA are as follows:

Maovemantinnetasssis
Reported EPRA
Group adjustments EPRA NTA
Proportionally conselidated including Value Retail £m £m Em
1Jaruary 2022 2,746 9q 2,840
Property revatuation — Managed portfolio (221) -~ {221)
—Value Retail (61) ~ 63)
Adjusted earnings 105 - 105
Changeindeferred tax (9) 5 (4)
Dividends a3 - (13}
Foreign exchange and other movernents 39 (51) (12

31December 2022 2,586 48 7 2,634
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FRITERTY FORTFILIO ANALYSLE

Investmeant markets
The improvement in the investrment market seen in the first half of 2022 stalled inthe second half due to rising interest rates, continuing high
inflation, soaring energy prices and the ongoing warin Ukraine.

inthe UK, there were 58 shopping centre transactions totalling £1.9hbin, the majority of which were agreed in the first half of the year including
transactions invalving riori-1ndiiaged stakes in pnme shopping centres and larger lot sizes, for example, CPP Investments’ acquisition of Nuveen's
onethird stake in Bullring. Investment valumes slowed inthe second half of the yearwith a number of larger schemes failing to transact due to lack
of debtfinance. Second halfinvestment activity was primarily at the discount/convenience end with lot sizes between £10—-£30m (Source: JLL).
Prime shopping centre yields moved out by 50 basis points inthe lastquarter of 2022.

InFrance, retail investment activity reached €4.50n with over 207 transactions and strong volume growth in large transactions with 13 deals
above €100m (Source: JLL). Prime shopping centre vields increased slightly towards the end of the year,

InIreland, there was limited retail investment activity with retail representing just 8% (€0.4m) of total transactions and no transactions nf
sighificance (Saurce: C&W).

Portfaliovaluati
The Group's external valuations continue to ke conducted by CBRE Limited (CBRE), Cushman & Wakefield (C&W) and Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
(JLL), providing diversification of valuation expertise across the Group, At 31 December 2022 the majority of our UK flagship destinations have
beenvalued by JLL and CBRE, the French portfolio by JLL, and the Trish portfolio, Value Retail and Brent Cross have been valued by C&W. Thisis
unchanged from 31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's portfolio was valued at £5,107m, adecline of £265m (4.9%) since 31 December 2021, This movement was
primarily due to revaluation losses of £282m and net disposals totalling £194m comprising mainly Silverburn and Victoria, being partly offset by
capital expanditure of £79m and favourable foreign exchange gains of £157m. Movements inthe portfolio valuation are shown in the table below.

tassimentzin propa sty valuation
Develop-
ments and Managed Value Group
Flagships other portfolio Retail portfolio
Propaortionally censolidated including value Retail £m £m £m £m £m
At1 January 2022 o T 2,784 694 3,478 1,894 5,372
Revaluation losses a (168) (53) (221) (e1) (282)
Revaluation losses ofimpaired joint venture b - (26) (26) - (26)
Capital expenditure 51 22 73 6 79
Reclassifications 206 (206) - - -
Capitalised interest - 1 1 ) "
Disposals (187) ) (194) - (194)
Foreign exchange B . . 102 7 109 48 157
At 31December 2022 ' a 2,788 432 3,220 1,887 5,107

a Valuations and revaluation losses are further analysed in Table  of the Additionalinformation.
b The Highcross joint venture is excluded owing to the Group’s share of net losses after revaluanon being restncted to £nil as descnbed innate 13 to the
financial statements.

Duringthe year, capital expenditure on the managed portfolio was £73m and related mainly to the Les 3 Fontaines extension at Cergy, which
openedin March 2022, cladding works at Bullring and works to repurpose the former House of Fraser anchor unit at Dundrum, in addition to £15m
spentat Whitgift on acquiring the long leasehold and freehold interests. Table 11 of the Additional information analyses the spend between the
creationof additional area and that relating to the enhancement of existing space.

The Les 3 Fontaines extension expenditure was recorded in the Developments and other partfolio prior to the extension being reclassified tothe
Flagship portfolio upon opening.
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I

Revaluation losses

Excluding Highcross, we recognised a total net revaluation loss of £282m across the Group portfolio, comprising £221min respect of the
managed partfolio and £61m in Value Retail. £272m of the revaluation loss accurred in the second half of the year, the majority of which came
from a market driven yield shift of £154m in the second half of the year as a result of higher interest rates which mostly accurred in the last quarter
of 2022. The balance was principally duetothe valuers reducing selective ERVs across the portiolio.

UK flagship destinations reported a revaluation deficit of £90m where half was due to an cutward yield shift averaging 50 basis points with
the remainder due to selected ERV reductions. In France, yields were more stable with a 10 basis point outward movement, equivalent to

a revaluation deficit of £12m with the balance of E45m mainly due to ERV reductions. Ireland saw a positive moverment in ERV most notably
at Dundrum, hawever this was more than offset by a 20 basis point outwar d yield shift which resulted in anet revaluation deficit of E20m.

Adeficitof £53mwas recognised on the Developrments and other portfolio of which £11mrelated to Croydan assaciated with Iower income and
£13mrelated to the future development schemes in Dublin due to inflationary concerns over development costs.

Despite a continued strong post pandemic recovery intrading at Value Retailin the year, the portfolio recorded an overall revaluation loss of £61m,
of which £53m related to Bicester Village, driven by outward yield shifts.

Further valuation analysis isincluded in Table 9 of the Additional information.

Lilce-for-like ERV ¥
2022 2021
Flagship destinations % %
W e a0
France (1.6) 1.5
elerd e 30
(2.2) 6.7

* Calculated onaconstant currency basis for properties owned throughout the relevant reporting period.

Like-for-like ERVs fell 2.2% during 2022 with most of the decrease occurring in the second half of the year following a broadly flat performance
in H1 where the decrease was only 0.3%.

UK ERVs were 3.8% lower, reflecting the investment to attract ‘best in class’ occupiers in certain of cur managed portfolio, while ERVs in France
were marked down lessat 1.6%.

InIreland, ERVs were up 0.3%, with Dundrum Town Centre reporting a 0.4% increase driven by the opening of Brown Thomas in the former
House of Fraser unitin February, with Penneys relocatingintothe remaining space in the first half of 2023, offset by small decreases at the
other destinations.



Hammerson ple Annual Report 2022 -3

Fropzrty returns analysis

The Group’s managed property portfolio genarated atotal property return of —2.3%, comprising an income return of +5.4% offset by a capital
return of —7,3%. Incorporating the income and capital returns from the Value Retail portfolio, this brought the Group's income return 0 +5.3% and
the capital return to -5.8%, to generate a total return of —0.7% (2021, -3.9%,).

- e . ; . __@o22
Develop-
Flagship ments and Managed Value Group
UK France Ireland destinations other portolic Retail portfolio
Proportionally consalidated % % % Yo % % % Yo
Income returm T 7.9 48 52 6.0 2.3 54 53 53
Capitalreturn (9.49) (4.6) (3.0 (5.9) (14.8) (7.3) (3.1) (5.8)
Totalreturn (2.1) - 21 (0.2) (12.8) (2.3) 2.0 0.7
- B
Develop-
Flagship ments and Managed Value Group
UK France Ireland  destinations other portfolio Retail portiolic
Proportionally consolidated % % % % % % % %
Income rs;turﬂ 1 B 6.5 o 3.6 4.; 5.0 o 29 4‘7_“-" w"2_7 - zlEl
Capital raturn T (16.3) (6.4) (7.8} (11.2) (9.1) (10.9) (0.6) (7.7
Totalreturn T (10.8) (3.1 (3.9 (6.8) (6.6) (6.7 21 (3.9)

T 2021 fipures have been restated ta reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with further information provided in note 16 to the financial statements and Tables 13
and 14 of the Additionat information.

Shareholderveturns analysiz

Total Total
shareholder shareholder
return return
Cashbasis  Scrip basis Benchmarl';
a a
Return pey annum over % Y% %
Cneyear - B (262)  (15.1)  (34.3)
Threeyears (44.0} 37.7) {12.4)
Five years (35.2) (30.8) (6.7)

a Cashand scrip bases represent the return assuming investors opted for either cash or scrip dividends with the assumption that those opting for scrip dividends
continued to hold the addtional shares issued.

b Benchmarkis the FTSE FPRA/NAREIT UK index.

Hammersan's total shareholder return over one yearfor 2022 was -15.19% on a scrip basis (-26.2% on a cash basis), cutperforming the FTSE
EPRA/NAREIT UK index of -34.3%. Over five years however the Group underperformed compared to the benchmark of -6,7% with shareholder
returns of-35,2% and -30.8% on a cash and scrip basis, respectively.

IMVESTMENT INIOINTVENTURES AND ASSOCTIATES
Details of the Group’s joint ventures and associates are shown in notes 13 and 14, respectively to the financial staterments.

Reporied Group

Joint venhtures

During the year, ourinvestmentin jointventures decreased to £1,342m (2021: £1,452m) where the most significant mavements were the
Group's share of net rental income of £96m offset by revaluation iosses of £132m and cash distributions to the Group of £63m,

Associates

Ourinvestment in associates increased to £1,297m (2021: £1,247m) of which the Group's investment in Value Retail was £1,18%9m. Key
maovements were in Value Retail where the Group’s share of carnings were offset by revaluation losses of £61m together with foreign exchange
gainsof £E35m.
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TRADERECEIVABLES

During 2020 and 2021, the intermittent closures of the majority of non-essential retail across all regions as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic,
coupled with the UK governmient’s restrictions on landlords” ability to enforce collections, impacted collection rates and consequently, the level
of trade receivables was high. To address these challenges, the Group put in place more rigorous procedures and clearer tracking of our trade
receivables combininginvolvement of our asset management, keasing and finance teams to maintain clear focus on collections,

Over the course of the year, the underlying environment improved. This inciuded the lifting of UK government restrictions on collections (in two
phases in March and September 2022) and although restrictions differed in France and Ireland, similar improvements were also seen. The
combinatinn of these changes together with management’s focus has meant that we have been able to reduce the provisioning rates for some
ageing categoaries of receivable. However, with the backdrop of macruacanarmic unuer Luictics, we consgider it promature ta he extrapalating this
asatrend across all categories and accordingly our approach to provisioning remains cautious and prudent.

Gross trade (tenant) receivables an a proportionally consolidated basis totalled £74.1m (2021: £99.5m) against which a provision of £32.3m
(2021: £53.3m) has been applied. This provision represents 60% (2021: 76%) of trade receivables of £53.9m (2021: £70.5m) after excluding
tenant deposits, guarantees and VAT, although this also includes a provision of £1.6m (2021: £4.0m) in respect of income not yet recognised in
the income statement owing to a technical interpretation of IFRS 9 as explained in note 10A tothe financial staternents. Further analysis is set out
below andin note 15 tothe financial siatements.

2022 2021
- —*{—*—Tﬁ 4 T ?‘d T T —
receiuarhi:lees ! l rcceivar'gte‘;
netof netof
deposits, depasi's,
Gross trade | guaraniees Nettrade  Grosstrade | guarantees Met trade
receivables | and VAT Provision receivables recewables and VAT Provision receivables
£m £m £m £m m £m £m £m
w7 77 29a]  2s0] (125 166 463 384 (272 191
France 40.0 24.6 (17.2) 22.8 452 ‘ 256 | (21.7) 235
melend _ _ __ ___ sol 43 @& 24 80| e5| @y 3o
Managed portfolio 74.1 539  (323) 41.8 995 | 705 (53.3) 46.2
Share of Property interests o (33.2)1 (27.3)] 147 (18.4)  (44.6)]  (36.8) 259 {18.7)
Reported Group 41.0 [ 26.6 g (17.6) 23.4 54.9 | 33'7_L (27.4) 275

On 8 December 2022, the Company and the Trustees of the Group’s principal defined benefit pension scheme (‘the Scheme’) enteredinto a bulk
purchase annuity policy (buy-in") contract with Just Retirement Limited for a premium of £87.3m in respect of insuring all future payments to
existing pensioners of the Scheme at ¢ December 2022. The pension buy-in transaction was funded through the existing investment assets held
by the Trustees an behalf of the pension scheme and the impact of this transaction is reflected in the 1AS 19 valuation,

This material balance sheet de-risking exercise is in line with the Group's long term strategy to reduce future volatility of the Group’s balance sheet,

FIMAMCING AMDCASH

B
4

Financingsirategy

Qurfinancingstrategy is to borrow predominant.y on anunsecured basis to maintain flexibility. Secured borrowings are occasionally used,
mainly in conjunction with joint venture partners. Value Retail also uses predominantly secured debtin its financing strategy. All secured debt
s non-recourse tothe rest of the Group.

The Group’s borrowirgs are arranged to maintain access to short term liguidity and tong term financing. Short term funding is principally

through syndicated revolving credit facilit'es. Long term debt comprises the Group's fixed rate unsecured bonds and private placement notes.

At 31 December 2022, the Group also had secured borrowings in Value Retail and three of the Group's joint ventures, although following the
placing of Highcrass into receivarsh'pin February 2023, this has since reduced to two, Acquisitions may initially be firanced using short term funds
before being refinanced with langer term funding depending on the Group's financing position in terms of maturit'es, future comm trments or
disposals, and market conditions.

Derivative financialinstruments are usaed to manage exposure to flucteations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates but are not
employed for speculative purposes.



Hammerson plec Annual Report 2022 37

The Board reviews regulaily Lhe Group's financing strategy and approves financing guidelines againstwhich it monitors the Group's financial
structure. Where there is any non-compliance with the guidelines, this sheuld not be for an extended period but the Group always strivesto
rmaintain an investment grade credit rating. The key financing metrics are set out below.

Calculation

{Reterences

to Additional
Proportionally consolidated unless otherwise stated information) 2022 2021
Nat debt T  Tablel3 £1,732m  £1,799m
Licyuidity 1 £996m £1,478m
Weighted average interest rate 2.4% 3.0%
Weighted average maturity of debt 3.4years 4.lyears
FX hedging 91% 89%
Net debt: EBITDA T Table 16 10.4x 13.4x
| mantovalue —Headline a Table18 39% 39%
Loar tovalue —Full propartional consolidation of Value Retail N t b . Tahle18 7%  46%
Metrics withassociated financial covenants ) o Covenant ) i
Interest cover o h 1 21.25% Table 17 3.24x 2.30x
Gearing—Selected bonds I ¢ =175% Table 19 68% 66%
—Other borrowings and facilities t <150% Table19 68% 66%
Unencurnbered asset ratio t >1.5x% Table 20 1.74% 1.84x
Secured borrowings/equity shareholders’ funds <50% 15% 14%
Fixed rate debt as a proportion of total debt nfa 84% 85%

+ 2021 hgures have been restated to reflect the TTRIC Decision on Deposits with further infarmation pravided in notes 18 and 16 to the financial statements and
Tables 13 and 14 of the Additional information.

a Headline: Loan excludes Value Retail net debt and Value includes Value Retail net assets.

b Full proportional consolidation of VR: Loan includes Value Retail net debt and Value includes Value Retail property values.

¢ Applicable tobonds maturing in 2023, 2025 and 2027 (as set outin note 18 to the financial statements).

Creoditvatings
Inrecognition of the Group's strengthened financial position, Moady's and Fitch’s senior unsecured investment grade credit ratings were
re-affirmed during the year as Baa3 and BBB+ respectively and outlooks from both rating agencies were changed from negative to stable.

LEvaragsa

At31 Décember2022,the Group’s gearing was 68% (2021 66%) and Headline loan to value ratio was 39% (2021: 39%).

The Group’s share of net debt in Value Retail totalled £675m (2021: £680my). Fully proportionally consolidating Value Retail's net debt, the Group's
lvan tovalue ratio was 47% (2021 469%).

Calculations for loan tovalue and gearing are setoutin Tables 18 and 19 of the Additional information, respectively.

Eorrawings and covenants
The terms of the Group's unsecured borrowings contain a number of covenants which provide protection to the lenders and bondholders as set
out inthe Key financial metrics table above. At 31 December 2022, the Group had significant headroom against these metrics.

In addition, some joint ventures and associates have secured debt facilities which include covenants specific to thase properties, including
covenants for loan to value and interest caver, however, there is no recourse to the Group. At 31 December 2021, certain covenants on the secured
loan at the Highcross joint venture were in breach and an impairment of the full equity value was recognised at that time with the position
rermaining at 31 December 2022, but as described in the averview above, going forward, Highcross will cease to he incorporated into the financial
statements following the appointment of a receiveron 9 February 2023,

P

Mz g {orelgn exonange suposuie

= = it

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange translation differences on euro-dencminated assets is managed through a combination of euro
borrowings and derivatives. At 31 December 2022, the value of euro-denominated liabilities as a proportion of the value of euro-denominated
assets was 91% compared with 89% at the beginning of the year, Interest on euro-denorninated debt also acts as a partial hedge against

exchange differences arising on netincome from our overseas operations. Sterling weakened against the euro during the year by 5%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

CASHFLOW AMND NET DEBT
Propertionaliy consclidated net debt

Movement in proportionally consolidated net debt £m
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1,500
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Opening net debt Disposals  Cash generated Exchange Dividends Interest Capital Closing net debt
1 January 2022 from operations  and other {incl. redemption expenditure 31 December
costs) 2022

+ Netdeht ai 1. January 2022 has beenrestated ta reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with further information provided innotes 18 and 1.6 to the financial
statemenisas wellas inTables 13 and 14 of the Additionalinformation.

On a propartionally consolidated basis, net debt decreased by 4% 10 £1,732m (2021 £1,799m). This comprised loans of £2,038m and the fair
value of currency swaps of £31m, less cash and cash equivalents of £336m, of which £219m s held by the Reported Group. Disposals during the
year generated net cash proceeds of £192m. Cash generated from operations of £166m comprised profit from aperating activities of £1 29mand
£37m of movements inworking capital and other non-cash items.

Foe e

The Group completed significant refinancing during 2021, reinforcing the Group’s capital structure, including the refinancing of £1bn near term

bond maturities with a new £700m sustainability-linked bond and proceeds from disposals. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a number

of Ravolving Credit Facilities (RCFs) in place with a total of £1,030m commitments expiring between April 2022 and April 2024, During 2022,

the following activities were undertaken to refinance and extend these facilities:

— £820m offacilities, comprising a £420m RCF with commitments expiring in 2023 and a £400m RCF with commitments expiring between
2023 to 2024 were refinanced with a new £46 3m RCF expiringin Apris 2025, which may be extended to April 2027 at the latest, subject to
both lender and borrower consent, Afurther £10m of commitments expired in April 2022

— £100m and JPY7.7bn (£49m) of RCF commitments expining in June 2024 were extended to a new expiry in June 2025 The remaining £50m
of commitments with an expiry of June 2024 remain unchanged

— £235 5meurchonds due 2023 were repaid on 16 Decemnber 2022 using available cash

Following these changes, committed facilities were reduced by £368m from £1,030m at 31 December 2021 to £662m at 31 December 2022
with £2m utilised o support ancillary facilities. This will resultin an interest cost saving of £0.8m per annum in undrawn commitment fees whilst
maintaining a strong balance sheet and extending the maturities of remaining commitments,

Inaddition, further to the £2%7m of private placerment notes repaid in 2021, notes totalling £42mwere repaid early at parin April 2022, saving
£0.9mafinterestonan annualised basis.

Liguidizy

The Group's liquidity at 31 Decernber 2022, calculated on a proportionally consolidated basis comprising cash of £336mand unutilised committed
facilitics of £660m, was £996m, FAR?m Inwer than atthe beginning of the year. This was primarily due to the £368m reduction in RCF committed
facilities, the £236m early repayment of the Group's 2023 cul obond being partially offset by the retention ul vash proceeds from dicpogals.
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Maturity proﬁie of loans and facilities

Propartionaily consotidated £m

1,200

1,000

610

300

600

400

200

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

“:Euro bonds M Sterling bonds Senior notes & Secured debt Unutilised facilities

The Group's weighted average maturityis 3.4 years (2021 4.1 years). The maturity of 2024 private placements are covered by existing cash with
the Group having no further unsecured debt maturities until 2025,

Maturity analysis of loans and reconciliation to net debt

2022 2021
Loan Maturity £m £rm
Sterling bonds 5025-2028 R R 846.4 845.4
Sustainability linked eurcbond 2027 612.3 578.3
Eurcbonds 2023 a - 197.4
Bank loans and overdrafts 2023 b (3.1} 2.7
Senior notes (US Private Placements) 2024-2031 ) . 190.8 216.4
Totalloans — Reported Group 1,646.4 1,834.8
Shareof Property interests _2023-2024 _ . 3916 3743
Totalloans - proportionally consolidated 2,038.0 2,2091
Cashand cash equivalents (336.5) (454.4)
Fair value of currency swaps _ o 306 441
Netdeht 1,7321  1,7988

a RedeemedinDecember 2022 using available cash resources, following the exercise of an early redemption eption.
b Debitbalance comprises unamortised fees for RCFs against which no funds had been drawn at the yearends.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and Uncertainties

RisK ovarisw

2022 was a mixed year from a risk perspective.
The post pandemic period resulted in a steady
recavery in footfall and coliections, and the
Group’s strong leasing performance has
rcducedvacancy levels These pnsitivetrends
contrast with the heightened level of
macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty,
primarily related to the ongoing warin Ukraine,
and the associated economic challenges on
both consumers and businesses from high
inflation, rising interest rates and supply

chain pressures.

Throughout the vear, the Board maintained its
focus on ensuring the Group was effectively
managing its risks. This included a thorough
review exercise involving the Audit Committee
and senior management, covering the Group's
risks and the associated mitigations. This
resulted in a numberof changes to the Group's
principal risks to better reflect howthe Group's
strategy and markets are evolving. It also
involved splitting some existing principal risks
into separately identifiable new risks where it
was deemed that eachrisk was significantly
material tothe Group on a stand-alone basis.
The outcome of the exercise was subsequently
reviewed and approved by the Board.

Given the changing risk enviranment, the
residualrisk level of each principal risk was
alsore-assessed. This resulted inanincreased
residual risk assessment for three principal
risks and a reduction for three risks. Work was
also undertaken to develop astronger
assurance programme aligned to the principal
risks. The programme will be expandedin
20723 along with greater efforts to promote
nsk awareness across the Group.

The Board confirms that during 2022 it has
carried out a robust assessment of the Group’s
ermerging and principalrisks, including
mitigations, which are presentedin this section
ofthe Annual Report.

Governance

The Group’'s approach torisk management is
designed to enable the business to deliver its
strategic objectives while effectively managing
differing levels of uncertainty which directly
impactthe Group’s activities.

The Group adapts a top-down and bottom-up
approachto ensure comprehensive risk
identification and risk appetiteis clearly
defined. This allows the Group tnrespnnd
quickly to changesin its risk profile and
ensures risk management is factored into

strategic decision making whilst embedding
astrong risk management culture amongst
colleagues with Clear joles and accountability.

Top-down

The key roles and responsibilities for the
Group’s sk management are shown in the
Risk governance structure chart.

The Board has overali responsibility forrisk
oversightand determining the Group's
approach to managing financial, regulatory,
operational and reputational risk. It ensures
that effective risk management (s integrated
throughout the business and embedded
within the Group’s policies, processes, culture
and valyes.

The Boardaiso sets the Group's risk appetife
to ensurethat risks are managed within certain
parameters with efficient use of resource.
Where controllable risks are outside the
Group’s risk appetite, the Board seeks to
manage these down by imptementing
appropriate mitigations wherever possible.
The Board ensures each year that its risk
appetiteis consistent withits strategy.

The Audit Committee supports the Board in
the oversight of risk and is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system over
the course of the year, as well as overseeing
the Group's Internal Audit activity.

The Group Executive Committee has overall
accountahility for the management of risks
acrossthe business.

Bottom-up

The effective day-to-day management of risk
is embedded within our operational business
tears, This aligns risk management with
operational responsibility. [talso ailows potential
new rsks to be identified at an early stage and
escalated as appropriate, such that required
mitigating actions can be putin place.

Internal Auditacts as an independent
assurance function by evaluating the
effectiveness of ourrisk management and
internal control processes.

Through this approach the Group aperates
a‘three ines of defence’ model of risk
management, with operational management
forming the first line, the Risk Management
tearn forming the second line, and finally
Internal Audit as the third line of defence.
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Risk roview process

The Group’s key risks are derived froma
systematic review of the Group’s strategic
priarities, and recurring wark with senior
management and business teams to identify
and guantify key risks. These are reviewed
and nunilored during the year by the Group
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee
and approved annually by the Board.

The Group’s principal risks are defined as
those likely to significantly affect the Group's
strategic objectives, operations, cor financial
performance if not effectivety managed.
Therisks are classed as either ‘external’ risks,
where market factors are the maininfluence
on change, or ‘operational’ risks which, while
subjecttoexternalinfluence, are moreinthe
controtof management. The level of residual
risk foreach principal risk is assessed taking
account of the likelihood of occurrence and
potential impact on the Group, and also
applicable mitigating actions. The assessment
ofthe Group’s principal risks at the date of this
report is shown on the Residual Risk heat map.

Tosupport the assessment process, the Group
produces aquarterty Risk Dashboard which
comprises several key risk indicators, both
historic and forward-looking, for each principal
risk. The risk indicators help identify whether
those risks are changing and hence whether
mitigating actions need to be amended.

[n2022,the annual exercise toformalise the
Board's risk appetite found that the Board and
seniormanagerment were aligned in theirrisk
appetite for each principal risk, Itis noted that
there are two principal risks where the current
residual risk rating is deemed ‘high’ as shown
onthe Residual Risk Heat Map. This assessment
is largely due to external factors beyond
management’s control, although there are
clear mitigatingactions to complete which
willreduce the current risk assessment.

Newiand emearging risks

New and emerging risks are a particular area of
focus, and are explicitly considered as part of
the regular risk review process explained above.
Further identification workis undertaken by
the Riskteam by reviewing internal activities
and externalinsights, covering both the real
estate and wider commercial sectors. During
the yeara number of potential emerging risks
were highlighted including catastrophic
events, the development planning process,
political risk, the ongoing warin Ukraine and
tinancialciime compliance.



Risk governance structure

Risk
Governance

Top-down
Determines
risk appetite
and provides
oversight,
monitoring,
identification,
assessment,
andagr
mitigations of
keyriskata

Group level Risk

Management

Bottom-up
Detailed
identification,
monitoring,
assessment,
prioritisation
and active
mitigation of
risks atan
operational
level Risk
Ownership

On review, it was determined that these were
appropriately captured by the Group’s existing
principal risks, or were not significant enough
to bedeemed anew principal risk.

As partof the annual risk review, the Board
therefore concluded that no significant
emerging risks have been identified in 2022,

Assuiance activity

As explainedin the Audit Committee Report,
the Audit Committee approves theannual
Internal Audit plan. The planis designed to
cover anumber of the Group’s principal risks,
with a focus on those with an elevated
residualrisk relative to risk appetite orwhere
activitics are undergoing significant change.
Inaddition itincludes cyclical reviews of key
financialcontrols,

The scope and finalised audit reports are
reviewed by the Group Exceutive Committes
and Audit Committee, and agreed actions are
monitored to completion.

—Setsrisk culture and appetite

—1stline of defence

—Embedsrisk appetite

—2ndline of defence

and emerging risks

—3rd line of defence
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As explained above followmgadetaﬂed
review it was decided that three of the existing
principal risks should be separated outinto six
individualrisks. This was because each new
risk was deemed to be significantly material to
the Group on a stand-alone basis to warrant
being separately identified. The changes were
as follows:

— The 'Retail market and valuations’ risk was
splitinto: ‘Retail market’ and ‘Investment
marketand valuations’

— The ‘Catastrophicevent’ risk was splitinto:
‘Health and safety” and ‘Cybersecurity’

— The ‘Tax and regulatory’ risk was splitinto:

‘Tax’and ‘Legal and regulatory compliance’

Otherchanges inthe residual risk assessment

forthe Group’s principal risks during 2022 were:

Increaseinrisk

Macroeconomic (risk A): The near term
macroeconomic outlook worsened during
2022 dueto geopolitical issues, primarily
related tothe ongoing war in Ukraine.
Thisresulted in risinginflation and interest
rates and supply chain pressures, which
had an adverse impact on both consumers
and businesses.

— Reviews risk mitigation activities
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—Overallresponsibility for risk management
—Sets overall risk framework for the Group

—Considers andapproves risk and controls work undertaken by Audit Committee

—Reviews effectiveness of risk management frameworks
—Oversight of system of internal control

- — Approves 3rd line assurance activity by Internal Audit

— Reviews going concern and viability

' — Reviews climate risk and TCFD compliance

- Manages risk day-to-day through policy, process and people

—Works with management to identify principal risks, considering current

—Monitors and reports on key riskindicators
—Monitors risks and mitigations against risk appetite

—Designs and delivers the internal audit plan
—Provide assurance on effectiveness of the risk programme, testing key controls
—Tracks and verifies completion of agreed audit actions

—Identifies, evaluates and mitigates operational risks
—Responsible for operating effectiveness of key controls
% —Monitors risks assigned to each team, including escalation of emerging risks

Non-retail/multi-use markets (risk G): Higher
costs, interest rates and softervaluationyields
have adversely impacted non-retail sectors,
which are targeted as key components of a
numberof the Group's future developments/
asset repurposing plans.

Capital structure (risk J): The macroeconomic
challenges explained above and UK political
issues resulted in financial marketinstability,
particularly in the second half of 2022. This
saw increased bond spreads and restrictions
onthe availability of borrowing, particularly
for retail property. These adverse changes
have been partly mitigated through refinancing
activity and disposals, and the Group has

no unsecured refinancing required until
2025 which are not covered by available

cash balances.

Decrease inrisk

Climate (risk D): ESG remains a high area of
focus forthe Group's stakeholders. During
2022 wemade significant progress to address
this risk with the key achievement being the
completion of Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs)
foreach ofthe Group’s flagship assets.

These contain a clear pathway forthe Group
to achieve its commitment to be Net Zero

by 2030.
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Residual Risk Heat Map
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Note: Arrows indicate change in risk aince 2021 Annual Report.

Transformation (risk M): Substantial progress
was made in 2022 on the Group’s transformation
programme. This progress has reduced the
impact ofthis risk. However, the likelihood of
issues has increased as these initiatives go-live
in 2023 and will require significant effort to
transition to new ways of working.

People (risk N): 2021 saw an elevated People
risk as aresult of the Covid-19 pandemicand
significant arganisational restructuring
towards the end of the year. These issues were
actively managed during 2022 with new team
structures embedded and strong progress
made towards the Group's strategic objective
of creating an agile platform.

These changes are shown on the Residual Risk
Heat Map above.

Climats risk

Further details onthisimportant risk area are
inthe detailed risk section below, inthe ESG
section on page 25 andthe Group's separate
2022 ESG Reportand Databook available on
the Group’s website www.hammerson.com.

Futureouticok

Theimpact of external factors continues to be
the main concern for the Graup, particularly
given the heightensd levels of macroeconomic
uncertainty towards the end ot 2022,

Nonetheless, the successful delivery of the
Group’s strategic objectives will act to reduce
the level of residual risk and ensure the longer
term success and viability of the Group for the
benefit of all stakeholders.
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A MACROECONOMIC

Adverse changes to the macroeconomicenvironment in which we
operate have the potential to hinder our financial performance and our
ability to deliver our strategy.

Risk Mitigations
— Diversified portfolio (sectors, geography and occupicrs)
— Flagship destinations in the heart of major European cities

— Nearterm debt maturities fully covered by existing cash reserves
with limited capital commitments

— Balance sheet strengthened over recent years with strategy and
track record of divesting of non-core assets

— Value Retall Villages in affluent areas with strong tourist appeal
— Maonitoring of macroeconomic research and forecasts
-~ Economic outlock incorporated into annual Business Plan

— Continue strategjc divestment and development programme
todecrease market and sectorrisk as well as increase balance
sheet strength

— Gngaingtransfarmation programme to enhance arganisational
agility, and process efficiency and automation to minimise fixed
cost base

Changeinyear ‘

Despiteinitial positive signs of recovery post pandemicin 2022,
adeterioration inthe macroecenomic environment during the year
caused primarily by rising inflation, higher interest rates, supply chain
constraints, and geopolitical uncertainty significantly slowed economic
growth, with the UK forecast to potentially enter a recession in 2023.

This backdrop has resulted inweaker consumer confidence and falling
disposalincomes associated with the cost of living crisis and these
challenges are forecast to continue into 2023,
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B RETAIL MARKET (NEW)

Inthe contextof the ever evolving retail market place, the Group fails
toanticipate and address structural market changes. This will impair
leasing performance, result in a sub-optimal occupiermix and thus
impact our ability to attract visitors, maximise footfall/spend, and grow
income at our properties.

Risk Mitigations

— Diversified portfolio limits impact of downturn or major market
changein asingle market

— High quality, diversified tenant base with weighted average lease
termtofirst break of 4.3 years

— Disposal programme to focus core portfolio on key city centre
destinations and provide capital for repurposing space away from
challenged retailcategories

— Greaterdatainsights and analytical capabilities including regular
catchmentand accupieranalysis

— Improved leasing process and policy to better align to occupierand
visitor requirerments

— Cleardelegatian of authority with Group Management Committee
{GMC) scrutinising all significant leasing transactions

— Recruited new talent to accelerate initiatives around placemaking,
marketing and repositioning of our assets

— Asset-centric organisational structure to ensure leasing team
fuliy alighed with asset rmanagement team with approved
property strategies

— Innovation through food and social, and services opportunities
reducing exposure to retail market

— Digitalinnovation strategy to provide detailed customer insight and
communication with our customers

— Useofshortterm ‘temporary’ leases to enhance tenant mix, reduce
vacancy costs and incubate new brands

— Active engagement with key brand partners to collaborate on
reducing environmental impacts

Changeinyear ;

The physical retail market has recovered strongly from the Covid-19
pandemic aver the course of 2022, Anumber cf high profile oniine
retailers have struggled during the year, with true omni-channel
retailers increasing their market share.

2022 hasseenaverystrong leasing performance, with £25m of rent
secured and over half of leases signed with non-fashion brands.

While the macroeconomic backdrop is adversely impacting consumers,
the UK business rates revaluation has been favourable for the vast
majority of ourtenants who continue to seek the optimal trading
locations. Overall, ourstrong leasing pipeline and prime flagship
portfolio gives us confidence in the future of physical retail.
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TMARKET AND VALUATIONS (NEW)

Investorappetite for retail assets is reduced due to macroeconomic or
retail market factors including increased borrowing costs, economic
downturn, and consumer and accupier confidence. This willadversely
impact property valuations and also risk hindering the Group's in flight
disposal plans. This in turn would reduce the availability of funds for
reinvestment in our core assets and/or refinancing debt.

Risk Mitigations
— Diversified portfoliolimits impact of downturn in a single market

— Portfolio focuses on high quality flagship destinations in the heart
of major Furopean cities

— value Retail operate best-in-class premium outlets across Western
Europe with high tourist appeal

— In-flight disposals programme of non-core assets

—~ Strong leasing performance and pipeline to maintain security
ofincome

— Asset level ESG plans in place with future improvement initiatives
planned to ensure alignment with investors’ environmental
expectations

— Maintenance of solid capital structure prevents forced sales

Changeinyear

The value ofthe Group’s property portfolio was broadly unchanged
in the first half of the year. However, in the second half of the year the
heightened level of macroeconomic uncertainty and the associated
increase ininterest rates and rising costs for consumer and
business adversely impacted the Group's valuations. This adverse
macroecanomic backdrop isforecast to hamper investor sentiment
and hence near term property valuation performance. Therefore,
the level of residual risk for this newly created stand-alone risk
remainselevated.
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D CLIMATE

Climate risks, particutarly the reduction in carbon emissions and
compliance with ESG regulations, are not appropriately managed
and communicated. This is likely to adversely impact valuations and
investor sentiment and may resultin an increased final year bond
coupon ifthe Group’s sustainability linked bond targets are not met.
Also, extreme weather events may impact our properties.

Risk Mitigations

— Clearaction plan and gquarterly updates provided ta Group Executive
Committee and regular updates provided to Audit Committee
andBoard

— Net Zero Asset Plans in place for all flagship assets

— Established sustainability governance structure, from asset to
Board level, monitoring of key sustainability metrics, including
performance and management of climate-related legislative and
regulatory risk

— Seniar management and Board provided with TCED training

— Experienced sustainability team designs and implements our
sustainability strategy in collaboration with the wider business

— Regularengagement with investors and across the wider property
industry on ESG matters

— 1SOaccredited Energy and Environment Management System
impiemented across the Group (ISQ 14000 everywhere and
1SO 50001 inthe UK and Ireland)

— Insurancein place to cover property damage

Changeinyear

ESGremains ahigh area of focus for the Group's stakeholders and
significant progress was made during 2022 to enhance the execution
ofthe Group's ESG strategy. The key improvement was the completion
of Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs) for each of the Group's flagship
destinations which contain a clear pathway to net zero foreach asset
and have beenincluded inthe 2023 Business Plans.

Our climate risk approach has been guided by the Task Faorce on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) recommendations since
2018, reporting publicly in line with thermn since 2020.

During 2022, the Group's physical and transitional climate risks and
mitigations were reviewed against three different climate scenarios
aligned with CRREM pathways for future global temperature increases
ot 1.5%C, 2°Cand 4°C. The review focused primarily on the 1.5°C and
2°C scenarnios with updated rmitigations including four new risks added
to the Group's transition plans.
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The Group suffersfinancial loss and reputational damage from a now or
increased tax levy or due to non-compliance with local tax legislation.

Risk Mitigations
— Focus on maintenance of the Group's low risk tax status

— Regular meetings with key officials and local tax authorities,
including from HMRC and government

— Regulartax compliance reviews and audits across the Group
— Monitoring and advanced planning for future tax changes

— Patentialamendments or re-interpretations to tax laws and their
application to the Group are regularly monitored and, if relevant,
appropriately reflected in the financial slalements. Any necessary
actions are taken to ensure ongoing efficiency while remaining fully
incompliance with regulations

— Participation in policy consultations and in industry led dialogue with
policy makers through bodies such as REVO, BPF, EPRA

Changeinyear .

Thisrisk was previously included with ‘Tax and regulation” and judged
to be a Medium risk and the new Tax’risk has also been judged at this
risk level.

Tax laws that apply to the Group’s businesses continue to be subject to
amendment orchange by the relevant authorities and in 2022 the UK
Government introduced business rates changes which benefits the
majarity of the Group’s UK tenants,
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OMPLIANCE (NEW)

F LEGALAND REGULATORYC

The failure to comply with existing laws and regulations relevantto the
Group, orto adapt to changes inthese requirements in atimely fashion,
could result in the Group suffering reputational damage and/or financial
penalties. | hese laws and regulations cover the Group’sroleasa
multi-jurisdiction listed company; an owner and operator of property;
anemployer; and as a developer.

Risk Mitigations

— Specialistinternal functional support and external advisors engaged
toassist and provide advice onthe ongoing management and
assessment of legaland regulatory risk

— Implementing appropriate and proportionate policies and
procedures designed to capture relevant regulatory and legal
requiremenis

— Internal systemns and processes for the monitoring of compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and for the escalation of
relevantitems

— Maintaining constructive and positive relationships and dialogue
with regulatory bodies and authorities

— Advanced warning of regulatory changes likely toimpact the Group
togetherwith ongoing engagement with external advisers on the
relevant regulatory horizon

— Advanced monitoring and planning for future regulatory changes
and responding in a risk-based and proportionate mannerto any
changes tothe legal and regulatory environment as well as those
driven by strategic or commercial initiatives

— Where appropriate, participation in policy consultations and in
industry led dialogue with policy makers through bodies such as
REVO, BPF, EPRA

— Delivering relevant training to colleagues, including anti-bribery
and corruption, data protection and information security. This s
augmented by tailored training ta relevant individuals in key areas.

Changein year

This risk was previously included within ‘Tax and regulation’ and judged
to be a Medium risk and the new ‘Legal and regulatory compliance’ risk
has also been judged at this risk level.

The legal and regulatory landscape has remained broadly stable
throughout the year. We continue to closely monitor the regu latory
environment and respond to new requirements to ensure compliance.
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RISKS ANDUNCERTAINTIES continued

G NON-RETAIL/MULTI-USE

MARKETS
TS e
The Group fails to target the optimal (non-retail) property sectors
for future developments or repurposing, or has insufficient access
to capital and the skills required to deliver its urban estates vision.
Occupier or investor demand for non-retail sectors weakens or
evolves such that the Group's development and repurposing plans
are sub-optimal.

Risk Miligalions

— Engagementwith experts and/or advisors to gain adeeper
understanding of alternative sectors and systematically identify
which developments will resultin the greatest return and alignment
with the assets

— Asset-centric visions developed for key urban estates to ensure new
developrment complerments existing flagship assets and enhances
local cammunities

— The Board approves all majorcommitments and performs formal
development reviews twice-yearly

— Development plans include monitoring of macro and locat economic
research and trends

— Operational activities, talent and systems aligned with the delivery
of the Group's future strategic objectives and adiversified portfolio

— Hiring of experienced leaders and managers with mukii-use and city
centre development experience and backgrounds

Changeinyear

The residual risk profile is judged to have increased to a Medium level
of risk during 2022 due to the adverse macroeconomic environment,
particularly the increased cost of borrowing, This has seen an increase
invaluation yields and to alesserextent a decrease in occupier demand
inthe office, logistics and residential sectors.

Nonetheless, we remain confident that we have clear steps torealise
value from the Group's development pipeline and existing properties
through both developmentand repurposing activity and in the longer
term through integration across the broader urban estates.

[hi
5
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H CYBERSECURITY (NEW)

PR AR s T Bl i

The Group's information technology systems fail or are subject toan
attack which breaches their technological defences. Afailure could
lead to operational disruption, financial demands or reputational
damage due to assets being brought down and/or loss of commercially
sensitive data.

Risk Mitigations

Cyber controls framowork and cyber strategy implementerf and
validated by EY

— IS0 27001 aligned cyber policies setting out standards for
penetration testing, vulnerability testing, patch management,
access controt and data loss prevention

— Implementation of Cisco Umbrella software to enable same level
of security inremote working locations

— Cybertraining for all colieagues and advanced training for higher
riskindividuals, as well as periodic cyber awareness campaigng

— Cyberincidentrespanse plansin place
— Extensive use of multiple cloud-based systems

— Cyberdashboard reviewed quarterly by the Group Executive
Committee with updates also provided to the Audit Commities
and Board

Change inyear

Cyber securityis a new stand-alone risk in the year, having previously
been capturedin ‘Catastrophic event’ risk. The residual risk has been
determined to be Medium.

This assessment recognises the multiple mitigations the Group has

in place todetect and prevent cyber attacks. Nonetheless it is reflective
of the high level of cyber attacks occurring globally as a result of the
rapidly evolving technological landscape and uncertainty in the
geopolitical sphere.
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There is a serious work related injury, death and/orill health to our
colleagues, customers or contractors, and anyone else whovisits our
properties or premises. This may be due to the Group’s actions or
activities. arfrom external threats siich as terraricm. ITnaddition an
incident or public health issue, such as a pandemic, is likely to have an
adverse operationalimpact. Also, there isinsufficient insight into health
and safety risks and mitigations with afailure to embeda strong safety
culturewhich increases the Group’s exposure ta reputational damage,
fines and sanctions.

Risk Mitigations

— Health and safety ISO 45001 management system with annual
external compliance audits

— Physical security measures implemented and regularly reviewed

— Dialogue with security agencies to assess local and national threat
levels and best practice

— Onlineincident and risk management tool for UKand Ireland and
incident managementin France

— Online CAFMand ePermit systemto manage contractors, planned
maintenance and statutory compliance

— Formalised hierarchy of health and safety roles and respensibilities
forall assets and offices including core crisis group for dealing with
major incidents

— Legal, regulatory and other updates are captured by the Health and
Safety Manager

— Health and safety training programme in place for all onsite and
corporate new starters

— Onsite quarterly health and safety meetings. Monthly operational
meetings with weekly reports to senior managementand an annual
update tothe Board

— Appropriate insurance cover, including forterrorismand
property damage

Changeinyear

Health and safety is a new riskinthe year having previously been
captured in ‘Catastrophic event’ risk. The Group has a continued focus
on operational safety and in 2022 we retained our strong safety record
with only three RIDDOR incidents (202 1: twa} and had no ‘intalerable’
risks atyearend,

Whilst we remain confident that we have appropriate mitigation actions
in place to effectively manage this risk, the residual risk has been
dotermined to be Medium. This reflects the patential seriousness that
a major health and safety incident occurring at one of our properties
could have forthe Group.

Lack of access to capital on attractive terms could lead to the Group
having insufficient liquidity to enable the delivery of the Group’s
strategic objectives.

Risk Mitigations

— Board approves and maonitars key financing guidelines and metrics
and all major investment approvals supported by a financing plan

— Proactive treasury planning to monitor covenant compliance;
where necessary, negotiate waivers and amendments; access debt
markets when available priorto debt maturities tofacilitate early
refinancing; and ensure adeguate liquidity is maintained relative
todebt maturities

— Proactive engagement with ratings agency to support maintenance
of Investrment grade rating

— AnnualBusiness Plan includes afinancing plan, scenario modelling
and covenant stress tests

— Ability to access green/sustainability financing markets, as
ovidenced by 20271 €700m sustainability-linked bond

— Continue to pursue disposals of non-core properties and tightly
control new cost commitments to reduce net debt and lower LTV

— Interestrate and currency hedging programmes used to mitigate
market volatility

Changeinyear -

The residual risk assessment has increased during 2022, although
remains at a Medium level. This movement reflects the heightened
valatility in financial markets with higher bond spreads and interest
rates, particularly in the second halfof the year.

These adverse external factors have been partly offset by actionstaken
during the year including the renewal of the Group’s revalving credit
facilities and £195m of disposals. This has resulted ina £67m, or 4%
reduction in net debt aver the course of 2622 and the Group hasno
unsecured refinancing required until 2025 which is not covered by
existing cash balances.
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RISKS ANDUNCERTAINTIES continued

K PARTNERSHIPS

L PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Baualat Hghe st e s inkinstapsatidigin. o il Bey 2.7
Asignificant proportion of the Group’s properties are held in conjunction  Property development is inherently risky due to its complexity,
with third parties which has the potential to limit cur ability to management intensity and uncertain outcomes, particularly for major
implernent the Group's strategy and reduces our contral and therefore  schemes with multiple phases and long delivery timescales. Unsuccessful
liquidity if partners are not strategically aligned. projects resultin adverse financialand reputational outcomes.
Risk Mitigations Risk Mitigations
— Trackrecord of working effectively with diverse range of partners — Utilise expertise and track record of developing icanic destinations
— Agreements provide iquidity for partners while proteciing Lhe — Development plans and cxposurc included inannual business
Group's interests including pre-empticn rights and provisions planning process
— Annudaljointventure business plans ensure operationaland — Group’s development pipeline provides flexible future delivery
strategic alignment options, such as phasing, and requires limited near term
— Regular reporting and meetings with joint venture partners to track expenditureto progress to the nextdecision stages
performance and maintain alignment — Board approves all major commmitments and performs formal
— Proactive covenant monitering and negotiations with secured developmentreviews twice-yearly
lenders to manage covenant stress and breaches — Capital expenditure is subject toastrict appraisal process which
— The Group operates significant influence through governance rights defines the key investment criteria, the msif assessment process,
and Board representation for its Value Retail investments key stakeholders, and appropriate delegations cf authority

-— Value Retail is subject to local external audit and valuations, with

oversight by the Audit Committee and the Group's External Auditor Change in year

} ] ) ) While costinflation avnd ongoing supply chain issues have adversely
— Value Retail provide prescribed reportingtothe Groupenamonthly  impacted the broader property development market, we remain
and guarterly basis confident averthe Group’s ability ta realise future value from our

numerous development oppertunities.
Change in year

While the Group soidits 50% 'm_terest inSilverburn during the year, In 2022, we commenced works on The Ironworks, 2 122-unit
the proportion of the Group’s jointly held assets by valueremaimed residential scheme directly adjacent to Dundrum. We also achieved
unchangedat 74%. key mitestones at schemes in Dublin, Reading and Birmingham.,

This position is contrary to the Group's strategy of simplification and
creating an agile operating platform focused on aselect number of core
urban estates and development opportunities. The overall residual risk
assessrment remains as High given the high concentration of jointly held
assets, and the size of the Group's holding in Value Retail.
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The Group fails to deliver its strategic objective of creating an agile platform
due to sub-optimal transformation projects, Otherissueas could arise dug
to trancformation initiatives ben g Jelivered late, overbudget orcausing
significant disruption to business-as-usual activity.

Risk Mitigations
— Strong governance by Board and senior management to oversee
transformation programme including scope, timings and costs

— Implementation of a strong change management programme

— Fullmanagement and communications engagement to motivate
colleagues to drive transformation agenda

— Use of external expertise to leverage best practise and support
existing teams to deliver various initiatives

— Useof standard project delivery methodologies
— Priontisation of solutions to avoid stress and conflicts

— Engagement with process and business owners to scope and deliver
optimal solutions

Changeinyear :

Substantial progress onthe transformation programme has been made
in 2022. Key achievements included the consalidation of UK property
management services to a single supplier and the planning and
selection of a number of IT projects which will go-live in 2023. This
progress has reduced the impact of this risk.

However, as key projects commence or go-live, change management
becomes a critical element of the transformation programme to ensure
success and the likelihood of transition issues increases.
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Afailure to retain or recruit key management and other colleagues to
build skilled and diverse teams covlct arversely impact operational and
corporate perfarmance, culture and ultimately the delivery of the
Group’s strategy. As the Group evolves its strategy it must continue

to motivate and retain people, ensure it offers the right colleague
proposition and altract new skills in achanging market.

Risk Mitigations

— Recent refresh of the Group’s purpose, vision and values

— Annual business planning process includes people plans covering
team structures, training, and talent management initiatives

— Succession planning undertaken across the senior management
team and direct reports

— Training and developrment programmes and twice-yearly formal
colleague appraisal process

— Active colleague forum to enable formal Board engagement with
feedback incorporated in management plans

— Affinity groups establishaed to promote diversity, equality and inclusion

— Regulartailored colleague surveys ta gain feedback

Changeinyear ..

2021 saw an elevated People risk as a result of the impact of the
Cowvid-19 pandemic and significant organisational restructuring
towards the end of the year. The effects of the restructuring have been
actively managed during 2022 with enhanced activity on colleague
engagement and communications.

This has led to a decrease in the level of residual risk, althcugh the risk

remains as Medium refiectingthe elevated level of voluntary colleague
turnoverand risks associated with the Group’s transformation agenda
with the continuing focus on cost reduction.
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

Cverview
The Directors have assessed the future viability
ofthe Group.

The assessment factors inthe latest economic,
trading and market outlook, including
geopolitical uncertainty, primarily related to
the ongoing war in Ukraine, and the associated
economic challenges facing both consumers
and businesses trom tugh inflation, rising
interest rates and supply chain pressures.

The Group has a clear strategy, announced in
August 2021, with four strategic pillars:

— Reinvigorate our assets
— Accelerate development
— Create anagile platform

— Deliverasustainable and resilient capital
structure

These pillars are underpinned by the Group's
commitment to ESG and the Group has made
progressin all these areas during 2022, Details
ofthis progress, including details of 2023
strategic priorities and outlook, are explained
in the Chief Executive’s Statementand inthe
Our strategy and KPLs section.
rentofprosnects

To assess the Group's viability the Directors
have considered the strong operational and
financial performance in 2022, the Group’s
current capital structure, strategy and future
prospects, and principal risks.

2022 financialand operational
performance

The Group increased its year-on-year adjusted
earnings by 609%, through improved revenue,
lower property costs boosted by the reversal of
credit losses from stronger collections. Footfail
alsa steadily improved overthe course of the
year, and tenant sales were back at pre-
pandemic levels.

Administraticn and netfinancing costs were
also lower by 17% and 25% respectively.
Reducing administration costs continues to
be a key area of focus with costs reduced due
to lower headcount, IT, insurance and
professianal fees. Finance costs were lower
duetorecent refinancing activity, reduced net
debtand higher interest income trom cash
deposits and derivatives,

Value Retail has achieved a strong operational
recoveryin 2022, with the Group's share ot
adjusted earnings being £27m, 72% higher
than 2021,

Capitalstructure

From a balance sheet perspective the Group
completed £135mefdisposals, £463m of
new revolving credit facilities and Value Retail
refinanced aver £1bn of loans, including those
secured against La Vallée and Bicester Villages.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's net debt,
excluding Value Retail, was £1,732m, £67rmaor
494 lower than at the start of the year, withan
average debt maturity profile of 3.4 years. The
Group has liquidity of £996m, reflecting cash
of £336m and unutilised committed revolving
credit facilities (RCFs) of £660m meaning that
the Group has no unsecured debt maturities
not covered by available cash balances until
2025.The RCFs currently mature overthe
period to June 2025 and contain aptions,
subject to lender consent, which could extend
theminto 2026 and 2027.

Inaddition, the Group’s share of net debt held
by Value Retail was E675m. This comprised
secured borrowings of £762m less cash of
E87m. The borrowings have an average
maturity of 3.2 years, with £291m of secured
loans maturing by the end of 2025.

Strategy and prospects

The Board annually reviews the strategy and
also in December of each year considers and
approves a rolling five-year Business Plan
(‘the Plan’). The Plan sets out how the Group
will achieve its strategic objectives and contains
financial forecasts, financing strategies and
portolio plans, including disposals, asset
management initiatives and development
projects. Italso includes forecasts of financing
and debtcovenant metrics including reverse
stress headroom calculations.

Another important factor to considerin

the viability assessrment is the diversity

and security of the Group's income.

At 371 December 2022, only 17% of passing
rent is derived from the top ten tenants.
Also, 40% of the Group’s passing rent is
subjectto atenant break or expiry over the
next three years and the corresponding
average unexpired lease termwas 4.3 years.
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Principal risks and Viability period
conclusion

The Group's performance and financial
position continues to significantly improve
compared with 2020 and 2021, However,
levels of uncertainty remain high, particularly
those associated with the macroeconomy, and
two of the Group’s principal risks are currently
judged as having high levels of residual risk.

Having considered all of the above factors,
the Directors have concluded not to change
the three yeartimescale forthe Group’s
viability assessment. This means that for the
yearended 31 December 2022, the Group's
Viahility period’ covers the periad 1o

31 December 2025,

Assezsmentofviability

Toenabie the Board to understand the Group's
projected resilience to adverse changes tothe
Group's principal risks, a downside 'Viability”
scenario has been derived from the Plan based
anweaker consumer, occupier andinvestment
market conditions.

Adverse assumptions have been adopted for
areas which mostly impact the Group's capital
structure and detit covenants and hence
viability. These include changes to rental
income and property values with mitigating
actions to preserve liquidity, althoughno
non-contracted disposals have been
assumed. These adverse assumptions, which
are outlined inthe table on the following page,
are consistentwiththose adeopted inthe
Severe but plausible scenario inthe Group’s
gaing concern assessment explained in nate
10tothe financial statements.

The Directors also considered climate-related
risks as part of the viability assessment. The
Group’s climate risk is currenily judged to have
amedium levelof residual risk and during
2022 the Group has develpped asset level
project plans which provide a clear pathway
tothe Group achieving Net Zero by 2030. The
total expenditure to deliver these asset level
plans overthe three year Viability periodis
¢.£30m, and there remains optionality over
the phasingofthis expenditure if marketand
operating conditions are worse than expected.

Overall, given the longer term nature of climate
risk, the Directors have concluded that this

nsk does not have a significantimpact an the
Viability assessment over the three year
Viability period.



Koy adverse ‘Viahility asswmnptions

Income: NRI and Value Retail earnings
Weaker occupier and consumer demand
resulting in lower sales and footfall, weaker
leasing demand, reduced collactinrna and
increased tenant failure,

This backdrop also impacts Value Retail sales,
which are further hindered by a slowerthan
expected recovery of foreign tourists,

Link to principal risks: oe@
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NRI more than 25% lower than 2022 over Viability period due to higher vacancy; lower
variable rent (turnover rent, car park and commercialisation income); and increased credit

loss provisions.

The Group’s share of Adjusted earnings from Value Retail are an average of 25% lower than
2022 over the Viahility pericd. Value Retail management decide to retain cash 1o support
future refinancing requirements and therefore no distributions have been assumed.

Propcrty valuations

Lack of investor demand assaciated with the
adverse macroeconomic outlook and weaker
aperational performance results in lower ERVs

and higheryields reducing property values across

the Group.

Link to principalrisks: 090063@

I he Group's property portfolio, including Value Retall, is assumed ta sufferacapitat return

of -16% over the three year Viability period.

Liquidity and refinancing
Limited lenderappetite for retail properties

results in maturing loans being refinanced on less

attractive terms (higher borrowing costs, lower
LTVs forsecured loans).

Link to principalrisks: oe@@

Refinancing is undertaken in the ordinary course of business, with the options to extend the
Group’s RCFs assumed to be exercised moving the maturities beyond the Viability period,
Itis also assumed that the £350m 3.5% bond dugin October 2025 isrefinanced with anaw

£350m bondissue at 5.5% inmid-2025.

Maturing secured loans on O'Parinor, Dundrum and those held by Value Retail are assumed
to be refinanced at 40% LTV and a 5% all-in interest cost. The lenders on the secured loan on
Highcross enforced their security on the property in February 2023.

To avoid the risk of a breach of the Group’s unsecured unencumbered asset covenant caused
by the forecast lower property values, it is assumed that the outstanding £191m of private

placement notes are redeermed in 2023,

To preserve Group liquidity, capital expenditure is reduced to €.£140m overthe three year
Viability period and dividends are limited to the minimum REIT requirements.

Scenarizouicome

Based onthe above Viability assumptions, the
Group isforecast toretain significant liguidity
and is able to meetits obligations as they fall
due overthethree year Viability period. Itis
also forecast to rernain compliant with the two
remaining key unsecured debt covenants,
gearingand interest cover.

The strength of the Group's forecast viability is
shown inthe adjacent table which sets out the
current and minimum forecastunsecured
borrowing covenant stress tests overthe
Viability period:

Level of reductionin key variable until

covenantbreach =~ .
31Dec  Viability
Covenant Variable 2022 pericd
Gearing Groupproperty  28% 17%
7777\/9[ e __
Interest cover Netrentalincome 61% 38%

Giharmiti
While the Viability scenario does not assume
any future disposals, the Group remains
focused onits disciplined disposal programme
of non-core assets.

Even in challenging markets, the Group has
completed disposals with gross proceeds of
£628m sincethe beginningof 2021, andthe
diversity of the Group’s portfolio, interms of
location and sector, provides access toarange
of investment markets. Disposals would be
expectedtoimprove the financial forecasts,
however their precise impact on the financial
projections and Group's debt covenants is
dependent on the timing of a sale; the level of
proceeds relative to book value; the ownership
structure; and whether any debtis secured
against the properties sold. In addition,
disposal proceeds would provide additional
liquidity to suppaort the refinancing
reguirements over the Viability period.

Conclision

Basedontheir detailed assessment of the
Viability scenarig, the Directors canfirm that
they have a reasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue inoperationand
meet its tiabilities as they fall due gver the three
year period to 31 December 2025.
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

Non-financial

Information Statement

The Companies Act 2006 requires the
Tompany tndisclose certain non-financial
information within this Annual Repart.
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The Group also applies arange of policies
and procedures relating to colleagues,
covironnentaland social mattors, huimnn

This information can be found in the following _Dn ﬁna"m_l information ] E’i?’“ rights and anti-bribery and corruption.

locations within the Strategic Report (or are Businessmadel 18-19 Adescriptionofthese polices, the due

incorporated intothe Strategic Report by Principalrisks 50-5¢ diligence measures we undertake toimplement

reference forthese purposes): Non-financial key performance themand the_resultsofapplymgthese policies,
indicators 53 areallsetoutinthe table below.

Policy

Energy policy

Description

Sets out the Group's commitrent ta
endeavour to use best practice inthe
design and operation of the Group’s
assets to minimise energy demand across
multipie time horizans and procure energy
inaresponsible manner

Policy application and outcomes

In the UK and Ireland, the Group procured 100% renewable electricity n 2022, as well

as undertaking audits and cornpliance reviews within the [S0 50001 compliant energy
management systern, To transition the Group to Net Zero by 2030 we completed Net
Zero Asset Plans foreach destination. These plans address each asset's significant
energy users by identifying projects to address building controls, energy efficiency and
onsite renewable through the application of the energy hierarchy. Also see the
Environmenital section of the Group's ESG Report 2022,

Environmental
policy

Climate change
palicy

Biodiversity
policy

Code of conduct

Inciudes the Group's overarching
commitment to design and build
properties using sustainable matenals
and practices, and to manage assets
under the Group’s control efficiently
to ensure compliance and continuatly
improve environmentalily

Sets out the Group’s commitment to
develop and implement climate change
management and mitigation strategles
at business and asset level. Recognising
three climatic scenarios and the nisks
and opportunities that arise from

these scenarios

Aims to ensure that opportunities
to protect, enhance and restore
biodiversity are maximised while
ensuringthat any negative impacts
resulting from the Group's business
operations are minimised

Sets out expectations for colleagues’
persanal behaviourincluding treating
others with respect, acting farrly in
deating with stakehalders, complying
with laws and maintaining integrity in
finanzia' reperung

1n 2022, we mantained our 150 14001 and 1SO 50001 accreditation across the UK
and Ireland. To ensyre we continue toimprove and embed proactive environmental
managermnent we have alscimplementad an IS0 14001 compliant managerment
systemin Chateaudun (our principaloffice in France), O'Parinor and Les Terrasses du
Port in France. Alsosee the Environmental section of the Group’s ESG Report 2022,

requirement

Associated
reporting

— Environmental
matters

— Environmental
matters

The Group identified colleaguesincore roles within the business to partic’pate ina
Climate Scenarnos workshop in 20271, To buitd on this throughout 2022, we reviewed
risks and opportunitias and mapgped these across the assets to confirm deliverables
ta positively manage the areas ident'fied. To suppert this we have revisad our
developrment standards with a view 1o ensuring that they address climate risks and
opportunities by addressing climate change within the design process, Also see the
Environrmental and Governance sections of the Group’s ESG Report 2022,

1n 2022, we acknowledged that inorder to address our operational impacts we need
to not only focus an climate change but more robustly work on bicdiversity net gain
toensure we minimise our contribution to the global biodiversity crisis. We continue
toinstall bee hives, pollinator planting regimes and deliver education programmes to
position our assets as supporters of iocal biodiversity in the areas in which we operate.
In addrtion to this, Ttalie Deux was awarded the BiadwersCity Life labeiand in The
Oracle we planted 1,300 aquatic plants on Hoating river banks an the River Kennet and
Avon Canal in partnership with the Canal & River Trust and the Reading Abbey Quarter
21D, Also see the Environmental section of the Group’'s ESG Report 2022,

The Code of conduct isissuad to all colleagues across the Group and supported by
traiming during new cotleague induction, as wedl as heing reinforced by the Board's and
seniar leadership's actions and communications. o material breaches were alleged
oridentified during 2022. Als see dage 24 far more infarmatisn o~ our colleagues.

— Environmental
matters

— Environmental
matters

—Employees
— Social matters

- Anti-bribery and
corruption

Equal
Dpportunities
policy

Con“rms the Groap's comitment ta
equal epportunities and diversity and
the Group's opposition to all forms of
unlawful discrimination

The policy is availabte to all colleagues and applied in relation to all hiring and
promaton decisions at all levels. No breazhes ofthe policy were alleged oridentified
during 2222, The ethos of the policy is supported by four calleague led affnity groups
(LGBTQ+, Race and Ethnicity, Women and Wellbeing), each of which has a sponsor
on the Group Executive Committee and partners with Group Communications and
HR to deliver relevant news, events and initiatives to colleagues across the Group.
Alsa see page 24 for more infarmation o our col.eagues and ahnity groups.

—Human nghts
— Employees

~-Seclalmaiters



Policy

Description

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 53

Policy application and outcomes

Associated
reporting
reguirement

Health, safety
and security
statement of
intent

Sets out measures designedtoensure a
culture of health and safety best practice
that leads to the elimination or reduction
inrisks to health, safety and securily of all
associated with the Group

The policy is applied through our robust management system across the UK and
Ireland, which enabled us to gain re-accreditation to IS0 45001 standard in October
2022. The Group undertock a full review of all the centre assessments over the last
1hree years, and the entire Health, Satety, and Security Management Systern. As at

31 December 2022, there were no intolerable risks outstanding and no Environmental
Health Officar notices were received during the year. 8y integrating the non-ccre
portfolic into the management system, we saw a reductionin the number of open risks,
Acontinued improvement in health and safety culture was reflected in internal audit
scores with the entire portfolio scoring above 95%. Also see page 57 for more
infaormaticn on health, safety and secunty matters.

— Employees

—Social matters

Modern slavery
and human
trafficking
staterment

Sets out the approach taken by the Group
to understand the potential modern
slavery nsks associated with the Group’s
business and explains the actions taken to
prevent slavery and human trafficking
within the Group's operations and supply
chains

Modern slavery awareness is maintained across the Group's operational teams and
specific training 1s provided 1o colleagues through the Group's online training system.
Key risk areas identified are within the Group's supply chain and relate to construction
activities and low skilled support services — both areas remained low as part of the
Group’s overall risk assessmentin 2022, By incarporating madern slavery declarations
Inour Source to Contract activities, we have increased compliance and reduced the
risks of using supplier and third-party suppliers who do not comnply with this legislation.
Naincidents of maodern slavery or human trafficking were identified or allegad during
2022. The Company's 2022 Modern Stavery and Human Tratficking Statement was
approved by the Boardin June 2022,

—Humanrights

— Social matters

Responsible
procurement
palicy

Sets outthe Group's objectives to promaote
respansible procurement through the
purchase of environmeantally and socially
sustainable goods and services and
engage with key suppliers to encourage
better performance and effective
management of environmental and social
risks within the Group's supply chain

The policy was applied to procurement activities undertaken across both operational
and development activities in 2022, Supplier adherence to this policy is monitored and
enforced at the Reguest for Information stage of procurement with the most compliant
suppliers being progressed to the next stages of the procurement precess. The policy
is also linked to the due diligence process necessary to approve third party consultants,
contractors and suppliers. No material breaches were alleged aridentified during 2022,

— Human rights
—Social matters

— Anti-bribery and
corruption

— Environmental
matters

Supply chain
code of conduct
and procurement

Outlines a set of best practice standards
that apply to all Group suppliers {covering
legal requirernents, labour standards,
health and safety and enviranmental
responsibility) and explains how the
Group measures and monitors supplier
adherence to such standards

This is fully embedded in the new procurement process — each new supplier to the
Group must subscribé to the code of conduct and complete the accompany ing
questionnaire in order to gain Approved Supplier status. Suppliers must be fully
compliant with health and safety, ESG regulations and must be fully insured. RIDDOR
(Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Cccurrences Regulations) issued by
the Health and Safety Executive must be fully resolved and disclosed before we can
usesuch suppliers. This has resulted in only the most compliant suppliers being
selected to reduce risk exposure and associated costs. Thisis also linked to the due
diligence process necessary to approve third party consultants, contractors and
supplicrs. No material breaches were alleged or identified during 2022.

—Humanrights

—Social matters

— Anti-bribery and

corruption

— Environmental

matters

Anti-bribery and
corruption policy™

Sets out the Group's zero tolerance policy
inrelation ta bribery and corruption,
including prohibitions on improper and
facilitation payments, and penalties for
breach of potlicy

The policyisissued to all colleagues across the Group alongside the Gifts and
Entertainment Policy and supported by training delivered during the colleague
induction pregramme. The Company has also made availabie to all colleagues an
Anti-Bribery and Corruption Risk Assessment, which provides guidance on carrying
out due ditigence when appointing third party consultants, contractors and suppliers.
Naincidents of bribery o- corruption were alleged or identifisd during 2022.

—Employees

— Anti-bribery and
corruption

Whistleblowing
policy*

Encourages colleagues to reportany
concerns they may have in relation to
health and safety matters, the environment,
orany other unethical, unfair, dangerous
or illegal behaviour, sets out the process
for doing soand canfirms that
whistleblowers will not be victimised

The policy is issued to all colleagues across the Group and supported by training during
new colleague inductions. No whistleblowing concerns were raised by colleagues
during 2022,

— Employees

— Anti-bribery and
corruption

Giftsand
entertainment
policy™

Explains the torms of, and circumstances
inwhich, gifts or entertainment might be
acceptable and the reporting and approval
procedures to follow where colleagues
wish to offer, or receve, hospitality

The policy is issued to ali colleagues across the Group and supported by training as part
of new colleague inductions.

Gifts and entertainment registers are maintained across the Group and reviewed
periodically. No breaches were alleged o identied during 2022,

—Employees

— Anti-bribery and
corruption

All policies are available on the Company’s website at www.hammerson.com save for those marked with 2 * which are available to all colleagues
through the Company’s intranet.

ZGZzstratedin!

Roport

Pages 110 63 of this Annual Report constitute the Strategic Report which was approved and signed on behalf of the Board on 8 March 2023.

Rita-Rose Gagné

Director

Himanshu Raja
Director



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Hammerson ple Annual Report 2022 64

@ At anelies

@ Hoinztonand Goerrans

[SRTRNH N
@ Prarorenas oz

@ T

Rita-Rose Gagne
Chief Executive

Appainted tothe Board
2 November 2020

Rita-Rose has awealth of experience in global real estate investment,
asset management, M&A and strategy. She hasworked in property
rmarkets across the world and her expertise spans across various asset
classes and multi-use assets, including residential, retail, office and
logistics. Priorto Hammerson, she: held various executive roles at the
global real estate company, Ivanhoé Cambridge. Most recently,
Rita-Rose was President of Growtih Markets, where she managed

over $7.6bn of real estate assets plus development projects across
markets in Asia and Latin America. She is a Non-Executive Director

of Value Retail plc.

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board
26 April 2021

Himanshu brings to the Board strang financial, strategic and leadership
qualities as well as extensive experience of debt and equity markets
ancin business basfurraation, | irmanshu has sernved as CFO nf Listard
companies inthe FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 for over 12 years as CFO of
Logica plc, G45 plc, Countrywide plc, and served as CFO of Misys under
private equity ownership. Himanshu has previously held seniorroles
covering finance, IT, procurement and capital and cost transformation
largelyin the telecoms sector. Himanshu qualified as a Chartered
Accountantwith Arthur Andersen.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hahib Annous

Independent Non-Executive Director A0
Appointed to the Board

5May 2021

Habib brings to the Board 30 years’ experience in investiment
management across a range of sectars. Most recently, he was a partner
at Capital Group, from 2002 to 2020, where he was responsible forthe
European Real Estate sector as well as a number of other industries.
He started his career as an equity analyst in 1988 with responsibility
for UK Real Estate. He became a Fund Managerin 1989 at Lazard
Investorsand then maved to Barclays Global Investorsand
subsequently to Merrill Lynch Investment Managers. Habibis an
adviser tothe Investor Forum.

Méka Brunel
Independent Non-Executive Director

®e

Appointed to the Board
1 December 2019

Meka has broad experience in the Furopean real estate sector which,
together with her knowledge and skills in property outside of retail,
strengthens the Board's expertise, Her previous roles include Director
of Strategic Development at Gecina in 2003 and CEO of Eurasicin
2006. In 2009, she joined Ivanhoé Cambridge as Eurcpean President
before returning to Gecina in 2014 as a Non-Executive Director and
was CEQ from 2017 to 2022 Mékais Chair of the European Public Real
Estate Association and a mermber of the supervisory board at CDC
Habitat. She also chairs University of the City of Tomorrow (UVD)
achapterof Palladio Foundation, a non-prafit organisation.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Robert Noel
Chair of the Board

(N

Mike Butterworth
Senior Independent Director

o0

Appointed to the Board
1 September 2020 and appointed as Chairon 7 September 2020

Appointed to the Board
1 January 2021

Robert brings extensive property industry knowledge and experience
tothe Board having built along and successful career spanning over
30yearsinthereal estate sector, including at other listed companies.
Most notably, Robert was Chief Executive at Land Securities Group Plc
(Landsec) from 2012 untit March 2020, Priorto joining Landsec in
2010, Robertwas Property Director at Great Portland Estates Plc from
2002 to 2009 and from 1992 to 2002 he was a Director of Nelson
Bakewell, the property services group. Robert is a past president of the
British Property Federation. He will became Chair of Taylor Wimpey ple
atthe conclusion ofits AGMin April 2023,

External Listed Directorships
Senior Independent Director at Taytor Wimpey plc.

AdamMetz
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mike brings to the Board 25 years’ experience in senior finance
roles in businesses across a range of sectors including technology,
manufacturing, communications, healthcare and beverages.
Previously he was CFO of Incepta Group plc and Cookson Group ple,
as well as Non-Executive Director at Johnston Press ple, Kinand
Carta Group ple, Stock Spirits Group plc and Cambian Group ple.

External Listed Directorships
Non-Executive Director of Pressure Technologies ple and Focusrite plc.

Carol Welch
Independent Non-Executive Director

®@®

Appointed to the Board
22 uly2019

Appointed to the Board
1 March 2019

Adam brings to the Board wide-ranging knowledge in retail and
commercial real estate, and extensive investrnent experience gained at
Blackstone Group, TPG Capital and the Carlyle Group. His comprehensive
experience in real estate investment and strategy in the US, Europe and
Asia, through listed companies and private equity, enables him to make
avaluable contribution to our Board. Adam sits on the boards of a
number of Morgan Stanley fund entities.

External Listed Directorships
Chair of Seritage Growth Properties and Non-Executive Director
of Galata Acquisition Corp.

Carol brings deep experience in commercial, marketing, innovation
and digital gained while workinginsenior roles at global businesses,
such as PepsiCo, Cadbury Schwepnes and Associated British Foods.
She also brings insightful operations and tenant experience from the
leisure, retail and hospitality sectors gained through her previous roles
as Chief Marketing Officer at Costa Coffee and Managing Director UK &
Ireland and European Commercial Officer at ODEON. From 17 April
2023, Carolwill become CEQ of A F. Blakemore & Son Ltd. Carolis our
Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

[am pteased to present the Corporate
Governance Report for 2022. The Company is
subjecttothe UK Corporate Governance Code
2018 (the Code), whichis available on the
website of the Financial Reporting Council at
www.frc.org.uk. The purpose of the Codeis to
promote the highestethical and governance
standards tor UK premiumilisted businesses
to contribute to long term sustainable success.
The Board considers that the Company has
applied ali of the principles and complied with
all of the provisians of the Code during 2022
with the exception that Habib Annous had
served on the Rernuneration Commitiee for
aweek short of 12 months when he became
Chair of the Committee on 28 April 2022
(having been appointed as amemberof the
Committee an 5 May 2021) ratherthan the

12 months required by the Cade. [ {owever,
the Board was satisfied that Habib had
appropriate skills and experience to serve

as Chairgiven histime as amemberof the
Commitiec and other relevant experience,
The Company’s compliance with the Cade is
reported against each of the five main sections
of the Cade: Board leadership and Company
purpose; division of responsibilities;
composition, succession and evaluation; audit,
risk and internal control; and remuneration.

The Company’sdisclosures onthe way it has
applied the principles of the Code can be
found throughout this Annual Report onthe
following pages:

Code section Page
Board leadershipand Co;pa—ny T

purpose
The role of the Board 66
Purpose and strategy 66
Cultyre and values 66
Stakeholder and workforce engagement 67
Division of responsibilities -
The roles of the Directors 68
Director commitment 69
Board Committees 70
Board support 0
Composition, succession and

evaluation
Composition and succession 70
Board effectivensss review 70
Nomination and Governarce Committes
_Report . 72
Audit, risk and internal control
Risk managemertand internal controls 73
Fair, balanced and understandable

assessment 71
AuditCommitteeReport 76
Remuneration ' B

Directors’ Remuneration Report B2

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE

The role of the Board

The primary duty of the Board is 10 promote
the long term success of the Campany through
setting aclear purpose and stidiegy which
creates long term value for its shareholders
and other stakeholders. [t aligns the Group's
culture with its strategy, purpose and values
and sets the strategic direction and governance
ofthe Group. The Board has ultimate
responsibilityforthe Group’s management,
strategic direction and performance and
ensuring that sufficient resources are available
ta enable management to meet the strategic
obfectivas set,

The Company has aSchedule of Matters
Reserved for the Board (Matters Reserved),
which was reviewed and updated in
December 2022, and s available to view at
www.hammerson.com. The Board undertakes
various duties in accordance with the Matters
Reserved, including approving major
acquisitions, disposals, capital expenditure
and financing. The Board also oversees the
system of internal controls and risk
management, including climate-related
risks and opportunities, and approves and
monitars performance against the annual
Business Plan.

Details of the Board of Directors of the
Company as at the date of this report are set
outon pages 64 to 65 and further informatian
oneach Director can be found onthe
Company’s website at www.hammerson.com.
Details of the various Director roles are set out
inthe ‘Division af responsibilities’ section on
page 68 and details of Board and Committee
changes during the year can be foundin the
Nomination and Governance Committee
Reportonpages 7210 75.

Key activities of the Board in 2022

During 2022, among otherthings, the Board

spenttime on:

— Strategicamsand the financial and
operating performance ofthe Company

— Externaleconomic developments and
othertrends relevant to the Company

— Stakehaider matters, including
consideration of developments relevant
tocolleagues, shareholders, partners and
other stakeholders

— Investment and disposal proposals and
planning

— The Company’s annualand halfyear
reparting, including constderations relating
todwidends

— Strategic projects and initiatives affecting
the Company
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— The review and approval of the Company’s
business plan

— The Company’s purpose, vision and values
— Sustainability and the wider £5G agenda

— Mattersrelating to risk and the internal
comrol framework togetherwith [T and
cyber matters

— The external Board and Committes
effectiveness evaluation.

Purpose and strategy

The Board discharged its responsibilities in
relationto strategy and purpose through a
number of activities in the year. These included
the annual Board strategy session held in
October 2022, which covered a wide range
of strategic issues with input from senior
management from across the business.

In addition, the Board considers strategic
matters as part of regular meetings through
the year. At each scheduled meeting,
management provide updates on
performance against strategic goals and
initiatives, togetherwith relevant updates
on external developments.

During 2022, the Company has evoived its
purpose and strategic objectives. The Group
has a clear purpose: we create outstanding
experiences in unigue city iocations, The Board
spent ime discussing and approving the
purpose statement, including consideration

of feedback provided by colleagues.

Throughout 2022, the Board focused on
providing leadership and supporito the
Executive team as well as an objective,
independentand constructive view onthe
Company’s strategy and business model,
toensure they adequately reflect the core
capabilities of the business and the changing
external environment, particularly during

a period of challenging macroeconomic
conditions. Thisincludes the refresh of the
Company’s sustainahbility strategy which was
aunched during the firsthalf of the year,
Further detail on howthe Company generates
and preserves value overthe longtermis set
outin the Chief Executive’s statement on
pages 101015 and Qurbusiness modelon
pages181019.

Culture and values

The Board recognises the importance that
culture and values play inthe long term
success and sustainability of the Company,
and the role of the Board in establishing,
monitaring and assessing culture, During
2022, the caontribution of culture and values
has been animpaortant focus for the Board.



Following the strategic roview and the
organisational changes during 2021,

the seniar leadership tearn worked with
colleagues in 2022 toreview and refing
Hammerson's values to reflect our new
strategy, with appropriate gversight and input
from the Board. The new values are Ambitious,
Connected and Rospoct.

The Groupis committed to fully complying with
allapplicable laws and regulations and has
high standards of governance and compliance.
The Code of Conduct has bheen prepared to
help colleagues and Directors ta fulfil their
personal responsibilities to investors and
wider stakeholders, The Code of Conduct
covers the following areas:

— Compliance and accountability

— The required standards of personal
behaviour

— TheGroup’s dealings with stakeholders

— Measures to prevent fraud, bribery and
corruption

— Sharedealing
— Security of information

The colleague induction programme includes
compulsary modules on health and safety,
anti-bribery, cyber security, sustainability,
protection of caonfidential and inside
information and data protection, which are
deliveredinthe UK, France and Ireland viathe
Group's online Learning Management Systern.
The content for these modules was reviewed
and refreshed in 2022 in advance of a planned
relaunch with colleagues during 2023,

The Directors remain committed to zero
tolerance of bribery and carruption by
colleagues and the Group’s suppliers. The
Audit Committee receives annual Anti-Bribery
and Corruption, Fraud and Whistleblowing
Reports and reviews the arrangements in
place forindividuals to raise concerns. The
Board reviewed and, onthe Committee’s
recommendation, approved updatesto the
Company’s Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy,
Anti-Fraud Policy and Response Plan and
Whistleblowing Policy. There were no
allegations of fraud detected or reported
duringtheyear.

The Group’s Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement is submitted to the
Board for approval each year, and the
statementis published on the Company’s
website at www.hammerson.com.

Engagement with stakeholders
Stakeholder engagement remains a priority for
the Board. Inorder to comply with Section 172
ofthe Companies Act 2006 (the Act), the
Board takes into consideration the interests

of stakeholders when making decisions and
includes a statement setting out the way in
whichi Direclors have discharged this duty
during the year. Furtherinformationon the
actions carried out in 2022 by the Board to
complywith its ohligatinons tothe Group’s
stakeholdersisdetailed on pages 32to 33 and
the statement of compliance with Section 172
ofthe Actis setoutonpage 34. The
identification of our key stakeholders and the
continuing engagement efforts helptoensure
that the Board can understand, consice and
balance broad stakeholderinterests when
miaking decisions to deliverlongterm
sustainable success. While the Board will
engage directly with stakeholders on certain
issues, stakeholder engagement will often
take place at an operationat level with the
Board receiving regular updateson
stakeholderviews from the Executive
Directors and the senior management team.
Board papers requesting a decision frorm the
Board are required toinclude a specific section
reviewing the impact of the proposal on
relevant stakeholder groups.

Engagement with colleagues

Ourcolieagues are central to the business and
their performanceis criticaltoits longterm
sustainable success. Colleague engagement
in our business is therefore high on ouragenda
at both Board and senior management levels.

The Colleague Forum (the Forum) enhances
two-way dialogue between the Board and
colleagues, offering a structured environment
forthe Boardtolisten to feedback fromour
colleagues, allowing issues to be highlighted
and informs future Board decision making,
CarolWelchis our Designated Non-Executive
Director for Colleague Engagement. The
purposeofthe roleis to:

— ActastheBoard’seyesandearsto
understand colleagues’ views on Company
culture, and the degree to which behaviours
and values inthe business are aligned with
culture and values agreed by the Board

— Provide guidance and feedback, with
insight gained from the Forum and from
separate sessions held with colleagues, on
achieving effective internal communication

— Provide independent advice and guidance
ta the Chief Executive, Chief People Officer
and other Group Executive Committec
(GEC) members on matters of colleague
engagement
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— Speak on behalfof the Boardat the
Forum's events

— Assistthe Board inunderstanding
colleagues’ views based oninsightfromthe
Forum and colleague sessions, and provide
guidance to the Board on how their
rierisinng may impact collcagucs

Carolattends quarterly meetings with the
Forum in addition to separate discussions with
its Lhairand the Chief People Officer, and
rnonthly sessions with the Chief People Officer.
In COctober 2022, Carol and Habib Annous,
Chairof the Remuneration Committee, carried
outanengagement session with the Forum
specifically to explain the proposed changes
to the Company’s Remuneration Policy and
how the proposals aligned with colleague pay.
The Forumwas supportive of the proposed
changes and comments raised were shared
with the Remuneration Committee. During the
year, Carol also held engagement sessions
with colleagues based at asset locations.
Carol'sannual report on colleague engagement
in 2022 included anassessment of progress
made against 2022 abjectives and her
recammendations forengagement priorities
for 2023, whichwere reviewed by the
Nomination and Governance Committee and
discussed bythe Boardin December 2022.

In 2022, the Forum’s focus has beentolisten
to and support colleagues throughout the
organisational review process, increasing
communications and engagement, and to
facilitate positive change aligned to the
Company’s strategy. The Company also has
four colleague affinity groups (LGBTOQ+,
Women, Race & Fthnicity, Wellbeing) which
are integrated with the Forum to support
colleague engagement and diversity and
inclusion activities throughout the year, Each of
the groups has a designated GEC sponsorto
provide senior leadership support for its work.
To further support aculture of diversity and
inclusion throughout the business, the
Cormpany established a new Diversity, Inclusion
and Engagement Manager role in February
2023, Finally, the Forurm provided colleague
feedback on workplace culture and ather
developments during the yearto the GEC.

Further details on colleagues, including

our appreachtainvestingin and rewarding
ourworkforce as well as the policies and
procedures applicable to colleagues, can be
foundon pages 24 and 62t0 63.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Engagement with shareholders

The Company undertakes investor relations
{IR) activity to ensure that current and
potential shareholders, as well as financial
analysts, are kept informed of performance
and have appropriate access to management
to understand the Company’s business and
strategy. The Board is regularly updated on
IR maiters and feedback received from
shareholders. The Board believesitis
important to maintain open and constructive
relationships with shareholders and for them
to have opportunities to share their views with
the Board. The Chief Executive and Chiet
Financial Officer engage with the Company’s
major institutional shareholders on a regular
basis. As Chair of the Board, I meet with
shareholders to discuss matters such as
corperate governance and succession
planning. Separately the Seniar Independent
Directaris available to shareholders. The Chair
of the Remuneration Committee takes part

in consultations with major institutional
shareholders on remuneration issues from
time totime, including an extensive
consuitation in recent months as part of

the Committee’s review of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy. The Board also regards
the Company's AGM as an impaortant
opportunity for shareholders to engage
directly with Directors,

Conflicts of interest and concerns

The Board has a well-established and detailed
process for the management of conflicts of
interest. The Directars are required to avoid
asituation where they have, orcould have,
adirect orindirect conflict with the interests of
the Company. Prior to appointment and during
theirtermin office, Directors are required to
disclose any conflicts or potential contlicts

to me, as Chair, and the General Counseland
Campany Secretary. At each scheduled
mecting of tho Board, a governance reportis
reviewed, containing details of conflicts of
interest for each Director noting any changes
or matters for authorisation. As part of the year
end reporting, each Director reviews the
Canflict of Interest Register inrespect of their
disclosed conflicts and confirms its accuracy to
the General Counseland Company Secretary.

Thereis regular dialoguc between Directors
outside Board meetings on any important
issues that require discussion and resolution.
If necessary, any unresolved matters thatare
raised with the Chair of the Board, the Senior
Independent Director and the General
Counsel and Company Secretary would be
recorded in the minutes of the next Board
meeting. As Chairof the Board, [encourage a
culture of open and inclusive debate, challenge
and discussion atmeetings and outside ofthe
formal environment. This helps to ensure that
any concerns can be considered and resolved.

Board and Committee meetings attendance -2022
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Role of the Chair of the Board and the

Chief Executive

The Chair ofthe Board and the Chief Executive
have separate roles and responsibilities which
are clearly defined, setout inwriting and
available on the Company’swebsite,

As Chair of the Board, [ am responsible for the
averall effectiveness of the Board indirecting
the Cormpany and for ensuring that the Board
receives accurate, timely and clearinformation.
The conclusion of the 2022 Board effectiveness
review was that Board meetings were chaired
well, that the views of all Directors are sought
and that all mmembers of the Board participated
inand contributed to Board discussions
equally. The results and actions arising from
the Board effectiveness review carried out in
2022 are summarised on pages 70to 71.

The Chief Executive leads and manages the
business in tine with the strategy, policies and
parameters set by the Board. Toensure the
effective day-to-day running of the business,
authority for operational management afthe
Group has been delegated to the Chief
Executive and some powers are further
delegated by her to senior managers across
the Group.

Investrmentand
Additional, Nomination Remuneration Disposal
Scheduled Board  unscheduled Board — Audit Commuttee Committee Committee Committee
Note meetings meatings mieetiings meetings (nate f) meetings meetings {(note g}
Robertosl w7 i NA 22 oNm 7T
Rita-Rose Gagné 77 1/1 N/A N/A NJA N/A
Himanshu Raja h 67 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Habity Annous e 77 1/1 5/5 2/2 5/5 /1
Méka Brunel h o/7 0/1 N/A 2/2 4/5 5/7
GwynBurr c 2/2 NJA N/A N/A 212 N/A
Mike Butterworth 77 1/1 5/5 2)2 N/A MNJA
Desde Beer a,b,d aj4 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 4/4
Alan Qlivier a,b.d 1/1 /A N/A MN/A N/A 1/1
Andrew Formica [ 2/2 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A N/A
Adam Metz 77 1/4 5/5 1/2 NJA 77
CaralWelch 77 /1 N/A 2/2 5/5 N/A
a AlanOlivier was appointed as an alternate ‘o Des de Beeron 22 February 2022.
b ForMarch Board and Committee meetings, Alan Olvier attended in place of Des de Beer,
¢ GwynBurrand Andrew Formicaresigned fromthe Board on 28 Apnl 2022,
d Desde Beer (and his alternate Alan Olivier) resigned from the Board on 11 Gctobier 2022
e Hahib Annous became amember of the Investment and Disposal Commities startingon 19 October 2022,
f The Nomination Cormmittee was reconstitu‘ed as the Nomination and Governance Committee an 8 December 2022.

The Trnvestment and Disposal Committes was disbanded on 8 December 2022,

Where Directors are indicated as not having attended Board or Committee meetings, this is attributable to pre existing and unavoidable cormimitinenils un dueto
Nness. Ineachcase, the Director was prowded with all Board papers and the opportunity to provide comments fo the Chair of the Board or Committee, as appropriate.

T



lorfurther detgil of the division of
responsibilities amongst Board Commiittees
see page 68.

Role of the Non-Executive Directors and
the Senior Independent Director

The Non-Executive Directors are identified in
Ui Livgl aphies ol pages 64 to b and play a
key role in providing constructive challenge to
managerment and offering strategic puidance
through their participation at Board and
Committee meetings. The Non-Exccutive
Directors hold a meeting without me present
annually, led by the Senior Independent
Director, to discuss my performance, in
addition to playing a key role in appointing and
removing Executive Directors and scrutinising
management performance against objectives.
T also hold meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors as part of every Board meeting
without the Executive Directors present.

All Non-Executive Directors are considered to
be independent as at the date of this Report,

in accordance with the provisions of the Code.
Iwasindependent on appointment to the
Boardin September 2020for the purpose of
the Code. The Company has therefore complied
with the Code provision that at least half of the
Board, excluding the Chair, should comprise
independent Non-Executive Directors.

Mike Butterworth succeeded Gwyn Burras
Senior Independent Director in April 2022 and
is available todiscuss shareholders’ concerns
on governance and other matters. Hecan
deputise as Chair of the Baard in my absence,
actas asounding board and serve as an
intermediary for other Board members. His full
roleis clearly defined in writing and availahle
onthe Company’s website,

Directors’ time commitment and additional
appointments

All Directors are thoroughly engaged with the
work of the Group, as evidenced by their
attendance at Board and Board Committee
meetings during the year, which is disclosed
inthe Board and Committee meetings
attendance table, set out on page 68.
Inaddition to Board and Board Committee
meeting attendance, anumber of the
Non-Executive Directors alsovisited the
Company’s assets during the year.

As part of the selection process forany
potential new Directors, any significant
external time commitments are considered
before an appointment is agreed. In 2020,
the Board adopted a Directors’ Overboarding
Policy (Overboarding Policy) to set imits on the
number of external appeointments whichcan
be held by Directors in line with the guidetines
published by Institutional Shareholder
Services (155). The Overhoarding Palicy was
reviewed and updated in December 2022 to
reflect best practice requirements inthe Code
and latest guidance issued by ISS. Directors
are reguired to consult with the Chair of the
Board and obtain the approval of the Board,
beforetaking on additional appointments.
Executive Directors are not permittedtotake
onmorethanone external appointment as a
director of a FTSE 100 listed company orany
other significant appointment.

The Overboarding Policy states that Non-
Executive Directors may hold up to five
mandates on publicly-listed companies
{including theirrole as a Director of the
Campany). For the purpose of calculating
this limit:

Board and Committee Governance Structure as at 31 December 2022
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— Anon-executive directorship counts
as ope mandate

— Anon-executivechaircounts as
two mandates

— Anposition as executive director
(orcomparable role) is counted as
three mandates

Noneofthe Directors’ external directorships
exceed the limit inthe Overboarding Palicy. The
Cverboarding Policy is available toviewon the
Company’s website at www,hammerson.com.

In line with the Code, during the year the Board
considered significant external appointments
proposed to be undertaken by certain Directors,
These were (i) Adam Metz's appointment as
anon-executive director, and subseguently

as chair, of Seritage Growth Properties and (i}
my proposed appointrment as chair of Taylor
Wimpey ple with effect from its AGM to be held
in April 2023. Foreach appointment, the Board
considered (among otherthings) the time
commitment and whetherit presented a
conflict of interest. Ineach case, the Board
approved the proposed appointments and
was satisfied that none of them would restrict
the relevant Director from carrying out their
dutiesas a Director of the Company. The
relevant Directar did not participate inthe
decision or discussion with respect to their
own proposed appointments.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain
responsibilities toits Audit, Remuneration,
and Nominaticn and Governance Committees,
each of which reparts regularly to the Board.
Each of these Committees’ terms of reference
is available onthe Company's website at
www.hammerson.com. During the year, the
Board undertook a review of its Committee
structure following teedback received during
the Board effectiveness review process.
[nDecember 2022 it resulved to disband the
Investrment and Disposal Committee and 1o
transferits responsibilities to the Board.
Priortothe disbanding of the Investment and
Disposal Committeg, the Committee was
responsible for overseeing the Group's
acquisitions, capitalexpenditure and
disposals, and assisted the Board infulfilling
its oversight responsibilities to deliver the
strategy. The Committee met seven times
duringthe year and the agenda foreach
meeting reflected the status of investment
and disposal projects under consideration by
management. The Committee also reviewed
progress by receiving update reports and
received regular updates on market
conditions. Both of these responsibilities
now reside with the Board, which will be
rasponsible for scrutinising propasals and
recommendations to proceed with
transactions valued aver £30m.

InDecember 2022, the existing Nomination
Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Governance Committee with
a broadened remitincluding certain additional
governance related responsibilities, previously
the responsibility of the full Board. This change
willenable enhanced focus on corporate
governance matters whilstensuring that
relevant items are escalated to the full Board
where appropriate.

Further detailon the work of each of the Audit,
Nomination and Governance, and Remuneration
Committees can befound onpages 76, 72 and
82, respectively.

The Board is also supported by three further
committees, the principal of whichis the GEC,
which provides execuUtive management ofthe
Group within the agreed strategy and Business
Plan. The GECis chaired by the Chief Executive
and comprises the senior leadership team.
The members of the GEC and their biographies
are available to view on the Group's website at
www.hammerson.com. The GEC manages the
operation of the business on a day-to-aay
basis, sets financial and operational targets,
oversees the Group’s risk managerment and
has responsibility for the Company’s

sustainability objectives. The GECis supported
inturn by the Group Investment Committee,
which supports the GEC and the Board inthe
execution of their respective capital allocation
responsibilities, and by the Group Management
Committee which supports the GEC inthe
execution of its operational duties.

Board support

On 9 May 2022, Alex Dunn was appointed as
General Counsel and Company Secretary.
The Gencral Counsel and Company Secretary,
whose appointment or removal is decided by
all Directors, provides independent advice to
the Board on legal and governance matters
and ensures that the Board has the policies,
process, information, time and resourcesit
needs in order to function effectively. This
includes ensuringthat the Board regularly
receives training and updates on relevant legal
and governance developments aswell as
assisting with the induction of new Directors.

COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND
EVALUATION

Composition and succession

Appointments tothe Board are subjecttoa
formal, rigorous and transparent procedure
based on merit and ebjective criteria, which

is overseen by the Board's Nominationand
Governance Committee. The Nomination and
Governance Committee also overseesthe
effective succession planning of the Directors
and the process for succession planaing to the
seniormanagement team.

Following a review of the composition of the
Board and its Committees, it was determined
that the Board and its Committees have an
appropriate and diverse combination of skills,
experience and knowledge that are relevant to
the Group in its operating context. For further
detail of each Director’s skills, experience and
knowledge, see the Board Skills Matrix on page
73. The Nomination and Governance Committee
also promotes diversity on the Board and
throughout the Group.

The Board has confirmed that each Director
continues to be effective and demonstrate
commitment to theirrole. Onthe
recommendation of the Nomination and
Governance Committee, the Board will
therefore be recommendingthat all serving
Directors be reappointed by shareholders
atthe 2023 AGM.

Furtherinformation on composition,
succession and the work of the Nominaticn
and Governance Committee can be foundin
the Nomination and Governance Committee

7]

Repurlun pages Y2 1070,
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The Board acknowledges the benefits that
diversity and inclusion can bring to the Board
andtoalllevels of the Company’s operations.
As such, the Board is committed to the
promotion of diversity and inclusion across
the Company and ensuringthat allemployees
are treated fairly. Further information on the
Board’s approach to diversity and inclusion,
and the consideration ot relevant matters
during 2022 can be found in the Nomination
and Governance Committee Report.

Board and Committee effectivenessreview
The process

The Board undertakes aformal and rigorous
evaluation of its effectiveness and the
performance of the whole Board, its individual
Directars and its Committees annually.

The Board's policy, in line with the Code,

isto carry outan externally facilitated Board
effectiveness review every three years and
this year, the Board appainted an external
evaluator to carry out anindependent review
of its effectiveness and performance.

The Board considered a shortlist of potential
external evaluators following a selection
process led by the Chair. It appointed Hanif
Barma of Board Alchemy to undertake the
effectiveness review. Board Alchemy has no
other connection with the Company. The
Board discussed the scope and timing of the
review, and the Chair and the General Counsel
and Company Secretary then agreed the
process to be followed with Board Alchemy.

Each ofthe Directors, the General Counseland
Company Secretary, and the Chief Operating
Officer held confidential one-to-one interviews
with Board Alchemy. In advance of these
sessions, Board Alchemywas provided witha
wide range of documentation and information
inresponsetoan information request they
submitted. Mr Barma also observeda Board
meetingin June 2022.

The scope of the evaluation was broad and
focused on arange of different areas relevant
to Board and Committee effectiveness, and
corporate governance, having regard tothe
FRC’s guidance on board effectiveness,
including:

— Board composition, skills and diversity

— Board behaviours and dynamics

— Qversight of business performance
and strategy

— Boardresponsibilities and independence
— Board meetings and information

— The operation and contribution of
Committees

— Stakeholderengagement



Board Alchemy presented a detailed report
setting out the results of their review for
discussion atthe Board's meeting in October
2022, Following that initial discussian,

the Chair and the General Caunsel and
Company Secretary subsequently presented,
far discussion and approval by the Board,
afollow-up report at the Board’s meeting

in December 2022 setting cut proposed
actions and timelines in response to the
recolnimendations in Board Alchemy's report,

The overall conclusion of the evaluation

wias that the Board and its Committees are
effective. The report identified many strengths,
including clear remits for the Board and its
Committees with Directors possessinga good
understanding of the distinction between the
role of the Beard and that of management.
Board Alchemy found that a good range of
relevant skills and experiences are
represented onthe Board, and that the
composition demonstrates good diversity

in terms of genderand ethnicity.

Interms ofthe operation ofthe Board, the
evaluation concluded that the Chair leads the
Board well with an inclusive style, and that
non-executive members have constructive
relationships with the executives whilst
maintaining an appropriate level of challenge.
Board Alchemy found that independence and
management of conflicts of interest are taken
seriously by the Board. The evaluation also
found that the Board shows positive dynamics,
operatingin an open and transparent manner
with contributions to discussion from around
the board table.

Board Alchemy concluded that Board
meetings operate well with high-quality
discussion facilitated by thorough planning,
good papers and comprehensive
management presentations.

The Boardwelcomes the positive conclusions
of the evaluation and wilt focus during 2023
onthe recommendations made by Board
Alchemy with the aim of further improving the
effectiveness of the Board and its Commitiees,
The recommendations made in this year’s
evaluation include: following the pandemic,
continuing to create opportunities for informal
interaction between Board members; creating
additional cpportunities for Directors to meet
awider range of management and staff in
astructured way; holding private sessions of
the Non-Executive Directors before a board
meeting ratherthan at its conclusion;
continuing ta focus an the Company’s long
term strategy includingin relation to ESG
matters; and enabling ongoing Board oversight
nftechnology and systems changos in the
yearsahead.

The Board considers that improvements
have been made in the areas identified for
improvement in the internal evaluations
undertaken inthe previous two years,
including in relation to Board and senior
rmanagementsuccession planning, the
Foard's involvement in cultuic andvalues,
and the Board’s ongoing consideration of
the evolving retail environment.

Director performance

During the year, as Chair, I hold meetings
with individual Directors at which, among
otherthings, theirindividual performance
is discussed. Informed by my ongoing
observation of individual Directors, these
discussions form part of the basis for
recommending the reappointment of
Directorsatthe AGM,

Chair performance

Asin previous years, the Senior Independent
Directorled an annual assessment processin
respect of my performance as Chair. This
involved meetingwith other members of the
Board and the Company Secretary without me
heing present and consideration of relevant
findings from the external Board Effectiveness
Evaluation. The Senior Independent Director
subseqguently provided feedback to me.

AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Financial statements and audit

The Board has established formaland
transparent policies and precedures inrelation
tothe production of the financial statements
and the audit functions. The Audit Commitiee
oversees the Group’s financial reporting and
monitors the independence and effectiveness
of the internat and external audits, The
Committee oversees the valuation ofthe
property portfolio and is responsible for

the relationship with the External Auditor.
Further information can be found inthe Audit
Committes Report on pages 760 81.

Fair, balanced and understandable
assessment

The Board is respansible for presenting a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company's position and prospects. The full
statement confirming this can be foundinthe
Staterment of Directors’ responsibilities on
page 116. Additionally, the Group’s Viability
Statement can be found on pages 60to 61 and
the going concern staterment can be found on
page 133.
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Risk managementandinternal controls
The Board recognises that it has overall
responsibility for monitoring risk maragement
and internal control systems so as to protect
the assets of the Group and ensure risks are
appropriately managed. Furtherinformation
onthe Group’s approach to risk can be tound
on pages 50 to 59 and inthe Audit Committee
Reporton pages 76 1o 81.

REMUNERATION

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committeeis responsible
forestablishing a remuneration policy which is
designedto supportthe Company’s strategy
and promote its long term sustainable success.
The Committee sets the rernuneration forthe
Chair ofthe Board, Executive Directors and
members of the GEC. Italso oversees
remuneration policies and practices across the
Group. The Committee is responsible for the
alignment of reward, incentives and culture
and approves bonus plans and long term
incentive plans forthe Executive Directors

and members of the GEC. Akey focus of the
Committee in 2022 was the triennial review of
the Company’s Remuneration Poticy, which
will be presented to shareholders forapproval
atthe 2023 AGM. Thisincluded extensive
consideration of feedback received during the
Committee Chair’s consultation with major
shareholders and institutional shareholder
bodies. Furtherinformation can be foundin the
Remuneration Committee Report on pages
8210113.

Robert Noel
Chairofthe Board
8March2023
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Nomination and Governance
Committee Report

Robert Noel
Chairof the Nomination and Governance
Committee

Overseeing matters related to corporate
governance and ensuring the Board and
its Committees have the right combination
of skills, experience and knowledge —
with engaged Directors and suitable
succession planning.

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

lam pleased to present the Report of the
Nomination and Governance Committee
(the Committee) covering the work of the
Committee during 2022.

InDecember 2022, the existing Nomination
Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Governance Committee with
a broadened remit, which now includes certain
additional corporate governance related
responsibilities, previously the responsibility
of the full Board. This change willenable
enbanced focus on corporate governance
matters whilst ensuring that relevant itemsare
escalated to the full Board where appropriate.

The Committee comprises allour Non-
Executive Directors and its terms of reference
can be found onthe Company’s website at
www.hammerson.com. The Chief Executive
and Chief Peaple Cfficer attend meetings

by invitation, together with the General
Counsel and Company Secretary, who acts as
Secretary to the Committee. | he Committee is
responsible for recommending appointments
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Committee members
Rohert Noel (Chair)

Habib An;:)us
Méka Brunel

Mike Butt:rworth

Adam Metz

CarolWelch

tothe Board and its Commilttees and ensures
that plans have been putin place forthe
orderly succession to the Board, its
Committees and the senior management
team, Thisincludes the development ofa
pipeline of potential candidates to the Board
and the senior management team with the
necessary skills and experience, while also
taking into accaunt diversity and inclusion.
The Committee is now also responsitile for
overseeing the Board effectiveness review and
monitoring developments relating to corporate
governance, bringing any issuestothe
attention ofthe Board.

Key activitiesin 2022

During the year the Commitiee met twice and

its activities included:

— Considering Board composition and
succession

— Assessing the compoaosition of the Board's
Committees

— Reviewingtalent and executive
management succession planning

— Theannualreview of the Buard's Divesily &
Inclusion Policy and Overboarding Policy
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Board Skills Matrix

Rita-Rose  Himanshu Robert Habib Mike Meka Adam Carol

Gagné Raja Noel Annous  Butterworth  Brunel Metz welch

Risk Management; Audit i - ME N N o N N
Finance, Banking; Financial Services; Fund Management E N N N
Investment; Mergers & Acquisitions E E N N N N N
Asseland Property Management, Regeneration & Development E N N N
Business Transformation; Strategy 7 = N N N
Retail E N N N
Media; Marketing N
Digital; Custormer Service & Customer Behaviours £ E N
International Business & Markets E N N
Environmental, Social & Governance = E N N N N

E — Executive Director
N — Non-Executive Director

— Assessingthe Directors’ skill sets,
knowledge and experience toensure that
an appropriate balance of skills, knowledge
and experience has been maintained

— Reviewingthe Non-Executive Directors’
independence

Board balance, compaosition and skills

The Board currently comprises eight Directors;
the Chairof the Board, two Executive Directors
and five Non-Executive Directors. During the
yearand inaccordance with its usual practice,
the Committee reviewed the compasition and
balance of the Board and its Committees,
having regard to requirements under the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code).

The review considered: each Director’s skills,
experience and knowledge; the membership
of the Committees of the Board; the balance
onthe Board between Executive and Non-
Executive Directors; the tenure of individual
Directors and the Board as a whole; multiple
forms of diversity onthe Board; and the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors.

As demonstrated by the skilis and experience
summarised inthe biographies of the Directors
on pages 64 and 65, and the Board Skills
Matrix above, the Board members have awide
range of relevant skills gained in diverse
business environments and different sectors
and geographies. This gives the Board varying
perspectives during discussions and enhances
its decision-making and oversight of
management. The Committee is satisfied that
the Board has the necessary mix of skills and
experience tofulfitits role effectively (as
confirmed by the externally facilitated Board
effectiveness review conducted in 2022 —

see pages /0and 71).

The Committee is also satisfied that the Board
is comprised of an appropriate combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and
that the overzll size of the Board remains

appropriate given the complexity and scalc of
the Company’s operations. All Non-Executive
Directors are currently considered to be
independentforthe purposes of the Codeas at
the date of this Report. On appointmenttothe
Board, I was considered to be independent in
accordance with the terms of the Code.

On 28 April 2022, Gwyn Burrand Andrew
Formica stepped down following the conclusion
ofthe 2022 AGM. Habib Annous, Non-
Executive Director, succeeded Gwyn as Chair
ofthe Remuneration Committee and Mike
Butterworth, Non-Executive Directar,
succeeded Gwyn as Senior Independent
Director. On 11 October 2022, Des de Beer,
Non-Executive Director, stepped down from
the Board. The appointment of Alan Olivier as
alternate director to Des de Beeralso ceased
with effect from that date. Once again, Twould
like tothank Gwyn, Andrew, Desand Alanfor
their positive contributions to the Board over
anumber of years.

AllDirectors are subject to annual re-ctection
by shareholders at the AGM. Prior to the
Company’'s AGM eachyear, the Committee
considers, and makes recommendations to
the Board concerning, the reappointment of
Directors having regard to their performance,
suitability, time commitment and ability ta
continue to contribute to the Board. Following
thisyear’s review in advance of the 2023 AGM,
the Committee has recommended tothe Board
thatall Directors be reappointed atthe AGM.

The biographies of the Directors, setouton
pages 64 and 65, contain more information on
the reasons why the Board recommendsthe
re-election of each Director. Directers are
expected to devote sufficienttime to the
Company’s affairs to enable themtofulfil their
duties as Directors effectively. The attendance
atthe meetings foreach Directorduring 2022
is showninthe Board and Committee

Meetings Altendance on page &68. Details

of the Company’s Overboarding Policy and
decisions made during the yearin relation to
Directors’ additional external appointments
are setout on page 69. The Committee
remains satisfied that each Director corntinues
to devote an appropriate amount of time to
the Company and to theirresponsibilities as
aDirector.

Board Diversity & Inclusion Policy

and objectives

Diversity and inclusion remain a key focus of
the Committee. In December 2022, the Board
Diversity and Inclusion Policy was reviewed by
the Committee and subsequently approved by
the Board. It sets out the Company’s approach
todiversity and inclusionin respect of the
Board and senior management team.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity
andinclusion in their broadest senseinthe
boardroom and that the skills, knowledge

and backgrounds collectively represented on
the Board should reflect the environmentin
which the business operates. The policy can
be readin full on the Group's website at
WWW.hammerson.com.

The Board continues to make progress in
achieving the objectives of its Diversity and
Inclusion Policy as setout in the table below.
The Directors believe that the benefits of
adiverse and inclusive Board, and wider
workforce, willbring different perspectives and
build a broad range of capabilities necessary
for the Company to achieve its strategic
objectives. Atthe end of 2022, three of the
Board's eight members werc women (37.5%)
and the Board exceeded the Parker Review
target of having at least one Director from
aminority ethnic group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY & INCLUSION POLICY OBJECTIVE

Considerdiversity and inclusion, including gender and ethnicity,
when reviewing the composition and balance of the Board and when
conducting the annual Board effectiveness review.
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PROGRESS UPDATE

Diversity and inclusion is carefully considered as part of the Board'’s
annual review of both Board and Committee compaosition. Diversity and
inclusion onthe Board was an area of consideration for the externally
facilitated Board effectiveness review during the year, which concluded
that there is good diversity represented on the Board.

Airmto maintain female representation on the Board of at least 33%
and, over time as opportunities arise, scek to achieve female
representation of at least 40%. Specifically, the Board wilt aim to
maintain the current position where at least one of the Chairof the
Board, the Senior Independent Director, CEC or CFQ is female.

Atthe date of this report, the Board comprises 37.5% wormen Directors
and the Chief Executive Officeris female. The compasition of the Board
inthis regard isin ling with the requirements of the policy.

Aim at all times to have at least one non-white director on the Board.

Atthe date of this report, the compeosition of the Board exceeds the
requirement of the policy and the Parker Review. The Company
responded to the BEIS “Parker Review — FTSE 350 Ethnic Diversity
Survey” in December 202 2 and continues to monitor wider
developmenisin this area.

Encourage and monitor the development of internal employees to help
support the internal talent pipeline for succession at both Board and
senior management level.

Oversee succession planstoensure that they meet current and fuiure
necds of the business having due regard to diversity and inclusion.

This continued to be a key focus for the Commiites and Board in 2022
with detailed updates on the Company’s plans presented for discussion.
Colleagues below management level attend and present at Board and
Committee meetings and meet the Directors during visits to assets.
Internal successors for GEC members have beenidentified.

The Committee will continue to review Board and management
succession plansin 2023, ensuring consideration of relevant matters
relating to diversity and inclusion.

Oversee plans fordiversity and inclusion and assess progress annually
by monitoring gender and ethnic diversity of the members of the
Company’s GEC and direct reports to GEC (excluding executive
assistants).

With additionalinput from the Designated Non-Executive Director for
Colleague Engagement, the Committee has reviewed plans tofurther
improve diversity and inclusion in 2023. This has included updates on
initiatives across the Company in this areg, including the work of the
Company's Affinity Groups.

ForBoard appointments, only engage executive search firms who
have signed up to the Voluntary Code of Conduct on gender diversity
and best practice.

Ensure that candidate lists for Board positions are compiled by drawing
from a broad and diverse range of candidates {including for Non-
Executive Director positions, candidates who may not have previous
listed company board experience but who possess suitable skills,
experience or gualities).

The Board only uses accredited executive search firms and will
continue to do sofor future appointments.

The Committee will continue to ensure candidate lists for future Board
positions meet the critera, as it did so when compiling the candidate list
for the mast recent appointments of Mike Butterworih, Habib Annous
and HimanshuRaja.

Intheir discussians on Beard composition and appointments, continue
to have regard to relevant best practice and the recommendations of
relevant industry reviews in the areas of diversity and inclusion,

The Committee has received updates on developing market practice
and regulatory requirements in this area from the General Counseland
Company Secretary, and the Chief People Officer. These will continue
in2023.




Board: Gender diversity
%

W Male 62% (B)
»*Female 37,5 {3)
Senior management and direct
reports*: Gender diversity %
B Male 69.8 (30)
“Female 30,2 {13)

Alldataasat 31 December 2022

* asdefined inthe UK Corporate Governance Code
(excluding executive assistants)

Other Committee work: Workforce
diversity, colleague engagement, and
succession planning

Imits December 2022 meeting, the
Committee considered the Company’s Annual
HR Report, including a report on progress with
diversity and inclusion objectives across the
Group, the UK gender pay gap and wider HR
initiatives for 2023. The Committee takes
seriously its role in oversecing the developrment
of adiverse pipeline for senior management
positions and the link between diversity and
inclusion, and delivery of the Company’s
purpose, values and strategic aims. [t received
updates during the year on diversity and
inclusion inttiatives across the Company,
including managerment’s work with diversity
and inclusion campaign groups, and the
activities of the Company’s Affinity network.

Inline with the Code, the Committee discloses
thatthe gender balance of those in senior
management (being the members of the GEC)
and their direct reports {excluding executive
assistants) at 31 December 2022 was 30.2%
(13)female (2021 32.4% (12)yand 69.8%
(30 male (2021: 67.6% (25)). Further details
of gender diversity at senior manager level
{asdefined in the Companies Act 2006} and
across the workforce can be found on page 24,
The above chartsillustrate the gender diversity
at Boardievel and with respectto senior
management and their direct reports level (as
definedinthe Code) asat 31 December 2022,

The Committee continues to be involved in
overseeing colleague engagement activities.
InJune 2022, the Company gathered
feedback from colleagues, which was shared
with the Committee for discussion. In July and
Necermher 2022, CarglWelch, as Designaied
Non-Executive Directar for Colleague
Engagement, alsc reported tothe Committee
on heractivities during 2022 and on her
engagement with colleagues and in particular
with the Colleague Forum (the Forum). In July
2022, the Chair of the Forum presented an
update on the werk of the Forum, includingits
focus areas for 2022 and priorities for the
period ahead. You can read further details on
thison page 67.

During the year, the Committee considered the
impact of, and the Company’s response to, the
cost of living crisis for employees. It received
input from Carol Welch, as Designated
Non-Executive Director for Colleague
Engagement, and management, informed
(amongst other things) by engagement with
members of the Forum.

Governance

with effect from December 2022, the
Committee’s remit was broadenedto include
certain governance related responsibilities
(which were previously the responsibility of the
tull Board). Additionalresponsibilities of the
Committee now include:

— Monitoring the Board’s corporate
governance arrangements to ensure that
both the Company and the Board operate
ina manner consistent with corporate
governance best practice

— Monitoring director conflicts of interest

— Reviewing and approving the process for
the annual effectiveness review ofthe
Board and its Committees, including
approval of the appointment of any external
evaluator and monitoring progress against
any relevant recommendations arising from
any such effectiveness review

— Monitoring training and development
needs of the Board and individual Directors

— Reviewing the Company’s delegation of
authority policy and making such
recommendations as required to the Board
forapproval

— Considering the process to be followed for
the annual appraisal of the Chair
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During 2023, the Committee will monitor
external governance developments, including
relevant aspects of the UK Government’s audit
and corporate governance reforms, and new
diversity reporting requiremnents under

the Lishng Rules which will first apply to the
Companyinits 2023 Annual Report.

Committee effectiveness

As describedin more detail on pages 70 and
71, an external evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Board and its Commitiees was
undertakenduring the yearin line withthe
requirements cf the Code, The Committee
considers that during the year it continued to
have access to sufficient resources toenable
itto carry out its duties and has continued to
perfermeffectively. In 2022, the Committee
reviewed itsterms of reference to ensure that
they remain appropriate.

Robert Noel

Chairofthe Nomination and Governance
Committee

8March2023
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit Committee Report

Commitieemembers
Mike Butterworth (Chair)

Hahib Annous

Adam Metz

Mike Butterworth
Chair of the Audit Committee

Supporting the Board and acting in the COMMITTEE GOVERNANCE The Committee met five Limes during the year.
long-terminterests of stakeholders by The agenda foreach meeting is planned
thoroughly reviewing and monitoring the The Committee plays a key gavernancerolefor — around the Group’s annual reporting cycle and
integrity and accuracy of the Group’s the Group andin meeting its responsibilities, includes particular matters forthe Committee’s
financial and narrative reporting; its the Committee continues to consider the consideration, Foltowing each meeting,
compliance with laws and regulations, pravisions of the UK Corporate Governance the Board is appraised of matters arising from
theinternal control and risk management Code {the Code} and the FRC Guidance on the Commitiee.
systems; and managing the external and Audit Cammittees. The Committee's terms
internal audit processes of reference are available toview at The Chairofthe Board, the Chief Executive, the
www.hammerson.com. Chief Financial Officer and other members of
the senior finance team, tagethiar with senor
DEAR SHAREHOLDERS Membership and meetings representatives of the Company’s External
The Committee continues 1o be comprised Auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw(C),
As Chair ofthe Audit Committee (the exclusively of independent Non-Executive areinvited toattendall or part of meetings as
Committee), I amnleased 1o present my Directors, There were no changes inthe anpropriate. Inorder tofulfilits duties ag set out
reportfor the yearended 31 December 2022, membership of the Committee duringtheyear,  initsterms of reference, the Audit Committee
atherthan the retirement from the Board receives presentations and reviews reports
This report sets out the activities undertaken and the Commiittee of Andrew Formica on from the Group's senior management and from
by the Committee during the year and offers 28 April 2022, the Group'sindependent valuers, consulting as
insight into how the Committee has discharged nécessary with PwC.
the responsibilities delegated to it by the Board
and the key areas of focus it has considerad The Committee meets, with na Company
indoing so. management present, atleast once a yearwith

PwC, and at least once with the Group’s
mermber of management responsible for
internal audit, enterprise risk and £ESG.



Thevaluers (CBRE, Cushman & Wakefield and
JLL) and PwC have full access to cne another,
and I personally spoke with the valuers and
PwC separately todiscuss the half yearand
year end valuation process and ensured each
is satisfied that there has been afull and open
exchange of information and views.

Independence and experience

The Board continues to be satisfied that the
Commitiee members provide an appropriate
depthof financial reporting, risk management
and commercial experience across different
industries including commercial real estate
and inlisted companies. This combined
knowledge and experience enables the
Committee toundertake its cuties praperly
and actindependently of management. The
Board has also canfirmed thatit is satisfied
thatbeing achartered accountant and having
held other senior finance appointments,

I meetthe Code requirement that at least
one member has recent and relevant
financial experience.

More information about the Committee
members’ skills and experience are setautin
the Board of Directors and Nomination and
Governance Committee Report sections of this
Annual Report.

Annualreview of effectiveness

Far 2022, the review of the Audit Committee’s
effectiveness was carried cut by an external
organisation, Board Alchemy. I can confirm
that this review concluded that the Committee
continuesto performits role effectively with no
significant concerns. The private sessions of the
Committee also provide further opportunities
to discuss matters in connection with its
effectiveness andto highlight any areas for
improvement orchange.

External advice

The Board makes funds available tothe
Committee toenableittotake independent
legal, accounting or other advice if orwhenthe
Committee believes it necessary todo so.

KEY COMMITTEE ACTIVITIESIN 2022

Core duties

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities by acting
independently from the Executive Directars.
Thereis anannual schedule of items which
are allocated to the mectings across the year
toensure that those items within the
Committee’s terms of reference are covered
fully. These tems are supplermented
throughout the year as key matters arjse.
The principal duties of the Committee are to:

Accounting and financial reporting matters

— Monitor the integrity of the Annual Report
and Accounts, the Interim Statement and
any formalannouncements relating to
financial performance, to ensure clarityand
completeness of disclosures, including
those relating to alternative performance
measures

— Reviewmatters of accounting significance
includingfinancial reporting issues,
restatements, judgements and estimates

— Review the Group's valuation process and
valuations of the Group’s property portfolio

— Advisethe Board onwhether, asawhole,
the Annual Report and Accounts are fair,
halanced and understandable

— Considerand review the basis forthe going
concernand lengerterm viability
statements in light of financial plans and
reasonably possible scenarios

Risk management and internal control

— Reviewthe Group's financial controls and
internal control effectiveness and maturity

— Review and monitorthe Group’s risk
rnanagement systems, processes and risk
appetite, including those to identify
emerging risks, to ensure the Group has an
effective internal controls environment and
complies with laws and regulations

— Ensure that management has systems and
pracedures in place toensure the integrity
and accuracy of financial information

— Debate and agreeanychangeto
principal risks

— Reviewedthe impactof climate risk on
the financial staternents and the Group's
TCFDdisclosures

Internal audit

— Monftorand review the effectiveness and
independence of the Internal Auditand
Risk functions

— Considerwhistleblowing arrangements by
which employees may raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial
reportingor other matters

— Considerthe major findings of internal
auditinvestigations

Externalaudit

— Consider recommendations of the External
Auditor’s appointment and approving
their remuneration

— Review and monitoring the relationship
with the External Auditor, including their
independence, objectivity, effectiveness,
terms of engagement and level of fees

— Review the results and conclugions of work
performed by the External Auditor
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Generalmatters

— Refermatters tothe Board which, inits
opinion, should be addressed at ameeting
ofthe Board

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Risk management

The Audit Committee continued to review the
heightened risks and challenges to the Group
arising from market conditions and the macro
ecenomy. The Committee uses anumber of
tools to review the Group’s risk management
processes including the Group’s Risk
Management Framewaork, Residual Risk Heat
Map and Risk Dashboard. These tocls are
reviewed regularly by the senior management
team to ensure that risks, both existingand
emerging, are properly identified and managed
and the potential impact on the Group
assessed. The Committee also supported

the Board in its annual review of the Group’s
risk appetite.

Internal control

The Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its
responsibilities relating to the adequacy and
effectiveness of the control envircnment and
compliance systemsin the Group.

Throughout the vear, the Committee received
regular updates onthe Group's internal control
systems, including material financial,
operational and compliance controls. The
Group'sinternal controls provide reasonable
but notabsolute assurance against material
misstatement orloss. The review of the controls
involves analysis and evaluation of the key risks
tothe Group, including areview of all the
material controls. Thisincludes the plans for
the continuity of the Group and its operations
in the event of unforeseen interruption.

In addition, the Committee reviewed the
Group's approach to compliance with
legislation and the prevention of fraud,
anti-bribery and corruption. During 2021, ane
allegation of fraud was raised, which following
further detailed investigation during the
current year, included a review by an
independent firm of accountants, was not
substantiated. There were no allegations of
traud raised in 2022.

The Committee confirms that its review
was able to demonstrate that the Group
continues to operate an effective internal
control envircnment.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT continued

Significantissues, judgements and estimates
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The Committee received reports from management and the External Auditor setting out the significant accounting and financial reporting matters
and judgements in respect of the financial staternents as well as howthesa matters were addressed. The following sets out the main areas of
judgement considered by the Committee, For each area, the Committee was satisfied with the accounting and disclosures in the Annual Report

and Accounts.

MATTER CONSIDERED THE COMMITTEE’S REVIEW AND CONCLUSION

Valuation of the Group’s property portfolio
The valuation of the Group’s property portfolio
is a key recurring judgement duetoits
signihicance in the context ol the LEroup's net
assetvalue.

Valuations are inherently subjective dueto the
assumptions and judgements made by the
valuers andthese include those relating to
capitalisation yields, market rental income
(FRV) and other factors including the location,
physical attribtites of the property, and
environmental and structural conditions.

Valuations are undertaken by the Group's
three externalvaluers and are thoroughly
reviewed by management.

The external valuers each presented their year end valuations to the Committee in January
2023, These were scrutinised, challenged and debated with a focus on the key judgements
adopted, recognising that while lower than long term averages, the leasing evidence on which
LU base Ihe vatuation compared with 2020 and 20271 was greater, although offset in partby
reduced reliance an transactional evidence given macroeconomic volatility experienced in the
second half of the year.

The Committee alsa discussed the RICS Guidance Note, Sustainability and ESG in Cemmereial
Property Valuation, which took effect from 31 January 2022, and the recommendationsin the
RICS Independent Review of Real Estate Investment Valuations. The latter recommendations
have been accepted in full by RICS and an Implementation Roadmap was published in

August 2022 which indicated that the recommendations would be adopted by the second
quarierof 2024.

The Committee Chair also held private meetings with eachvaluer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process and asked the valuers to highlight any disagreements with management
during the valuation process. This allowed the Committee to satisfy itself that the valuation
process was independent and objective.

The Committee was satisfied that the valuations had been carried outin an appropriate manner
with reference to the widest range of available evidence and was therefore suitable for inclusion
inthe Group's financial staterments.

Impairment of trade receivables

In 2021, the intermittent closures of the
majority of non-essential retail as a result of
the Covid-19 pandemic, coupted with the UK
government’s restrictions on landlords’ ability
to enforce collection, adversely impacted
collection rates.

Over the course ot 2022, condttions improved
across all regions and in the UK were further
aided by governrment restrictions on
collections being lifted. The resultingimproved
collection rates have ledto areappraisal of
provisioning rates.

The estimation of provisions againstarrears
and capitalised tenant incentives requires
estimation about future events andis therefore
inherently subjective, particularly against the
current backdrop of macroeconomic
uncertainties.

The Committee reviewed management’s approach to the impairment of trade receivables
based on the expected credit loss method to assess the appropriate levelof provisioning.

Management's approach is to use a provisioning matrix which groups receivables dependent
on risk level, taking into account a number ot factors consistent with prior periods and which
are explained furtherin note 190 to the financial statements. The mast recent callections
experience was a key factor in reassessing the provisioning rates, in particular the rates applied
to more recently aged receivables.

Applying the assessment criteria set out above, the Group has reduced its provisioning rates
1o reflect the improvements in recent collections experience but has maintained adegree of
prudence toreflect ongoing macroeconomic uncertainties.

The Committee was satisfiad with the aparoach and concluded that the resulting provision
isappropriate.




Hammerson ple Annual Report 2022 79

MATTER CONSIDERED THE COMMITTEE’S REVIEW AND CONCLUSION

Accounting for property transactions

The accounting treatrment of property
transactions is a recurring judgement for the
Group because of the financial significance
and potential complexity nf such transactions.

For property transactions, judgement can be
required to determing the point at which
assets are held for sale and subsequently
when a sale should be recognised.

The Committee reviewed management’s accounting treatment and disclosures for the two
property disposals completed during 2022 as well as ongoing property transactions. The
principal areas of discussion included the sales which completed during the yearand an
assessment as to whether there were any further potential transactions requiring disclosure,
forinstance, whelhet any of the Group's properties fetl under the definitions of assets held for
sale at year end or required disclosure as a post balance sheet event.

The Committee reviewed and challenged management’s proposed accounting treatments
and was satisfied that the treatment and disclosures adepted in the financial statements
were appropriate.

Going concernand longer term viability
Assumptions underlying going concern and
the longer termviability statements are based
on the Group’s budget and five year plan.
These include appropriate scenario analysis

and take account of the Groups’ principal risks.

The work undertaken then affects the Group’s
related disclosures.

The Committee, in conjunction with the Board, reviewed the plans, scenarios and other key
assessment factors and was satisfied that in respect of the longer term viability statement,
a period of three years was suitable. The Committee reviewed and challenged the financial
forecasts and their underlying assumptions, considering the Group’s current position,
strategy, future prospects and risk assessment including a separate paper on climate risks.
This included the Group’s liquidity position and projected financial covenants within the
Group’s borrowing facilities.

The Committee was satisfied that management had conducted a robust assessment and
concurred with management’s conclusions that the viability statement as set out in the Annual
Report was appropriate, The Committee further concluded that the evaluation and related
disclosures in the Annual Report in respect of going concern were appropriate.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Groupuses a number of Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs), being
financial measures not specified under IFRS,
tomonitor the performance of the business.
Management principally reviews the Group on
aproportionally consolidated basis, exceptfor
Value Retail.

Judgement is required to ensure disclosures
and associated commentary explain clearly
the performance of the business and provide
reconciliations to [FRS.

During the year, management undertook an exercise to redesign and simiplify its Annual Report
andfinancial statements with the objective of enhancing clarity and users’ understanding. The
Committee reviewed the revised presentation and considered whether the report remained fair,
balanced and understandable, but also remained focused on the relevant disclosures and
reconciliations in the accounts, including ensuring that APMs:

— arenot given more prominence than measures underIFRS

— are properly explained, including the raticnale fortheiruse

— whererelevant, arereconciled to IFRS

The Committee noted that the material adjustments are not cash items, and that, as a REIT,
there were nomaterial tax impacts.

Following its review, the Committee was satisfied that the Annual Report and financial
statements was fair, balanced and understandable and recommended the same to the Board.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AUDITCOMMITTEE REPORT continued

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit function provides
independent and objective assurance over
the design and operating effectivenass ofthe
system of internal control though a risk-
focused approach. The function reports into
the Deputy CFO, but has anindependent
reportingline directlyinto the Committes.

loranumber of yoars, the internal Andit
function and its activities have been carried
outinternally, but with assorted co-source
providers for speciatist assurance activities.
During the year, a new co-sourcing
arrangement with BDO was entered into to
ensure thatthefunction has accesstoa
dedicated resource pociand specialist skills.

Priortothe start of each financial year, the
Committee reviews and approves the annual
internal audit plan. Afurther review occurs
duringthe yearto take account of any need to
refocus. The plan takes account of the Group's

Risk Management Framework and in particular

any heightened principal risks affecting the
Group with audits split between a cyclical
annual plan and a risk based audits. Other key
factors for consideration are key areas of change
forthe Group which have not been subject to
recent audit. Internal audits completed during
the year included, but were not limited to:
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Cyclical

Territory
Accounts receivable L - o UKk
Capital expenditure controls France
Controls on supplier selection and ongoing management UK
Maonitoring of controls for work undertaken by outsourcers ireland
Risk based

Territory
Suicidedeterrence WK
Businesscontinuityplanntng =~ ‘Fance
Cybersecurity WK
Lease managemert Ireland

Recommendations forimprovement are
agreed with management with clear timelines
and responsibilities for implermnentation.
Progress updates on actions arising from
current and prior reparts are and have been
provided at each Committee meeting. The
Committee is satisfied that the internal audit
programme remains risk focused, is
functioning satisfactorily across the Group,
that rmanagement is open to reviews and takes
action on recornmendations on a timely basis.

Accordingly, it has been concluded thatthe
Group’s internal audit arrangements provide
effective assurance overthe Group'srisk and
controlenvironment. The Committee
continues to review how the internal audit
function will need to evolve in future years.



EXTERNALAUDITOR

Independence and objectivity

Both the Board and the External Auditor (Pw(C)
have safeguardsin place to protoct the
indepandence and objectivity of tho Fxternal
Auditor. The Committee receives details of
any relationships between the Company and
PwC that may have a bearing on their
independence. These were reviewed by the
Committee during the year and remain
satisfactory. In accerdance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK}, PwC formally
confirmedtothe Board its independence as
auditor of the Company.

Auditor effectiveness

The eftectiveness of the audit process is subject
to angeing monitoring and the Committee has
consideredthis as part of the 2022 year end
process. The Committee considered anumber
of factors, including the quality and scope of
the audit plan and reporting.

The Committee also sought the views of key
rmermbers of the finance team, senior
management and the Directors regarding the
audit process and the quality and experience
ofthe audit partnerengaged in the audit.
Their overall feedback was positive and that
the External Auditor provides an appropriate
level of challenge to management. It was
agreed that the audit team had continued to
be responsive and cooperative and had
demonstrated flexibility and adaptability in
working with management day-to-dayto
address any issues anising during the year,
Confirmation was also soughtthat the fee
payable forthe annual audit is sufficient to
enable PwC to performits obligations in
accordance with the scope of the audit.

The Committee has concluded that taken as
awhole, PwC has carried out its audit for 2022
effectively and efficiently.

The FRC’s review of audit quality

The FRC’s Audit Quality Review Team (AQRT)
rautinely monitors the quality of the audit work
of certain UK audit firms through inspections

of sample audits and related guality processes.

The AQRT carried outa review of the audit
of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 20271,

As Chair ofthe Committee, I held discussions
with the FRC pricrtothe review commencing.
The reportissued on the guality of the audit
by the AQRT was circulated to the Committee
and an update onthe process and review of
the outcome was communicated tothe
Committee by Pw(C,

lam pleased to reportthatthere were no
significant recommendations made by the
FRC butcertain limited improvements were
suggested tothe audit process and these have
already beenimplemented,

Auditor appointment

PwC has served as the Group's External
Auditor since being appointed atthe AGMin
April 2017 after a full tender process was
undertakenin 2016. The current audit
partner, Sonia Copeland, has servedforthree
years. The externat audit contract will be put
outtotenderat least every 10 yearsand the
Committee considers that it would be
appropriate to conduct an external audit
tender by no later than 2026. Thereare no
contractual obligations that restrict the
Committes's choice of External Auditor.

PwC's objectivity, independenceand
performance remain strong and accordingly,
the Committee has recommended to the
Board that PWC be re-appointed as External
Auditor forthe 2023 financial year, subject to
approvalatthe AGMto be held on 4 May 2023.

The Committee is incompliance with The
Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies
Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014, published by the
Competitionand Markets Authority.

Non-audit services

The Committee has putin place a robust
auditorengagement policy toensure that

the External Auditor remains objective and
independent. Itconsiders how such objectivity
might be, or appearto be, compromised
through the provision of non-audit services

by the External Auditor.

The Group’s nan-audit services policy

can be found anthe Company’s website at

www.hammerson.com and reflects the

requirements of the Financial Reporting

Council's (FRC) Revised Ethical Standard 2019

suchthat:

— The External Auditor may only provide
services which are included on the FRC’s
‘whitelist’ of services

— Non-audit services with fees up to £50,000
are assessed and, as appropriate,
authorised by the Chairof the Committee.
Services with fees above this levelare
considered by the Committee as a whole.

— The provision of non-audit services is
monitored closely to ensure compliance
with the 70% non-audit services cap
calculated as the average of the fees paidl
forauditservices inthelastthree
consecutive financial years.
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During the year, PwC received insignificant
amountsinrelation 1o non-audit services
(2021: £0.1m), representing 1% of the
Group’s audit fee forthe year (2021: /%)
and further analysis of fees paid to the
Exlernal Auditoris set out in note 5E tothe
financial statements,

CONCLUSIONS

The Committee’s oversight of financial
reporting, external and internal audit, and the
furtherdevelopment of the risk and control
envirenments have continuedto be keyareas
offocus. These are likely toremain so for the
2023 financialyear as the Group develops in
linewithits strategy.

The Coammittee remains focused on ensuring
that finance and risk capability is appropriate
to the scale of the business, whilst also
acknowledging an increasingly regulated
environment, Asthe UK's regulatory landscape
continues to evolve, the Committes will
continue to monitor developments fromthe
review led by the Departrment for Business and
Trade (previously part of the Departmentfar
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
(BEIS)) into restoring trust in audit and
corporate govemnance, and the impact the
recommendations may have on the Group.
While at the time of writing, the degree and
structure of these changes is becoming
somewhat clearer, itis still not yet certain what
exact form the regulations will ultimately take
northe precise timing of theirmandataory
implementation compliance (although certain
elements could potentially become effective
in 2024 with others no earlier than 2025).

The Committee and management are
committed to ensuring that we respond
positively to these changes inthe regulatory
environment, particularly inthe context ofthe
Group’s digital transformation programme.

Mike Butterworth
Chair of the Audit Committee
8March2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Habib Annous
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Aligning remuneration with our
strategy and stakeholder interests

Ensuring our remuneration reflects
market conditions and supports the
ongoing focus on transforming and
strengthening our business

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

Thisis myfirstreport as the Chairof the
Remuneration Committee (the Committee)
and [am pleased to present our Directors’
Remuneration Report {the Report) for the
yearended 31 December 2022.

Context for the Committee’s decisions
Attheendct 2021 aswe plannedfor 2022,
the macroeconomic debate focused onthe
impacts of transitory inflation and how we
would emerge from the Omicron variant
increase in Covid-19 cases. Inearly 2022,

the wAarin Lkraine increased macroeconomic

headwinds, with the accompanyingrisein
energy and food costs contributing to

inflationary pressures and a subsequent cost
of living crisis. The second half of the year saw
UK political instability add to the volatile
economic landscape and the Central Banks
have raised interest rates much higherthan
previously expected in response to the
entrenched inflationary pressures.

Notwithstanding extrerne volatility and
uncertainty, management continued to make
significant operational and financial progress
towards achieving the strategic goals autlined
in 2021, tocused on our four key pillars:

— Reinvigorate ourassets
— Accelerate development
— Create anagile platform

— Deliver a sustainable and resilient
capital structure

These goals are underpinned by our

commitment to sustainability which continued

to be a priority for the management team.

Committee members B
Habib Annous (Chair)

Méka Brunel

Carol Welch

Remuneration Policy and stakeholder
engagement

Thecurrent Remuneration Policy was
approved at the AGM on 28 April 2020 with
31.3% ofsharesvated infavour. The last
Report, which explained how we applied that
policy i 2021 and intendedtodosa in 2022,
was also approved with 92.7% of shares voted
in favour.

Asrequired under the regulations, the policy

is subjectto rencwal atthe 2023 AGM.

The Committee reviewed the operation and
impact of the policy, actively engaging with
approximately 60% of the share registerand
the principal proxyadvisory firms. We appreciate
the time shareholders took to consider and
provide feedback on the proposals. As is often
the case, shareholder perspective onthe
policy and its implementation was varied. In
addition to the written responses we received,
we also had the opportunity to meet with our
largest shareholders. Allthe feedback received
was reviewed and discussed extensively at our
Rununeration Committee meetings,



The Committee took account of the current
economic uncertainty and the needto
continue to transform the business alongside
shareholderfeedback. Given all the factors,
the Committee has concluded that the current
AIP performance measures continue to
provide the right framewaork for the business
atthisstage. However, these will stay under
activereviewto ensure they remain
appropriate to Hammerson's evolution,

Having listened to shareholders and considered
allthe feedback received, we have decided to
make some changes to haw we propase to
implement the policy in the future. There was
acunsel sus (o lucus on ‘per share' metrics
and therefore we have moved to Adjusted
Farnings Per Share for 2023 targets. There
was also a strong demand for an increased
emphasis in ESG related measures and as
aresult, we have increased the proportion of
environmental facters inthe annual bonus
calculationand added social and stakeholder
related measurestothe personal/ strategic
objectives. Additionally, we committed toan
imcreased level of transparency and enhanced
disclosures associated to these objectives.

Sharehotders approved the introduction of
aRestricted Share Schemea (RSS) in 2020.
Although the current trend across UK listed
cormpanies is towards restricted share
schemes, versus LTIPs, same of our
shareholders expressed a preference for more
traditional LTIPs. These views were notinthe
majority, with differing perspectives among
sharcholders. On balance, the Committee
resolved to retainthe existing RSS at this stage.
As aresult, the proposed new Poticyis largely
unchanged, with minor updating of the share
ownership guidelines toensure they operate
asintended along with slightly updated malus
and clawback provisions. However, rather than
necessarity waiting a further three years before
reviewing the Policy again, the Committee

will continue to engage with our shareholders
on the development of the Policy. We are
committed to ensuring the Policy reflects the
evolution of the new Hammersontoensure it
supports the development of the strategy
agreed by the Board and remains aligned to
stakeholderinterests.

Furtherinformationon the application of the

policy duning 2022 15 detailed on pages 109

to113. The Policy is shaped by the following

underlying principles that aim to achieve:

— Alignment of remuneration with strategy
and stakeholder interests

— Thelong-term, sustainable success af
the Company

— Consistency and transparcncy

— The reward cf performance with
competitive remuneration

— Supportfarthe Company’s values

— Amixture of fixed remuneration, short-term
andlong-term performance-related
incentives

We communicate with, and receive feedback
from, the Company’s calleagues through a
variety of channels, notably through The
Colleague Forum (the Forum) which you can
read about on page 67. Carol Welch, amember
of the Committee and Designated Non-
Executive Director for Colleague Engagement,
and Imet the Forum in October 2022 to
discuss executive remuneration and explain
how it aligns with the wider Company pay
policy. Colleagues, in particular, supported the
more explicit inclusion of Sustainability and
Social ESG based measures in the Executive
Directors’ Personal/Strategic Objectives,

Long term incentive arrangements
Consistent with the policy, Rita-Rose Gagne
and Himanshu Raja received annual RSS
awards equivalentto 100% and 75% of base
salary respectively on 22 March 2022.

Short term incentive arrangement

The Strategy and Business Plan for 2022

was approved by the Board in late 2021,

The Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) is made up of
a combination of financial and non-financial
performance measures based onthe Strategy
and Business Plan. The financial performance
measuresin 2022 remained focused on
Adjusted Earnings, Group netdebt and Gross
administration costs (22.3% of AIP each).

Adjusted Earnings perfarmance was fully
achieved with performance significantly
ahead of the target range. This was aresult of
impravements across many elements of the
group'soperations. Net rentalincome was up
£21m, supported by asuccessful year forour
leasing and an improvement in occupancy.
Netinterest costs were lower, benefitting from
the proactive management of our debtand
higher interest rates on the Group’s cash
halances. Additionally, we saw animproved
contribution from Value Retail. These factors
combined, culminated ina 60% growth in
adjusted earnings and a 100% pay-out.

Interms of the net debttarget, the Group
committed to complete £500m of disposals
in 2022 and 2023, Thedisposal of Silverburn,
and Victoria Gate were achieved in Q1 2022
with proceeds of £195m but liquidity in
investment markets dried up forthe rest cf the
year, Whilst net debt reduced by 4% to £1.7bn,
the management team were not able tofully
achieve the ambitioustargets set by the
Remuneration Committee and the resulting
pay-out was 29.1% against this measure.
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Finally, forfinancial measures, the Committee
set targets for managementtoaddress the
cost base whilst maintaining operational
excellence. The Group committed toa reduction
in gross administration costs of 15-20%
compared withthe 2019 base by 2023.The
2022 element of this was for a cost reduction
of 11%. Management delivered the twoyear
target ayear early with gross administration
costs reducedto £59.8m, a17% year-on-year
reduction and 18% against 2019. The target
was, therefore, achievedin full, after absorbing
inflaticn on pay, and an additional cost of living
allowance granted to lower-paid colleagues.

The reductionin CO,emissions of 12%
resulted in a 100% outturn underthe
Environmental performance measure, The
strong performance is due to the delivery of
energy efficiency works at several assets
and anincreased focus on energy saving
actionsand controls in the light of the volatile
energy market.

Personal/Strategic Objectives were based
onthe Business Plan and Strategy with
substantial progress made across the
fourstrategic pillars as detailed on Page 99.

Particular achievermnents included updating
and resetting of a clearvalue add strategy,
filling key skill and capahility gaps at the GEC
and across the value creation teams,
organisational restructure and consolidation
of our property management services whilst
maintaining operational excellence, digital
transformation and improved automation,
demonstrable progress on net zero asset
plans, renewal and extension of the Group’s
RCF facilities, credit collections and debt
management, and de-risking of the Defined
Benefit Pension Scheme.

Performance agalnst the Personal/Strategic
Objectives was assessed at 90% for the Chief
Executive and 85% for the Chief Financial
Officer, reflecting the significant progress
achieved in 2022 against the Strategy and
Business Plan, approved by the Board. As
detailed above, this progress was focused on
the fourkey strategic pillars which support the
building of a long-term sustainable, high
performing business.

No LTIR or RSS award was due to vest or to have
its underpin assessed forany Executive Director
in 2022. Thefirst such RSSassessment is due
inNovember 2023 and will be reportedinthe
next Annual Report.
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Remuneration alignment to strategy

All aspects of remuneration are regularly
considered by the Commities to ensure they
supportand arec aligned to strategy.

Tosupport the continued focus on
transforming and strengthening the business,
the Committee has determined that the 2023
AlPfinancial performance measures continue
to be based on an equal weighting of Adjusted
Earnings Per Share, reduction of net debt, and
reduction in the cost base. The non-financial
component willinclude anincreased 10%
weighting on carbon reduction alongside the
25% for Personal/Strategic objectives.

Adjusted earnings per share 21.67%
Netdebt o 21.67%
Gross administration costs _21.67%
Carbon reduction 10%
Personal/Strategic

(inclusive of sustainability) 25%

Asdiscussed elsewhere, the Committee has
sought to explain the achievement of the
Personal/Strategic objectives for 2022 more
fully. The Committee also plans toinclude
more focus on all stakeholders alongside our

Salary and benefits

strategic business priarities and greater
objectivity to the assessment for 2023, 1n line
with shareholder feedback, for 2023, the
personalf strategic objectives willinclude
distinct and measurable objectives for the
CEOQand CFOthat are aligned to the new
Board-approved Business Plan, delivering long
term shareholder and social value. Further
information on the 2023 AIP performance
measures and targets is on page 84.

2023 pay approach

The Committee approved a 4% salary increase
for eachof the Executive Directors, noting that
this is below the average (5.5%) to be awarded
tocolleagues generally.

Exercise of discretion and judgement

The Remuneration Committee considered the
ATPauttlirn to be appropriate and to reflect
astrong performance against the majority of
abjectives despite the challenging backdrop.
As such, the Remuneration Committee did not
exercise its discretion to override formulaic
variable pay outturns in the year.
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Conclusion

Hammerson is amaterially stronger business
than this time last year and this is reflected in
the remuneration outcomes. In summary:

— The ALP delivered between 80.4% and
81.7% ofthe maximum for the executive
directors, with 409 of this deferred in
shares for two years

— The CEQ and CFO received RSS awards
over shares worth 100% and 75% of salary
respectively

— Recognising the need to balance the impact
ot highinflation with the continuing focus cn
cost control, a 4% salary increase has been
awarded to the Executive Directors which is
below the average awarded to colleagues
mare generally.

Atthe 2023 AGM, both the Remuneration
Policy and the Remuneration Report willbe
submittedto shareholders. Lam gratefulfor
the engagement and support provided by
shareholders during the year and 1 look
forward to receiving your continued support
atthe AGM.

Habib Anhous
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

ACTIVITIES AND DECISIONS OF THE COMMITTEEIN 2022

— 2022 review of Executive Directors’ pay and the fee forthe Chair of the Board

— 2022 review of GEC members’ salaries

AnnualIncentive Plan
and Long Term Incentive
Schemes

— Consideration of AIP 20271 cutturn

— Reviewandapprovalof 2022 AIP structure, performance targets and personal objectives
— Consideration of 2019 i TIP performance outturn and approval of vesting outcomes
— Review of likely 2022 AIP outturn and potential targets for 2023

— Reviewand approval of the RSS award levels

— Review of RSP awards for GEC members
— Reviewof AIPfor GEC members

Policy renewal

— Consideration of the policy against developments in market and best practice

— Consideration of changes to the policy

— Engagementwith shareholders and proxy agencies on proposed changes to the policy and

extensive discussion of feedback received

Governarce — Review of AGM season remuneration report results, and shareholders’ and proxy agencies’
VIeWs on remuneration.
— Review of the Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference
Other — Review of Directors’ Remuneration Report

— Employee share plan award activity

— Review of remuneration cansultant costs and re-appointment

— Review of emerging remuneration practice

— Consideration of the treatment of share awards to reflect the Enhanced Scrip Dividend in ling

with the previously established practice

— Inconsultation with the Uesignated Non-Executive Direclur fun Culleague Crgagement,
engagement with the wider workforce on how executive pay aligns with pay forthe

widerworkforce




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set
out below (Policy) willtake effect from the
conciusion af the AGMto be held on 4 May
2023, subjectto appraval by the shareholders
atthat meeting. This Policy would remain
applicable for the following three years.
However, the Committee will keep a watching
brieftoensure that it remains appropriate for
the bestinterests of the business at each
stageinits evolution and inthe broader
remuneration landscape and may revisitthe
Policy earticr. The Committee consulted
extensively with shareholders and took into
account theirvarying views when making
adjustments to the Policy, Further details of
the consultation process are setout in the
Chair’s letter on pages 82 and 83.

Remuneraticn Policy for Executive Directors

The Committee has recelved clear advice that
formal limits are required in the Palicy and has
retained sufficient flexibility to enahble it to
continueto actin the interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The limits will natlead to
pressure on reward levels and the Committee
is satisfied that it has adopted a suitably
conservative approach to date and will
continue tode so.
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Nosignificant changes to the Policy are
proposed and, otherthan minor updating to
remove legacy items, the only changesare

to the malus and clawback provisions to add
insolvency and to limit reputational damage
tomalus (and not clawback) consistent with
developmentsin practice over the last three
years, and to ensure that the share ownership
guidelines refertothe RSSin addition to legacy
LTIP grants.

SALARY

— Tocontinue to retainand attract quality leaders.
— Torecognise accountabilities, skills, experience and value.

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

— Paidmonthlyin cash.

— Reviewed but not necessarily increased annually by the Committee.

— Inundertaking reviews, the Committce will take into account a variety of factors, including
Company and individual performance, market conditions, the level of salary increases
awarded to otheremployees of the Group, and a comparison against both arelevant property
peergroup and a group of entitics of comparable size selected by the Committee (currently
the larger REITs and an appropriate pan-sector group of companies with acomparable

market capitalisation and/or portfolio size).

— The Committee is aware of the limitations of benchmarking and of the needtc avoid
inflationary upward trends. However, benchmarking is considered atboth base salaryand
total remuneration level, and the Committee generally considers that pay will be withina
range of +/- 10% of a median benchmark but also takes into account such otherfactors as
it considers appropriate and is not constrained by this default.

Maximum potential value

— The base salary for any existing Executive Director shall not exceed £850,000 {orthe
equivalent if denominated in a different currency), with this limit increasing annuatly at the

rate ot UK CPI from the date of the 2017 AGM.

Performance measures

— Notapplicable.
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Purpose and link to strategy — Provide arange of benefits in line with market practice.
— Tocontinue toretain and attract quality leaders,

Operation — Executive Directors may receive such contractual and non-contractual benefits as the
Commitiee considers to be appropriate and consistent with market practice inthe relevant
market in which the Executive Director is based.

— These benefits currently include a car allowance, enhanced sick pay, private medical
insurance (forthe Dxecutive Dirertar anel their sponse/life partner), permanent health
insurance and life assurance.

— Whlst the Committee does not consider it to form part of benefits in the narmal sense,
Executive Directors can participate in corporate hospitality (including travel and, where
appropriate, with a family member), whether paid for by the Company or another, within its
agreed policies with any tax liability met on the Executive Directors’ behalf.

— Inaddition, Executive Dircctors will be paid any statutory entitlements,

Maximum potential value — Theaggregate value of such benefits received by each Executive Director (pased onthe value
included in the individual’'s annual P11Dtax calcutation or a broadly equivalent basis fora
non-UK based Executive Director) shall not exceed £100,000 or the equivalent if
denominated inadifferent currency (with this maximum increasing annually at the rate of UK
CFIfromthe date ofthe 2017 AGM).

— Inadditiontothe benefits outlined, where Executive Directors are relocated to workin a
different country, the Company may pay global relocation support {up to a maximum of
£400,000) ar the equivalentif denominated in a different currency; and/or provide tax
equalisation arrangements in relation to all elements of remuneration.

Performance measures — Notapplicable.
Purpose and link to strategy — Provide market competitive retirement benefits.

— Tocontinueto retain and attract quality ieaders.

Operation — Inline with all UK employees, where either annual or lifetime pension allowances are
exceaded Executive Directors may receive a cash allowance (Pension Choice) to be paid as,
oras acombination of: (i) an employer contribution to the Company’s defined contribution
pension plan; (i) a payment to a personal pension plan; or (i} a salary supplement.

— The level of contribution will not exceed the average level paid to staff in the relevant country
{currently 10% inthe UK).

Maximum potential value — Seeabove, currently 10% but this may change if the all-employee level changes.

Performance measures — Notapplicable.
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ANNUAL BONUS (ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN OR AIP)

Purpose and link to strategy

— Align Executive Director remuneration with annual financialand Company strategic targets

as determined by the Company's Business Plan for the relevant financial year.
To differentiate appropriately, in the view of the Commitieg, on the basis of performance.
Partial award in shares aligns interests with shareholders and supports retention.

Operation

Awards are subject to continued employment, save inthe leaver circumstances described in
the Payment for loss of office section of this Policy.

Awards are paid in a mix of cash and deferred shares, with the deferred shares element being
at least 10% of the total award.

The Committee reserves discretion to reduce any formulaic outcome if it is not considered
appropriate in allthe circumstances.

Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal misconduct and/orwhere
accounts or information relevant to performance are shown to be materially wrong and the
banus paid was higherthan should have been the case and/or, inthe case of malus, where the
individuat’s actions cantributed to a significant adverse impact on the reputation of the
Company or Group or a group insclvency.

The recovery and withholding provisions also apply to the deferred element of the ALP
delivered underthe Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS).

Maximum potential value

The maximum bonus opportunity is 200% of base salary (CEO) and 150% (CFC).

Performance measurcs

The annual bonus operates by reference tofinancialand personal performance measures set
and assessed over ong year. The weighting of the financial measures will be at least 60% of
the total opportunity. Itis expected that the financial performance measures may include
some or all of the following:

— Absolute netdebt

— Administrative expenses

— Adjusted Earnings Per Share

Thase measures are aligned to the Company’s financial KPIs, as explained in the Company’s
Strategic Report, and reflect effective delivery of the business model, The Committee

reserves the right to change, remaove orinclude these orsuch other measures as it considers
to be an appropriate means of assessing the performance of the Executive Directors,

The level of vesting at entry/threshold performance for each performance measure is set
annually, but will be between 0% and 25% of maximum (with vesting normally then being on
astraight-line or stepped basis from the threshold to the stretch level set for full vesting).
On-target and maximum performance levels will atso be set. See page 96 of the
implementation report.

The Committee retains discretion to amend the vesting leve! (up or down) where it considers
it to he appropriate, but notso as to exceed the maximum bonus potentialand will fully
disclose the exercise of any discretion in the Annual Remuneration Report that follows such
exercise of discretion.

Once set, performance measures and targets will generally remain unchanged for the year,

except targets may be adjusted by the Committee to take account of significant transactions
such as acquisitions and/ordisposals, changes in accounting standards, orin other exceptional
circumstances such as timing of transactions that have a material impact on the Business Plan.
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ANNUAL BONUS (DEFERRED SHARE ELEMENT)

Purpose and link to strategy ~— The AIP award is split between cash and a substantiat deferred award of shares which aligns
interests with shareholders and supports retention.

Operation — Thedeferred shares element is currently awarded under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme
(DBSS) (but gy Le delivered under a diffcrent plan with cquivalent terms).

— Thedeferral periodis currently two years, and may not be sharter.

— Thedeferred shares are subject to the leaver conditions as set out in the Payment for (oss of
office scction of this Pulicy.

— The awards are typically structured as nil-cost share options, but can take otherforms such
as aconditional award of shares.

— Participants are entitled to a dividend equivalent for the period from grant until the vesting
date, delivered as additional shares when the shares are transferred to the participant.

— Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal misconduct and/or where
performance in the yearto which the bonus relates is shown ta be materially different from
that assumed and, in the case of malus, where there has would otherwise be material
reputational damage and/ ora group insolvency.

Maximum potentiatvalue — Awards underthe DBSS are granted to deliverthe deferred element of the annual bonus,
and sono separate maximum applies.

Performance measures — Nofurther performance targets apply to the deferred shares element of the AIP as these
represent previously earned bonuses.

RESTRICTED SHARE SCHEME (RSS)

Purpose and link to Strategy — Incentivise the creation of long term returns forshareholders.
— Aligninterests of Executive Directors with shareholders and support retention.
— Tocreate alignment with the workforce.

Operation — Executive Directors are eligible to participate in anannual award underthe RSS.
— Awards are subjecttoathree-year underpin period.

— Awards are subject to continued employment for three to five years from grant {with
ane-third of awards contingent on employment toeach such anniversary; and only released
onthe fifth anniversary of grant), save as set outin the Paymentforloss of office section of
this Palicy.

— Participants are entitled to adividend equivalent for the period from grant until the date
of release of the shares or, where a holding period applies, to the end of the holding period,
delivered as additional shares when the shares are transferred to the participant.

— The Committee has discretion to settle awards as acash payment in place of the transfer
of shares.

— The Committee reserves discretion to reduce any formutaric outcome if it is not cansidered
appropriate in all the circumstances.

— Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal misconductand/orwhere
performance inthe year prior to grant is shown to be materially different from that assumed
and/ar, in the case of malus, where there has would otherwise be material re putational
damage and/ ora group insolvency.

Maximum potential value — Adiscretionary annualaward up to avalue of 100% of base salary.

— The Commitiec reserves the discretion to increase the maximum award to 150% of base
salary in exceptional circumstances.




Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 89

Performance measures — Awards will normally vest in full, subject to the following underpin:

— that the Group's underlying performance and detivery against its strategy and plans (which
may change in respanse to structural and cyclical changes over time) is sufficient to justify
the level of vesting having regard to such factors as the Committee considers to he
appiuptiale inthe round.

— innormal circumstances, such factors willinclude consideration of absolute and relative
TSR, netdebtand Total Property Return (TPR).

— when considering these tactors, the Committee will assess overall performance inthe
round, with adefault to full vesting unless there has been material underperformance.

— The Committee retains the discretion prior to making the award to amendthe underpin.

— Once set, the Committee may only amend the underpin in respect of outstanding awards
in the event that exceptional circumstances occurwhich make it appropriate to do so,
provided that the arended underpin is not, in the view of the Committee, materially less

difficult to satisfy.
COLLEAGUE ARRANGEMENTS
Purpose and link to strategy — Inordertobeabletooffer participation in these plans to employees generally, the Company

is required by the relevant UK legislation to aliow Executive Directors to participate on the
sameterms, or chooses soto do,

Operation — Executive Directors are eligible to participate in all-employee incentive arrangements on the
sameterms as other employees. This currently comprises the following arrangements:

— Eligible UK employees may participate in the Sharesave and Share Incentive Plan (SIF).

— Allemployees of Hammerson France are eligible to participate in a profit share plan,
which rewards performance against such measures as the Committee considers to

be appropriate.
Maximum potential value — Maximum participation levels for Executive Directors are the same as apply to all employees.
Performance measures — Notgenerally applicable. Anaward of free shares under the SIP can be made to all

participants and may be subject to aCompany performance target.

For details regarding remuneration of other Company employees, please refer tothe Employee pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group section
of this Policy,

The Payment for loss of office section of this Policy contains details of the impact of a change of control on awards made under AIP, the DBSS and
the RSS.

The Committee will determine components of remuneration for new Executive Directors, as outlined in the Recruitment section of this Policy.

Performance measures for the AIP and RSS are set by the Committee taking into consideration a number of factors, including alignment to
strategy, the Business Plan, need for consistency between years, changes to the Group’s porttolio, market conditions, and need to ensure that
targets are sufficiently challenging but also provide motivation tosucceed.,

Itisa provision of this Policy that all pre-existing obligations and commitments that were entered into prior to this Policy taking effect and/or prior
toanindividual joining the Board will continue and can be honoured on their existing terms. In particular, these may include continued participation
inlegacy defined benefit pension arrangements together with other obligations and commitments under service contracts, incentive schemes,
pension and benefit plans. This includes payments from any outstanding awards other incentive plans provided they were consistentwith the
Policy at the time they were awarded.

Asummary of key changes to the Policy is included in the Committee Chair's letter.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY continued

Share ownership guidelines

All Executive Direciors are expected to
accumulate and maintain a holding in ordinary
sharesinthe Companyequivalentto no less
than 250% of base salary.

Executive Directors are normally required
toachieve the minimum shareholding
requirement within seven years of the date
otappointment,

Shares tobeincludedinthe calculation are:

— Shares held beneficially by the Executive
Director and the Executive Director’s
spouse/iife partner.

— Shares held underthe DBSS (on anet of
tax/ NI basis),

— Shares heldunderthe RSStothe extent
that they have satisfied the performance
underpin but are subject to aholding period
(onanetoftax/NI basis).

— Shares held by the Executive Director under
the Share Incentive Plan.

Anannual calculation as a percentage of salary
is made against the guidetines foreach
Executive Director as at 31 Decembereach
year based on the closing middfe market
quotation of ashare price onthe last business
day in December. The closing exchange rate as
at 371 Decermberis used for Executive Directors
whose salary is denominatedina currency
other than sterling. No formal sanctions exist
for non-compliance.

Post-cessation share ownership

On cessation of employment, Executive
Directors are expected to maintain a
shareholding equivalentio 250% of base
salary fora period of two years, The Cammitiee
has discretionto reduce this guideline ifitis

no longer appropriate. Shares will be valued
at the higher of the value on cessation and
subsequently. Vesting of RSS grants and DBSS
awards will be lodged In escrow to provide an
enforcement mechanism.

Recruitment

Statement of Principles

The Company will pay total remuneration for
new Executive Directors that enables the
Company to attract appropriately skilled and
experiencedindividuals, butis not, inthe
opinion of the Committee, excessive.

The Company will not pay new Cxecutive
Dircctors any induraments to join the
Company over and above buy-outs of existing
forfeited awards, as outlined in this section of
the Policy.

The Company will disclose ta the market on
its website In a timely manner the basis ofa
package agreed with a new Executive Director.

Approach and limits

Annualsalary, pension, contractualand
non-contractual benefits, annual bonus and
long term incentive arrangements (including
performance measures and/or conditions and
maximum award levels), asdescribedinthe
Remuneration Policy Table, will be the starting
point for the structure of any package. The level
of variable remuneration that may be awarded
to a new Executive Director will not exceed the
maximum AIP and RSS limits thatcan be
awarded inline with the principles setoutin
the Remuneration Policy Table, with the
exception of any compensation for variable
remuneration forfeited. Consistent with the
regulations; the limits contained withinthe
Rermuneration Policy Table for base salary or
any other element of fixed pay doapplytoa
new Executive Director eitheron joining or far
any subsequent satary review within the period
of this Policy unless the Committee considers
there are exceptionalcircumstances. However,
the Committee would seek to avaid exceeding
those limitsin practice.

The Company may provide a new Executive
Directorwith global relocation support and/or
tax equalisation arrangements as setoutinthe
Remuneration Palicy Table,

Foranew Executive Directorwhois aninternal
appointment, the Company may also continue
1o honour commitments made prior tothe
appaointment as Executive Director even if
those commitments are otherwise inconsistent
with the Policy in force when the commitments
are honoured. Any relevant existing incentive
plan participation may either continue on its
originalterms orthe performance conditions
and/or measures may be amended to refiect
the individual's new role, as the Committee
considers appropriate.
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Compensation for variable remuneration
forfeited by a new Executive Director

The Company may, where appropriate,
compensate a new Executive Director for
variable remuneration that has been forfeited
as aresult ofaccepting the appointment

with the Company. Where the Company
compensates a new Executive Directorinthis
way, it will seek to do so under the tarmsofthe
Company’s existing variable remuneration
arrangements as set out in the Remuneration
Policy Table.

The Company may compensate onterms

that are more bespoke thanthe existing
arrangements where the Committee considers
that to be appropriate.

The Committee may also make awards under
alongtermincentive schemethat does not
require shareholder approvalif it falls within
Listing Rule 9.4.2 (an arrangerment established
foradirector specifically tofacilitate, in
unusual circumstances, the recruitment of an
individual). In suchinstances, the Company
willdisclose afuil explanation of the detailand
rationale for such recruitment-related
compensation.

In making such awards, the Cornmittee will
seek 1o take info accaunt the nature (including
whether awards are cash or share-based),
vesting period and performance measures
and/or conditions forany remuneration
forfeited by the individual when leaving

a previous employer. Where such awards
had outstanding performance or service
conditions (which are not substantially
completed), the Company will generally
impose equivalent conditions.

In exceptional cases, the Cornmittee may relax
those requirements where it considers thisto
be inthe interests of shareholders, forexample
through a significant discount to the face value
of the replacement awards.

Service agreements foranew

Executive Director

The Committee’s approachistorthe service
agreements of new Executive Directors to have
due regard to market practice at the date of
appointment, the Company’s current Policy
and the service agreements in place for
existing Executive Directors.
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The key termination provisions lur service agreements for newly appointed Executive Directors will be:

No greater than 12 months’ notice (either notice to or from the Executive Director) for UK-based Directors.

Notice period

For non UK-based Directors, contracts are designed to meetlocal laws and have asimilar overall effect in
terms of the potential cost to the Group.

Alonger pernod of notice from the Company may apply to new appointments for alimited time if the
Committee considers this is appropriate, but would then reduce to no more than 12 months.

Post-termination restrictions Compensation in respect of restrictive covenants will be paid as required for enforceability reasens under
applicable local statutory (or collective bargaining) requirements. Appropriate post-termination
restrictions to protect the Group’s confidential information, its customer and supplier connections and/or
te prevent poaching of its senior workforce will be included.

Payment in lieu of notice (PILON) Employment can be terminated by the Company with immediate effect (for any reason) by making a
paymentin lieu of the cutstanding period of notice (PILON). The PILON comprises base pay, and the
value of employer’s pension contribulions, private medicalinsurance and car allowance.

The Company will have discretion tomake any PILON on a phased basis, subject to mitigation. No PILON
will be made in the event of gross misconduct.

Expiry date There will be no fixed expiry date. The appointment of new Executive Directors will be terminabla in
accordance with the notice period.

Change of control and liquidated damages The Executive Director will not have a right to iquidated damages, whether triggered by a change of
controlofthe Company or otherwise.

The terms summarised above will be subject to any local statutory (or collective bargaining) requirements where applicable. For treatment
of incentive awards in connection with termination please see the Payment for loss of office section of this Palicy.

Payment for loss of office

Committee considerations on leaving office

The Committee considers the circumstances under which an Executive Director is leaving the Company’s employment. In circumstances where
a Directoris terminated for cause, the Committee typically has limited discretion in connection with remuneration payments. In other
circumstances, arange of discretions is available to the Committee.

The following tables set out asurmnmary of obligations contained in the Executive Directors’ service agreements which could give rise to, or impact
on, remunaration payments for lass of office.

Service agreements and notice periods for current Executive Directors

Rita-Rose Gagné Himanshu Raja
Dateofservice cont;\ct 29 September 2020 19 April2021 -
Notice period 12 months’ notice (bg)th fromandtothe E;ecutive Director).
Paymentinlisu of notice’(PILON) rEmpLoyment canbe terminated by the Comnpany with immed?ate effect by mak\-ng aPILONIn re"gpect

ofthe cutstanding notice period comprising base salary and thevalue of benefitsin respect of pension,
private medical insurance and car allowance,

No PILON in event of gross misconduct.

The Company has the discretion to make any PILON on a phased basis, subject to mitigation.

Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja will be eligible to be considered at the Committee’s discretion for payment of an award under the AIP even
if the Company or Director has served notice of termination provided that the Directoris employed as atthe bonus award date. The treatment of
leavers under the AIP, DBSS and RSS arrangements is in accordance with the relevant plan’s rules. The Company will pay any additional statutory
entitlernents where applicable.
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Annualbonus and long term incentives
The following table describes the provisions which apply to leavers who are Executive Directors and the discretions availabie under the AIF, DESS
and RSS, Further detail as to the potential exercise of discretion by the Commitiee is sei out in the Use of discretion section af this Palicy.

Leaving reason

Redundancy,
saleof
Iil-health, Company ar .
injury, business Termination
disability Death resignation  Retirement  Voluntaryresignation for cause l(ihange of control
AIP a  Remainseligible for Remains eligible for full Norighttoreceive Nobonus Bonuses may be
I all cases, any bonus honus Any bonus payment of the bonusfor — any bonus. payable. awarded underthe AIP
payableis subject to payable will be time acompleted performance atthetime of tho
the normal deferrat pro-ratedunlessthe  period. Inaddition, the Committee has change of control.
arrangements, unlessthe Committee decides Committee has discretion  discretion to pay
Committee determines otherwise. to make pro-raied abonus provided the Unlessthe Committee
otherwise payments forany Executive Director is determines otherwise,
performanceperiodnot  inemployment at the abonuswillbe time
completed. bonus payment date. pro-rated.
DBSS Fullvesting on normal vesting date, Committee Awards lapse, save Awards lapse.  Awardsvestinfull.
(Deferred share element may accelerate vesting. that the Committee
of AIP) has discretion to allow
uptofullvestingonthe
normal vesting date or
the Committee may
accelerate vesting,
RSS Awards remain capable of vesting, subjectte Awards lapse, save Awardslapse.  Awardsvest, subject
the underpin. that the Committee tothe underpinand,
has discretion for unless the Commuttee
Awards will vest on the normal vesting date subject  awards toremain determines otherwise,
to the underpin, save that the Committee may capable of vesting willbetime pro-rated.
accelerate vesting. (sublecttothe
underpin) on a time
Unless the Committee determines otherwise, pro-rated basis and
vesting will be time pro-rated. may accelerate
vasting,

a Where the date of notice and the date of cessation fall in differen: performance pericds, the provisions relating to AIP as stated above apply inrespect of the AIP
award for each performance period separately

b Onacorporate event affecting the Company, bonuses and awards under the AIP, DBSS and RSS will be governed by the rules of these plans. The information given
here is for summary purpases,

Inrespect of all-employee plans, including the Company’s HMRC-approved, all-emplayee share plans, the Sharesave and the SIP, and the profit
share plan foremployees of Hammerson France, the Executive Directors are subject to the same leaver provisions as all other participants.



Use of discretion

The Committee can exercise discretion in
various areas of the Policy as setoutin this
Report. In addition, the Committee has
discretion to amend the Policy with regard

to minor or administrative matters where it
would b, inthe opinion of the Cuninitlee,
disproportionate to seek or await sharehalder
approval. The Committee retains the
discretion to override the formulaic aufcomes
of incentive schemes. In exercising discretion
inrespect of the AIP orRSS, the Committee will
take into account all factors it determines to be
appropriate at the relevant time, including but
not limited to the duration of the Executive
Director's senvice and its assessment of the
contribution towards the success of the
Company during that period; whether the
Executive Director has worked any notice
period orwhether (and if so, the extent that)

a PILON is being made; the need to ensure an
orderly handover of duties and continuity in the
business operations of the Company; andthe
needto settle any claims which the Executive
Director may have. In exercising any discretian,
the memhers of the Committee will talc
account oftheir duties as Directors.

Other

Ifthe Company terminates an Executive
Director's employment by reason of
redundancy, the Company will make
aredundancy payment to the Executive
Directorinline with any applicable Company
redundancy policy (which includes any
entitlement to statutory redundancy pay) and
any applicable collective bargainingagreement.

Payment to a departing Executive Director may
be made in respect of accrued benefits and
accrued untaken holiday.

In connection with an Executive Director
ceasing ermployment, the Company may,

if the Committee determines itis inthe best
interests of the Company, enter into new
contractual arrangements with the departing
Executive Directorincluding (but not limited to)
settlement, confidentiality, restrictive
covenants and/or consultancy arrangements
onsuchterms as it considers apprepriate. In
such case, the Company will make appropriate
disclosures of such terms. Ifa settlement
agreement is enilered inlo with the executive
Director, the Company may make payments
that it considers reasonable in settlement of
potential legal claims, for example unfair
dismissal, orwhere agreed underthe
settlement agreement, This may include any
entitlement to compensation in respect of
statutary rights under employment protection
legislation in the UK or in other jurisdictions.

Adeparting gift inay be provided (and any tax
liability met on the Executive Director’s behalf)
uptoavalue of £5,000 (plus the related taxes)
per Executive Director on termination of office.
The Company may agree to provide cther
ancillary or non-material benefits in
connection with (including ina defined period
following) termination, not exceeding a value
of £5,000in aggregate,

Legalfees

Consistent with market practice, the Company
may pay reasonable legalfees (and any
associated tax costs) on behalf of the
Executive Director for entering into a statutory
settlement agreement and may pay a
contribution of up to £50,000, plus VAT,
towards fees foroutplacement services as
part of anegotiated settiement.
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Inthe case of a corporate transaction, the
Company may agree 10 payreasonable legal
fees (and any associated tax costs) on behalf of
the Executive Director for advice on the effect
of the corporate transaction on the Executive
Director’'s personal positinn as a director
(including, where appropriate, as to the terms
of theiremployment).

The Company may agree to pay reasonable
legal fees (and any associated tax costs) an
hehalf of the Executive Director for advice
related to any proposed changes to theirterms
and conditions of employment during their
period of employment.

On recruitment of an Executive Directar,
the Company may make a contribution
towards legal fees in connection with
agreging employment terms and drawing
up aservice contract.

Other appointments: new and existing
Executive Directors

Executive Directors are able to accept, with the
consent of the Company’s Board of Directors,
non-executive appointments outside the
Company (provided that such appointments
do notlead to a conflict of interests) onthe
basis that such externalappointmentscan
enhance their experience and skills and add
value to the Cornpany.

Anyfees received by an Executive Director for
such exterrnal appointments can be retained
by the individual (except where the Executive
Director is appointed as the Company’s
representative).
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Chairand Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration
Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Purpose and link to strategy

Ensure the Company continues to attract and retain high-quality Chair
and Non-Executive Directors by offering market-competitive fees.

Current fees {(perannumj} as at April 2023 are:
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£
Chair _ 300,000
NonjExccutivel}irecmr - 61,500

Senior Independent Direciar

Audit Committee membey )
Chair of Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee member )
Designated Non-Executive Director for Calleague Engagement

Operation

The Chair's fee is determined by the Committee, Other Non-Executive
Directors’ fees are determined by the Board on the recommendation of
the Executive Directors.

Fee levels are reviewed pericdicatly taking into account independent
advice and the time commitment required of Non-Executive Directors.

Fees paid aim to be competitive with other listed companies which
the Committee (in the case of the Chair) and the Board (in respect of
Non-Executive Directors) consider to be of equivalent size and
camplexity butare not set by reference to a prescribed benchmark.
Feesare paid monthly in arrears.

The Chair does not receive any additional fee in respect of membership
ofany of the Committees.

Other Non-Executive Directors may receive additional fees for
membership and/or chairmanship of the Remuneration and Audit

Committees. No additicnal fee is currently paid to the Chair or members

of the Nominaticn and Governance Committee. Thereis alsoan
additional fee ferthe Senior Independent Director and the Designated
Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement. The level of
additional fees issettoreflect the responsibilities of the role.

Other benefits

There are no other benefits currently available to any of the

Non- Executive Directors. Whilst the Company does not consider that
reimbursing travel and accommodation expense (including to the
Company’s London office} 1s abenefitin the normal sense, should
any assessment to tax be made orn such reimbursement, the
Company reserves the ability to settie such liability on behalf of the
Non- Executive Director.

Non-Executive Directors are rot eligible for performance-related
bonuses or participation ir the Company's share plars, nordo
Non-Executive Directors receive any pension benefits,

Maximum limit

Aggregate total fees payable annually to all Nen-Executive Directors are subject
tothe limit as stated inthe Company’s Articles of Association {currently
£1,000,000). The Committee reserves the right to provide additional fees within
the stated limit, including for membership of any additional Committee the
Board may establish.

wWhilst the Campany does not consider it ta form part of benefits in the normat
sense, Non-Executive Directors can participate in corporate hospitality
including travel and, where appropriate, with a family member), whether
paid for by the Company or another, within its agreed policies.

Adepartirg gift may be provided tand any tax liability met on the Non-Executive
Director's behalf} up to a value of £5,000 (plus the related taxes) per
Non-Executive Directaron termination of office.

The Chairand the Non-Executive Directors do not have service agreements with the Company. Their appointments are governed by letters of
appointment, which are available for inspection on request. The letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are reviewed by the Chairand

the Executive Directors every three years.

Appointments of Non-Executive Directors are for a termof three years, subject to the right of either party to terminate the appointment on not
less than three months’ notice orimmediately should a conflict of interest arise. It any Non-Executive Director is not re-elected at the Company’s

Annual General Meeting, the appointment will cease automatically.

Ontermination of an appointment, a Non-Executive Directoris only entitled 1o such fees as may have accrued to the date of termination,
together with the reimbursement in the normal way of any expenses properly incurred prior to that date.
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The dates of the appointments af the Non-Executive Directors in office as at 31 December 2022 are setoutbelow.

Datectongnal  Commencementdate  Unexpiredtermas at

appointment to Board of currentterm April 2023
Robert Noel - o o 1 September 2020 j:"September 2020 - 5 n-wo;wt-r-w_s
Hahib Annous 5 May 720071 5May 2021 Lyecarlrmenlls
Makd Biung| 1Decernber2019 1 December2022 2vyears,8 months
Mike Butterworth 1 January 2021 1 January 2021 9months
Adam Metz 22 July 2019 22y 2022 Z2years, 3maonths
Carol Welch 1 March 2019 1 March 2022 1year, 11 months

Employee pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group

Consideration of the remuneration of the wider workforce forms an important part of the policy review. Set out below s a summary of employee
pay and conditions. Remuneration packages for all Group employees may comprise both fixed and variable elements. Generally, the rare senior
the indivicial, the greater the variable pay offer s ¢ prupor lion of overall pay due to the ability of senior managers to impact more directly upon the
Group's performance. As well as assessing the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Committee reviews the remuneration ofthe
senior management team and is kept informed of remuneration developments across the Group, including the salary increases and employee
benefits of the wider employee population.

The Committee has regard to market data and to internal relativities when censidering the appropriateness of pay levels for its Executive Directors
and members of the Committee bring their own experience and knowledge in considering any proposals.

In 2022, Habib Annous {as Chair of the Committee) and Carol Welch (as Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement) met with
the employee forum to discuss executive remuneration and explain how it aligns with the wider Company pay policy. The consultation was
suppartive, in particular, of the increased weighting on sustainability from 8% to 10%. The forum reguested that the Committee considerincluding
an element on Social within the 25% attributable to personal performance forthe AIP. The Committee has welcomed the feedback and intends to
incorporate this forthe 2023 AIP targets.

Summary of 2023 remuneration structure for employees below Board level

Element Approach/Policy

Base salary An assessment is made each year on pay increases across the Group. The assessment may include
benchmarking exercises for different roles. Other factors takeninto consideration are the Group’s
performance, competition in the marketplace and general economic climate, specifically rates of
inflation and wage growth. Pay increases are expected to be intine with market rate and any increase
awarded toan individual will reflect competence and experience. Exceptional pay increases are
sometimes awarded to bring pay in line with market practice or recognition of an individual's
development within a role or on promotion. More usually excepticnal personal performance is
recognised through variable pay.

Annualbonus Anannual cash bonus scheme is operated throughout the Group. Although there are some minor
differences in application of the scheme according to jurisdiction of employment, the same principle
applies to allemployees inthat there is an opportunity to receive a bonus based on personal, team or
Group performance or a mixture of both, Generally, the more senior the employee the more the
weightingis towards Company performance. The maximum cash bonus opportunity varies according to
seniority. In addition to Executive Directors, Group Executive Committee members have a proportion of
their award deferred into shares.

Pension The pension offering forms animpertant part of the reward package across the Group. Allemployees
may participate in one of a number of defined contribution pension arrangements across the UK and
Ireland, Employee and employer contribution structures vary depending on the scheme.

Share schemes Avariety of all-employee and discretionary share schemes arein operation across the Group, Generally,
where local legislation allows, eligible employees, including Executive Directors, may participate inan
all-employee share scheme such as the Sharesave scheme operated in the UK and Ireland. In addition,
anumber of UK employees have the opportunity to join the UK Share Incentive Plan (SIP), with the
potential foran annual SIP Free Share Award based on Group stretch performance. Employees of
Harmmerson France are eligible to participate in a profit share plan which rewards performance against
certain performance measures. Senior employeesin the UK may participate in restricted share awards
on asimilarbasis to the Executive Directors and in France in the Free Shares Award Scheme.

Employee benefits Benefits offered by the Group include life assurance, private medical care, car allowances, permanent
health insurance and health checks. The offer of a particular benefit to an employee willdepend on
location within the business, their role and senicrity.
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Shareholder engagement

During 2022, the Company consulted with its major shareholders together with the principal proxy advisory firms and again received feedback
onthe proposals. Following that consultation, the Committes concluded that there was no significant majority view to change the current
arrangements and believes the current approach and the proposed 2023 Policy is the most appropriate at this stage in the Company's evolution.
Pasitive feedback was received on the inclusion of social metrics within the personal objectives. Despite the current trend away from more
traditional { TIPs to Restricted Share Schemes (RSS) as adopted by the Company in 2020, some shareholders retain an inherent preference across
their portfolios for more traditional LTIPs. While seeking to renew the current policy at the 2023 AGMincluding the use of the RSS5, the Committee
agrees that each form of iong-term incentive has merits and plans to keep this under raview for the future. Further details are setout in the Chair's
letter at the start of this report.

Illustration of application of the Policy
Setout below s aniliustration of the reward mix for the Executive Directors at minimum, on-target and maximurn performance underthe Policy.

Illustration of application of the Policy {(£C00s)

Rita-Rose Gagné

2023 on-target FUCTELCD) ‘&w

2023 maximum FETEXLs) ; : £2,947

+ share price growth
{based on value of award)

£3,364

MFixed *Annual variahle B Lang-term incentives  # 50% Share price growth

Illustration of application of the Policy (E000s)

Himanshu Raja

2023 on-target 527 (44%) i ? = 342 (28%) £1,211

2023 maximum ErYEELVA]

342 (22%)

2 b

+ share pnce growth
{based on value of award)

MFixed 'Annual variable  MLlong-termincentives B 50% Share price growth
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Assumptions: Executive Director remuneration scenarios 2023
Element Approach/Policy
Fixed B Consists of base Saléry, contractual and nonfcontra.c{;;ﬂ bT:neﬁts, pension and particfpéﬁon inthe UK
all-employee share plans.
Base salary is the salary teapply after salary increases take offect on 1 April 2023.
Benefits are as shown inthe Single Figure Table for 20227 inthe Annual Remuneration Repart,
Persion conlributions are based on salary after salary increases take effecton 1 April 2023,
Base Salary Berehts Pension Total Fixed
£000 £000 £000 £000
'éiét;Rose Gagné o 713 25 71 o 809
Himanshu Raja 456 25 a6 27
an-target o Based on what the Executive Director would receive if [;;Wr%érmance was in line with expectétion
(excluding share price appreciation and accrual of dividend eguivalent payments):
AIP: consists of on-target levels (50% of maximum bonus opportunity).
RSS: Assumes maximum vesting of awards (100% of salary for the CEO and 75% for the CFO).
Maximum N Based on the maximum remuneration ;uc?t-e\vabte {excluding share pr-ice appreciation and a(;;r:;mf

dividend equivalent payments):

AIP: consists of the maximum bonus opportunity in 2023 (200% of base salary for CEC, 150% of base
salary for the CFO).

RSS: assumes maximum vesting of awards (100% of salary for the CEQ and 75% for the CFO}.

Impactof share price appreciation

50% of maximum RSS award value.
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The Annual Remuneration Report (Report) sets out how the Directors’ Rernuneration Policy (Policy) was put into practice in 2022 and how
weintend toimplement itin 2023. Itis divided into three sections:
— Section 1: Single fipure tables
— Section 2: Further informationon 2022 remuneration
— Section 3;: Implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2023
The Group's External Auditors have reported on certain sections of this Report and stated whether, in their opinion, those sections have been
properly prepared.
The Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM heldon 28 April 2020 and is available to view on the investor relations section of the
Company’s website at www.hammersaon.com. A summary of the key provisions for each element of the Remuneration Policy is setoutin
this Report.
SECTION 1: SINGLE FIGURE TABLES
This section contains the single figure tables showing 2022 remuneration for the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors, and
information that relates directly to the compasition of these figures.
Allfigures highlighted in GREEN in the Report relate directly to afigure that is found inthe Single Figure Table below.
Executive Directors’ remuneration: Single Figure Table (audited)
Restricted
Annual Share
Banus Scheme Variahle
Salary Benefits Pension Fixed Total {AIP) {R5S) Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Rita-Rose Gagné " "4 2022 &2 25 63 775 1,120 - 1120 1,895
2021 672 421 67 1,160 946 - 946 2,106
Himanshu Raja b 2022 436 25 44 505 529 - 529 1,034
2021 285 16 30 341 311 - 311 652
Total 2022 1,118 50 112 1,280 1,649 - 1,649 2,929
2021 967 437 97 1,501 1,257 — 1,257 2,758

a Rita-Rose Gagné received a relocation allowance of £400,0001n 2021 which was a one-0fhenefit.
b Himanshu Rajawas appointed as a Director of Hammersan plc witheffect from 26 Apnl 2021

Commentary on the Single Figure Table (audited)

Fixed Remuneration

Salary

This represents salary earned in respect of the year. From 1 April 2022, salaries increased by 2%.

Benefits
The taxable benefits shown inthe Single Figure Table include a car allowance (£16,000), private health insurarce and permanent health
insurance. In addition, the Company paid for tax advice for Rita-Rose Gagne.

Himanshi Raja's benefits amount receives in respect of his participation in the Company’s all-employee share plan arrangements (SIP and
Sharesave] in which he participated in 2022,

UK Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Company’s ali-employee share plan arrangements (SIP and Sharesave). Himanshu Raja
participatad in bath the SIP and Sharesave schemein 2022,

Pension

Executive Directors recelve a salary supplement in lieu of pension banefits. Rita-Rase Gagne and Himanshu Raja each received a salary
supplement of 10% of base salary which is consistent with the rate available to new joiners and below the rate for longer-servingemployees.
Alisalary supplements paid to Executive Directors in lieu o pension benefits are subject to deductions required forincome tax and employees’
national insurance cantributions in the UK.
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Variable Remuneration (audited)

Annual bonus for 2022
The Annual Incentive Plan (AIF) is the Company's annual bonus scheme. The bonus awards are based on performance conditions that were

approved by the Committec. Far 2022, the AIP bonus was split 67%for performance againstfinancial measures, 8% for sustainability and 25%
for performance against personal objectives. The Committee has the ability to override the indicative formulaic outturnif it considers that not to be
appropriate given the Company’s performance during the year,

The performance targets were not disclosed in advance of the year, as they were considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive
information, but full details of the conditions and performance against them are now set out below.

Financial ESG Personal T AIP amount

measures measures measures Total vesting (Shownin

(% ofbonus (%bofbonus (%ofbonus percentage Vesting Single

achieved, achieved, achieved, (%, max amountas % Figure Table)

max 67%) max 8%) max 25%) 100%) of salary £000

Rita-Rose Gagré o C O 512% 80%  225%  BL7%  163.3% 1,120

Himanshu Raja 51 2% 8.0% 21.3% 80.4% 120.6% 529
AIP outturn

Performance against targets Bonus achieved

a

- ’ - Vesting  Weighting | o

Entry threshold Cn-target Full vesting percentage (% of max % of max

(% vesting at {50% target (100% Result against bonus bonus

threshaold) vesting) vesting) achieved target available) achieved

Adjusted earnings T c5B6mO%)  651m  £7lem  £1049n  1000%  22.33%  22.33%

Netdebt C £1.875bn(0%) F£1.629bn  £1.383bn  £1.732bn 23.10% 22.33% 6.50%

Gross administration costs £66.1m (0%) £63.7m £61.2m £59.8m 100.0% 22.33% 22.33%

Reductionin CO, Emissions 3% (%) 5% 7% 12% 100% 8% 8%

Personal objectives Rita-Rose Gagné d See below 90% 25%  22.50%

Personal objoctives Himashu Raja d See below 85% 25% 21.3%

TotalCEO Rita-Rose Gagn¢ 25% 81L7%

Total CFO Himashu Raja 25% 80.4%

a Eachofthe AIP performance conditionsis subject to a straight-line payment scale between threshold, on-target and full vesting points,
b Consistentwith established practice, the original performance targets for Adjusted Earnings adjusted forvariances inthe tming of planned disposals.

¢ Netdebtisas shown in Table 13 of the Additicnal information. Again, consistent with established practice, the original targets were adjusted to reflect changes
in foreign cxchange rates in the year and the impact of achange in IFRS as explained in note 18 of the financial statements.

d Personal/Strategic Objectives for the CEQ and CFO were based an the Business Plan and Strategy with substantial progress made across the four strategic pitlars.
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Reinvigorating our assets — Continued to strategically refocus the portfolio on city centre destinations and to simplify the portfolio,
disposing of £195m of non-core assets in 2022

— The success of the reinvigoration of our assets and placemaking activities, resulted in the signing of
317 leases, with £E45m of headline rent (E25m at our share) at 2% above ERV and an improvement
inoccupancy

— Reduced ftagshipvacancy ratesta 3.7%

Accelerating development — Createdvalue and aptionality at each stage of the early developrment cycle at key assets, e.g.
Dundrum, Bullring, Grand Central, Readingand Dublin Central

— S106 signed for Bishopsgate Goodsyard

— Ironworks onsite at Dyndrum

— Majority ofinitial planning permissions obtained for Dublin Central

- Planning submitted for Reading, Riverside and Drum, Birmingham New Street

Create an agile platform —~ Realignment to asimplificd, asset-centric operating madel, removing inefficiencies and leveraging the
strength of the Group’s portfolio through a consolidation of property management suppliers in the UK
to best support occupiers and customers

- Simplification of the business to stabilize the core income stream andto returnit to underlying growth
reftectedin like-for-like GRI growing at 8%

~ Significant progress made in reducing the cost base with headcount reducing by 25% in 2022

— Gross administration costs reduced by 17% year-on-year

Deliver a sustainable and resilient ~ Refinanced c£80m of RCFwith anew £463m facility on a 3+ 1+1 basis with a smaller group of lenders
capital structure anchored by Tier 1 lenders

— E236m eurchonds due in 2023 were repaid in December 2022 using avallable cash

— Buy-in ofthe Group's Defined Benefit Pension Plan resulting in the removal of significant balance
sheet risk and liability, and areduction of the plc guarantee from £120m to £10m

— Retained Group's Investment Grade (IG) rating as Baa3 and BBB~+ raspectively with both Moody’s and
Fitch cutlooks changed from negative to stable

Against this backdrop, a scorecard out-turn ot 81.796 af maximum for the CEQ and 80.4% of maximum for the CFO was proposed tothe
Committee which, following due consideration, was approved without adjustment, 40% of the out-turn is deferred into shares for two years,
generally contingent on continued employment.

Long Term Incentive Plan
The LTIP was replaced by the Restricted Share Scheme (RSS) in April 2020 for future awards. In 2022, no RSS award was due to vesttoany
Executive Director. In addition, no LTIP awards vested in respect of any former directors and all prior LTIP awards have now lapsed.

Non-Executive Directors: Single Figure Table (audited)

The table below shows the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the comparative figures forthe
yearended 31 December 2021, The figures for 2021 onlyinclude directors who served for part of 2022 and, therefare, do not equate te the totals
for2021 as reported in last year's report.
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Non-Exccutive Ditectors’ resnuneration forthe year ended 31 Decemher 2022

Committee membership and other responsibilities Fees Benefits Total
S Audit Remuneration - 2022 2021 2022 2021 2021
Committee Committee Other £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
RobertNoet a - Chair of the Board 300 300 3 4 303 304
Gwyn Burr b 25 88 - - 29 88
Habib Annous [N e 78 47 - - 78 a7
Méka Brunel d N4 67 &7 2 -~ 69 67
Mike Butterworth e Senior Independent Director 83 73 - - 83 73
Desmondde Beer { 48 62 2 1 50 63
Andrew Formica g 22 67 - - 22 67
Adam Metz h 67 67 70 2 137 69
Carol Welch ~ Designated Non-Executive Director
for Colleague Engagement 75 75 - = 75 75
Total i o N 769 B4b 77 7 846 853

Robert Noelceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee on 31 December 20271,

Gwyn Burr stepped down as amember of the Audit Committee with effect from 5 May 2021 and retired as a Directoron 28 Apnl 2022. She served as Chair of the

Remuneration Committee until 28 April 2022.

¢ Habib Annous was appointed as a Director and amember of the Remuneration, Auditand Nomination and Governance Committces an 5 May 2021 and was
appointed Chair of the Remuneration Committee on 28 Aprit 2022.

d MékaBrunelisbased in France. This s reflected in her benefits figure — see Benefits note below.

e Mike Butterworth was appointed as Audit Committes Chair with effect from 4 May 2021. On 29 Apiil 2022, Mike Butterworth was appointed as Senior

Independent Director.

Desmond de Beer resigned as a Director on 11 October 2022,

Andrew formicaretired as a Directoron 28 April 2022, He served as a member of the Audit Committee until 28 April 2022,

Adam Metz1s based inthe USA. Thisis reflected inhis benefits figure — see Benefits note below.

i AllNon-Executive Directors are members of the Nomination & Governance Committee. No fee is payable for being Chair ora member of that Committee.

oo

o oo v

Benefits

Bencfits disclosed relate to the reimbursement of travel and accommodation expenses incurred in attending Board meetings at the Company’s
head office. For those Non-Executive Directors based outside of the UK, this includes the cost of international traveland accommodation. The
grossed-up value has been disclosed. In accordance with the Policy, any tax arising is settied by the Company. Robert Noel is entitled to private
medicalinsurance which is taxed as a benefitin kind,

Fees payable to Non-Executive Directors (audited)

The Chair of the Board’s fee was reviewed by the Committee in January 2023 and the Non-Executive Directors’ fees were reviewed by the Board in
March 2022. Although fees are subject to periodic review, the NED fees (gtherthan the Chair of the Board onappointment and the introduction of a
fee payable to the Cesignated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement in 2021) have notincreased since 2018. No increase was made
to Non-Executive Director fees or to the Chair's fee in 2022, The annual fees payable to Non-Executive Directors are set outin the table below.
Thereis nofee forthe Chair, or membership, of the Nomination and Governance Committee.

Chair of the Board and Non-Executive Directors’ 2022 annual fees

€

Chair of the Board B ) 300,000
Non-Executive Director 61,500
Senior Independent Director 10,000
Audit Committee Chair 15,000
Remuneration Committee Chair 15,000
Audit/{Remuneration Committee member 5,000
8,000

Designated Non-Exacutive Director for Colleague Engagement
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SECTION 2: FURTHER INFORMATION ON 2022 REMUNERATION

Directors’ shareholdings and share plan interests (audited}
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Summary of all Directors’ shareholdings and share plan interests as at 31 December 2022 (including Persons Closely Associated)

Cutstanding scheme interestsat

31December2022

Actual shares held

" Totalofall
scheme
Unvested Totalshares interests
Unvested {notsubject Vested but subjectte and share-
(subjectto to unexercised outstanding At At hoidings at
performance performance scheme scheme 1January 31December 31December
measurds] Mmeasures) filerests intereste 7?7 2622 2022
a b c de e [
aecutive ﬁirectors ) T . - T
Rita-Rose Gagné 12,843,189 1,380,568 - 14,223,757 306,748 322,201 14,545,958
Hiranshu Raja
{(appointed as a Director on 26 April 2021} 2,291,310 551,364 - 2,842,674 211,060 263,357 3,106,031
Non—Executive Directors
Raobert Noel - - - - 911,189 1,206,177 1,206,177
Gwyn Burr - - - - 30,646 30,646 30,646
Habib Annous - — - - 281,697 842,002 842,002
Méka Brunel - - - ~ 27,266 31,514 31,514
Mike Butterworth - - - -~ 86,422 211,317 211,317
Desmond de Beer - - - ~ 44,821,071 47,155,794 47,155,794
Andrew Formica - - - -~ 267,281 267,281 267,281
Adarm Metz - - - - 975,010 1,126,950 1,126,950
CarolWelch - - - - 45,497 52,587 52,587
a RSSawards.
b 08S§ and Sharesave awards.
¢ DBSS awards that have vested but remain unexercised plus any notional dividend shares.
d Orjoining date if earlier,
¢ Orleaving dateif earlier.
f GwynBurrand Andrew Formica retired as Directors an 28 April 2022, Desmond de Beer resigned as a Directoron 11 October 2022, Theirinterests are

accordingly shown as at the relevant leaving date.

g DBSSand RSSawards are nil cost options, satisfied through market purchase. The DBSS awards are exercisable from the second anniversary of grant until the
saventh anmiversary of grant. The RSS awards are subject to an employment contingency vesting one third an each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries
of grant (to the extent the performance underpin is met followirg the third anmiversary of grant). The RSS awards are exercisable cnthe fifth anniversary of grant

and ceases to be exercisable on the seventh anniversary of grant.

Betwaen 1 January 2023 and 6 March 2023 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of this document) the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors’ beneficialinterests in the table above remained unchanged.
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Directors’ share ownership guidelines (audited)

The chart below shows the Exccutive Directors actual share ownership compared with the current share ownership guidelines. Executive
Directors are normally expected to achieve the minimum sharehelding guidelines within seven years of appointment. Non-Executive Directors are
alsoencouraged to acquire asharehalding in the Company.

Directors’ share ownership guidelines

Shareholding* &

Shareholding* f 23% 100%

i Actual Shares held as at 31 Dec 2022 M Shares due to count towards the limit by 31 Dec 2023
8 Shares due to count towards the limit after 31 Dec 2023

* Theshareholding as a percentage of satary is as at the share price of 23.8p on 31 December 2022. Share awards are AWARDED on a gross basis but only credited
to the ownership requirement on a net of tax basis, as shown above.

Rita-Rose Gagné was appointed on 2 Novermber 2020 and is required to achieve the share ownership guideline by November 2027, Himanshu
Rajawasappainted on 26 April 2021 and is required to achieve the share ownership guideline by Aprit 2028. In practice, it is currently anticipated
that the guideline should be met earlier than this. Forexample, assuming no change in share price fromthe price as at 31 December 2022 and
with nocreditforfurther dividends, Rita-Rose Gagné’s holding by the end of 2023 would be worth 209% of salary, reflecting the 2023 DBSS award
inrespectof the 2022 bonus out-turn and the vesting of the 2020 RSS grant in Navernber 2023 (in each case on anet of tax basis). This suggests
that the guideline should ba fully met in 2024, Himanshu Raja’s holding by the end of 2023 would be worth 50% of salary, reflecting the 2023
DBSSaward in respect of the 2022 bonus out-turn on anet of tax basis.

Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja are bath currently on track to meet the share ownership guidelines ahead of the policy timeframe,
assetoutabove.

Executive Directors’ share plan interests (including share options) (audited)
The table below set out the Executive Directors’ interests under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS) and the Restricted Share Scheme
(RSS). Na Executive Director holds awards under the LTIP.

Performance conditions and form of awards (audited)

Awards under the DBSS are not subject to any performance conditions (other than continued employment on the vesting date). The RSS awards
are subject toa material underperformance underpin. RSS awards were made on 22 March 2022 over shares worth 100% of salary to Rita-Rose
Gagne and over shares worth 75% of salary to Himanshu Raja. These awards were granted subject to a broad underpin in respect of the entire
awards so that the Remuneration Committee may reduce the level of vesting if it feels that it is not appropriate in all the circumstances and may
have regard to the various factors mentioned in the policy in so determining.

Awards to UK based Executive Directors underthe RSS and DBSS are made in the form of nil-cost options.

Accrual of dividend shares
DBSS and RSS awards accrue notional dividend shares to the date of vesting (including any holding period).

Face values (audited)
Face values forthe DBSS and RSS awards are calculated by multiplying the number of shares granted during 2022 by the average share price
forthe five business days preceding the awards. Notional dividend shares are nat included in the face value calculations.
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Dilution limits

Current nflight DASS awards are satistied using market purchased shares. RSS awards are also satisfied using market purchased shares (whether
viaatrustortreasury). It is expected that the 2023 RSS and DBSS awards will be satisfied in a similar way. SAYE grants are typically satisfied using
new issue shares. The Committee may grant awards with new issued shares and will comply with the dilution limits as set out in the rules of the
Company’s share incentive plans during the year. The Company operates within the Investment Association’s guidelines with reference to share
dilution not exceeding 10% of the issued ordinary share capital in any rolling 10-year period under all-employee plans and 5% under its
discretionary plans (counting both new issue and treasury shares).

Executive Directors’ share plan interests 2022 (audited)

Facevalue
Murmbur uf Number of of awards
awards held Notional awards held gratiledf
at dividend at3a Grant purchased
Date of Yesting 1January Awarded/ shares  Exercised/ December price during2022
award date 2022  purchased accrued vested Lapsed 2022 pencg
Rita-Rose Gagné ' ' ) -
ES a __02 Nov 2020 pQ Nov2023 746;__,733,5_98 B - 1,04?.346 B = - 7,782,944__ 17_'.77 10 =
@W @ 31Mar2021 31Mar2024 2,?13,2637 - 344,9_&)@:;”_ - 2,558,_171 ) 33.@&77 -
Rss a  22Mar2022 22 Mar2025 - 2,164,729 337,345 = - 2,50%,074 31660 £85
DBSS b 22Mar2022 22Mar2024 - 1,194,432 186,136 - - 1,380,568 31.660 378
Himanshu Rajéi -
R3S . a 27 Apr2021 27 Apr2024 943,506 147,033 ) - ) - 1,090,539 37.810\___ -
RSS . a 2_2 Mar 2022 22 Mar 2025 = 1,038,876 161,895 = - 1,200,771 31,69_0_ ) ‘_129
DBSS b 22Mar 20_22 22 Mar2024 - 392,354 61,142 . - - 453,496 31.660 124
Sharesave C G7 ul 2022 01 Aug 2025 - 97,868 - - - 97,868 21.894 21

a RSSawardsvest asto onethird oneach of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of award. The performance period for the purpose of the performance
conditions isthe same as the vesting period. RSS awards wers made on 22 March 2022 over shares worth 100% of salary to Rita-Rose Gagnéand over shares
worth 75% of salary to Himanshu Raja.

b DBSS awards vest on the second anniversary of the date of award. DBSS awards were made on 22 March 2022 over shares warth 40% of the prioryear bonus
to Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja

¢ Theexercise price for the Sharesave award is 18.39p. The grant price refers tothe average share price inthe finalquarter of the year ending 31 December 2022,
d The grant price refers to the average closing price over the 5 days prior to grant consistent with the general approach to determining the awards.

Executive Directors’ SIP interests (audited)
The Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary shares of the Company under the Share Incentive Plan (SIP) as at 31 December 2022 (or at their
leaving date if earlier) are showninthe table below. The shares are heldin aSIP trust.

Total SIP Total SIP
shares Partnership Matching Dividend shares 31

1 January shares shares Freeshares shares December
2022 purchased awarded awarded awarded 2022

"Himans;quaia - 13,”856 13,852 - - 2'7_,'712
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The chart below shows the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) in respect of the Company’s ordinary shares of 5p each for the 10 years ended
31 December 2022 against the return of the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK Index, which comprises shares of a number of the Company’s peers.
Thetotal shareholder return is rebased to 100 at 31 December 2012, The other points shown on the chart are the values at intervening

financial year ends,

Total Shareholder return index
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=— Hammerson -~ FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK --:- Hammerson (Enhanced Scrip Dividend Basis)

Remuneration of the Chief Executive overthe last 10 years
The table below shows the remuneration of the holder of the office of Chief Execuitive.

Chief Executive’s remuneration history

Total

31Dec2012 31Dec 2013 31Dec2014 31Dec2015 31Dec2016 310ec2017 31Dec2018 321Dec2019 31Dec2020 31Dec2021 31Dec2022

Asa % of maximum

remuneration Annual

000 bonus

2022 Rita-Rose Gagne S B 1,895  B817%
2021 Rita-Rose Gagné 2,106 70.4%
2020 (Rita-Rose Gagné) from 2 November 2020 148 0.0%
2020 (David Atkins) to 2 November 2020 6717 0.0%
2019 David Atkins 1,408 37.1%
2018 David Atkins 1,109 nfa
2017 David Atkins 1,795 47.5%
2016 David Atkins 2,681 65.3%
2015 David Atkins 2,147 77.3%
2014 David Atkins 1,568 65.3%
2,216 56.2%

2013 David Atkins

LTIP
vesting
n/a
n/a
n/a
0.0%
25.7%
51.5%
56.4%
64.9%
0.0%
0.0%
51.6%

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below shows the Company’s total employee costs compared with dividends paid.
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Total employee costs compared with dividends paid

employeecosts
Dividends
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2022 2021
Note* £m £m Change
5B a2.8 530 —19.2%
22 140.3 135.7 3.4%

* Notereferences are to the financial statements

Remuneration for the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors compared with UK employees of the Hammerson Group

The tables showthe percentage change from 31 December 20271 to 31 December 2022 in base szlary, taxable benefits and bonus for the
Cyceutive and Man-Evecntive Directars compared with all other employees of the Harmmerson Group inthe UK. Hammerson Plc does not have
any employees. This data has been prepared using the employees of the UK subsidianes anly. 1 he Exetutive Cileulu s have teen excluded from

the UK employees’ calculation.

Giventhe numberof Directors who had not served for the whole of the two years being compared, any part year has been annualised on the basis
of days served on the Board. While this is slightly simplistic, it provides a fafrer overall position of the year-on-year changes than taking the

unadjusted earningsin eachyear.

Percentage change in the Executive Directors’ base salary, taxable benefits and bonus

Change %{2021 t0 2022)

) Change % (2020 to 20213

Annuat Annual Annual
Salary Benefits bonus Salary Benefits bonus Salary Banefits ponus
Rita-Rose Gagné (CEQ) T 15% -941%  18.4% —  1805% n/a n/a nfa nfa
Himanshu Raja {CFO) 1.4% 5.4% 13.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa n/a
Total UK employees 12.3% 15.5% 32.1% 9.5% 18.6% 3247% 3.7% —5.3% —73.8%
Percentage change in the Non-Executive Directors’ fee and taxable benefits
o Change%(2021102022) _  Change%(2020:02021) ___ Change % [2015102020)
Annual Annual Annual
Salary Benefits bonus Salary Benehts bonus Salary Bencfts honus
ﬁRobert hEe_l- R —i—20.2% ' i‘N?A 38% 19.0% nfa nfa n/a n/a
Gwyn Burr (until 28 April 2022)* -1.1% N/A, N/a 1.5% nja nfa -5.2% —50.0% n/a
Hahib Annous 11.1% N/A N/A nfa nfa nfa nfa n/a n/a
Meka Brunel 0.0% N/A N/A 74% -~100.0% N/A -1.9% —87.7% n/a
Mike Butterworth 13.9% N/A N/A n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a
Desmond de Beer (until 11 October
2022) 0.15% a470.2% N/A 1.3% nfa nfa nfa n/a n/a
Andrew Formica (Until28 April 2022)* -3.1% N/A N/A 53% nja n/a -6.0% - n/a
Adam Metz —  3271.5% N/A 7.4% -93.7% n/a —1.7% =17.8% n/a
Carolwelch — N/A N/A 17.9% nfa nfa -4.3% - n/a
Total UK employees 12.3% 15.5% 32.1% 9.5% 18.6% 324.7% 3.7% ~5.3% -73.8%

* Date atwhichceased to be adirector.
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The table below chows the ratio of Cliel Executive pay to that of the UK employees whose pay is at the 25th percentile, median and
75th percentile.

Chief Executive payratio

25th 75th

percentile Median pay percentiie

Year Mathor ey tatio ratio piy ratio

2022 N OptionA 411 261 151

2021 Option A 48:1 30:1 181

2020 Option A 211 13:1 71

2019 Option A 36:1 221 12:1
Total UK employee pay and benefits figures used to calculate the 2022 Chief Executive Pay Ratio

2Eth 7ot

percentile percentile

pay Medtan pay pay

Year £000 £000 £000

é;iary o W 40 55 - 7‘927

Total UK employee pay and benefits 16 73 124

Supporting information for the Chief Executive Pay Ratio
The Company has chosen the Option A methadology to prepare the pay ratio calculation as this is the most statistically robust method and isin line

with the general preference of institutional investors,

As ratios could be unduly impacted by joiners and leavers who may not participate in all remuneration arrangements inthe yearof joining and
leaving, the Committee has modifiad the statutory basis to exclude any employse not employed throughout the financial year.

Employee pay datais based on full-time equivalent (FTE) pay for UK employees as at 31 December 2022, Foreach employee, total pay is
caleulated in line with the single figure methodology (.e. fixed pay accrued during the financial year and the value of performance-based incentive
awards vestingin relation to the performance year). Leavers and joiners are excluded. Employees on maternity or otherextended leave are
included on the basis of their FTE salary and benefits and pro-rata short-term incentives, No other calculation adjustments or assumptions have
been made.

The primary reason for the decrease in the Chief Executive pay ratio from 2021 to 2022 was that Rita-Rose Gagné received a relocation allowance
of £400,0001n 2021 which was a one-off benefit.

Each of the three individuals identified was a full-time employee during the year and received remunerationin line with the Policy.

Generally, the Remuneration Policy supports a greater variable pay opportunity the more seniar the employee as these employeesare able

to influence Company performance more directly, Executive Directars participate in the RSS linked to long term strategy whilst otheremployees
may participate inthe Restricted Share Plan {RSP). The three individuals identified this year all are not participants in either the R55 or RSP but
did receive an annual bonus for 2022. The median pay ratio is consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the Company’s UK
employees, reflecting the Company’s policy to pay market-based levels of fixed rewards to its employees with an opportunity to benefit from the
annual bonus plan. With asignificant proportion of the Executive Directors’ pay linked to performance and share price over the longer term, itis
expected that the ratio willdepend to a significantextent on RSS and RSP outcomes each year, and accordingly may fluctuate from year to year,

Payments to past Directors (audited)
No LTIPawards vested in 2022 to former Executive Directors. There were no payments to past Directors.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments to past Directors for loss of office.
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External board appointments
Where Board approval is given for an Executive Director to accept an external non-executive directorship, the individualis entitled to retain any
fees received. Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja do nat currently hald any externat non-executive directorships.

Committee process

Inorderto avoid any conflict of interest, remuneration is manpaged through well-defined processes ensuring noindividual is involved in the
decision-making process related to their own remuneration, In particular, the remuneration of all Executive Directors is setand approved by the
Committee; none of the Executive Directors are involved in the determination of their own remuneration arrangements. The Committee also
receives support from external advisors and evaluates the support provided by those advisors annually to ensure that advice is independent,
appropriate and cost-effective,

Committee membership and meetings

The Committee continues to be comprised exclusively of independent Non-Executive Directors and its terms of reference can be tound on the
Company's website at wwww. hammerson.com, Gwyn Burrstepped down as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Committee following the
conclusion of the AGM on 28 April 2022 and Habib Annous, Non-Executive Director, succeeded Gwyn as Chair of the Commitiee. The members
of the Committee are shown at the start of this report.

The Cammittee met five times during the year. The agenda for each meeting is planned around the Group’s reporting cycle and includes particular
matters for the Committee’s consideration. Following each meeting, the Board is appraised of matters arising fram the Committee. The Chiet
Executive, Chief People Officer and external remuneration consultant attend meetings by invitation, together with the General Counsel and
Cormnpany Secretary, who acts as secretary tothe Committee.

Committee effectiveness

In line with the 2018 Code’s requirements, an external evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees was undertaken in 2022,
The Committee considers that it continues to function effectively and in accordance with its terms of reference. In 2022, the Committee reviewed
its terms of reference to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Advisors

The Commitiee appointed FIT Remuneration Consultants (FIT) August in 2011 FIT has no other connection with the Company or its Directors,
Directors may serve on the remuneration committees of other companies for which FIT acts as remuneration consultants. The Committegis
satisfied that all advice given was objective and independent having regard to their experience of working with advisors. FIT is amember of the
Remuneration Consultants Group and subscribes to its Code of Conduct, Fees paid for services to the Commitiee in 2022 totalled £87,283
(2021: £67,040). FIT does not provide any other services to the Company. Terms of engagement (available on reguest to shareholders) specify
that FIT willonly provide advice expressly authorised by or on behalf of the Remuneration Committee.

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP provides legal advice and Lane Clark & Peacock LLP provides actuarial advice ta the Company. The Committee may
seek advice from both firms where it relates to matters within its remit. In addition, the Chief Executive, CFO and Chief People Officer attend
Cornmittee meetings by invitation.

Statement of voting at Annual General Meeting
The table below shows votes cast by proxy at the AGM held on 28 April 2022 in respect of the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Statement of voting on remuneration

- B *._YMJ—____ _.yo_te‘iaﬁa.iﬂi Votes withheld
Number Number number
2021 Remuneration Report (at the 2022 AGM) 3206979255  92/3% 251383588  727% 2934478

2020 Remuneration Policy (at the 2020 AGM) 562,599,919 91.34% 53,325,844 8.66% 4,138,293
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SECTION 3: IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2023

This section sets out information an how the Remuneration Policy will be implernented in 2023 itapproved by shareholders atthe 2023 Annual
General Meeting,

Shareholder approval for the Remuneration Policy was last received at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, Following consultation with
shareholders (described inthe Remuneration Committee Chair's letter on page 82), the Company has proposed rhanges to the Remtineration
Poticy, and will present the rovized Policy (setoul on pages 85 to 97/) lushareholders tor approval at the 2023 Annual General Meeting, If the new
Remuneration Policy is approved by shareholders, the Company intends to implement the new Policy in 2023 as shown below. If the new Policy
is notapproved by shareholders, then the existing Remuneration Policy would instead remain in place and continue to operate.

Inimplermenting the Remuneration Policy, the Committee will continue to take into account factors such as remuneration packages available
within comparable companies: the Group's overall performance; internal relativities; achievement of corporate objectives; individual performance
and experience; published views ot institutional investors; and general market and wider economic trends.

Summary of planned implementation of the Remuneration Policy during 2023

Salary

Folicy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

Tocontinue to retain and attract quality leaders Not applicable Reviewed but not necessarily increased annually by

the Cormmittee

Torecognise accountabilities, skills, experience

and value The base salary for any existing Executive Director will not
exceed £850,000 (orthe equivalent if denominated ina
different currency), with this limitincreasing annually at the
rate ot UK CPI from the date of the 2017 AGM

Implementation
Anincrease of 4% was approved for each of the Executive Directors to take effect on 1 April 2023.

2023 Executive Directors’ salaries £000
Rita-Rose Gagné - - 713
Himanshu Raja 456
Benefits
Policy
Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation
Toprovide arange of benefits in line with Not applicable The aggregate value received by each Executive Director
market practice To continue to retain and attract (hased on value of P11D tax calculations or equivalent basis
guality leaders for a non-UK based Executive Director) will not exceed
£100,000, with this maximum increasing annually at the
rate of UK CPIfrom the date of the 2017 AGM
Implementation
In 2023, these benefits will continue to include a car allowance, enhanced sick pay, private medical insurance, permanent health insurance and
life assurance,
Pension
Policy
Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation
To provide market competitive retirement Not applicable Executive Directors receive 2 10% non-contributery allowance
benefits to continue toretain and attract {Pension Choice) to be paid as, or as a combination of:
quality leaders — an employer contribution tothe Group’s defined

contribution pensior plan;
— apayment to a perscnal pension plan; or
— asalarysupplement.

Implementation
Executive Directors will continue to receive a 10% salary supplement by way of pension provision.
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Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) and deferral under the Deferted Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS)

Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

Taalign Executive Director remuneration with The annual bonus operates by Awards are paid in a mixof cash and deferred shares, with
annualfinancial and Company strategic targets referencetofinancialandpersonal  the deferred shares element being at least 40% of the total
as determined by the Company's Business Plan performance measures assessed award. The deferral period is at least two years. Awards are
To differentiate appropriarely, in the view of over oneyear. The weighting nf subject to clawback and malus provisions

the Committee, on the basis of performance. financial measureswill be at least

The partial award inshares aligns interests with 60% ofthe total opportunity
shareholders and supports retention

Implementation
The AIP maximum will remain at 200% of base salary far the Chief Executive and 150% of base salary forthe CFQ.

Performarnce measures forthe AIF for Executive Directors in 2023 will be subject to slightly different weightings to reflect the increased focus on
ESG metrics.

Adjusted EarningsPershare o 2LeT%
NetDebt e e
GrossAdministrationCosts o 2L67%
CarbonReduction _ - 1o
Personal/Strategic (including Sustainability} 25%

The personal/strategic objectives will be focussed on five key areas, all of which will have demonstrably measurable targets.
— Value Creation: Delivery of non-core asset disposals and development projects in line with the Strategy and Business Plan
CostManagement: Continued reduction of costs whilst maintaining operational excellence

|

— Sustainability: Increasing the focus on the full breadth of sustainability inclusive of environment and social across the business
— Organisation: Agite, high performing organisation underpinned by the Group's Purpose, Yision & Values
— Digitisation: Technology transformation to support more effective and streamlined ways of working

The Committee designs the financial targets and personal/strategic objectives to align with the Group’s strategy, as wellas 1o the Business Flan
and the priorities for the coming year [1is therefore felt that the specific financial targets and important personal objectives are commercially
sensitive such that, having considered this carefully, the Board is of the view that it is in the Company’s interests not to disclose this information
inadvance.

Further details of the specific targets and key personal/strategic objectives set will be disclosed inthe 2023 Annuai Report,

40% of the 2023 AIP vesting will be deferred by making an award of shares under the DBSS, with a deferral period of two years. No change
to current arrangements is proposed for 2023,
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Restricted Share Scheme
Policy
Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation
Toincentivise the creation of long term returns Subject to underpinas described Adiscretionary annual award up to avalue ol 100% of base
farshareholders i fullinthe Remuneration Policy. salary. The Committee reserves the discretion to increase
Theunderpinrequires thatthe the maximum award to 150% of base salary in exceptional
Toaligninterests of Executive Directors with Group's perforrmance and delivery circumstances Awards are subject to clawback and
shareholders and support retention To create of strategy is sufficient to justify malus provisions
alignment with the worklorce vestingagainst the consideration of
absolute and relative TSR net debt
andTPR

Implementation
Annual award of 100% of basc salary for the Chief Executive and 75% of base salary far the CFQ, Vesting of the award is subject to the underpin

described above.

Participation in all-employee arrangements

Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

Inorder to be able to offer participation in Not generally applicable. Anyaward  Executive Directorsare eligible to participate in ali-employee
all-employee plans to employees generally, of free shares under the SIP may incentive arrangerments on same terms as other employees
the Company is either required by the relevant be subjecttoa Company

UK and French legislation to allow Executive performancetarget

Oirectors to participate on the same terms or
choosestodoso

Implementation
All-employee arrangements currently offered in the UK are Sharesave and SIP share awards. The opportunity to participate inall-employee

arrangerments continues on the same basis as for all staffin the UK. No change to current arrangements is proposed for 2023.

Share ownership guidelines

The Company has in place a share ownership policy for the Executive Directors. Executive Directors are normally required to achieve the minimum
shareholding requirement within seven years of the date of appointment, An annual calculation as a percentage of salary is made against the
guidelines as at 31 December each year based an the middle-market value share price on the last business day in December. Executive Directors
are expected to accumulate and maintain a holding in ordinary shares in the Company eguivalent to no less than 25G% of base salary. The
Company has a post-cessation share ownership guideline of 250% of salary for two years aftertermination of employment. This includes vested
shares and shares which are unvested but have met the performance conditions or underpins onanet of tax basis.

Implementation
250% of base salary for the Chief Executive and all other Executive Directors.
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Chair of the Board and Non-Executive Directors’ Fees
Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures
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Cperation

Toensurethe Company continues to attract and Notapplicable
retain high-quabty Chafr and Nuni-Executive
Directors by offering market competitive fees

The Chair of the Board’s fee is determined by the Committee.
Other Non-Executive Directors’ fees are determined by the
Boarcton the recomirtienidalivn of the Cxecutive Directars
Aggregate total fees payable annually to all Non-Executive
Directors are subject to the limit stated inthe Company’s
Artirles of Association (currently £1,000,000)

Implementation

Chair and Non~Executive Directors’ 2023 annualfees

Chair otthe Board
Non-Executive Director

Senior Independent Director

Audit Committee Chair

Rernuneration Committes Chair

Audit/Remuneration Committes Member

Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement

£000

300,000
61,500
10,000
15,000
15,000

5,000
8,000

These remain unchanged from 2022 levels and are expected to next be reviewed for 2024.

Remuneration for employees below Board levelin 2023

Remuneration packages for all Group employees may comprise both fixed and variable elements. Generally, the more senior the individuat,

the greater the variable pay offer asa proportion of overall pay due to the ability of seniormanagers o impact more directly upon the Group's
performance. As well as assessing the rermuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Committee reviews the remuneration of the senior
management team and is kept informed of remuneration developments and principles for pay and reward across the Group. This includes any
salary increases and benefits of the wider employee poputation and considers them in relation to the implementation of the Remuneration Policy
for Executive Directors, ensuring there s an appropriate degree of alignment throughout the Group. The Designated Non-Executive Directar for
Colleague Engagementis a member of the Rermuneration Committee and held a number of employee forums in the year, including one specifically
focused on discussing executive remuneration to explain how executive remuneration aligns with the wider company pay policy, as required by

the UK Corporate Governance Code.
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2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (Code) considerations
The Committee has considered the factors set out in provision 40 of the Code. Inthe Committee’s view, the Policy addresses those factors

as set out below:

Factor

How addressed

Clarity - remuneration arrangements should be
transparentand promote effective engagement
with shareholders and the workforce

Remuneration policy and arrangements are clearly disclosed each year inthe Annual Report.
The Committee proactively seeks engagenienl with shareholders on remuneration matters
(see description of consultation on proposed Policy above), and is regularly updated onworkforce
nay and benefits acrossthe Group during the course of its activity.

Simplicity —remuneration structures should
avoid complexity and their rationale and
operation should be easy to understand

Qurremuneration structure is comprised of fixed and variable remuneration, with the performance
conditions for variable elements clearly ccommunicated to, and understocd by, participants. The RSS
provides a mechanism for aligning Executive Director and shareholder interests, removesthe difficult
challenge of setting robust, appropriately challenging and easily understandable performance targets
in avolatile marketwhich could lead to potentially unintended remuneration cutcomes and
significantly reduces the maximum pay available to Executive Directors.

Risk —remuneration arrangements should
ensure that reputational and other risks from
excessive rewards, and behavioural risks that can
arise fromtarget-based incentive plans, are
identified and mitigated

The rules of the AIP and RSS provide discretion to the Committee to reduce award levels and
awards are subject to malus and clawback provisiens. The Committee also has overriding discretion
to reduce awards to mitigate against any reputational or other risk from such awards being
considered excessive. The RSS reduces the risk of unintended remuneration outcomes associated
with complex performance conditions.

Predictability — the range of possible reward
values toindividual directors and any other limits
or discretions should be identified and explained
atthetime of approving the policy

The RSSincreases the predictability of reward values (removing the risk of potentially unintended
outcomes). Maximum award levels and discretions are set cut in the Illustration and application
of policy chart on page 96.

Proportionality —the link between individual
awards, the delivery of strategy and the long term
performance of the Group should be clear.
Outcomes should not reward poor performance

Variable performance-related elements represent a significant proportion of the total
remuneration opportunity for the Executive Directors. The Committee considers the appropriate
financialand personal performance measures each yearto ensure that there isaclear link to
strategy. Discretions available to the Committee ensure that awards can be reduced if necessary
to ensure that cutcomes do not reward poor performance.

Alignmentto culture —incentive schames
should drive behaviours consistent with company
purpose, valuas and strategy

The Committee seeks to ensure that personal performance measures under the AIP incentivise
behaviours consistent with the Group’s culture, purpose andvalues, The RSS clearly aligns
Executive Director interests with those of shareholders by ensuring a focus on delivering against
strategy to generate long-term value for shareholders.

By orderafthe Board

Hahib Annous
Chairof the Remuneration Committee
8March 2023
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The Directers of the Company present their
report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2022. This report has been
prepared in accordance with requirements
outlined within The Large and Medium-sized
Campanies and Groups (Accountsand
Reports) Regulations 2008 and the Directars’
Report forms part of the management report
as required under the Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules (OTR).

The Company has chosen, in accordance with
Section 414C{11) of the Companies Act 2006
{the Act), to include certaininformationin the
Strategic Report that would otherwise be
required to be included in this Directors’
Report, as follows:

Information Pages

Likely future develoT:menTé inthe

Company 20-22
information about dividends g
Employment of disabled persons 24
Engagement with colleagues 24
Engagementwith customers,

suppliers and otherexternal

stakeholders 32-34
Going concern and viability

statements 60-61

The Strategic Reportis setoutonpages 11063
andis incorporated into this Oirectors’ Report
by reference. Other information, which forms
part of this Directors’ Report by reference, can
be foundin the following sections:

Intermation Pages
CorporateGovernance  64-i16
Financialinstruments and risk

management 168-173
Statement of Directors’

respensibilities, mcluding

corfirmation of disclosure of

information to the Auditors 116
Subsidiaries and other related

undertakings outside the UK 184189

Disclosures concerning greenhouse
gas emissions and energy
consumption 27

Shareholderinformation 204-205

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association
(Articles) may be amended by special
resolution in accordance with the Actand
are available at www.hammerson.com.

2023 Annual General Meeting

The Company’s 2023 Annual General Meeting
(AGM) will be held at 9:00 am (UK time) on

4 May 2023, The resolutions to be proposed at
the AGM will be set outin the Notice of AGM
vunttothe Company ™ sharrhniders,

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) has
indicated its willingness to remain in office
and, onthe recommendation of the Audit
Committee, a resolution to reappoint PwC as
the Company’s Auditor will be proposed at
the AGM.

Authority to allot shares in the Company
Atthe 2022 AGM, the Company was granted
authority by shareholders to allot shares up to
an aggregate nominal value of £73,529,431.
This authority willexpire onthe earlier of

28 July 2023 orthe conclusion af the 2023
AGM, atwhich a resolution will be proposed tor
its renewal. Under this authority, the Company
aliotted atotal of 194,637,920 ordinary shares
on10May 2022 as part of the Company’s
enhanced scrip dividend alternative in relation
tothefinal dividend forthe financial year
ended 31 December 2021, and atotal of
388,170,526 ordinary shares on 3 November
2022 as part of the Company’s enhanced scnp
dividend alternative in relation to the interim
aividend for the financiat yearended

31 December 2022,

Colleagues

Colleagues receive regular briefings and
updates frormn the Board and management,
including via all-employee meetings, email
and the Group’sintranet, toinform themof the
performance of the business and opportunities
to participate inemployee share schames.
Further details of engagement with coileagues
canbefound on pages 24,32 and 67.
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Directors’ Report (including the
information specified as forming part of this
Repart) fulfils the requirements of the
Corporate Governance Statement forthe
purposes of DTR7.2.

Directors and their share interests

Details of the Directurs wio served during the
vear ended 31 December 2022 and continue
toserve at the date of approval of the Directors’
Repnrt are set out on pages 64 to 65, Gwyn
Burrand Andrew Formica stepped down as
Directors on 28 April 202 2. Des de Beerand
his alternate, Alan Qlivier, stepped down as
Director and alternate Director, respectively,
on 1l October2022.

Directors are appointed and replaced in
accordance with the Articles, the Actand the
UK Corporate Governance Code. The powers
of the Directors are set outin the Articles and
the Act.

The Directors’ interests in ordinary sharesin
the Company are set cutin the table on page
102 ofthe Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Indemnification of and insurance for
Directors and officers

The Company has in place directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance, which is reviewed
annually. The Company’s Directors and officers
are appropriately insuredin accordance with
standard practice, Directors are indemnified
under the Articles and through a Deed Poll

of Indemnity.

Political donations

Itis the Company’s policy not to make political
donatians and no political donations,
contributions or politicalexpenditure were
made inthe year ended 371 Decermber 2022.

Post balance sheetevents
Details of post balance sheet events can be
foundin note 28 ta the financial statemients.



Provisions on change of control

Achange of control of the Company,
following atakeover, may cause a number of
agreements to which the Company is party to
take effect, alter or terminate, These include
certaininsurance policies, financing
arrangements and employee share plans.

The Company’s share plans contain provisions
which could resultin options and awards
vesting or becoming exercisable on a change
of contral, in accordance with the rules of the
plans. There are no agreements between

the Company and its Directors or employees
providing for compensation for loss of office
oremployment or otherwise that occurs
specifically because of a takeover.

The Group has a number of borrowing facilities
provided by various lenders. These facilities
generally include provisions that may require
any outstanding borrowings to be repaid or
the amendment or termination of the facilitics
uponthe accurrence of a change of control of
the Company.

Purchase of own shares

Atthe 2022 AGM, the Company was granted
authority by shareholders to purchase upto
441,176,591 ordinary shares of 5 pence each
{representing approximately 10% of the
Cornpany’sissued ordinary share capital as at
14 March 2022). This authority willexpire at
the conclusion of the 2023 AGM, at whicha
resolution will be proposed for its renewal,

or, if earlier, on 28 July 202 3. Further details
on share purchases can be foundin note 21A
tothe financial statements. The Company
made no purchases of its own shares into
treasury during the year pursuant to the above
authority, As at 31 December 2022, the
Company held 7,691,247 ordinary shares
intreasury,

Interests disclosed under DBTR 5

Asat 31 December 2022, the following
information had been received by the
Company, inaccordance with Chapter 5 ofthe
DTRs, from holders of notifiable interests in the
Company'sissued share capital. 1t should be
noted that these holdings may have changed
since they were notified to the Company.
Substantial shareholders do not have different
voting rights from those of other shareholders.

% of issued
share capital
Number of voting carrying
rights voting right:
I:ightheuse Capital " T
Limited 927,628,656 22.07%
APG Asset
Managemernt
NV 1,046,181,300 20.94%
BlackRock, Inc. 289,466,153 6.55%
Resilient 2
Proprietary
Limited 143,000,000 3.10%
Richmond Group 139,449,066 3.02%

* Percentage based on ordinary sharesinissue,
excluding treasury shares, as at the date the
notification was received by the Company.

Cn 6 March 2023 (the latest practicable date
beforethe publication of this Report), the
Company received an additional notification of
interests in accordance with Chapter 5 of the
DTRs from APG Asset Management NV. of &
decrease invoting rights from 1,046,181,300
t0 997,468,698 (representing 19.97% of the
Company’s issued share capital carrying voting
rights as at the date of that notification).

The Company received no other notifications
in the period between 1 January 2023 and

6 March 2023.

Research and development activities
Buring the normal course of business, the
Group continues to invest in new technology
and systermns and to develop new products
and services to improve operating efficiency
and strengthen its propasition for occupiers,
customers and partners.

Share capital

Details of the Company’s share capitaland
structure are set out in note 21Ato the
financial statements. The rights and
obligations attached to the Company s shares
are set out in the Articles, in addition to those
conferred on shareholders by law. The Articles
and applicable legislation provide that the
Company can decide to restrict the rights
attaching to sliares in certain circumstances,
including where a person has failed to comply
with a notice issued by the Company under
section 793 ofthe Act.
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There are no restrictions on the transfer of
shares except the UK Real Estate Investment
Trust restrictions and certain restrictions
imposed by the Articles, lawand the
Company’s Share Nealing Policy, The Artirles
setout certain circumstances inwhich the
Directars of the Company can refuse to register
atransferofshares, The Company is not aware
ofany agreemenls between holders of
securities that are known to the Company and
ray result in restrictions onthe transferof
securities oronvoting rights, No dividends are
paid inrespect of shares held intreasury.

Shares held in the Employee Share
Ownership Plan

The Trustees of the HHammerson Employee
Share Qwnership Plan hold Hammerson plc
shares intrust to satisfy awards underthe
Company’s employee share plans. The
Trustees have walved theirrightto receive
dividends on shares held inthe Company. As
at31 Decerber 2022, 25,512,208 ordinary
shareswere held in trust foremployee share
plans purposes.

Listing Rule 9.8.4R disclosures

Thetable below sets out where disclosures
required by Listing Rule 9.8.4R are located and
these disclosures are incorporated into this
Directors’ Repart by reference.

LR 9.8.4R requirement Page
f;;erestcapitatised énd taxrelief i ) 1433
Details of long term incentive

schemes 145
Shareholder waivers of dividends 115
Shareholder waivers of future

dividends 115
By order of the Board
Alex Dunn

General Counsel and Company Secretary
8March 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
preparation of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year.
Underthat law the Directors have prepared
the Group financial statements in accurdance
with UK-adopted international accounting
standards and the Company financial
staterents in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).
The Group has alsc prepared financial
statements in accordance with internationat
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
as itapplies inthe Eurcpean Union.

Under Company law, Directors must not
approve the financial statemants unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fairview
otthe state of affairs of the Groupand
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
forthat period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

— Selectsuitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently

— Statewhether applicable UK-adopted
internationat accounting standards and
international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
160672002 as itappliesinthe European
Union have been followed forthe Group
financial statements and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject to any
material departures disclosed and
explainedin the financial statements

— Make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reascnable and prudent

— Prepare the financial statements on the
goingconcern basis unless it is
inappropriate 1o presume that the Group
and Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Groupand Company and
hence fartaking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group'sand
Company's transactions and disclnse with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financiat
position of the Group and Company and enable
themtoensure that the financial statements
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report
comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Company’s
website. Legistation in the United Kingdom
gaverning the preparation and dissemination
offinancial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report
and financial statements, taken as a whole,

is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’sand
Company’s position and performance,
business modeland strategy.

Each ofthe Directors, whose names and
functions are listed inthe Corporate
Governance Report, confirms that to the best
of their knowledge:

~ The Group financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting
standards and international financial
reporting standards adapted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 16062002 asitapplies
inthe European Union, give atrue and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and loss of the Group

— TheCompanyfinancial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 101, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities and hinancial
position of the Company

— TheStrategic Reportincludes afairreview
of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the
principal risks anduncertainties that it faces
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Provision of information to the Auditor
Inthecase of each Director in office at the date
the Directors Report is approved:

— Sofarasthe Directoris aware, thereis no
relevant audit information of which the
Group and Company’s Auditors are unaware

— They have taken allthe steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director in order
tomake themselves aware ofany relevant
auditinformation and to cstablishthat the
Group's and Company’s Auditors are aware
of that information

This confirmation is given, and shoutd be
interpreted in accordance with, the provisions
of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

By order of the Board

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer
8March 2023



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC

REPORTONTHE AUDITOF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

Inouropinion;

— Hammerson plc's Group financial
statements and Companyfinancial
staternents (the ‘financial statements’)
giveatrue and fair view cof the state of the
Group’s and ofthe Company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2022 and of the Group’s
loss and the Group’s cash flows forthe year
thenended

— the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting
standards as apptiedin accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

— the Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framewaork’, and
applicable taw)

— thefinancial statements have been
preparedin accordance with the
reguirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements,
included within the Annual Report, which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2022;

the Consolidated Income Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, and the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended; and the nctesto the
financial statements, which include adescription
of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinign is consistent with ourreportingto
the Audit Committee.

Separate opinionin relation to international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC)No 1606/2002
asitappliesin the EuropeanUnion

As explainedin note 1B tothe financial
statements, the Group, in addition to applying
UK-adopted international accounting
standards, has also applied international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuantto Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
asitappliesin the European Union.

Inouropinion, the Group financial statements
have been properly preparedin accordance
withinternational financial reporting standards
adapted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 asit applies inthe European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted ocur audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
underISAs (UK) are furtherdescribedin the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for uw upinion,

Independence

We remained independent ofthe Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that
arerelevant to our audit of the financial
statements inthe UK, which includes the FRC's
Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

Tothe best of ourknowledge and belief, we
declare that non-audit services prohibited by
the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided.

Otherthan those disclosed in note 5E, we have
provided no non-audit services tothe Company
or its controlled undertakings in the period
under audit.

Our audit approach

Qverview

Auditscope

— The UK, French, Irish and Value Retail
components were subject to afull scope
audit. Together these components account
for 100% of the Group'stotalassets

Key auditmatters

— Valuation of investment property, either
held directly or within joint ventures (Group)

— Accounting fortheinvestmentin Value
Retail and valuation of investment property
held by Value Retai (Group)

— Valuation of investments in subsidiary
companies and amounts owed by
subsidiaries and other related undertakings
(Company)
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Materiality

— Overall Group materiality: £34.0m
(20271: £36.8m) based on 0.75% of
Group's total assets

— Specific Group materiality: £5.3m
(2021, £5.71m) based on b% ot the aroup's
average adjusted earnings

— Overall Company materiality: £44.5m
(2021: £47.7m) basedon 0.75% of the
Company’s total assets

— Overall performance materiality: £25.5m
(2021:£27.6m) (Group); Specific
performance materiality: £3.9m (20221:
£4.3m) (Group) and Campany performance
materiality: £33.4m (2021: £35.8m)
(Company)

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined
materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those mattersthat, in
the auditors’ professionat judgement, were of
most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current peried and include
the most significant assessed nsks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in
the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team, These matters, andany
comments we make on the results of our
procedures thereon, were addressed inthe
context of our audit of the financial statements
asawhole, and in forming cur opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinionon
these matters.

This is not acomplete list of all risks identified
by our audit.

Expected Credit Losses onaccounts receivable
and unamortised tenant incentives, which

was a key audit matterlast year, is no longer
included because collection levels have
improved and the judgement inestimating

the level of provisioning, and therefore the risk
of material misstatement, has reduced.
Otherwise, the key audit matters below are
consistent with last year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC continued

KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW QUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of investment property, either held directly or within
jointventures (Group)

Referto page 78 (Audit Committee Report), page 136 (Principal
accounting policies), pages 138 and 139 (Significant estimates —
Property valuations) and pages 156 ta 162 (Nates to the consolidated
financial staterments —note 12 and 13},

The Group directly owins, or owns via joint ventures or associates, a
property porttolio which includes shopping centres, developienls and
premium outlets. Thetotal value of this portfolio as at 31 December
2022 was £5,107.1m (2021: £5,372.2m) and has been impacted by
the uncertainty in the macroeconomic environment.

Of this portfolio £1,4631.0m (2021 £1,561.4m) is held by subsidiaries
within ‘Tnvestrent properties’, and £1,620.0m (2021 £1,712.2m) is
held by jointventures within ‘Investment in joint ventures’. Additionally
the portfolicincludes £nii (2021: £69.1m) held within ‘Assets held for
sale’, and £36.2m (2021: £34.3m) held within ‘Trading properties”.
Properties held within ‘Assets held for sale” and Trading properties’

do notform part of this key audit matter. Together these properties are
spread acrossthe UK, French and Irish components.

The remainder of the portfolio is held within associates, £1,989.9m
(2021:£1,995.2m), primarily in respect of Value Retail with the balance
held in Italie Deux. The Group's share of Value Retail's investrment
property is £1,887.0m (2021: £1,893.5m). The valuation of Value
Retail's property is discussed within the subsequent key audit matter.

This wasidentified as a key audit matter given the valuation of the
investment property portfolio is inherently subjective and complex

due to, among other factors, the individual nature of each property,

its location, and the expected future rental streams for that particular
property, together with considerations around the impact of climate
change. The wider challenges currently facing the retail real estate
occupierand investor markets, including the relative lack of comparable
transactions and macroeconomic uncertainty, has further contributed
tothe subjectivity. As a result significant subjectivity remains within
these valuations for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The closing valuations were carried out by CBRE, Jones Lang LaSalle
and Cushman & Wakefield (the ‘external valuers'), in accordance
with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards and the Group
accounting policies which incorporate the requirements of
Internationat Accounting Standard 4G, ‘Investrment Property” and
[FRS 13 Fairvalue measurement”.

Whilst no material valuation uncertainty clauses were included in the
externalvaluations of the properties in the Group’s portfolio as at

31 December 2022, the valuers continue to include wording suggested
by the RICS 1o describe market uncertainty and highlighting the
importance of the valuation date.

The properties’ fair value is primarily determined by theirinvestment
value reflecting the fact that the properties are largely existing

operational properties currently generating rental income. Shopping
centres are primarily valued using the income capitalisation method.

Given the inherent subjectivity involved in the valuation of investment
properties, the need for deep market knowledge when determining
the maost appropriate assumptions and the technicalities of valuation
methodology, we engaged our internal valuation experts {qualified
chartered surveyors) ta assist us in our audit of this matter.

Assessing the valuers’ expertise and objectivity

We assessed each of the external valuers’ qualincations and expertise
and read their lerms of engapemontwith the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or may have imposed scope limitations upen theirwork.

We also considered fee arrangements between the external valuers
and the Group, and other engagements which might exist between

the Group and the valuers. We found no evidence to suggest that the
objectivity of the external valuers, in their performance of the valuations,
was compromised.

Data provided tothe valuers

We checked the accuracy of the underlying lease data and capital
expenditure used by the external valuers in their valuation of the
portfolio by tracing the data back to the relevant component accounting
records and signed leases on a sample basis. No exceptions were
identified from thiswark.

Assumptions and estimates used by the valuers

We read the external valuation reports for the properties and confirmad
that the valuation approach for each was in accordance with RICS
standards and suitable for use in determining the final value for the
purpose of the financial statements.

We held discussions with each of the external valuers to challenge the
valuation process, the key assumptions, and the rationale behind the
more sighificant valuation movements during the year. It was evident
from ourinteraction with the external valuers, and from our review of
the valuation reports, that close attention had been paid tc each
property’s individual characteristics at a detailed, tenant by tenant level,
as well as considering the property specificfactors such as the latest
leasing activity, tenant mix, vacancy levels, the impact of CVAs and
administrations, geographic location and the desirahility of the asset
as awhole. We also questioned the external valuers as to the extent to
which recent market transactions and expected rental values which
they made use of in deriving their valuations took into account the
impact of climate change and related ESG considerations.

In addition we performed the following procedures foreach type of
property. We were able to obtain sufficient evidence to sucport the
valuation and did not identify any materialissues during our work.
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KEY AUDITMATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDITMATTER

Valuation of investment property, either held directly or within
jointventures (Group) continued

Those development properties that are subject to active ongoing
development are valued using the residual valuation approach. Certain
operational properties, which have development potential and are
included in developments, are valued under the income capitalisation
method but adjusted toaccount for developrment potential. Development
landis valiied on avalue per acre basic.

Shopping centres

Indetermining the valuation of a shopping centre the valuers take into
account property specific information such as the current tenancy
agreements and rentalincome. They then apply judgermental
assumptions such as estimated renlal value (ERV) and yield, which are
influenced by prevailing market yields and where available, comparable
market transactions and leasing evidence, to arrive at the final
valuation. Due to the unique nature of each property the judgemental
assumptionsto be applied are determined having regard to the
individual property characteristics at a detailed, tenant by tenant level,
as well as considering the qualities of the property as a whole.

Developments

Indetermining the valuation of development property under a residual
valuation methed the valuers take into account the property specific
information such as the development plans forthe site. They then apply
anumber of judgemental assumptions including ERV and yield within
the gross developmentvalue, estimated costs to complete and
developers profittoarrive at the valuation. Due to the unigue nature of
anongoing development the judgemental assumptions to be applied
are determined having regard to the nature and risks associated with
each development.

In determining the valuation of operational properties with
development potential the valuers initially follow the same
methodology as described previously to arrive at anincome
capitalisation value. Having regard to the unique nature of each
property, the likelihood of the development progressing and the status
of planning consents for the development, the vatuers then make
adjustmentsto the valuation to reflect development potential.

Indetermining the value of development land the valuers primarily
have regard for the value peracre achieved by recent comparable
land transactions.

— Shoppingcentres
For shopping centres we obtained details of each property and
setanexpected range for yield and capital value movement,
determined by reference ta published benchmarks and using our
experience and knowledge of the market. We compared theyield
and capital movement of each property with our expected range.
Wealso considered the reasonahleness of other assumptions that
are not soreadily comparable with published benchmarks, in
particular ERV where, for a sample of units, we challenged the
valuersto support how they had determined their ERV. Where
assumptions were autside the expected range or otherwise
appeared unusual we undertcok further investigations and, when
necessary, obtained corroborating evidence to support explanations
received. This enabled us to assess the property specific factors that
hadanimpact onvatue, including recent comparable transactions
and leasing evidence where available, and to conclude on the
reasonableness of the assumptions utilised.

— Developments
For significant ongoing developments valued viathe residual
valuation method we obtained the development appraisal and
assessed the reasonableness of the valuers’ key assumptions.
This included comparing the yvield to comparable market
benchmarks, comparing the costs to complete estimates to
development plans and contracts, and considering the
reasonableness of other assumptions that are not so readily
comparable with published benchmarks, such as ERV, cost
contingencies and developers profit. Where assumptions appeared
unusual we undertook further investigations and, when necessary,
obtained corroborating evidence to support explanations received.

For operational properties with development potential we performed
the same procedures as described previously for shopping centres.

We also considered the reasonableness of any additional value
recognised for development potential by reviewing the stage of
progress of the proposed development including verifying any planning
consents abtained.

Fardevelopment land valued on a per acre basis we obtained details of
the comparable land transactions utilised by the valuers. We verified
thovalue of these transactions to supporting evidence and considered
theircomparability to the asset being valued.

Overall findings

We found thatthe assumptions used in the valuations were
predominantly consistent with our expectations and comparable
benchmarkinginformation for the asset type, and thatthe assumptions
were applied appropriately and reflected available comparable market
transactions and leasing evidence. Where assumgptions did not fall
within our expected range we were satisfied thal variances were due to
property specific factars such as location and tenant mix. We concluded
that the assumptions used in the valuations by the external valuers
were supportable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC continued

KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Accounting for the investment in Value Retail and valuation of
investment property held by Value Retail (Group)

Referto page 136 (Principal accounting policies), pages 138 and 139
(Significant estimates — Property valuations) and pages 162 and 163
(Notes to the consolidated financial statements —note 1.4).

The Group has an investmentin Value Retail, a separate group owning
anumber of premium outlets in the United Kingdom and across Europe.
The Group equity accounts for its interest in Value Relal as an associale.
The Group's investment as at 31 December 2022 was £1,189.4m
(2021:£1,140.8m).

Investment property valuation

The valuation of the Group's investment in Value Retail is predominantly
driven by the valuation of the property assets within the Value Retail
portfolio. The total value of the propertieswas £5,151.0m as at

31 December 2022 (2021: £5,055,6m). The Group's share of the Value
Retail property, whichis included within the wider Group portfolio of
£5,107.Am(2021:£5,372.2m), was £1,887.0m (2021:£1,893.5m)
and has also been impacted by the macroeconomic environment.

The closing valuation was carried aut by Cushman & Wakefisld, in
accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards and the
Group accounting policies which incorporate the requirements of
International Accounting Standard 40, ‘Investment Property’ and
IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’. The premium outlets’ fair value is
determined by theirinvestment value utilising a discounted cash flow
(DCF) basis.

In determining the valuation of a premium outlet, the valuers take

into account property specific information such as current tenancy
agreements, rentalincome genecrated by the asset, as well as property
operating costs. They then apply judgmental assumptions such as
yield, discount rate and expected rental income levels and subsequent
growthrates, which are influenced by prevailing market vields and
where appropriate comparable market transactions, to arrive atthe
finalvaluation. Due to the unique nature of each property the
judgmentalassumptionsto be applied are determined having regard
to the individual property characteristics at a detailed, unit by unit level,
as wellas considering the qualities of the property as awhole.

Accounting for the investment in Value Retail

Value Retail has a complex ownership structure whereby each investing
party owns differing proportions of each of the entities, and hence
properties, wthin the Value Retall group. As such this creates significant
complexity in determining the ovarallinvestment in Value Retall held
within the Group consalidated financial statements.

Therefore, an the basis of the significant judgement and estimation
uncertainty within the investment property valuation, and the
complexity in determining the overall investment in Value Retail,
we identified this as a key audit matter.

Investment property valuation

As Group auditors we formally instructed the component auditors of
Value Retailto perfarm a full scope audit over the financialinformation
of Value Retail. This included audit work aver the valuation of investment
property within Value Retall.

Our component auditors obtained details of each property. They
assessed the reasonableness of each property’s key assumptions
comparing its vicld, discuunt rate and expected rentalincome and
subsequent growth rates to comparable market benchrmarks. In doing
sothey hadregard to property specific factors and knowledge of the
market, including comparable transactions and leasing evidence where
appropriate. They obtained corroborating evidence to support
explanations received fromthe valuers where appropriate.

The Group audit team participated in the meeting held between
Cushman & Wakefield and the component auditors. We have obtained
reporting from the component auditors and have reviewed the results
and underlying working papers over investment property valuation.

We have noissues to report and we are satisfied that we have obtained
sufficient audit comfort over the investment property balances within
the Value Retail financial information.

Accounting for the investment in Value Retail

In respect of the complexity within the calculation of the Group’s
investment in Value Retall, we obtained the ownership structure for
value Retailas at 31 December 2022, We instructed the component
auditor toverify the Greup's percentage ownership of each entity within
the Value Retail group. We have abtained reporting fromthe component
auditors on this procedure and have reviewed the results and their
underlying working papers.

We have tested the adjustments made within the Group consolidation
inaccordance with IAS 28 ‘Investments in associates and joint
ventures’, in arriving atthe Group’s equity accounted investment in
Value Retall to determine whether they are appropriate.

We have noissues to repartin respect of this work.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of investments in subsidlary companies and amounts
owed by subsidiaries and other related undertakings (Company}
Referto page 183 (Principalaccounting policies) and pages 183 and
184 {Motes tothe Companyfinancial statements — nate C3 and C4),

The Company has investrnents insubsidiary companies ot £1,322.4m
(2021: £1,279.3m} and amounts owed by subsidiaries and other
related undertakings of £4,395.0m (2021: £4,727.5m) as at

31 Becember 2022, This is following the recognition ofa £42.5m
(2021:£1,136.1m loss) revaluation gain on investments in subsidiary
companies andan Expected Credit Loss provision of £595.9m (2021:
£471.6m} recognised an amounts owed by subsidiaries and other
related undertakings as at year end.

The Company’s accounting policy forinvestrments is tu hold them at
fairvalue, while amounts owed by subsidiaries and other related
undertakings are carried at amortised cost but subject to the Expected
Credit Loss impairment requirements, Given the inherent judgement
and complexity in assessing both the fair value of a subsidiary company,
and the Expected Credit Loss of amounts owed by subsidiaries and
other related undertakings, this wasidentified as a key audit matter for
our audit of the Cornpany.

The primary determinant and key judgement within both the fairvalue
of each subsidiary company and the Expected Credit Loss of amounts
owed by subsidiaries and other related undertakings is the value of the
investment property held by each investee/counterparty. As such it was

We obtained the Directors’ valuation for the value of investments held
insubsidiary companies and their Expected Credit Loss assessment of
amounts owed by subsidiaries and other related undertakings as at
31 December 2022.

We assessed the accounting policy forinvestments and amounts owed
by subsidiaries and other related undertakings to verify they were
compliantwith FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’.

We verified that the methodaology used by the Directors inarriving at
the fair value of each subsidiary, and the Expected Credit Loss ‘general
approach’ provision fer amounts owed by subsidiaries and other
related undertakings, was compliant with FRS 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’.

We identified the key judgement within both the valuation of
investments held in subsidiary companies and amounts owed by
subsidiaries and other related undertakings to be the valuation

of investment property held by eachinvestee/counterpaity. For details
of our procedures over investment property valuations please referta
the related Group key audit matter above,

We have noissues ta report in respect of this wark.

over this areathat we applied the most focus and audit effort,

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure
thatwe performedenough workto be able to
give anapinion on the financial statements as
awhole, takinginto account the structure of
the Group and the Cormpany, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in
which they operate.

The Groupowns and invests ina number of
shopping centres, developments and premium
outlets across the United Kingdom and
Europe. These are held within a variety of
subsidiaries, jpint ventures and associates.

Based on our understanding of the Group we
focussed our audit work primarily on four
components being: UK, France, Ireland and
Value Retail.

Allfour components were subject toafull
scope audit given their financiat significance
tothe Group.

The UK, French, Irish and Value Retail
components account for 1009 (2021: UK,
French, Irish and Value Retail components
accounted for 100%) of the Group’s
totalassets.

The UK and Irish components were audited
by the Group team. The French and Value
Retail components were audited by
component teams.

Detailed instructions were sentto both
component teams. These instructions covered
the significant areas that should be addressed
by the component auditors (which included
the relevant risks of material misstaterment)
and set out the information requiredto be
reported back to the Group auditteam. In
addition, regular meetings were held with the
component audit teams, with the Group audit
team attending the clearance meeting for all
compeonent audits. Finally the Group audit
team performed a detailed review of the
working papers of allcomponent teams to
ensure the work performed was appropriate
and in line with ourinstructions.

These procedures, together with additional
procedures performed at the Group level
(including audit procedures over the
cansolidation and conselidation adjustments),
gave us the evidence we needed forour
opinion on the Group financial statements
asawhole.

In respect of the audit of the Company, the
Group auditteam performed a full scope
statutory audit.

The impact of climate risk on our audit
The Directors have made commitments for
the Group to be Net Zero by 2030 and have
developed Net Zero Asset Plans foreach
shopping centre within the Hammerson
portfolio (excluding Value Retail).

The key areas of the financial statements
where management evaluated that climate
risk could have a patential significantimpact
are: thevaluation of investment properties, the
coupon rate on its €700m sustainability-linked
bond and cash flow assumptions inthe going
concern assessment.

Using our knowledge of the business, we
evaluated management’s risk assessment, its
estimates as setoutin note 1F of the financial
statements and resultant disclosures where
significant. We considered the following areas
to potentially be materially impacted by
climate risk and consequently we focused our
auditworkon climate change inthese areas:
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— Valuation of investment properties

— The coupon rate on the £700m
sustainability-linked bond

— Cash flowassumptions inthe going
CONCEernassessment

Torespond tothe audit risks identified in these
areas we tailored our audit approach to
address these, in particular:

— Wemade enquiries of management to
understand the process management
adopted to assess the extent of the
potential impactof climate risk on the
Group'sfinancial statements and support
the disclosures made withinthe
financial statements;

— Wechallenged the completeness of
management’s climate risk assessment
by challenging the consistency of
management’s climate impact assessment
with internal climate plans (including the
Net Zero Asset Plans), and reading the
entity’s external communications for
details of climate related impacts

— Weevaluated, with assistance from
aurinternal valuation experts, how
management’s external experts had
considered the impact of ESGandclimate
change within the valuations of the Group’s
investment properties {referto our key
audit matter over the valuation of
investment properies)

— We performed independent sensitivity
analysis to determine the financial impact
of notcomplying with the sustainability
reyuiremients tinked ta the £700m hand

— We challenged whether theimpact of
climate risk, and the Group’s Net Zera by
2030 commitment, had beenfactored
into the Directors’ assessments and
disclosures surrounding going concern
andthe viability staterment

We also consigered the consistency of the
disclosures in relation to climate change
(including the disclosuresin the Task Force an
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
section within the Annual Report with the
financial staterents and our knowledge
obtained fram our audit.
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Qur procedures did not identify any material
impactin the cantext of aur audit of the financial
statements as awhole, oraur key audit matters,
forthe yearended 31 December 2022,

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by

our application of materiality. We set certain
guantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of ouraudit
procedures on the individual financial
statement line items and disclosures andin
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually andin aggregate on the financial
statements as awhole.

Based on our professional judgement,
we determinad materiality for the financial
statements as a whole as follows:

W FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - COMPANY

Overall materiality

£34.0m (2021: £36.8m).

£44.5m (2021: £47.7m).

How we determined it

Based on 0.75% of Group’s total assets

Rationale for
benchmark applied

of the Group's value.

We determined materiality based on total assets given the
valuation of investment properties, whether held directly or
through faint ventures and associates, is the key determinant

This materiality was utilised in the audit of investing and

financing activities

Based on 0.75% of the Company’s total assets

Given the Hammerson ple entity (s primarily a holding
Company we determined total assets to be the
appropriate benchmark.

Specific materiality £53m(2021:£5.7m).

How we determined it

Basedon 5% ofthe Group's FY22 adjusted earnings

Not applicable.

(2021 5% of the Group’s weighted average adjusted
earnings from 2018 to 2021).

Rationale for
benchmark applied

In determining this materiality we had regardto the fact
that adjusted earnings is a secondary financial indicator of

Notapplicable.

the Group (refer to note 10A of the financ.al statements
which includes a reconciliation between IFRS and

adjusted earnings).

This materiality was utilised in the audit of aperating activities.

Notapplicable.



Foreach cormponent in the scope of our Group
audit, we allocated a materiality that is less
than ouroverall Group materiality. The range
of overall materiality allocated across
components was £18.0mto £32.0m. The
range of overall materiality allocated across
components for operating activities was
£2.4mto£4.3m.

We use performance materialily to reduce to
anappropriately low level the probability that
the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds overall materiatity.
Specifically, we use performance materiality
in determining the scope of our audit and the
nature and extent of our testing of account
balances, classes of transactions and
disclosures, forexamplein determining sample
sizes. Our performance materiality forinvesting
and financing activities was 75% (2021: 75%)
of overall materiality, amounting to £25.5m
(2021:£27.6m) forthe Group financial
statements and £33.4m (2021: £35.8m)
forthe Companyfinancial statements,

Our performance materiality for operating
activities was 75% (2021: 75%,) of Specific
materiality, amountingto £3.9m (2021:
£4.3mjfor the Group financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality,
we considered anumber of factors — the
history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of
controls —and concluded thatan amount at the
upperend of our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we
would report to them misstatements identified
duringouraudit above £1.7m {Group audit)
{2021: £1.8m) for investing and financing
activities, £0.5m {Group audit) (2021: £0.6m)
for operating activities, and £2.2m (Company
audit) (20271 £2 Am) as well as misstaternents
below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reparting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Ourevaluation of the Directors’ assessment
of the Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accountingincluded:

— We agreed the underlying cash flow
projections to Board approved forecasts
and assessed how these forecasts were
compiled. We compared the prior year
forecasts to actual performance to assess
management’s ability to farecast accurately

— Weevaluated the key assumptions within

the projections, namely forecast property
valuations and the levels of forecast net
rental income, under both a base scenario
and severe but plausible scenario. We did
sowithreference to avarlable third party
data sources, contractual rental income,
together with the most recent data on levels
of expected rental concessions/tenant
failure. We considered whetherthe severe
but plausible scenario included appropriate
sensitivities to factor in severe but plausible
variances fromthe base scenarioin respect
of both forecast property valuations and

net rentalincome, We also considered how
the Group’s Net Zero by 2030 climate
commitment had been factoredinto the
cash flow projections

We examined the minimum committed
facility headroocm under the base and
severe but plausible scenarios, and
evaluated whetherthe Directors’
conclusion, that sufficient liguidity
headroom existed to continue trading
operationally throughuut the period to
30 June 2024, was appropriate

We reviewed the terms of financing
agreemeants to determine whether forecast
covenant calculations were in line with those
agreementsand to determine whether the
maturity profile of the debt included within
the projections was accurate

We obtained and reperformed the Group’s
forecast covenant compliance calculations,
under both the base and severe but
plausible scenarios to assess the Directors’
conclusions on covenant compliance, We
reperformed the covenant compliance
modelling both excluding the impact of
refinancing challenges inthe associates,
and then including the impact of these
secured debt challenges

We abtained reporting from our component
auditors in respect of going concern and
consideredthe impact of theirconclusions
inour procedures, One compaonent auditor
withintheir reporting to us, drew attention
to a material uncertainty in respect of going
concernfortheir component that had been
identified by the componentmanagement
team. We verified Group management
appropriately factored this conclusion into
their Group going concern assessment

We reviewed the disclosures relating to the
going concern basis of preparation and we
found that these provided an explanation
ofthe Directors’ assessment that was
consistent with the evidence we obtained
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Based onthe work we have performed, we
have notidentified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individuatly
or collectively, may cast significant doubton
the Group'sandthe Company’s ahility to
continue as a goingconcern for a period of at
least 12 months from when the financial
statements are authorised forissue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future eventsor
conditions can be predicted, this conclusion

is nota guarantee as to the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Inrelationtothe Directors’ reporting an how
they have applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to the Directors’
staterent in the financial statements about
whether the Directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the gaing concern basis of accounting.

Ourresponsibilities and the responsibilities of
the Directors with respect to going concern are
describedinthe relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The otherinformation comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report otherthan
the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The Directors are responsible
forthe other information. Our opinion onthe
financial staterents does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not
exprass an audit opinion or, exceptto the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report,
any formof assurance thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility isto read the
otherinfarmation and, in doing so, consider
whetherthe otherinformation is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements

or aur knowlodge obtained in the audit,

or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. Ifwe identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to petlom procedures lu conclude
whetherthere fs a material mifsstatement of
the financial staterents or a material
risstatement of the otherinformation.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that thereis a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nathing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report, we also considered whether
the disclosures required by the UK Campanies
Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertakenin the course of
the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us
alsotoreport certain opinions and matters as
described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
Inouropinion, based on the work undertaken
inthe course of the audit, the information given
inthe Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
fortheyearended 31 December2022 s
consistent with the financial staterments and
has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and Company and their
environment obtained inthe course of the
audit, we did not identity any material
misstatements in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Raport.

Directors’ Remuneration

Inouropinion, the part of the Directars’
Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Ruies require us to review the
Directors’ statements in relation 10 going,
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the corporate governance statement relating
to the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corparate Governance
Code specified for our review. Qur additional
responsibilities with respectio the corporate
governance statement as other information
are described inthe Reporting o uller
information section of this repart.

Based onthe work undertaken as part of our
audit, we have concluded that each of the
following elements of the corporate
governance statement, included withinthe
Corporate Governance report is materially
consistent with the financial statements and
our knowledge obtamed during e audit, and
we have nothing material to add or draw
attentionioin relaticnto:

— The Directors’ confirmation that they have
carried out a robust assessment of the
emergingand principal risks

— Thedisclosures inthe Annual Report that
describe those principal risks, what
procedures are in place to identity emerging
risks and an explanation of how theseare
being managed or mitigated

— TheDirectors’ statement in thefinancial
statements about whether they considered
itappropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing them, and
theiridentification of any material
uncertainties tothe Group's and Company’s
ability to continue to do so over a period of
at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements

— The Directors’ explanation as to their
assessment of the Group's and Company's
prospects, the period this assessment
covers and why the pericd is appropriate

— TheDirectors’ statement as to whether
they have a reasonable expectationthat
the Company wili be able to continuein
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall
dueaver the period of its assessment,
including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualifications
orassumptions

Our review of the Directors' statement
regarding the longer-term viability of the Group
and Company was substantially less in scope
than anaudit and only consisted of making
inquiries and considering the Directors’
process supporting their staternent; checking
that the statement isin alignment with the
relevant provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code; and considering whether
the statementis consistentwith the financial
statements and our knowtedge and
understanding of the Group and Company
and theirenvironment obtained inthe course
of the audit.
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In addition, based onthe workundertaken as
part of our audit, we have concluded that each
of the following elements of the corporate
governance statement is materially consistent
with the financial staterments and our
knowledge obtained during the audit:

— The Diretlurs’ statement that they considler
the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair,
halanced and understandable, and provides
the information necessary for the members
t0 assess the Group's and Compay’s
position, perfarmance, business modet
andstrategy

— The section of the Annual Reportthat
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systerms

— The section of the Annual Report describing,
the work of the Audit Committee

We have nothingto report in respect of our
responsibility to report when the Directors’
staterment relating to the Company's
compliance with the Code does not properly
disclose adeparture fromarelevant provisian
of the Code specified under the Listing Rules
for review by the auditors.

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors forthe
financial statements

As aexplained more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ responsibilities, the Directars are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
framewaork andfor being satisfied that they
give atrue and fairview. The Directors are also
responsible for such internal control asthey
determine is necessary toenabla the
preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether
duetafraudorerror,

In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's and the Company’s ahility to continue
asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting Lnless
the Directors eitherintend to iguidate the
Group orthe Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to doso.



Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
andtoissue anauditors' reportthatincludes
ouropinion. Reasonable assuranceisahigh
levelof assurance, but is nata guarantes
thatanaudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
canarise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken nn the basis
of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances

of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
materialmisstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our pracedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and
industry, we identified that the principal nsks
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to tax legislation including the Real
Cstate Investment Trust (RETT) requirements,
UK Companies Act 2006 requirements and
listing requiremzntsincluding the UK FCA
Listing Rules, and we considered the extent to
which nan-compliance might have amaterial
effectonthe financial statements. We
evaluated management’s incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were related to posting
inappropriate journal entries to increase
revenue, and management bias in accounting
estimates. The Group engagement team
shared thisrisk assessment with the component
auditors so thatthey could include appropriate
audit procedures in response to such risks n
theirwork. Audit procedures performed by the
Group engagement team and/or component
auditors included:

— Discussions with management, internal
auditand those charged with governance,
including consideration of known or
suspected instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulation and fraud

— Reviewing minutes of meetings ofthose
charged with governance
— Evaluation of management’s controls

designed to prevent and detect
irregulanties

— Designing audit procedures toincorporate
unpredictability into our testing

— Evaluation of the Group’s compliance with
the REIT requirements

— Challenging assumptions and judgements
madc by management in Lheir significant
accounting estimates, in particularin relation
to thevaluation ofinvestment property
(seerelated key audit matters abave)

— Identifying and testing journal entries,
in particular any journal entries postedto
revenue with unusual account combinations
or posted by senior management

— Reviewingfinancial staterment disclosures
and testing lusupporting documentation to
assess compliance with applicable laws
and regulations

There are inherent imitations in the audit
procedures described above. We are less
likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations
that are not closely related to events and
transactions reflectedin the financial
statements. Alsg, 1he risk of not detecting a
material misstaternent due to fraudis higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate
concealment by, for example, forgery
orintentional misrepresentations,
orthrough collusion.

Curaudit testing might include testing
complete populations of certain transactions
and balances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. However, it typically involves
selecting a limited number of items for testing,
rather than testing complete populations.
We will often seek to target particular iterns
for testing based on their size or risk
characteristics. In other cases, we willuse
audit samplingtoenableustodrawa
conclusion about the population from which
the sampleis selected.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for
the auditof the financial staterments is located
onthe FRC’s website at: www fre.org.uk/
auditors responsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been
prepared forand anly forthe Company’s
members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose. We donot,

in giving these opinions, accept or assume
respansihility forany other purpose ortoany
other person to whom this report is shown
orinto whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our priorconsent
inwriting,
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, inour opinion;

— we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we reguire tor our audit; or

— adeguate accounting records have not
been kept by the Company, orreturns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

— certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

— the Companyfinancial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns,

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendaticn of the Audit
Committee, we were appointed by the
members on 25 April 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the yearended

31 December 2017 and subsequent financial
periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagementis sixyears, coveringthe

years ended 31 December 2017 to

31 December 2022,

Othermatter

Indue course, asrequired by the Financial
Conduct Authority Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4.1,14R, these financial
statements will form part of the ESEF-
prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial
Conduct Authority in accordance with the ESEF
Regulatory Technica!l Standard (ESEF RTS).
This auditors’ report provides no assurance
overwhether the annualfinancial report will
be prepared using the single electronic format
specified inthe ESEF RTS.

Sonia Copeland (Senior Statutory Auditor)}
forand on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

8 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December2022

2022 2021
(Restated)
Notes £m £m
Reverue — T AT ama
Profit from operating activities t a 2 29.7 50
Revaluation loss on properties 1 2 {(82.7) (169.6)
Other net gains 2 0.6 187
Share ofresults of joint ventures 138 {a1.5) (173
Impairment of joint ventures 104 - (11.5)
Share of results of associates - 148 (71 156
Operating loss (101.0} (31G.1)
Finance income 7 26.1 151
Financecosts - B (13D
Loss before tax (164.0) (408.0)
Taxcharge R - SN | ) B o W)
Loss from continuing operations (164.2) (409.3)
Loss from discontinued operations - e o - | - _ (158
Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders o e {%ea) (429.)
Basic and diluted loss per share b
Continuing operations 118 (3.3)p 8.3)p
Discontinuedoperations ) e Lus - (©4p
Total (3.3)p 8.7p

—t

2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided innotes 1B and 6.

a Includesacharge of £4.0m (2021: £13.5m) and an equivalent creditof £10.7m (2021: credn of £16.6m) relating to pravisions for impairment of trade (tenant)

receivablesassetoutinnote 165D.
b 2021 loss pershare figures have heen restated toincorporate the bonus element of sorip dividenas
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Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 127

2022 2021
£m £m

Loss forthe year from continuing operations
Loss fortheyear from discontinued operations

Lossfortheyear

(164.2)  (409.3)

= (19.8}

(164.2)  (425.1)

Recycled through the profit or loss on disposal of overseas property interests

Exchange gain previously recognised in the translation reserve - (55.2
Exchange Inss previausly recognised in the netinvestment hedge reserve - 442
Netexchange loss relating to equity shareholders a - (11.0)
Itemsthat may subsequently be recycled through profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation differences 130.6 (139.7)
(Loss)/gain on netinvestrment Medge (103.4) 112.2
Net loss on cash flow hedge (1.9) 1.7}
Share of other comprehensive gainof associates 233 13
48.6 (27.9)
Items that will not subsequently be recycled through profit or loss
Netactuarial {losses)/gains on pension schemes (26.7) 18.9
Totalother compjghensiveincome/(loss) b 219  (20.0)

Total comprehensive loss forthe year

(142.3)  (449.1)

a 2021:Relates tothe sale of the Group’s 25% interest in Espace Saint-Quentin and 10% interest in Nicetolle.

b Allitems within total ather comprehensive income/(loss) relate to continuing operations.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Asat 31 December 2022

2022 2021
(Restated and
re-presented)
Note £m £m
Eﬁrrent assets ) S - T T
Investment properties 12 1,461.0 1,561.4
Intrrasts inleasehold properties 34.0 32.9
Right-of-use assets 2.5 3R
Plant and equipment 1.4 14
Tnvestment in jointventures 13C 1,342.4 1.451.8
Investment in associates 14¢ 1,297.1 1,247.0
Otherinvestments 9.8 95
Trade and other receivables 154 3.2 19.5
Derivative financial instruments 194 7.0 186
Restricted monetary assets - — o deA 2124 214
' 4,186.8  4,367.3
Current assets
Trading properties 1z 36.2 34.3
Trade and other receivables 158 859 84.8
Derivative hinancialinstruments 19A 0.1 73
Restricted monetary assets T 16A 8.6 337
Cashandcashequivalents - ot 1e8 2188 0 3151
' ) 349.6 475.2
Assetsheldforsale o ea = 71t
) e . 3496 546.6
Totalassets - 45364 49139
Current liahilities ) - - '
Trade and other payables 17 (168.3) (179.4)
Obligations underhead leases 20 (©.2) -
Tax (0.5) {0.6)
Derivative financial nstruments A (161 -
’ (185.1)  (180.0)
Non-current liahilities
Trade and other payables 17 (56.3} (56.5)
Obligations under head leases 20 (38.1) (36.4)
Loans 188  (1,646.4) (1,834.8)
Deferred tax (0.4) (0.4
Derivatix@gﬂzﬁl_al instrements ) ) o _1%A (23.'7)_ RN
, i ' i ) o ' (1.764.9) (1,987.9)
Totalllabilittes 7 - , . (1.950.0) (2.167.9)
Netassets - - ] | 2,586.4 27460
Equity T - ) o )
Share capital 218 250.1 221.0
Share premium 1,563.7 15932
Merger reserve - 3741
Capital redemption reserve * - 207.6
Otherreserves * 218 135.4 110.0
Retaired earnings * 646.0 243.5
Irvestmentin own shares ) . ) - ) ) _(8.8) _ 35
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,586.4 2,74539
Non-controllinginterests - - o - _ 01
Totalequity ) - 25864 2,746

EPRA net tangible assets value per'sharé ne 53p

'6%

T 2021 hgures have tean “astated to reflect the IFRIC Decisian an Depasits with futhar nformatian provided in netes 18a1d 16
* Cerainreserves for 2021 marked ™ have been re-presented as se* out in the consolidated staternent of changes inequity.

These inancial statements were approved by the Board on 8 March 2023 and signed an its behalf by:

Rita-Rose Gagné Himanshu Raja
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Yearended 31 December 2022

Capital Invest- Equity Non-
redemp- ment share- con-
Share Share Merger tion Other Retained inown helders’ trolling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves earnings shares funds interests equity
Note £; £m £r: £nl: £n(1: Em Er: £m £m £m
At1January 2022 2210 1,593.2 3741 207.6 110.0 2435 (3.5)|2,745.9 0.1 2,746.0
Reclassification o o d - - - (9.4) - 9.4 - - - =
At 1 January 2022 — re-presented 221.0 1,593.2 3741 1%8.2 1210.0 2529 (3.5);2,745.9 0.1 2,746.0
Foreign exchange translation differences — — - - 1307 - - | 130.7 (0.1) 130.6
Loss on net investment hedge - - - - (103.49) - - | (103.4) - (103.4)
Gain on cash flow hedge - - - - 6.3 - - 6.3 - 6.3
Gainoncash flow hedge recycled tonet
finance costs - - - - (8.2) - - (8.2) - (8.2)
Share of other comprehensive gain of
associates - - - - - 23.3 - 233 - 23.3
Net actuarial losses on pension schemes 23C - - - - - (26.7) - (26.7) - (26.7)
Lossfortheyear - - - - - (164.2) - | (164.2) - (164.2)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - 25.4 (167.6) -1 (142.2) {0.1) (142.3)
Transfer be - - (374.1) (198.2) - 5723 - - - -
Share-based employee remuneration - - - - - 3.0 - 30 - 3.0
Cnst of shares awarded to employees - - - - - (1.4) 1.4 - - -
Purchase of own shares - - - - - — (6.7) (6.7) - (6.7)
Divicends 22 - - - - - (140.3) - | {140.3) - (140.3)
Seripdividend related shareissue 29.1 (29.1) - - - 1271 —| 127.1 - 1274
Scrip dividend related share issue costs B = 04 - - - - - (0.4) - (0.4}
At 31 December 2022 250.1 1,563.7 - - 1354 6460 (8.8)|2,586.4 - 2,586.4
a Share capitalincludes shares held in treasury and shares held in an employee share trust, which are held at cost and excluded from equity shareholders’ funds

[=1

through ‘Investment in own shares’ with further information set outin note 21A.

The capital redemption reserve comprised £14.3mrelating to share buybacks which arose overa number of years up to 2019 and £183.9m resulting from the
cancellation of the Company’s shares as part of the reorganisation of share capital in 2020. Following approval by the Court on 22 November 2022, thisreserve
has been reclassified as available for distribution ta shareholders in accordance with ICAEW Technical Release 02/17BL section 2.8Aand asaresult has bean
transferred to retained earnings.

From 1 January 2022, ‘Other reserves’ now comprises Translation, Netinvestment hedge and Cash flow hedge reserves as setout innote 21B.

The share-based employee remuneration reserve was previously segregated separately within ‘Other reserves’ and for the purposes of presentation in this
report, for the yearended 31 December 20271 has been renamed ‘Capital and share-based reserves’. This share-based employee remuneration reserve has now
heen reclassified into retained earnings to reflect that it forms part of this reserve. The remaining component of the previously named ‘Other reserves’ was the
capital redemption reserve and has accordingly been renamed as such.

The merger reserve arose in September 2014 froma placing of new shares using a structure which resulted in merger relief being taken under Section 612 of the
Companies Act 2006. Following receipt of the proceeds in 2014 and the relevant criteria enabling use of the reserve having been satishied, the amountsinthe
merger reserve are deemed distributable and accordingly the balance of this reserve has been transferred to retained earnings.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Yearended 31 December 2021

Capital
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and [nvest- Equity
share- ment share- Non-con-
Share Share Merger based Other  Retained inown  holders’ trolling Total
capital premidm reserve  reserves  reserves  earmings Share}s tunds  interests equity
Note £m £m £m Erg {-‘n(":l £m En: £€m £m £m
AtlJanuary 2021 2029 16119 3741 2071 1502 6630 (0.4)|3,2088 01 3,2089
Recycled exchange gain on disposal of
overseas property interests - - - - (110 - - 1o - {11.0)
roreign exchange translation differences (129.7) - - | (1397 - (1397
Gainonnetinvestmenthedge - - - - 11272 - - 112.2 - 1122
Loss on cash flow hedge — - - - 1.9 - - 1.9) - 1.9
Loss on cash flow hedge recycled to net
finance costs - - - - 02 - - 02 - 02
Share of other comprehansive gain of
associates — - — - - 13 - 1.3 - 13
Netactuarial gains on pension schermes 23¢ - — — - - 18.9 — 18.9 - 18.9
Lossfor theyear - - - - - {429.1) - (4291 - {429.1)
Total comprehensive loss - - - - 40.2) (408.9) -1 (449.1) - {449.1)
Share-based employee remuneration - - - 33 - - - 33 - 33
Costof shares awarded to employees - - - 04 - - 04 - - -
Transfer onaward of own sharesto employees - - - 2.4 - 24 - - - -
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - (3.5 (3.5) - (3.5)
Dividends 22 - - - - - (1357} — | (135.7) - (1357
Scrip dividend related shareissue 18.1 (18.1) - — - 1227 —| 1227 - 1227
Scrip dividend related share issue costs - (0.6) - - - = - (0.6) - 0.6)
At 31 December2021 221.0 1,5932 3741 2076 1100 2435 (3.5)(2,745.9 0.1 2,746.0
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2021
2022 (Restatedand
re-presented)

Note £m £m

Profitfrom operating activities T 29.7 8.0
Net movements in working capital and restricted monetary assets 1 244 2.6 4.3
Non-cash items T T 248 (08 (93]
Cash generated from operations T 315 3.0
Interest received 18.1 20.5
Interest paid (69.1) (101.4)
Redemgpticn premiums and fees from early repayment of debt - (19.8)
Debt and loan facility issuance and extensicn fees (2.8) (5.2)
Premiums on hedging derivatives (3.9) (20.8)
Tax repaid/(paid) 0.3 (2.0)
Distributions and other receivables from joint ventures 8§9.5 457
Distributions from joint ventures reclassified as assets held for sale 6.0 —
Cash flows from operating activities b 69.6 (80.0)
Investing activities
Capital expenditure {36.4) (76.2)
Sale of properties 124.0 7.0
Sate of investrmentsin joint ventures 67.9 485
Saleofinvestments in associates - 21.2
Advances tojoint ventures (4.0) (14.00
Distributions and capital returns received from associates 26 21
Cash flows from investing activities 154.1 (11.4)
Financing activities
Share issue expenses {0.5) {2.5)
Proceeds from award of own shares 0.1 0.1
Purchase of ownshares {6.7) {3.5)
Proceeds from new Borrowings - 596.5
Repayment of Borrowings (302.4) (929.4)
Fquity dividends paid o R 22 (13.2} (249
Cash flows from financing activities B - (322.7) (363.7)
Decrease/(increase) incashand cash equivalents
— continuing operations T {99.0) (455.1)
— discontinued operations - o 9c - 3548

1 (99.00 (100.3)
Opening cash and cash equivalents T 248 315.1 417.5
Exchangetranslationmovement 24B 27 (2.1
Closing cash and cash equivalents t 248 218.8 3151

2021 hgures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with furtherinformation provided in notes 1B and 6 and the IFRIC Decision on

Deposits with furtherinformation provided innotes 1Band 16.

Cashflows for the year ended 31 December 2021 were previously presented teinclude discontinued operations aliocated into each individual line itemn.
The figures above have been re-presented to show only cash flows arising from continuing operations {consistent with the presentation used inthe consolidated

Income staternent). Further detail on cash flows from discontinued operations brought in as asingle line item are set out in note 9C.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

A.GENERAL INFORMATION

Hammerson plcis a UK public company limited by shares incorporated
under the Companies Act and is registered in England and Wales.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Marble Arch House,
66 Seymour Street, London W1H 58X,

The Group'’s principal activities are as an owner, operator and developer of
sustainable prime urban real estate whereby the Group owns and invests
n flagship destinations, developments, and premium outlets across the
United Kingdom (UK) and Europe.

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in aceordance
with both UK-adopted international accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No1606/2002asitapplies in the European Union, (IFRS adopted by the
European Union as at 31 December 2020}, as well as SAICA Financial
Reporting Guides asissued by the Accounting Practices committee and
those parts of the Cormpanies Act 2006 as applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS.

New accounting standards, amendments to standards and IFRIC
interpretations which became applicable during the year or have been
published but are not yet effective, were either not relevant or had no, orno
materialimpact on the Group's results or net assets, except forthe following
IFRIC agenda decisions that were issued during the year which have
resulted in accounting policy changes as follows:

— InApril2022, the IFRIC issued an agenda decision in respect of the
presentation of ‘Demand deposits with restrictions on use arising from
a contract with athird party’ {the ‘IFRIC Decision on Deposits’). The
conclusions were that restrictions on use which arise froma contract with
athird party donot alone change the nature of amaounts being classified
as cash and cashequivalents. In light of this, areview has been
undertaken of amounts disclosed as ‘restricted meonetary assets’. Ithas
beendetermined that the use of certain tenant deposit and service
charge amounts arerestricted only by a contract with a third party. Asa
result, in applying the agenda decision, such amounts for 2024 have
been restated toreflect this change with analysis set outinnote 16.

= InOctober 2022, the IFRIC finalised an agenda decision inrespect of
‘Lessorforgiveness of lease payments (IFRS 9 and IFRS 16)'(the ‘IFRIC
Decision on Concessions’). This concluded that where forgiven amounts
are already past due and recognised as operating lease receivables,
these should be accounted for by charging to the inrcome statement on
the date that the legal rights are conceded. Historically, the Group’s
treatment of such concessions, which arose as aresult of the Covid-19
pandemic, has beentorecognise these as lease modifications such that
theimpact was iritially held or: the balance sheet and then spread
forward into the income statement over the lease term or period to first
break. Incentives classified withinirvestment properties resulted in
movernents in tenant incentives which were recognised with an equal
and opposite offsetin revaluation losses. As aresult of implementirg
the change, 2021 figures have been restated whereby Reported Group
reverue, gross rental income, retrental incorme and revaluation losses
are affected although operating profit and income statement figures
below are unaffected. The equivalent Adjusted figures are also affected
includirg those down to Adjusted earnings. More detailed aralysis of the
financial statement effects are set outin note 6.

Where figures have been restated, these are marked 1.
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Thefinancial statements are preparad on the historical cost basis, except
that investment properties, other investments and derivative financial
instruments are stated at fair value. Other than the effects of the agenda
decisions, accounting pclicies have been applied consistently, however,
inorder to enhance and aid the users’ understanding, cerfain figures have
been re-presented as described inthe applicable parts of the financial
staterments, together with certain other presentational changes made with
the objective of simplification.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incarporate the financial statements
ofthe Companyand entities controlled by the Company {its subsidiaries).
Controtis achieved where the Company has the power over the investee,

is exposed, or has rights, to variable return fromits involvement with the
investee and has the ability to use its powerto affect its returns.

The results of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are included inthe
consolidated income statement when controlis achieved, which is usually
from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal
whichis usually on completion of the transaction. All intragroup transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies used into
line with those used by the Group.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method
where any excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired and the resulting
deferredtax thereon is recognised as goodwill which is then reviewed
annually forimpairment. Acquisition related costs are expensed.

Joint operations, joint ventures and associates

The accounting treatment for joint operations, joint ventures and associates
requires anassessment to determine the degree of control or influence that
the Group may exercise overthem and the form of that control.

The Group’sinterestinjoint arrangements is classified as either:

— ajointoperation: not operated through an entity but by joint controlling
parties which have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities; or

— ajointventure: whereby the joint controlling parties have rights to the net
assets of thearrangement.

The Group's interests in its joint arrangements are commonly driven by the
terms of partnership agreements, which ensure that controlis shared
betweenthe partners.

Associates are those entities over which the Group s in a position to exercise
significantinfluenze, but not control or jcintly control.

Tre Group's share of interests in joint operations is proportionally
consolidated into the Group financial statements.

Theresults, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are accounted
for using the equity method. Investments in joint ventures and associates
are carried in the consclidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post
acquisition charges in the Group’s share of the net assets ofthe joint
venture orassociate, less any impairment. Loans to joint ventures and
associates are aggregated into the Group's investment in the consolidated
balance sheet, The Group eliminates upstrearm and downstream transactiors
withits jointventures, includirg interest and management fees.



Any losses of joint ventures orassociates are initially recognised against
the equity investment, however, ifinexcess of the Group's equity interest,
losses arerecognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.
If the Group's equity Investment is £nil, the share of losses isrecognised
againstother long terminterests or if such interests are not available,
losses are simply restricted to leave the Group’s eyuily inveshiment
remaining at £nil,

Distributions and otherincome received from joint ventures are included
within cash flows from operating activities owing to their association with
the underlying profits of the joint venture whereas all other cash flows are
recognised as investing activities, Distributions reduce the carrying value
of the Group's investments in jcint ventures and associates.

C.ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (APMs)

The Group uses anumber of performance measures which are non-1FRS.
The key measures comprise the following:

— Adjusted measures: Used by the Directors and management to monitor
business performance internally and exclude the same items as for EPRA
earnings, butalsc certaincash and non-cash items which they believe are
notreflective of the normal day-to-day operating activities of the Group.
Furthermore, the Group evaluates the performance of its portfolio by
aggregating its share of joint ventures and associates which are under the
Group's management ('Share of Property interests’) on a proportionally
consolidated basis including, where applicable, discontinued operations.
The Directers believe that disclosing such non-1FRS measures enables
areadertoisolate and evaluate the impact of such items on results and
allows for a fuller understanding of performance from year to year.
Adjusted performance measures may not be directly comparable with
othersimilarly titled measures used by other companies.

— EPRAearnings and EPRA net assets: Calculated in accordance with
guidanceissued by the European Public Real Estate Association
recommended bases.

— Headline earnings: Calculated in accordance with the requirements of
the Johannesburg Stock Exchange listing requirements.

Areconciliation between reported and the above alternative earnings and
net asset measuresissetoutinnote 10.

D. GOING CONCERN

Introduction

The Directors have undertaken a detailed going concern assessment,
considering the Group's principal risks and current and projected financial
position over the periodto 30 June 2024 (‘the going concern period’).

This period has been selected as it coincides with the first sixmonthly
covenanttest date forthe Group’s unsecured borrowing facilities falling
due after the minimum 12 months going concern period. The assessment
process involved the preparation of two scenarios: a ‘Base’ scenaricand a
‘Severe but plausible’ scenaric. Inaddition the Directors reviewed covenant
reverse stress tests overthe going concern period.

The two scenarios take account of the latest economic and trading outlook,
including geopoliticaluncertainty, primarily related to the ongoing war

in Ukraine, and the associated economic challenges on both consumers
and businesses from high inflation, rising interest rates and supply

chain pressures.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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Financing poasition

At 31 December 2022, all borrowings in the Reported Group were
unsecured and subject to covenants relating to the Group's gearing, interest
cover, secured borrowings as a propoertion of equity shareholders’ funds,
and unencumbered asset ratio, the latter covenant only being applicable

to the private placement notes. As explained in the Financial Review,

there was significant headroom under each ot these covenants and the
Group also had liquidity of £996m, This position results in the Group having
no unsecured refinancing required until 2025 which is not covered by
available cash.

The Group also has exposure to secured borrowings in three of its joint
ventures (Dundrum, Highcross and O'Parinor) and its associate, Value
Retail. These secured facilities are subject to covenants, principally relating
to loan to value and interest cover and are non-recourse to the Group.

This means that the lenders only have security over the nroperty assets
held by the joint venture or Value Retailand the Groupis not liable for any
repayment shortfall. Also, a covenant breach or acceleration of any of these
facilities would not cause a cross-default under any of the Group’s
unsecured borrowings or any of the other secured loans.

At 31 December 2022 the Group's share of secured borrowings initsjoint
ventures was £392m and in Value Retail, accounted for as an associate,
£762m. The loans secured against Highcross and O'Parinor and three loans
held by Value Retail mature over the going concern period. The Group's
share of these loans was £234m at 371 December 2022. The loan secured
against Dundrum, Group's share £266m, matures in September 2024, just
outside of the going concern period. During 2022, Value Retail successfully
raised over £1.0bn by refinancing three secured loans, the largest being a
£693m five year loan secured against Bicester Village which was completed
in December 2022.

Scenario assumptions

Base scenario

The going concern scenarios, which exclude disposals and refinancing
assumptions, were constructed from the Group's Business Plan (‘the Plan’),
which was approved by the Board in December 2022 and tock into account
the challenges in the market cutlock referred to above and risk of recession.
Nonetheless, the Plan assumed a stable near term operational performance
supported by the Group’s strong leasing pipeline and the recovery in
collections and footfall seen over the course of 2022. Recognising the
heightened rmacreeconomic uncertainty and pressures, investment
markets were forecast to remain challenging with property values forecast
tofallin 2023, before growing in 2024. The assumptions and projections
inthe Plan have been incorporated into the Base scenario.

Severe but plausible scenario

In developing the Group’s Severe but plausible scenario the Board has
assumed a number of connected adverse impacts to the Group’s cperating
metrics and valuations which directly effect the Group's unsecured
borrowing covenants. The assumptions in the Severe but plausible scenario,
have been determined using available benchmarks and external forecasts,
and are based on a more severe economic downturn than anticipatedin the
Base scenario and include over the gaing concern period:

— A5 percentage pointsincrease inforecast vacancy above the Base
scenarip due totenant failure and a weaker leasing performance

— A10%reduction invariable income from turnover rent, car parksand
commercialisation relative to the Base scenario associated with lower
forecast footfall

— Anallowance forincreased credit loss provisions from lower collections
and tenantfailure

— Nocashdistributions from Value Retail

— Dividends Iimited to match minimum REIT requirements based on the
revised earnings projections inthe Severe but plausible scenario
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D. GOING CONCERN cortinued

Scenario assumptions contirued

— Reduction incapital expenditure to a total ot £100m over the going
concern period

— Weaker investment markets with lower valuations

These adverse assumptions, result in forecast net rental incorme (NRI)
over the going concern period being ¢.70% of 2022 NRI andthe Group’s
property portfolio reporting a capital return of -13% equivalent to a
revaluation loss of almost £700m.

Treatment of private placement notes

Duetothe forecast valuation reductions in both scenarios, the headroom
under the Group’s unencumbered asset ratio covenant is fully eroded by the
end of the going concern period in the Base scenario. This covenantis only
appticable to the private placement notes which totalled £191m at

31 December 2022, and for going concern modelling purpases to avoid the
risk of breach, both scenarios assume that the notes are fully redeemed in
2023 using existing liquidity.

Secured horrowing refinancing risks

Inrelationtothe £234m of secured loans held by two joint ventures and
Value Retail which mature over the going concern period, since the yearend
areceiver was appaointed by the lenders on Highcross and refinancing
planning or lender discussions are ongoing on the othertcans. However, as
atthe date of this report, no contractual refinanc:ng agreerments have been
reached. Therefore, for going concern modelling purposes, it has been
assumed that the lenders enforce security over these assets with the Group
recognising anmimpairment of its net investment in these assets.

Scenario outcomes and reverse stress tests

Having prepared the two scenarios on the basis of the assumptiors
explained above, under both scenarios, the Group 1s forecast to retain
significant Liquidity andis able to mest its obligations as they fall due over
the course of the gaing concern peried. Itis also forecast to remain
compliant with all the remaining unsecured debt covenants over the going
concern period, with gearing and interest cover being the most critical for
the going concern assessment.

The key variables impacting these two covenants are valuation movements
for the gearing covenant, and changes i net rental income for the interest
cover covenant. Netirterest cost alsoimpacts the interest cover ratio,
however as at 31 December 2022, 849% of the Group's debt (ircluded in this
covenant) is at fixed interest rates, whichlimits the near term volatility of this
element of the covenant. The percentage of fixed debtis forecast to remain
broadly unchanged over the goirg corcern period.

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratic could withstand areduction in
the value ofthe Group’s property portfolio of 28%, and forthe interest cover
covenant, areduction in NRI {relative to 2022 net rental income) of 61%.
Giventhe adverse assumptions adopted in the Severe but plausible
scenario, the level of covenant headroom is forecast todiminish over the
goingconcern period such that, at its lowest point, in June 2024, the
covenant headroom to further valuation falls is forecast as . 15% forthe
gearing covenantard c. 45% for lower net rentalincome under the irterest
cover coverant.

The Board considers that these levels of valuation and net rental income
reductions over the going concern period, which are significantly in excess
ofthose assumed inthe Group's Severe but plausible scenario, are remaote.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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Mitigating actions

The successful delivery of the Group's strategy will continue to strengthen

the Group’s financial position. From a going cancern perspective, akey

clement of thisis to deliver aresilient and sustainable capital structure, and

additional actions which have not been factored intc the going concern

assessmentare: ‘

— The completion of the Group’s disciplined dispesals programme of
c.E£500mover2022 and 2023

— Refinancing of maturing loansinthe ordinary course of business,
particularly by Value Retail, where following the successful reinancaing
activities in 2022, their management remain confident of refinancing
tuture maturing loans

Conclusion

Having undertaken the assessment described above, over the going
concern period, under both scenarios the Group isforecast toretain
significant liquidity and is able to meet its obligations as they fall due.

The Group s also forecast to retain significant headroom under the gearing
and interest cover covenants inits unsecured borrowings. Thisncludes the
impact of a fullimpairment of the net investrment in relation to secured loans
maturing over the going concern periad. This cutcome demonstrates the
Group’s ability to withstand such an adverse cutcome, even in the Severe
hut plausible scenario.

The Directors are therefore able to conclude that they have areasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources tocontinugin
operational existence and meet its liabilities astheyfall due for at least the
next 12 months and have accordingly prepared the financial statements
onthe going corcernbasis.

E. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue

Revenue comprises gross rental income (consisting of base and turnover
rents, income from car parks, lease incentive recognition and other rental
income), service charge income, property fee income and joint venture and
associate management fees. Theseincome streams are recognisedin the
period to whichthey relate as set out below.

Rentalincome from investment property is recognised as revenue on
astraight line basis over the lease terrm. Lease incentives and costs
associated withenteringintotenant leases are amortised over the lease
termas areducticnin rentalincome. Lease modifications are accounted for
as anew lease fror the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of
the lease payments for the new lease. On enteninginto alease medification
any initial direct costs associated with the lease, including surrerder premia
previously paid, are derecognised through rental experse in the year. Rent
reviews are recognised when such reviews have been agreed with tenants.

Contingentrents, being those lease payments that are not fixed at the
inception of a lease, for example increases arising an rent reviews and
turnover rent, are variable corsideratior and are recorded as income using
the most reliable estimates of such corsideration ir the periodsir which
they are earned and based or the mostreliable estimates of the valug of
such consideration
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

UnderIFRS 15, the Group's revenue from contracts with customers
includes service charge income, property fee income, car park income
and joint venture and associate management fees and is recognised in
accordance with the following performance obligations:

— Service charge income, property feeincome and joint venture and
associate management fees are recognised over the period the
respective services are provided

— Carparkincome is recognised at the pointin time when the customer
has completed use of their car parking space

Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution pension plans

The cost of defined contribution schemes is expensed asincurred.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Defined henefit pension plans

The Group has one funded plan where assets are held in separate trustee
administered funds. The Group also provides other unfunded pension
benefits to certain members.

The Group's net abligation comprises the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned, discounted todetermine a present value, less the
fairvalue of the pension plan assets. The cost of providing benefitsunder
defined benefit arrangerments are determined separately for each plan
using the projected unit credit method, with valuations being carried out
by external actuaries.

The presentvalue of the defined benefit obligationis determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates ot high
quality corporate bonds that have terms toc maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pensicn obligation. A net pension assetisonly
recognised to the extent that it is expected to be recoverable in the future
andthe assetis limited to the present value of any future refunds from the
plan orrecuction in future contributions to the plan. In accordance with
IFRIC 14, the Group recognises a pension surplus on adefined benefit
pension planifit hasalegal right to receive that surplus on winding up.

The netinterest costis calculated by applying the discount rate tothe net
halance of the defined benefit obligation and the farr value of the plan
assets. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustrments and
changes in actuarial assumpticns are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise,

Share-based payments

Equity settled share-based employee remuneration is determined with
referencetothe fairvalue (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting
conditicns) of the equity instruments at the date of grant and is expensed
over the vesting period on a straight line basis.

The fair value of share options which are subject only tointernal
performance criteria or service conditions are measured using input factors
including the exercise price, expected volatility, option life and risk-free
interest rate. For all schemes, the number of options expected to vestis
recatculated at each balance sheet date, based onexpectations of leavers
orior tovesting. The fairvalue of the market-based elernent of the Restricted
Share Planis calculated using the Monte Carlo model which is dependent
on factorsincluding the expected volatility, vesting period and risk-free
interestrate.

Finance costs

Netfinance costs

Net finance costs include interest payable on debt, derivative financial
instruments, interest on head leases and other lease obligations, debtand
loan facility cancellation costs, net of interest capitalised, interest receivable
on fundsinvested and derivative financial instruments, and changes inthe
fair value of derivative financialinstruments.

Capitalisation of interest

Interestis capitalised ifitis directly attributable to the acquisition,
canstruction or production of development properties or the significant
recdevelopment of investment properties. Capitalisation commences when
the activities to develop the property start on site and continues until the
property is substantially ready for its intended use, normally practical
completion. Capitalised interest is calculated with reference to the actual
rate payable on loans for development purposes or, for that partof the
development cost financed out of general funds, at the Group's weighted
average interestrate.

Tax

Tax exempt status

The Company has elected for UK REIT, French STIC and Irish QIAIF status.
Ta continue to benefit from these tax regimes, the Group is required to
comply with cartain conditions as outlined in note 8A. Management intends
that the Group willcontinue as a UK RETT, aFrench SIIC and an Irish QIAIF
for the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax

laxisincludedinthe consolidated income statement except to the extent
thatit relates to tems recognised directly in equity, in which case the related
taxis recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the non-tax exempt income for
the period, net of allowable expenses and tax deductions, using the tax
rate(s) prevailing during the accounting period, together with any adjustment
in respectcf previous periods.

Deferred taxis provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing
for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for:

— Goodwill not deductible for tax purposes
— Theinitial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit

— Differences relating to investrments in subsidiaries to the extent that they
will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled orthe asset is realised.

Adeferredtax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
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Foreign currency

Income statement

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at exchange
rates approximating to the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

I'he cperating income and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year. Significant
transactions, such as property sales, are translated atthe forelgn exchange
rate ruling at the date of each transaction.

Transactions with joint ventures including distributions, interest and
management fees are eliminated on a proportionate basis. The Group's
financial performance is not materially impacted by seasonality.

Balance sheet

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling
atthatdate and, unless they relate to the hedging of the net investment in
foreign operations, differences arising on translation are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The assets and liabilities of foreigr operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated into sterling at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the netinvestrmentin
foreign operations are taken to the translation reserve. They are released to
the censolidated income staterment upon disposal of the foreign operation.

Exchangerates
The principal foreign currency derominated balances are ineurowhere the
translation exchange rates used are:

Consolidated income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

Averagerate 2022
Quarter 1 €1.195 €1.145
Quarter2 €1.179 €1.160
Quarter 3 €1.168 €1.169
Quarter 4 €1.150 €1.1/9

Consolidated balance sheet

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

;(ear end rate €1.128 £€1.191

Investment properties and trading properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value, being market value
determined by professionally qualified externalval.ers, and changes

in fair value are included in the consolidated income statement. Accordirgly,
no depreciation is provided.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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Expenditure incurred on investment properties is capitalised where it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the investment
property will flow to the entity, and the cost can be reliably measured. This
includes the recognition of capitalised tenant incentives, less amartisation
and impairment, capitalised interest and other capital expenditure.

Investment properties held for future sale are transferred to Trading
properties within current assets al the [air value al the date of hansferand
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Interests in leasehold properties

The Group awns anumber of properties on long leaseholds under cperating
leases from freeholders or superior leaseholders which are depreciated
overthe lease term. Atthe commencement of alease, the Group recognises
lease lizhilities for the buildings element of the leasehold, disclosed as
abligations under head leases, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments to be made over the term of the lease. Payments to the freeholder
arsuperior leaseholder are apportioned between afinance charge and a
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance chargeis allocated toeach
period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Contingent rents and variable rents payable which are not dependent onan
index, such as rent reviews or those related to rental income, are expensed
in the pericd to which they relate. Where at inception or at some point during
the course of the lease, rents are fixed, or are in substance fixed, a right-of -
use asset is created and a corresponding liability for the present value of the
minimum future lease payments recognised cnthe balance sheet.

Right-of-use assets

The Group has leases for each of its offices. Leased assets are capitalised
oninception of the lease asright-of-use assets and depreciated over the
shorter of the non-cancellable lease pericd and any extension options that
are considered reasonably certain to be taken orthe useful lite of the asset.

Acorresponding lease liability, representing the present value of the lease
payments isalso recognised, The discounted lease (iability is calculated
where possible using the interest rate implicit in the lease or where this s
notattainable the incremental borrowing rate is utilised. The incremental
borrowing rate is the rate the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtainasimilar asset under similar conditions. The Group
calculates the incrementat borrowing rate using therisk free rate of the
country wherethe assetis held, adjusted for length of the lease and

arisk premium.

Lease payments are allecated against the principal and finance cost.
Finance costs, representing the unwinding of the discount onthe lease
liability are expersed to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest onthe
remaining liability.

Cloud software license agreements and intangible assets

When the Group incurs configuration and customisation costs as part of
acloud-hased software-as-a-service (SaaS) agreement, and where this
does rot resultinthe creation of an asset which the Group has control over,
suck costs are expensed. Licerce agreements to use cloud software are
treated as service contracts and expensed, unless the Group hasbotha
contractual right to take possession of the software at any time without
significant penalty, and the ability to run the software independently of the
Fostvendor. Insuch cases the licence agreement is capitalised as software
withinintangible assets.



Software and licenses which are capitalised include costsincurred to
acquirethe assets as wellas any internal infrastructure and design costs
incurred inthe development of software in order to bring the assets into
use, Capitalised software costs include external direct costs of goods and
services, as well asdirectly attribnitahle internal payroll related costs for
employees whoare associated with the project. Computer software under
development is held at cost less any recognised impairment loss.

Softwareis stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and, where
appropriate, provision for impairment in value or estimated loss on disposal.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of assets on a straight line basis
between three and sixyears, and is recorded in administration expenses.

Plantand equipment

Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated deprecialivn and, where
appropriate, provision forimpairment in value. Depreciation is charged

to the consolidated income staterment on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful life, generally between three and five years.

Other investments

Otherinvestments are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently remeasured, with changesrecognised inthe
consolidated income statement.

Disposals, discontinued operations and assets held for sale
Disposals

Properties are treated as disposed when control transfers to the buyer
which typically cccurs on completion.

Gains or losses on the sale of properties are calculated by reference to

the carrying value at the end of the previous year, adjusted for subsequent
capitalexpenditure, unless reclassified to assets held for sale prior to
dispesal. Where a corporate entity, whose primary asset is a property,

is disposed, the associated gains or losses onthe sale of the entity are
disclosed as profit or loss on sale of properties.

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Adiscontinued operation is a cornponent of the Group which represents
asignificant separate line of business, either through its activity or
geographical area of operation, which has been sold, is held forsale or
has been closed.

Where at the balance sheet date the sale of a component of the Group,
which caninclude a property, is considered highly probable and is available
forimmediate sale inits present condition as well as taking into account
cther required accounting criteria, itis classified as held for sale. Such
classification assumes the expectation that the sale will complete within
oneyear from the date of classification. Assets and liabilities held for sale
are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell.

Ifaninvestmentina joint venture or associate is reclassified to assets held
for sale, equity accounting ceases on the date of reclassification and any
subsequent movements in the fair value are recognised asimpairment
gains orlosses, however, the Group includes earnings generated after
reclassification to assets held for sale as part of its Adjusted earnings as
described in note 10A.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured atfairvalue,
subsequently measured at amortised cost and, where the effectis material,
discounted toreflect the time value of money. Trade and other receivables
are shown net of any loss allowance provision. Inorder to calculate any loss
allowance, the Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to
determine the Expected Credit Loss (ECL).
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In addition the Group makes provisions against receivablesinthe current
period in respect of income not yet recognised inthe income statement,
but instead deferred onthe balance sheet to be released to the income
statement in a future period, to match the period to which the income relates.

Other receivables include loans receivable which are financial assets and
areinitially measured at fair vatue, plus acquisition costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less anyimpairment.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted monetary assets
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash and short term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are
readily accessible.

Restricted monetary assets relate to cash balances which legally belong to
the Group but which the Group cannct readily access owing to restrictions
imposed by law or legislation and include cash and monies held in escrow
accounts for aspecified purpase. These da not meet the definition of cash
and cash equivalents and consequently are presented separatelyin the
consolidated balance sheet,

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are those which involve a contractual obligation to deliver
rashtoexternal parties ata future date.

Loans

Loans are recognised initially at fair value, after taking account of any
discount onissue and attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, loans
are held atamortised cost, such that discounts and costs are charged as
finance costs to the consolidated income statement over theterm of the
horrowing at a constant return onthe carrying amount of the liability.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables (excluding derivative financiat liabilities) are non-interest
bearing and are stated at cost which equates to their fair value.

Derivative financialinstruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to economically hedge its
exposure to foreign currency movements and interest rate risks. Hedge
accounting is applied in respect of net investmentsin foreign operations and
of debtraised in non-functional currencies. Derivative financial instruments
are recognised initially at fair value, which equates to cost and subsequently
remeasured at fair value, with changesin fair value beingincluded in the
consolidated income statement, except where hedge accounting is applied.

Derivative financialinstruments are presented as current assets or liabilities
if they are expected to be settled within 12 months after theend of the
reporting period, otherwise they are held as non-current assets or liabilities.

The: fair value gain or loss on remeasurement of derivative financial
instruments and the exchange differences on non-derwvative financial
instruments that are designated in anet investment hedge are recognised
in the netinvestment hedge reserve in total comprehensiveincome, tothe
extent they are effective, and the ineffective portion is recognised in the
consolidated income statement within net finance costs. Amaunts are
reclassified from the netinvestrnent hedge reserve to the consolidated
income statement when the associated hedged item is disposed of,



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Hammerson ple Annual Report 2022 138

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

E.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Derivative financial instruments continucd

The fair value gain or loss on re-measurement of derivative financial
instruments that are designated in a cash flow hedge are recognised in the
cash flow hedge reserve in totalcomprehensive income, to the extent they
are effective, and the ineffective portion is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within netfinance costs. Amounts are reclassified

from the cash fimw herpe reserve (o the consolidated income statement
when the associated hedged transaction affects the consclidated

income statement,

Inline with the Group's definition of Borrowings which includes
currency swaps, disclosures in the cash flow statement areconsistent
with this definition.

F.SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the application
of its accounting policies which affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual amounts and results may differ
from those estimates.

Judgements and estimates are evaluated regularly and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised.

Significant judgements

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

2022

There were no assets qualifying as held for sale nor discontinued operations.

2021

On 14 December 2021, the Group exchanged contracts forthe sale of all of
its 50% investmient in Silverburn whereby completion occurred in March
2022, Atthe date of exchange, 1t was concluded that all of the accounting
criteria were met to classify this investment as an asset held for sale.
Followingthis reclassification, equity accountirg ceased and the asset was
subsequently re-measuredto £71.4m at 31 December 2021, beingthe
lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

InFebruary and May 2021, the Group sold several UK retail parks forming
substantially all of an identifiable segment of the business. As aresult of this,
the UK retail parks were disclosed as discontinued operations. Residual
retained UK retall parks, reclassified as ‘Developments and other’, formed
only avery small proportion of the segment and conseguently their
retention did notimpact the conclusion on the treatment as discontinued.

Impairment of non-financial assets and liabilities

Mast of the Graup’s non-financial assets are investment properties and
are already carried attheir fair value under IAS 40, Investments injoirt
vertures and associates fall within the scope of 1AS 28 and are therefore
only assessed for impairment where one or more evenrts cause an indicator
of impairment versus the original investmenrt.

Jointventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method,
which equates to the Group's share of the entity’s Net Asset Value (NAV].
NAV is based on the fair value of the assets and liabilities where the principal
asset, the investment property, is already carried at fair value being the
higher of value i use and fair value less cost of disposaland as such, NAV is
d1easonabie approximation for the recoverable amnuint of the investment.
There are no indicators falling outside of NAV which are considered to be
grounds for furtherimpairment review.

Sinihicant estimates

Property valuations

Backdrop

The valuation ofthe Group's portfolio of properties is the most material area
cfestimation due toits inherent subyectivity, reliance on assumptions and
sensitivity to market fluctuations. The property portfolio is valued by
external valuersin accordance with RICS Valuation — Global Standards

and during the year all Covid-19 related assurnptions from the valuations
wereg removed,

The 31 Decermnber 2022 reports include a general commmentary on wider
issues including uncertainty caused by the war in Ukraine and associated
cost, supply chain, risinginterest rates and inflationary pressures. Key areas
ofestimate highlighted included:

— Estimation of marketrents based on anincreased level of activity
— Consideration of approprate levels of void costs and rent-free period
— Theimpact of shortening lease lengths

— The basis ofyield assumptions recognising the selective return of investor
appetite towards the retail sector

Methodology

Investment properties, excluding properties held for developrent, are
valued by adopting the ‘investrent method’ of valuation. This approach
involves applying capitalisation yields to estimated future rentalincormne
streamis reflecting contracted income reverting to ERV with appropriate
adjustments forincome voids arising from vacancies, lease expiries or
rent-free periods. These capitalisation yrelds and future incorme streams
are derived from comparable property and leasing transactions and are
considered to be the key inputs to the valuations. Where comparable
evidence of yield movement is lacking, valuers are reliant on sentiment or
the movernent of less comparable assets, Factors that have beentakeninto
accountinclude, but are notlimited to, the location and physical attributes
of the property, tenure, tenancy details, lease expiry profile, rent collection,
local taxes, structural and environmental conditions. With regards to the
latter factor, the valuers currently make limited explicit adjustment to their
valuations in respect of ESG matters. However, both the Group and the
valuers anticipate that ESGwill have a greater influence on valuations in the
future as investment markets place a greater emphasis on this topicand
valuers comply with the RICS Guidance Note Sustanability and ESGin
Commercial Property Valuation, which took effect from 31 January 2022.

Atailored approach is taken to the valuation of the Group's development
properties due totheir unique nature. In the case of on site developments,
the approach applied isthe residual method’ of valuation, which isthe
investment method of valuation as described above with a deduction for
allcosts necessary te complete the development, together with afurther
allowance for remaining risk and developers’ profit. Properties held for
future development are valued using the highest and best use method,

by adopting the higher of the residual method of valuation allowing for

all associated risks, and the irvestment methoed of valuatior forthe
existing asset.
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Valuations of the Group’s premium outlets held by Value Retail are calculated
on adiscounted cash flow basis, utilising key assumptions such as net
operating income, exit yield, disconnt rate and forecast snlen density growell,

Inputstothevaluations, some of which are ‘unobservable’ as defined by
IFRS 13, include capitalisation yields (nominal equivalent yvield) and
market rentatincorme (ERV). These are dependent on individual market
characteristics. With other factors remaining constant, anincrease in rental
income would increase valuations, whilst increases in capitalisation yields
and discount rates would resultin afallin values and vice versa, However,
there are interrelationships between unobservable inputs as they are
determined by market conditions. For example, an increase in rents may
be offset by an increase inyield, resultingin no netimpact on the valuation.
Asensithaty analysis, showingthe impact onvaluations of changes in yields
and market rental incorne is set out in note 12A.

Impairment of trade receivables

Estimates made in assessing the provisions for impairment of trade (tenant)
receivables require consideration of future events which therefore make the
provisions inherently subjective, The Group applies the simplified approach
under IFRS 9 by adopting a provisioning matrix to determine the Expected
Credit Loss (ECL), grouping receivables dependent on risk level, In making
these assessments, key factors the Group takes into acgount include:

— Creditratings

— Latestinformation on occupiers’ financial standingincluding the relative
nsk of the retail subsactor in which they operate

— Histericaldefault rates

— Ageing

- Rentdeposits (included as part of payahles)
— Guarantees held

— The probabitity that tenants will serve cut the remainder ofthe
contractual terms of their leases

Inassessing the current year provision, consideration has been given to the
outturn ofthe prioryear provision. Specific higher provisioning levels may be
applied where informationis avallable which suggests thisisrequired, for
instance, if the likelihood of default or tenant failure is deemed to be very
high, a full provision is applied. Trade receivables are written off when there
is no feasible possibility of recovery and enforcement activity has ceased,

Over the course of 2022, conditions affecting collections improved,
especially as most of the governmeant restrictions on collections in the UK
werelifted in March 2022 and final restrictions were lifted in September
2022. Although restrictions differed in France and Ireland, similar
improvements have also been seen. Improved collection rates have
resulted in areduction in gross trade receivables and a reappraisal of
provisioning rates. Applying the assessment criteria set out above, the
Group hasreduced its provisioning rates to reflect the improving trend and
thereduction in the loss allowance provision in 2022 relates partly to
utilisations of the provision for amounts now written off as well as the
reversal of loss allowances brought forward no longer reguired, reflecting
collections and concessions agreed.

Some smalldifferences in provision rates across segments exist which
reflectthe typically experienced local collection rates by age category,
however, the effect onoverall provisioning rate on the total gross balance by
segmentis not material. Sensitivitics to provisioning rates on trade (tenant)
receivables are set outin note 15E.
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2. PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEAR

As described in note 3, the Group evaluates the performance of its porticlic
by aggregating its share of joint ventures and associates which are under the
Group's management (‘Share of Property interests”) on a proportionally
consolidated basis and ncluding, where applicable, discontinued
operations. Discontinued operations far 2021 camprised UK retail parks.

Adjusted earnings, which is alse calculated on a proportionally consolidated
basis, isthe Group's primary profit measure and this is the basis of information
whichis reported to the Board, The following table sets out a reconciliation
from Reported earnings to Adjusted earnings.
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2. PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEAR continued

2022

P
Sub-total

Share of

roportionally consolidated

Reported Property before  Capitaland
Group interests | adjustments other Adjusted
MNote £m £m £m Ema im_s

Revenue __ L 4 1314 _1436] 2750 - 2150
Gross rentalincome b 3A.4 90.2 125.0 215.2 - 215.2 )
Service chargeincome -4 242 1B6 428 - 42.8 )

114.4 143.6 258.0 - 258.0
Service charge expenses (27.8) (22.5)| (50.3) - (50.3)
Costofsales o 54 9.3 (21.2) 305 (2.4 (32.9)!
Net rentalincome 77.3 99.9 ‘ 177.2 {2.4) 174.8
Gross administration costs SA (64.6) (0.3)‘ (64.9) 5.1 (5"3.8)J
Otherincome R S Y 2" / 7o 0 - 17.0
Net administration expenses {47.6) (0.3) (47.9) 5.1 {42.8)
Profitfrom operating activities 29.7 99.6 129.3 2.7 1320 |
Revaluation losses on properties 12 {82.7) (138.3) (221.0) 221.0 -
Disposals and assets held for sale
- Profit/(loss) on sale of properties 9A 0.7 (0.1 0.6 (0.6) -
—Recycied exchange gains on disposal of overseas interests - - } - - -
—Impairment on reclassification to assets held for sale - - - - -
—Income from assets held for sale 9A10A - (1.6)) {1.6) 1.6 -
Jointventure related }
—Impairment of receivables due to the Group - - } - - -
Change in fair value of other investrments (0.1) - (0.2) 01 -
Loss on sale of joint ventures and associates o - - R
Other net gains/({losses) 0.6 (1.7) } {1.1) 1.1 -
Share of results of joint ventures 138 (41.5) 41.5 ~ - -
Impalrment of joint venture - - = - -
Share of results of associates - - 148 (7.1 18 (5.3) 32.7 27.4 ‘
Operating (loss)/profit (201.0) 29 } (98.1) 2575 159.4 |
Netfinance costs o I S (x ) _(2.8)]  (65.6) 11.6 Q(EL.D_)J
(Loss)/profit before tax {164.0) 0.3 (163.7) 269.1 105.4 ‘
Tax charge - S 8A ©02)  (03) (0.5) - (0.5)
(Loss)/profitfor the year attributable fo equity shareholders (164.2) - (164.2) 269.1 104.9

a Adustingitems, described above as ‘Capital and other’, are set out in note 10A
b Proporticnally consolidated figure inciudes £12, 7m {2021 £8.2) of cantingent rerts calculated by reference totenants’ turnover.
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2. PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEAR continued

2021

Proportionaﬂy comsdhdatecL

Share of Sub-tatal
Reported Property Discontinued hnfrrn Cupital aind
Croup innerests operations | adjustments other Adjusted
Note £m £m i?ra £m Er? £m
Revenue o - R 4 1372 4728 123 3223 = 3223
Gross rentalincome 1.b 34,4 90.3 149.1 11.0 2504 ~ 250.4
Service charge income - B 4 26,6 236 13 515 - 515
T 116.9 1727 123 301.9 - 301.2
Service charge expenses (29.5) (28.3) (2.1) (59.9 - (59.9)
Costofsales + 5A (20.2) (38.9) (04)]  (59.5) (8.1) (67.6)]
Netrentalincome + 67.2 105.5 3.8 1825 (8.1) 174.4
Gross administration costs SA (79.5) 0.7} 0.1) {80.3) 8.6 (71.7)
Otherincome ] 5 B 4 203 = - 203 ~ 203
Netadministration expenses i ' (59.2) (0.7} .10 (60.0) 8.6 (51.4)
Profit from operating activities T 80 104.8 9.7 122.5 05 123.0
Revaluation losses on properties 1 12 (169.6) (274.5) - (444.1) 4441 -
Disposals and assets held for sale
- Profit/{loss) on sale of properties 1 9A 9.8 (3.9] (29.3) {20.4) 20.4 -
—~Recycled exchange gains ondisposal of overseas interests 104 11.0 - - 110 (11.0) -
—~Impairment on reclassification to assets held for sale (0.9 - - (0.9} 09 -
- Income from assets held for sale - - - - - -
Jointventure related
—Impairment of receivables due to the Group (0.7) - - 0.7 0. -
Changein fairvalue of other investments 0.4 - - 04 0.4} -
Lossonsale of joint ventures and associates 09 0.9 = - - -
Other net gains/(losses) 18.7 - (29.3) (10.6) 10.6 -
Share of results of joint ventures 138 (171.3) 171.3 - - - -
Impairment of joint ventures {11.5) - - (11.5) 11.5 -
Share of results of associates _ a8 156 4.4 - 200 (41) 15.9
Operating (loss)/ profit T {310.1) 6.0 (19.8) (323.7) 462.6 138.9
Netfinancecosts ) 7 79 &7 - (103.6) 318 {718
{Loss)/profit before tax T (408.0) 0.3 {19.6) (427.3) A94.4 67.1
Taxcharge ) BA (1.3) (0.3) (0.2) (1.8 0.2 (1.6)]
{Loss)/prafitaftertax - + £409.3) - (198 429.1) 4944 £5.5
Loss forthe year from discontinued operations o (19.8) - 198 ) - - -
(Loss)/profitfor the year attributable to equity
shareholders 1 (4291} - - (429 1) 494 6 655
Attributable to:
Continuing aperations t (409.3) — - {409.3) 466.5 57.2
Discontinued operations i T (15.8) ) - - (19.8) 281 83 |
t (429.1) - - @291 4946 65.5

T 2021 Hgures have been restated toreflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further inlormation prowded in notes 1B and 6.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Hammarsan plc Annual Report 2022 142
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

3.SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

The Group's reportable segments are determined by the internal performance reporied to the Chief Operating Decision Makers which has been
determined tg be the Chief Executive Gfficer and the Group Executive Cormitiee (together, the Chief Operating Decision Makers). Such reporting is both
by sector and geographic tocation as these demonstrate different characteristics and risks, are managed by separate teams and are the basis on which
resources are attocated.

The Group evaluates the performance of its portfolio by aggregating its share of joint ventures and associules which are under the Group’s management
{‘Share of Property interests’) on a proportionally consolidated line-by-line basis including, where applicable, discontinued operations. The Group does not
proportionally consolidate the Group's investrnent in Value Retail as this s not under the Group’s management, and instead monitors the performance of
this investment separately as its shate of resulls Ul vssociates as raported inder TERS,

The Group’s activities presented on a proportionally consolidated basis including Share of Property interests are:
— Flagship destinations

— Developments and cther

— UK retail parks (to date of disposalin 2021)

Oneofthe Group's primary income measures was amended in the second half of 2021 from Net rentalincome to Adjusted net rental income which
excludes the ‘change in provision for amounts not yet recognised in the income statement” as explained in note TOA. Comparative data is for this new
measure where the Group’s primary income staterment measures are therefore now:

— Grossrentalincome
— Adjusted netrentalincome

Total assets are not monitored by segment and resource aliocation is based on the distribution of property assets between segments.

A.INCOME BY SEGMENT

Gross rentalincome  Adjusted netrentalincome

2022 2021 2022 2621
£m £m £m £m

Flagship destinations S -
UK T 90.5 119.3 73.3 83.6
France 1 61,8 54.4 53.8 37.0
Ireland o T 373 356 336 282

189.6 209.3 161.7 1488
25.6 301 13.1 17.2
- _ 310 -

174 4

¥
Developments and other T
Discontinued operations (WKretaparks) 1 -
Managed portfolio~ proportionally consolidated T 215.2 250.4 174.8
§
T

Less Share of Property interests — continuing operations {125.0) (149.1)
Lessdiscontinued operations (UK retailparks) R ¢ & 210}
Reported Group T 90.2 0.3

+ 2021 figures have been restated ta reflect the IFRIC Decision an Concessions with further infarmation provided in notes 18 and 6.
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3, SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

B.INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY ASSETS BY SEGMENT

- . 2022 oLLADet

Property Capital Revaluation Pronerty Capetal - Revaluatbion

valuntion capenditure losses valuation  expenditure iosses

Note £m £m £m £m £m m

Flagship destinations

UK T 8710 128 (90.2) 1,135.3 8.5 (247.5)
France t 1,241.0 333 (57.2) 989.7 227 (61.0)
Ireland B .t 676.4 4.9 (20.1) 6593 44 (69
T 2,788.4 51.0 (167.5) 2,784.3 356 (365.4)
Developrments and other t 431.7 219 (53.5) 694.4 50.8 (78.7)
Discontinued cperations (UK retail parks) T - - - 6z -
Managed portfolio_ t 3,220.1 72.9 (221.0) 3,478 867 (444.1)
Value Retail B e 1,887.0 6.6 (60.7) 1,8935 412  (12.0)
Group portfolio ' ) Tt 5,107.1 79.5  (2817) 53722 1279 (456.1)
Less Value Retail " (1,887.0) (6.6) 60.7 (1,893.5) (21.2) 12.0
Less Share of Property interests t a (1,722.9) {35.2) 138.3 {1,813.9) (13.1) 274.5
Less discontinued operations (UK retail parks) T - - - - 0.3 -
Less trading properties b (36.2) - - (34.3) (6.2) -
Less assets held for sale i BA ) - - - {e871) - =
Reported Group 1 1,461.0 37.7 (82.7) 1,561.4 671 (169.6)

1 2021 figures have been restated toreflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with furtherinformation provided in notes 1Band 6.

a Property valuation comprises UK: £1,011.6m (2021:£1,121.0m); France: £166.8m (2021: £165.9m) and Ireland: £544.5m (2021: £527.0m).

InDecember 2019, the Group exchanged contracts for the forward sale of Ttalik, subject to completion of the development which was openedin 2021, resulting
in the sale becoming unconditional although in accordance with a contractually allowed option and subsequent agreement, the purchaser has deferred
completionto 2023, At 31 December 2022, the 75% of [talik contracted for sale was included within trading properties at the agreed sale price less forecast costs
tocomplete.

o

C.ANALYSIS OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2022 2021

£m £m

UK o o o o 1,135.4 14288
Continental Europe * 2,518.0 2,418.2
533.4 520.3

Ireland

4,186.8 4,367.3

* Includes the Group's associate stake in Value Retail which has interests across Europe, including UK and Ireland.
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4. REVENUE

2022
Note £m
Baserent 68.2
Turnoverrent 55
Carparkincome * 10.8
Lease incentive recognition + 2.7
Qther rental income o e _ 30
Gross rental income T T ? 20,2
Service charge income * 24.2
Otherincome
— Property fee income * 115
—Jointventure and associate managementfees o 55
- o - e 17.0
Revenue - contihuing operations T 131.4
Revenue ~discontinued cperations ) .t s =
T 131.4

2021
£m

T 621

137.2
— 122
149.4

1 2021 figures have heen restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided innotes 1B and 6.

* Revenue for those categories marked *amounted to £52.0m (2021: £56.5m) and is recognised under IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’”,

All other revenue is recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 ‘Leases’,

5.COSTS

A.PROFIT FROMOPERATING ACTIVITIES IS STATED AFTER CHARGING:

2022 2021

Costof sales Note £m £m
Ground and equity rents payabie T o 8.7 3.1
Inclysivelease costs recovered through rent 31 2.7
Other property outgoings I a 6.4 180
Change in provision for amounts not yet recognised in the income statement e - (09) e
1 9.3 20.2

2022 2021

Gross administration costs Note £m £m
Employee costs o o 5B 42.0 51.4
Depreciation of plant and equipment 1.0 1.1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3.1 33
Business transformation costs 104 5.1 8.6
Other corporate costs o - R - 13.4 151
64.6 79.5

4

2021 figures have been restated toreflact the IFRIC Decision on Concessions witn further infermation provided in notes 1B and 6
a Includes charges and credits in respect of expected cradit losses as setout innote 150.
b Comprisas pregominantly professional feas (mainly valuation, legal and aud), office rent and software licence fees.
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5.COSTS continued

B.EMPLOYEE COSTS

2022 2021

Note £m £m

Wages and salaries {including bonuses) 31.3 395
Social security 5.5 7.1
Other pension costs 3.0 3.0
Share-based remuneration _ 5D 30 33
* 42.8 529
Capitalised into properties under development ) B . (0.8) _15
Total 42,0 51.4

* Share-based remuneration comprises the share element of performances related bonuses (whei e Lhe ulhierelement s paid in cash) and longer term share-plans,
sorme of which contain performance conditions and where further information is provided in the Directors’ Rermuneration repaort.

C.EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

2022 2021

number number

Average number ofem ploy;es h 370 494
Number of employees whose costs are recharged to tenants, included above 145 195

D.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share-based remuneration charge comprises a number of equity settled share schemes which the Group operates for certain employees of the Group.
At 31 Decamber 2022, there were no shares exercisable under any of these schemes (2021: none), Details of each scheme are as follows:

Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS)
The DBSS is open to Executive Directors and senior management where adeferred element of theirannual perforrnance related incentive planis settled in
shares which are deferred for a period of two years from the date of the award and where the cther element of this plan is settled in cash. The share awards

are satisfied through the grant of £nil cost options.

2022 2021

number number

1 January o o B o 714,478 767,558
Granted 2,761,940 117,508
Exercised (714,478) (62,483)
Forfeited - - . — — _(108,108)
31December 2,761,940 714,478
Weighted average 2022 2021
FairVE;[JéBf awards granted ) B 32p 34p
Share price at date of exercise 31p 32p

Remaining contractual life 1.3years O.lyears
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5.COSTS continued

D. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Restricted Share Schemes (RSS) and Long Term Incentive Pian (LTIP)
The RSS appiiesto the Executive Directors, through the grant of £nil cost options, which vest one third each on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the

date of the award. There is a vesting performance underpir which is measured at the end of the third anniversary. The RSS superseded the Company’s LTIP
in2019.

2022 2021

number nurmber

llanuary T 11,500,742 10941218
Granted 5,244,132 4,698,892
Lapsed (768,801) (1,218,572)
vofeited (3320799
31 December 15,576,073 11,100,742
Weighted average 2022 2021
Farvalueof awardsgranted " 32p  34p
Share price at date of exercise nfa nfa
Remaining contractual life 2.3years 30vyears

Restricted Share Plan (RSP)
UK eligible employees are granted Enil cost options which have a vesting period of three years from the date of the award. There are no performance criteria
ta be satisfied for the awards to vest, the employee only needs to be in employment on the third anniversary from the date of the award.

2022 2021
number number

1January T T 16,570,535 13772868
Granted 7,273,007 8,762,770
Exercised (1,210,999} (764 288)
Forfeited e (4,220,790) (5,200,815)
31 December 18,410,753 16,570,535
Weighted average 2022 2021
Farvalueof awardsgranted - 32p 34p
Share price at date of exercise 32p 33p
Remaining contractual life 1.3years 1.8years
Gtherschemes
French share scheme

Eligible employees in Frarce are granted £nil cost options which have a vesting period of two years, and a further holdirg period of two years, from the date
of the award. There are no performance conditions to be satisfied for the awards tovest, the employee only needs tobe in employment on the second
anniversary of the date of the award.

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
Eligible UK employees are invited toinvest up to £1,800 per annum tax free in SIP partnership shares. Asar incemtive to participants, the Company will
match each partrerstip share with one matching share. The vesting period is three years from the date of the award.

Savings related share option scheme

UK eligible employees may participate ‘i this scheme by choosing to enter into one or more contracts for a three or five year term and save up to atotal of
£500 per manth, At the end of the contract employees may exercise an option to purchase shares in the Company at the option price, which is set atthe
beginning of the contract at a discount of up to 20% of the prevailing share price at the time the invitation is launched.
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5.COSTS continued

E.AUDITOR REMUNERATION

2022 2021

£m £m

Auditof the Group and Companyfinancial statements 0.9 0.0
Aldit of subsidianes 05 0.5
Auditrelated assurance services, including interim reviews B 0.3 02
1.7 1.3

Non-audit services _ ~ a_. o 0.1
b 1.7 14

Totalauditor remuneration

a 2021:Related fo reporting accountant workin respect of the €700m bond issue.

b Excludes the additional amounts of £0.2m (2021: £0.2m) incurred in respect of the Group's share of audit services undertaken on behalf of its jaint ventures.

6. RESTATEMENT OF 2021 IN RESPECT OF THE IFRIC DECISION ON CONCESSIONS

As describedin note 1B, the IFRIC Decision on Concessions has resulted in arestaterent of 2021 results. IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors’ requires that for current and prior periods, tothe extent practicable, the amount of adjustment relating to a restatement
should be disclosed for each financial ling item affected. Whilst those financial line items which have been restated are marked 1, owingto the very
significant number of line iterns affected, it has not been considered practicable to disclose the effects for each one because such presentation would
become misleading and thus conflict with the abjective of financial statements as set outin IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’, Accordingly, only

the adjustments which affact key financial line items are presented below:

A.KEY INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

Reported
o . Group _ Adjusted
Asonginally As originally
reported  Adjustment  Asrestated reported  Adjustment  Asrestated
£m £em £m £m £m £m
Revenue h i 134.8 2.4 137.2 313.4 88 3222
Gross rental income 87.9 2.4 90.3 241.6 a8 2504
Costofsales {13.7) (6.5) (20.2) (43.4) (24.2) (67.6)
Net rentalincome /1.3 (4.1) 67.2 189.8 (15.4) 174.4
Profit from cperating activities 121 4.1 8.0 138.4 (15.4) 123.0
Revaluation losses on properties (173.7) 41 (169.6) - - ~
Operating (lass)/profit (310.1) - (310.1) 154.3 (15.4) 138.9
{Loss)/profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders * (429.1) - (429.1) 80.9 (15.4) 65,5
* EPRAearnings and Headline earnings have been restated by the same amount.
B.INCOME ANALYSIS BY SEGMENT
Grossrental income Adysted net rentalincome
T - B Asoriginally As originally T T
reported  Adjustment  Asrestated reported  Adjustment  Asrestated
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Flagship destinations
UK 114.3 50 119.3 90.1 (6.5} 836
France 525 19 544 39.4 (2.4) 37.0
Treland ) 345 a1 356 324 (42 282
o o 2013 8.0 209.3 161.9 13.1) 148.8
Developments and other 29.6 0.5 301 175 0.3) 17.2
Discontin ued operations (UK retailparks) o 107 0.3 110 10.4 20 84
Managed portfolio - 2416 88 250.4 1898 (15.4) 174.4
Less Share of Property interests —continuing operations (143.0) (6.1 (149 1) (109.7) 2.3 (100.4)
Less discontinued operations (UK retail parks) R (10.7) (03 (110 (10.4) 20 (B84
o 87.9 24 90.3 69.7 (4.1 65.6
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6.RESTATEMENT OF 2021 IN RESPECT OF THE IFRIC DECISION ON CONCESSIONS continued

C: INCOME ANALYSIS OF JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

- I - ___ Grossremtalncome  _ Metrentalincome
Asariginally Asonginally

reported  Adiustment Agrestated reported  Adjustment Asrestated

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Jointventures 7 137.2 5.9 1431 110.0 9. 2) 100.8

Associates 1025 0.1 102.6 715 (0.1) 714

D, BALANCE SHEET DISCLOSURES
Share of Property interests

_ . i ) ) and discontinued operations o Ripror‘tt?grc‘rcip
As originally As onginally
reported  Adjustment Asrestated reported  Adjustment Asrestated
Investment properties Note £m £m £m £m £m Fm
Revaluation losses ' ' . 3/12 283.8 ©@3) 2745  (173.7) a1 (169.6)
Capital expenditure * 3412 (24.7) 11.3 (13.4) 712 4.0 67.1
Disposals * 3 2.3 (2.0 03

* Figuresfar Share of Property interests and discontinued operations are as setout innote 3 and Reported Group figures are set out innote 12 as stated above.

E.IMPACT ON 2022

Had the restatement not been applied, the income measures for 2022 set out below would have differed by the following amounts.
Reported
Group Adjusted
Amount by which income would have been (lower)/higher £m £m

Revenue - (2.9) {8.7)
Grossrental income (2.9) (8.7)
Netrentalincome 0.5 1.9)
Profitfor the year attributable to equity sharehclders - {1.9)

7. NETFINANCE COSTS

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Finance income o ) ' o
Bankandotherinterestreceivable S o ) 261 151
Finance costs
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (4.6) (5.8)
Intereston bonds and related charges {61.4) {62.0)
Interest an senior notes and related charges (6.0} {11.4)
Interest on obligations under head leases (2.1) (2.2)
Interest on other lease obligations ©.1) oD
Other interest payable - o o . {0y 1.2
Grossinterest costs (74.6) 82 7)
Interest capitalised ir respect of properties under development o ) 12 53
o (73.4) 177.4)
Debt ardloan facility cancellation costs - 10A {1.3) (21.6)
Fairvalue losses ondervatives , ,. . J0A__(a®) 4D

(89.1)  (113.0)

Net finance costs (63.0) (97.9)

* Comprising redermption premiums and fees from early repayrment of debt or cancellation of facilities.
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7.NET FINANCE COSTS continued

Further analysis on a proportionally consolidated basis is set out below:

2022
Proportionally consolidated
Share of Sub-total
Heported Hroperty betore Capitatand

Group interests |adjustments ather Adjusted

Note £m £m £m £m £m

Finance income B o 26.1 - 26.1 - 26.1
Gross interest costs (74.6) (6.7) (81.3) - (81.3)
Interest capitalised in respect of properties under development 1.2 - 1.2 - 1.2
(73.4) (6.7) (80.2) - (80.1)

Debtand loan facility cancellation costs 10A {1.3) - (1.3) 1.3 -

Fair value (losses)/gains on derivatives 10A {14.4) 4.1 (10.3) 10.3 -
Finance costs (89.1) (2.6) (9L7) 11.6 (80.1)
Netfinance costs 7 (63.0) (2.6) (65.6) 11.6 (54.0)

o

Fropartionaily consclidated

Shareof Sub-total
Reported Rroperty before  Capitaland

Group interests | adjustments other Adjusted

Note £m Em £m m £m

Finance Income - 151 - 5.1 - 151
Gross interest costs 82.7) (9.5} (92.2) - (92.2)

Interest capitalised in respect of properties under development B 5.3 — 5.3 - 5.3
(77.4) (9.5) (86.9) - (86.9)

Debt andloan facility cancellation costs 104 (21.6) C.4) (22.0) 22.0 —

Fairvalue (losses)/pains on derivatives 10A (14.0) 4.2 (9.8 9.8 -
Finance costs {113.0) (5.7) {118.7) 31.8 (86.9)
Net finance costs i (97.9) a7 (103.6) 318 (71.8)

A.TAX CHARGE

2022 2021

MNote £m £m

Foreign current tax o 0.2 1.3
Tax charge — continuing operations 0.2 13
Tax charge — discontinued operations * 98 - 0.2
0.2 15

Tax charge - total

* Included within‘Capitaland other’ innote 2.
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8. TAXCHARGE continued

A.TAXCHARGE continued
The Group's tax charge remains low because it has tax exerpt status in its principal cperating countries.

Inthe UK, the Group has been a RETT since 2007 and aSIICin France since 2004, These tax regimes exempt the Group's property income and gains from
corporate taxes, provided a number of conditions in relation to the Group's activities are met. These conditions include, but are notlimited to, distributing
at least 90% of the Group’s UK tax exempt profits as propertyincome distributions (PID) with equivalent tests of 5% on French tax exempt property
profits and 70% of tax exempt property gains. Based on preliminary calculations, the Group has met the REIT and SIIC conditions for 2022, The residual
businesses in both the UK and France are subject to carporation tax as normal. The Irish assets are heldin a QIAIF which provides similartax benefits to
these of a UK REIT but which subjects dividends and certain excessive interest payments to a 20% withholding tax.

The Group is committed to remaining in these tax exempt regimes.
The Group operates ina number of jurisdictions and is subject to periodic challenges by local tax authorities on a range of tax matters during its normal
course of business, Tax impacts can be uncertain untila conclusion is reached with the relevant tax authority or through a legal process. The Group uses

in-house expertise when assessing uncertain tax positions and seeks the advice of external professional advisors where appropriate. The Group believes
that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based onits assessment of many factors, including tax laws and prior experience.

B.TAX CHARGE RECONCILIATION

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Loss beforetax 2 (163.7) {427.3)
Loss after tax of joint ventures 138 41.5 170.4
Loss/(profit) after tax of associates 148 7.1 (15.6)
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (115.1) (272.5)
Taxatthe UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021: 19%) (21.9) (51.8)
UK REIT tax exemption 6.2 204
French SIIC tax exemption 6.4 89
Irish QIATF tax exemption 1.2 12.5
Losses for the year not utilised 7.1 101
Non-deductible and other items 1.2 1.4
Tax charge —total 02 15
Taxcharge —continuing operations 0.2 1.3
Taxcharge ~discontinued operations e - 02
Tax charge — total 0.2 15

C.UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX

Adeferred tax asset 1s not recognised for UK revenue losses or capital losses where their future utilisation is uncertain. At 31 December 2022, the total of
suchlosseswas £601m (2021: £599m) and £650m (2021 £570m) respectively, and the potential tax effect of these was £150m (2021: £150m) and
£162m (20271: £143m) respectively.

Deferred taxis rnot provided on potential gains oninvestments in subsidiaries and joint ventures when the Group can control whether gains crystallise and
itis probable that gains willnot arise in the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2022, the total of such gainswas £133m (2021: £212m)and the potentiat
tax effect before the offset of losses was £33m (2021:£53m).

Ifa UK REIT sells a property within three years of completior of development, the REIT exermnptior: will not apply, however, the Group had no completed
properties falling within this timeframe but also has available capital losses to cover taxes arising if the circumstance were to arise.
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9. DISPOSALS, ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A.DISPOSALS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2022
The profit on sale of properties of £0. 7mincludes several post completion adjustments arising mainty from historical disposalsin prior periods and the
dispesal of Victoria, whichwas sold on 25 Nebruary 2022, wlien Lhe Gioup exchanged and completed the sale tor gross proceeds of £120m.

Inaddition, on 15March 2022, the Group completed the sale of its joint venture investment in Siiverburn for gross proceeds of £140m (the Group’s share
being £70m). The Group had exchanged contracts for this sale on 14 December 2021 such that this investment was classified as assets held for sale at

31 December 2021 at £71.400, which included investment properties of £69.1m. A £nil gain/loss on disposal was recognised, however, income generated
during the year of £1.6m has been included in Adjusted earnings as explained further in note 10A.

2021
On 5February 2021, the Group sold its £1% joint venture interest in Brent South Shopping Park for gross proceeds of £22m which formed part of the UK
retail parks disposals which were sold en 19 May 2021 and are treated as discontinued operations as set out in note 9B below.

On 1 April 2021, the Group scld its 25% interest in Espace Saint-Quentin for gross proceeds of E31m (£26m) and its 10% interest in Nicetoile for E26m
(£21m}whereby results are included within Share of Property interests up o the point of disposal.

As described above, the Group exchanged contracts for the sale of its joint venture investment in Silverburn on 14 December 2021 and as aresult was
classified as an asset held forsale.

B. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
2021

On 19 May 2021, substantially all of the remaining UK retail parks segment was disposed of with the profits and losses arising on these properties being
classified as discontinued operations.

I ———— B 021
Shareof  Proportion-
Reported Property ally
Group interests  consclidated
£m £m £m
Revenue _ ) 1 12.2 01 123
Grossrental income o T 10.9 01 11.0
Service charge income o 13 - 13
t ‘ 122 01 12.3
Service charge expenses (2.1 - (2.1)
Cost of sales e ) T {0.5) 01 {0.4)
Netrentalincome T 946 0.2 9.8
Administration expenses . ) o 01y - {on
Profit from operating activities h + 9.5 0.2 9.7
{Loss)/prohton sale of properties T (30.0) 0.7 {29.3)
Share of results of joint ventures o ) o 0.9 (0.9) =
Loss before tax - (19.6) - (19.6)
Taxcharge ] ) (0.2) - (Q__.Z)
Loss from discontinued operations (19.8) - {19.8)
T 2021 hgures have beer restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision an Concessions with further information provided in note 1B.
C.CASHFLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
2021
£m
o 7.1

Cash flows fromoperating activities 4
Cash flows frominvesting activities o 347.7
Total cash flows from discontinued operations 354.8
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10. KEY ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Headline earnings has been calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange listing requirements. EPRA earnings
and EPRA net assets are calculated in accordance with guidance issued by the European Public Real Estate recommended bases. Reconcitiations from
Reported Group (IFRS) earnings after tax and Net assets attributable to equity shareholders to these measures are set out below.

A.ALTERNATIVE EARNINGS MEASURES

2022 2021
£ Erm

Reported Group
Loss after tax— continuing operations {164.2) {409.3)
Loss after tax — discontinued operations ) o ) - s
Loss after tax for the year (164.2) (429.1)
Adjustments:
Revaluation losses on managed portfolio T 221.0 A44.1
Disposals and assets held for sale
— (Profit}/loss on sale of properties t a (0.6) 204
— Recycled exchange gains on disposal of overseas property interests b - (12.0)
— Impairment recognised on reclassification to assets held for sale c - 09
Jointventure related
— Impairment of investment d - 115
— Impairment of receivables due to the Group d - 07
Associates (Value Retail):
— Revaluation losses K 60.7 12.0
~ Deferredtax e,k 0.1 1.2)
— Changeinfairvalue of financial assets 3 k . 02 O
Sub-total: Adjustments for Headline earnings T 281.0 477.3
Associates (Value Retail):
— Changein fair value of derivatives Lk (18.1) (9.3)
— Change in fair value of participative loans fk (9.8) (5.5)
Included in Financing:
— Debtand loan facility cancellation costs g 1.3 22.0
— Changein fair value of derivatives g 10.3 9.8
Changein fair value of otherinvestments h 0.1 {0.4)
Tax charge on discontinued operaticns ) ) . ) e - 0z
Sub-total: Adjustments for EPRA earnings T 264.8 4941
Included in profit from operating activities:
— Busiress transformation costs I 5.1 8.6
— Chargein provision for amounts not yet recognised in the income statement ] (2.4) 8.1)
— Incomeirom assets held for sale ) ) ) | 1.6 -
Total: Adjustments for Adjusted earnings T 269.1 494.6
Headline earnings 1 116.8 48,2
EPRA earnings T 100.6 650
Adjusted earnings i 104.9 655

- 20214gu-es have been restated toreflact the IFRIC Decision on Concessions witn further intormation provded in notes 18and 6

a Comprisesseveral post completion adjustments on his*orical disposals in prior penods and the loss on sale of Victoria (2021 comprised the loss onsate
of Brent South Shopping Park, the overseas property interests in £space Saint-Quentin and N'eetel.e, the portfolio of seven retall pa-ks arathe sale of six atner
non-core assets).

b Exchange gains previously recognised in equity unfil disposal.
¢ Relates tothe sale of Sitverburn which completed an 15 March 2022,
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10. KEY ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES continued

d Impairmentof Highcross joint venture: at 31 December 2021, the secured loan within the Highcross joint venture was in breach of its covenants whereby the
Directars of the joint venture have been in discussions with the lenders to find a multually acceptable solution, Inthe event that agreement is not reached with the
lenders, there s arisk that the lenders accelerate the loan repayment, which would precipitate the loan falling due immediately, or the lenders could seek to
enforce their rights gverthe jaint venture’s assets. Taking this into account, animpairment review concluded that both the value inuse and the fair value less cost
ofdisposal were £nil. Consequently, both the Group's investment in the joint venture as wetl as the Group's receivable were fully impaired Ac<et nifin nota 28,
inFebruany 2023, arceciver was appuinled by the lenders 1o administer the asset.

e Inaccordance with EPRA guidance, the tax effects of EPRA adjustments (including those for disposals) are excluded.

f Changeinfairvalue of derivatives and participative loans: suchitems are excluded because they represent gains and losses arising frommarket rather than
settlementrevaluation methodologies which differ from the accruals basis upon which atl ather non-investment property related assets and liabilities are
measured. Such atreatment is a form of revaluation gain or loss created by an assumption that the dervatives or loans will be settled before their maturity.

Such gains and losses are excluded from Adjusted eamings as they are unrealised and conflict with the commercial reasons for entering into such arrangements
and are expected to be held to maturity.

g Financingitems comprise:

) B 2022 2021

S— - Share of Share of

Repotted Property Reported Property
Group interests Total Group Interasts Total
£m £m £m £m m £m

Feeson cancellation of facilw’tw’rés/redemption premiums and fees from

early repayment of debt 1.3 - 1.3 216 04 220
Change in fair value of derivatives ) f 144 (4.1) 103 140 (4.2) 98
15.7 (4.1) 11.6 356 (3.8) 31.8

The write off of up-front fees arising on early cancellation or early repayment redemption premiums are considered outside of day-to-day financing activities and
areaccordingly excluded from Adjusted eannings.

h Relates tothe fair value movemeant in asmall residual investment.
i Business transformation costs comprise:

2022 2021
£m £m
Employee severance 34 4.2
Systerm related costs 1.7 -
Consultancy costs o ] . - .44
5.1 8.6

Such costs relate to the strategic and operational review undertaken by the new management team and which is anintegral part of the Group's new strategy
announced during 2021. The related costs are incremental and do not form part of underlying trading and comprise mainly employce severance and system
based costs associated with digital transformation which do not qualify for capitalisation. Whilst a significant propartion of the expecied costs were incurred in
2021 and 2022, further transformation activities will take place in 2023 and beyond.

i TheGroup makes acharge for expected credit losses 1n accordance with the technical interpretation of IFRS 9 irrespective of whether the income to which the
provision relates has been recognised in the income statement or is deferred on the balance sheet. Because of the mismatch this causes between the cost of
provision being recognised in one accounting period and the related revenue being recognised in adifferent accounting period, the adjustment eradicates this
distortion.

==

Adustments inrespect of associates.

2022 2021
£m £m
Totatinrespect ofm;sociates (Value Retai l)_w 32.7 (4.1)

Income from assets held for sale relates to the Group's joint venture investment in Silverburn, which was transferred to assets held farsale as at 31 December
2021 and where the sale completed in March 2022, A £nil gain/loss was generated on the sale which comprised certain additional costs and accruals of £1.6m
which were offset by net income generated in the period up to the point of disposal (after taking account of distributions) of £1.6m. The Group excludes losses on
disposal fromits EPRA and Adjusted earnings, and because this offset of income generated in the period against the loss causes the income to be excluded, the
income is added back as anadjusting item in order to reflect the fact that the property remained under the Group's ownership and management up untit
completion of the disposal and is therefore considered to form part of underlying earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 Decemher 2022

10. KEY ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES continued

B. ALTERNATIVE NET ASSET MEASURES

The Group uses the EPRA best practice guidelines incorporating three measures of net assetvalue: EPRA Net Tangible Assets (NTA), Net Reinstatement
Value (NRV) and Net Disposal Value (NDV). EPRA NTA s considered to be the most relevant measure for the Group.

Areconciliation between IFRS net assets and the three EPRA net asset valuation metrics is set out below.

2022
Reported Preperty
Group interests  Value Retail Total
£m £m £m Em
Reported balance sheet net assets (equity shareholders’ funds) 2,586.4 - - 2,586.4
Change in fair value of borrowings ] o a 216.2 (0.7} - 2155
EPRANDV 2,801.9
Deduct change in fairvalue of borrowings a (216.2) 0.7 - (215.5)
Deferred tax— H0% share b 0.2 0.1 99.4 99.7
Fairvalue of currency swaps as a result of interest rates [ (0.9) - - (0.,9)
Fairvalueotinterestrateswaps .. 22 (&3 @73 (519
EPRANTA 2,633.7
Deferred tax —remaining 50% share b 0.2 - 99.4 99.6
Purchasers'eosts 00 4 3300 i = ... 3300
EPRANRV ' 3,063.3
- . S _2021
Share of
Reported Preperty
Group interests  Value Retail Total
£m £m £m £m
Reported balance sheet net assets {(equity sharehoiders’ funds) 2,745.9 - - 2,7459
Changeinfairvalue ofborrowiogs a _ (9o (a9 - ey
EPRANDV 2,650.5
Deduct change in fair value of borrowings a G4.0 1.4 - G54
Deferred tax— 50% share b 0.2 - 94.0 94.2
Fair value of currency swaps as aresult of interest rates c 75 - - 7.5
Fairvalueofinterestrateswaps - . . (10.3) 16 12 05
EPRA NTA 2,840.1
Deferred tax —remaining 50% share b 0.2 Q.1 939 34.2
Purchasers’ costs o o d 3464 0 - _ = 344
EPRANRV ] 3,280.7

a Applicable for EPRA NDV calculation onty and hence the adjustment is reversed for EPRANTA and EPRANRV.

b EPRA guidance stipulates exclusion of 50% of deferred tax for EPRANTA purposes.

¢ Fxcludes impact of foreign exchange.

d Represents property transfer taxes and fees payable should the Group’s entire property porifolio (including Value Retail; be acquired at year end market rates.
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11.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculations ofthe (loss)/earnings per share (EPS) measures set out below are based on profit after tax, Headline profit after tax, EPRA profit after tax
and Adjusted profit after tax attributable to owners of the parent and the weighted average number of shares inissue during the year,

Headline sarnings per share has been calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange listing requirements. EPRA
hasissued recommended bases for the calculation of certain per share information which includes nel assel value per shale as well as earnings per share.
The calculation ul Headline, EFRA and Adjusted earnings which includes a reconciliation to Reported IFRS earnings s set outin note 10A.,

Basic EPS measures are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable tothe equity sharehelders of the Company by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted FPS measures are calculated on the san e basis as basic EPS but with a further adjustment to the weighted
average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. Such potentially dilutive erdinary shares comprise
share options and awards granted to colleagues where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the
year and any unvested shares which have met, or are expected to meet, the performance conditions at the end of the year. To the extent that thergisno
dilution, this arises due to the anti-dilutive effect of all such shares.

Net assets per share comprise net assets calculated in accordance with EPRA guidelines, as set outin note 108, divided by the number of shares inissue.

A.NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES FOR PER SHARE CALCULATIONS

2022 2021

million million
Sharesin issue (for purposes of net asset per share calculations) - 5,002.3
Weighted average numberof shares for purposes of basic EPS 4,938.9
Adjustment . ] a -
Weighted average number of shares for purposes of basic and diluted EPS — Reported Group ahb 4,938.9
Effect of potentially dilutive shares (share opticns) — Headline, EPRA and Adjusted B - 10.3
Weighted average number of shares for purposes of diluted EPS — Headline, EPRA and Adjusted a 4,949.2

a 2021 weighted average number of shares have been restated to reflect the adjustment required to incorparate the bonus elerment of scrip dividends following
confirmation of the level of take up.

b Therewere no potentially dilutive ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating EPS for the Reported Group (2021: none)

B. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

{Loss)/earnings . (Loss)/eaﬂrnings_ per share

----- N - Basicm Dilutgdi

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2024

Note Em £m pence pence pence pence

Continuing operations (164.2) (409.3) (3.3)p 8.3)p (3.3)p (8.3)p
Discontinued operations - (19.8) . - 0.9p - (Cap
Reported Group _ (164.2) {429.1) (3.3)p 8.7p 33p  B7p
Headline " T 104 116.8 48.2 2.4p 1.0p 2.4p 1.0p
EPRA _ T _10A 100.6 65.0 2.0p 13p 20p 13p
Adjusted + 10A 104.9 65.5 21p 1.3p 21p 1.3p

T 2021 {lass)/earnings per share figures have been restated to reflect the adjustment described ahove to the weighted average number of shares, Inaddition, 2021
figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decisian on Concessions with further information providedin notes 1B and 6. Previously reported basic and diluted
figureswere: Reported Group: (9.8)p, Headline: 1.4p, EPRA: 1.8p and Adiusted: 1.8p.

C.NETASSET VALUE PER SHARE

- } . Netassetvalue  Netassetvaluepershare
o7 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note £m £m pence pence

EPRANDV - o - 106 2,801.9  2,650.5 56p 60p
EPRANTA 10B 2,633.7 2,840.1 53p 64p
EPRA NRY 108 3,063.3  3,280.7 61p 740
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12. PROPERTIES

2022 2021

o T T Investment Trading Investment Trading T
properties properties Total properties properties Total

£m Em Em £Em Em Em

At1Janvary - T 15614 343 1,595.7 21528 - 21528
Revaluation losses T {82.7) ~ (82.7) (169.6) - (169.6)
Capital expenditure T 37.7 ~ 37.7 67.1 6.2 73.4
Capitalised interest 1.2 ~ 1.2 53 - 53
Lisposals (125.3} ~ (125.3) (382.2) - (382.2
Transfertotrading properties * - - ~ (287 PN -
Exchange adjustment 687 19 706 (833  (06) (839
At31 December R T 1,461.0 362  1,497.2 15614 343 15957

t 2021 investment property figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessians with further information provided innotes 18and 6.
* Relates to the forward sale of Italik as described i note 3B,

e,
Long Long

Freehold {easehold Total Freehold leasehald Total

m £m £m £m £m £m

valuation analysis by tenure D 8053 El.?W 889.4 7063 13957

Properties are stated at fair value, valued by professionally qualibed external valuers in accordance with RICS Valuation — Global Standards as follows:

valwer ~  ~~ ~~  Properties = e
CERE UK ilagships, Developmentsancotherproperties , -
Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) __ UKflagships, Developments and other pr prg@ﬂgsﬁa.nch portfoho ) o
%h@jnaknd_\/@l}g@}_d&;&w) ___ BrentCross, Irish portfolio, Value Retail (notincluded in the table above)

Asdetailed in note 1F due tothe estimation and judgement required in the valuations which are derived from data that is not publicly available, consistent
with EPRA's guidance, these valuations are classified as Level 3in the IFRS 13 fairvalue hierarchy. Areconciliation of the Group portfolio valuation to
Reported Group is shown nnote 38.

A.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS ON VALUATIONS

Estimated rental value
Valuation Nominal equivalent yield (ERV)

-100bp +100bp +10% B -E%
Proporticnally consolidated ~ including Value Retail £m £m £m £m £m
i:lagsﬁdestinatio ns T T - S ) o o
—UK 871 124 97 a7 a7
—France 1,241 309 (206) 124 (124)
—TIreland 676 151 (105) 68 (68)
ValueRetail . 1,887 307 (213) 186 (186)
Group portfollo(excludlng Developments andother) ' 4,675
Developmentsandother ) o 432
Group portfolio T ) e 5,107

* Nornal eguralent yield and ERV are not key observable inputs, Exityields and net operating income have therefore beenused as proxies.

e Nominalequivalent yield _ ERVp/mv
Mlmmum Maximum Average Minimum Maximum Average
Key unobservahleinputs %% % % £ £ £
Filagship destinations S
~UK 7.2 9.5 8.0 191 556 324
~France 4.7 6.4 5.0 357 547 425
—Ireland 5.3 6.0 5.5 351 4384 456
Value Retail * 5.3 6.5 5.9 900 5,000 2,100

* Nominalequivalent yield and ERY are not key observable inputs for Value Retail. Exit yields and netoperalingincome have therefore baenused as proxies.
Valuations are performed on a discounted cash flow basis with discount rates used ranging from 8.5% to 11.0% (average of 5.7%).
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12. PROPERTIES continued

B. TENANT INCENTIVES

Unamortised tenant incentives are included within capital expenditure and impaired as appropriate whereby the provision is calculated in accordance with
the considerations described in note 19D.

Proportionally

Reported Group consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021

£m m £m £m

Unamartised tenant incentives T 13.2 189 29.4 37.0
Provision - o 1 (2.49) (3.9 (5.3) (6.6
- + 10.8 15.0 24.1 30.4

t 2021 figures have heen restated toreflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1Band 6.

A 10 percentage point increase inthe provision rate would increase the impairment charge and hence reduce Reported earnings and Adjusted earnings by
£1.3mand £2.7m, respectively.

C.JOINT OPERATIONS

Investment properties included a 50% interest in the Tlac Centre and a 50% interest in Pavilions, totalling £151.4m (2021: £149.8m). These properties
are jointly controlled in co-ownership with Irish Life Assurance plc.

13.INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group’s tnvestments in joint ventures form part of the Share of Property interests toarrive at management'’s analysis of the Group on a proportionally
consolidated basis as explained in note 3 and set outin note 2.

The Group and its partrers invest principally by way of equity investment, however, non-equity (loan) balances have been included within non-current

other payables as a liability of the jcint verture. Joint ventures comprise prime urhan real estate consisting of ‘flagship destinations’ and ‘developments and
other’ properties.

A.PERCENTAGE SHARE

Jointventure Partner Principal property Share
United Kingdom T
Bishopsgate Goodsyard Regeneration Limited Ballymore Propertios Bishopsgate Goodsyard 50%
Brent Cross Partnership Aberdeen Standard Investrments Brent Cross 41%
Bristel Alliance Lirmited Partnership AXA Real Estate Cabot Circus 50%
Croydon Limited Partnership/Whitgift Limited Partnership Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield Centrale/Whitgift 50%
Grand Central Limited Partnership CPP Investments Grand Central 50%
Highrross Leicester Limited Partnership Asianinvestor introduced by M&G Real Estate Highcross 50%
The Bull Ring Limited Partnership CPP Investments Bullring 50%
The Oracle Limited Fartnership ADIA The Oracle 50%
The West Quay Limited Partrership . GIC ] Westquay ) 50%
Ireland - T
Dundrum Retail Limited Partnership/Dundrum Car Park Allianz Dundrum 50%
Limited Partnership N . - .
France
SCIRC Aulnay 1 and SCI RC Aulnay 2 o Client of Rockspring Property Investment Managers  O'Parinor - 25%

Theresuits of disposals of interests in joint ventures are included up to the point of disposal except for where such disposals form part of assets held for sale
or discontinued operations whereby they are excluded for the whole year. Disposals in the year are set outin note 9A.

Figuresin the following tables include, where applicable, adjustments to align to the Group’s accounting policies and exclude balances which are
eliminated on consolidation. Bishopsgate Goodsyard, Espace Saint-Quentin {up to date of disposalin 2021) and O'Parinor are included in ‘Other’,
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13.INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES continued

B. RESULTS

Brent Cross CabotCircus

£m £m

Grossretalincome 280 278
Net rentalincome 26.5 239
Administrationexpenses S e _
Profit from operating activities 26,5 239
Revaluation losses on properties (35.8) (30.0)
Adjustment for income from assets held for sale ) ) a8 = - )
Operating (loss)/profit 9.3) (6.1)
Finance income - -
Finance costs . o I -2 ) S -} N
(Loss)/profit before tax (9.6) (6.6)
laxcharge R _ S S
(Loss)/prafitfor the year S d (9.6) (6.6)
Share of distributions received by the Group 11.8 15.8

C.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BrentCross Cabot Circus
£m £m

Non-current“assets
Investment properties 396.6 237.3

Othernon-currentassets - - o 128 135
409.4 250.8
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13.0 24.1
Othercurrentassets ) ) R S o S £ S
17.2 31.2

Current liabilities

Loans—secured - -

Other payables ) ) - B {13.6} {21.3) o
(13.6) (21.3)

Non-current liabilities

Loans —secured - -
Obligaticns under head leases (12.8) (14.1)
Other payables — due to Group companies C - -
—other parties and deferred tax _ (0.8) (0.6) o
) ' ' {13.6) (14.7)
Cumulative losses restricted . ) o . o d - =
Net assets/(liabilities) C 399.4 246.0

a Comprisesincomeinrespectof Silverburn asdescribed in note 10A.

b Croydon other current assets includa restricted monetary assets of £41 8m (2021 £61.8m) relating to cash held ‘nescrow for specified development costs.

¢ TheGroup’slong termloan due from Westquay of £348.2m (2021: £348.2m) has been impalired by its share of the net Labilities of Westquay of £201.1m
(2021: £180.8m). The Group's total loans due from joint ventures se*outin noies 19A and 27 A are shown net of this impairment.

d Followingthe impairment of Highcross to £nilin 20271, the Group ceased to equity accaunt for its investmeniin this joint venture such that although gross balance
sheet items an a proportianally consoidated basis remain ‘ncluded inthe Group'sfigures, it is excluded from all income statement metrics inzlucding revafuation

losses. The effect of thisis that the Group's share of resulis is £nil and the cumulative lesses restricted shown on the balance sheet therefore represents the
Group's share of losses which exceed the Group's investmen® of £nil.
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2022

- - 100% share T

T Grand o - )

Bullring Central TheOracle  Westquay Croydon Highcross Dundrum Other Total Groupshare

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

o 452 9.9 221 294 14.3 20.6 55.0 214 273.4 119.4

37.2 6.4 15.7 24.5 0.5 14.3 48.1 22.6 219.7 95.5

o 0.1 (0.1) - - (0.2) (03  (0.4) (0.2) (1.0 (0.3
37.3 6.3 15.7 24.5 0.3 14.0 47.7 22.5 218.7 95.2

(35.0) (4.6) (44.1) (29.3) (54.2) (52,1) {34.2) (12.5) (331.8) (132.1)

. B - - - - - - - (3.2 (3.2) (1.6}
23 1.7 (28.4) (4.8) (53.9) {38.1) 13.5 6.8 (116.3) (38.5)

0.3 - 0.1 - 0.2 7.4 - - 8.0 0.3

,,,,,,, - (03 - (0.2) - (5.0) (1.9) 67 @37 (3.0)

2.6 1.6 (28.3) (5.0) (53.7) (35.7) 11.6 1.1 (122.0) (41.2)

- - - - (0.5) - - - (0 _(0.3)

2.6 1.6 (28;3) (5.0) (54.2) (35.7) 11.6 11 (122.5) (41.5)

23.9 - 0.3 - - - 2.6 - 63.4 63.4

2022

T T 100% share o

- Grand N - T

Bullring Central  The Oracle Westquay Croydon Higheross Dundrum Other Total Group share

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £

540.5 78.5 201.1 285.3 108.9 125.7  1,088.9 379.3 3,442.1 1,620.0

B 2.7 2.6 - 4.2 0.6 61 8.9 = 51.4 267
543.2 811 2011 289.5 109.5 121.8 1,097.8 379.3 3,493.5 1,646.7

18.0 24,7 11.6 16.5 13.9 222 73.3 13.9 231.2 110.9

e 9.8 19.0 3.6 39 65.4 5.0 3.7 19.5 141.2 _ 613
27.8 437 15.2 204 79.3 27.2 77.0 33.4 3724 172.2
- - - - - (158.8) - (186.4) (345.2) (126.1)
. (20.9) (7.3) .7 (10.9) (16.0) (35.7) {14.9) (11.8)  (162.1) _ (807
(20.9) (7.3) (9.7) (10.9) (16.0) (194.5) (14.9) (198.2) (507.3) (206.8)
- - - - - — (530.9) - (530.9) (265.5)
- (2.8) - (4.2) - - - - (33.9) (15.8)

- - - (348.2) (25.3) - (21.3) (45.4)  (440.2) -
(1.0) (0.6) 0.7)  (348.8) {43.3) 0.2) (22.4) (55.8) (4742) = _(63)
(1.0} (3.4) 0.7} (701.2} (68.6) (0.2} (574.6) (102.2) (1,479.2} {287.6)

s - - - - - 35.7 - - 35.7 _ 179

5494 114.1 205.9 (402.2) 104.2 - 585.3 113.3 1,915.1 1,342.4
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13. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES continued

B.RESULTS continued

Brent Cross  CabotCircus
£m £m

Gross rentalincome . S S -t 282 260
Net rentalincome 1 24.3 18.6
Administration expenses - - o on - -
Profit from operating activities Tt 24.2 18.6
Revaluation (losses)/gains on properties 1 (78.5) {(56.0)
Adjustmentforincome fromassetsheldforsale .~~~ - S

Operating (loss)/profit (54.3) (37.4)

Finance incorme

[(0X5) 0.8)

Financecosts wa
{Loss)/profit befare tax ] ) ) (54.7) (38.2)
Taxcharge ) e e S
{Loss)/profit for the year — continuing operations (54.7) (38.2)
Profit for the year ~ discontinyedoperations 22 -
{Loss)/profit for the year ' (52.5) (38.2)

Share of distributions received by the Group 12.6 5.0

C.ASSETSANDLIABILITIES continued

BreniCross  CabotCircus

£m £m
Non-currentassets - - T o
Investment properties 4311 2635
Othernon-current assets o L 131 14.0
' 4442 2775
Cutrent assets
Cashandcash equivalents 1 16.1 334
Other current assets - : _1r 4.2 56
- S / 203 39.0
Current liabilities
Loans ~secured - -
Ctherpayables o ) I o1 5c 2-) N ¢ <
{13.9) (14.8)

Non-current liabilities
Loans ~secured - -
Derivative financial instruments - -
Obligations underhead leases {12.8) {14.2)
Other payables ~ due to Group companies o - -

—other parties and deferred tax . . 05 06
\\\\\\\ - _ O T NN -/ W
Net assets/(liabilities) 4373 2870

1 2021 income siatement igures have been restated 1o reflect the IFRIC Decision on Cancessions ang palance sheet figures have been restated torefiect the
IFRIZ Decision or Depasits winere £31.0m ard £15.0m o~ a 100% and Group share basis, respectivew, has been reciassified from restrictad monetary assets
{which formed part of Othercurrent assets) to cash and cash equivalents. Furtherinformation on both IFRIC decisions is set outin note 1B,
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2021

o o 100%5hareh o

"Grand ) -
Bullning Central The Oracle Westquay Silverburn Croydon Highcross Dundrum Other Total Groupshare
i £ £11) 35 £ Em tm tm £m £m £m
L 408 281 216 244 157 252 185 515 23.0 303.0 1431
30.2 219 12.6 16.8 121 121 11.7 40.1 13.4 2138 100.8
0L on - - 0.1 0.2y 0.3 (0.5) (0.1} (1.5) 07
301 21.8 12.6 168 12,0 11.9 11.4 396 13.3 212.3 100.1
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